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VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE/TOWN OF SALEM

COOPERATIVE PLAN CGPY

UNDER SECTION 66.0307, WISCONSIN STATUTES

The Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, a Wisconsin municipality with offices at
6969 236™ Avenue, Paddock Lake, Wisconsin (hereinafter “Village”), and the Town of
Salem, a Wisconsin municipality with offices at 9814 Antioch Road, Highway 83, Salem,
Wisconsin 53168 (hereinafter “Town"), enter into this Cooperative Plan (hereinafter
“Cooperative Plan”), subject to the approval of the State Department of Administration,
under the authority of Section 66.0301 and Section 66.0307 Wisconsin Statutes.

WHEREAS, Section 66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, authorizes municipalities to
determine the boundary lines between themselves upon approval of a Cooperative Plan by
the State Department of Administration; and,

WHEREAS, the purpose of the Cooperative Plan is cited in Section 66.0307(3)(b),
Wisconsin Statutes as follows:

(b) Purpose of Plan. The Cooperative Plan shall be made with the general
purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and
harmonious development of the territory covered by the Plan which will, in
accordance with existing and future needs, best promote public health,
safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity or the general welfare, as well
as the efficiency and economy in the process of development.

and,

WHEREAS, Section 66.0307(2)(a through d) of the Wisconsin Statutes requires that
Cooperative Plans be organized around “options” for future boundary changes. These
options, listed below, specify how boundary changes will occur over the “boundary plan”
term:

(a)  That specified boundary line changes shall occur during the planning
period and the approximate date by which such changes shall occur.

(b)  That specified boundary line changes may occur during the planning
period and the approximate dates on which the changes occur.

. (¢)  That required boundary line changes under Paragraph (a) or an
option boundary line change under Paragraph (b) shall be subject to
the occurrence of conditions as set forth in the Cooperative Plan.

(d)  That specified boundary lines may not be changed during the
planning period.

This Cooperative Plan is organized around option “c”; and,
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WHEREAS, annexation of Town land in the Village Growth Area by Village places
the Town at the mercy of the annexing property owner with respect to the timing, {ocation,
provision of public services, size and shape of annexed territory; and,

WHEREAS, the Village and the Town enter into this Cooperative Plan to determine
their respective boundaries and to guide and accomplish a coordinated, adjusted and
harmonious development of the territory covered by the Cooperative Plan; and,

WHEREAS, the Village and the Town have cooperated in the establishment of
sewer and water service areas which the Village and the Town understand to be a
designation of orderly service and development. Agreements date back to 1986
commencing with “an agreement between the Village of Paddock Lake, the Town of Bristol
and Town of Salem for sewerage service” and is described in Southeastern Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission Community Assistance Report No. 45; and,

WHEREAS, various supplemental agreements have beeri negotiated between the
Town and the Viilage including: agreement for the shared use of equipment; and,

WHEREAS, the Village and the Town enter into this Cooperative Plan for the
purposes of establishing permanent boundaries, assuring orderly development, and limiting
extraterritorial zoning, land division, condominium platting, and official mapping controls in
the Town Growth Area outside the Village Growth Area; and

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Plan does not adversely affect the exercise of
Kenosha County zoning, platting, and the general powers of Kenosha County in the Town
Growth Area which is not subject to attachment to the Village; and,

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Plan was developed following a review of existing
regional, county and local plans; and,

WHEREAS, the Village and Town have held a joint public hearing on the
Cooperative Plan noticed under Wisconsin Statutes 66.0307(4)(b) on November 16, 2006,
in which comments were -received and which comments are either reflected in this
Cooperative Plan or addressed in Attachment “A”, which consists of an analysis of public
hearing comments; and

WHEREAS, the Village and the Town wish to immediately implement and make
effective this Cooperative Plan and Sanitary Sewer Agreement, as of the date the samé
are contemporaneously executed by the Village and Town. For such reason, both the
Cooperative Plan and Sanitary Sewer Agreement shall be deemed adopted, as of such
date of execution by the Village and Town, under the provisions of Section 66.0301 of the
Wisconsin Statutes (pertaining to intergovernmental agreements). Thereafter, at such time
as all of the approvals are obtained as required under the law, this Cooperative Plan shall
then also be deemed adopted under the provisions of Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin
Statutes, as described above.
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WITNESSETH:

The Village of Paddock Lake and the Town of Salem enter into this Cooperative

Plan under the provisions and authority of (i) Section 66.0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes,

and also (i) Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Village and Town petition the

. State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration, for approval of this Cooperative Plan, in

accordance with the statutory procedures and time frames specified under Section 66.0307
of the Wisconsin Statutes.

SECTION 1
PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES

1.01 This Cooperative Plan applies to the Village of Paddock Lake and Town of
Salem located in Southeastern Wisconsin, which respective municipal boundaries on the
date of approval of this Cooperative Plan by the Parties are shown on the map found in
Attachment B. This Cooperative Plan is being adopted by the Village of Paddock Lake
and the Town of Salem pursuant to both the provisions of Sections 66.0301 and 66.0307
of the Wisconsin Statutes.

SECTION 2
CONTACT PERSON

2.01 The following person is empowered to speak for their municipality respecting
this Cooperative Plan: For the Village of Paddock Lake: The Village Administrator; For the
Town of Salem: The Town Chairperson.

. SECTION 3
TERRITORY SUBJECT TO THE COOPERATIVE PLAN

3.01 The Planning Area subject to this Cooperative Plan is the territorial limits of
the Town shown on Attachment B, less the Village Growth Area, which is described on
Attachment C. (Legal Description found in C-1; Map found in C-2.} and less the corporate
limits of the Village of Silver Lake.

SECTION 4
ISSUES, PROBLEMS, OPPORTUNITIES

This Cooperative Plan will address issues and problems and create opportunities as
noted in the following areas below:

4.01 Establish Boundaries Between the Village and the Town, Thereby
Eliminating Annexation Disputes. Like many towns located next to incorporated
municipalities, the Town has been subjected to the loss of territory to the Village by muitiple
annexations over an extended period of time. Because of the lack of control over the
annexation process, the losses of territory from the Town created, from a municipal
services standpoint, a boundary which was difficult for both parties to service. The
boundaries sought by this Cooperative Plan will recognize the need of the Village of
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Paddock Lake to grow and the need of the Town of Salem to maintain secure boundaries
and to engage in meaningful planning. A border will allow both municipalities to engage in
land use planning, for both to avoid disputes, as well as for both to properly plan for
infrastructure improvements for sewer, water and other urban amenities. The boundaryto
be established by this Cooperative Plan is shown on Attachment C-2.

4.02 Assure Orderly Development of the Village Within the Village Growth
Area and of the Town Within the Town Growth Area. Capital infrastructure
improvements require a planning horizon which may be from one to five years in length.
Under normal annexation dynamics, annexations may occur well in advance of the
planning for infrastructure improvements.  Because of the capital infrastructure
improvement planning horizons, the infrastructure may not be extended into the annexed
territory for one to five years. The orderly phasing of growth and development will be
enhanced by this Cooperative Plan.

.4.03 Provide Sanitary Sewer Service in Village Growth Area. The Village and
the Town have entered into the 2006 Intergovernmental Agreement respecting sanitary
sewer service within the Village Growth Area, a copy of which is attached hereto as
Attachment “D”, and incorporated herein {hereinafter “Sanitary Sewer Agreement”).

4.04 Control Urban Sprawl. Absent the urban services of municipal sewer and
water, new building in the Town could resuit in non-compact and “leap frog” development.
The Town believes that the economics and public health enhancement resulting from the
provision of municipal sewer and water will greatly reduce the prospect of “urban sprawl”
and allow for continued sound long range planning within the Town.

4.05 Increase the Level of Public Safety Services Available to Areas of the
Town Attached to the Village. Because many Village ordinances will apply to the Village
Growth Area at the commencement of this Cooperative Plan, the Town and the Village
believe that the public safety amenities of urban living will enhance the quality of life within
the Village Growth Area. The provision of sanitary sewer in the Town Growth Area, outside
the Village Growth Area will similarly enhance public health quality, and the protection of
ground and surface waters. This Cooperative Plan will also enhance transportation
planning through predictable and controlled growth.

SECTION 5
VILLAGE GROWTH AREA/BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT AREA OF TOWN

5.01 The area of the Town subject to boundary adjustments over the term of this
Cooperative Plan and reserved for Village Growth (hereinafter “Village Growth Area”), is
legally described and shown on the map on Attachment C-2.
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SECTION 6
CURRENT LAND USE AND PHYSIOGRAPHIC CONDITIONS OF THE
VILLAGE GROWTH AREA TERRITORY INCLUDED IN COOPERATIVE PLAN

6.01 The current land use and physiographic conditions of the Village Growth Area
territory included in the Cooperative Plan are identified on Attachment E.

SECTION 7
TERM OF THE BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT PERIOD

7.01 The term of this Cooperative Plan shall be for twenty (20) years. The term of
the boundary adjustment period shall be twenty (20) years from the date of approval of the
governing bodies of the Village and the Town

The basis for the twenty (20) year boundary adjustment period is that such a time
period is anticipated to be the time required for the Village to assimilate the territory in the
Village Growth Area in an orderly basis and in a cost effective manner.

SECTION 8
VILLAGE GROWTH AREA AS BOUNDARY
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE AND THE TOWN OF SALEM

8.01 The limits of the Viliage bordering the Town as expanded through the
attachment of the Village Growth Area under this Cooperative Plan, as depicted on
Attachment C-2, shall constitute the boundary line between the Village and the Town. The
Village may attach areas within the Village Growth Area as provided by this Cooperative
Plan, but will not attach and hereby waives its right to attach portions of the Town outside
the Village Growth Area, except where the Town Board petitions the Village for attachment.
The Village shall not accept any annexation petition nor pass any ordinance of annexation
which annexes property in the Town to the Village which lies outside the Village Growth
Area without Town approval.

The Village and the Town have determined that the boundary established by this
Cooperative Plan best promotes public heaith, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and
general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy of development between the Viillage
and the Town.

SECTION 9
SANITARY SEWER SERVICE

9.01 The Village and the Town have entered into Preexisting Intergovernmental
Agreements, some of which were in effect upon the date of approval of this Cooperative
Plan by the Parties. The Village and the Town have operated and will continue to operate
under the terms and conditions of those agreements which are in effect until such time as
this Cooperative Plan is approved by the State of Wisconsin, Department of Administration.

if, for whatever reason, this Cooperative Plan is not approved by the State of Wisconsin,
Department of Administration, it is the intention of the Village and the Town that all other
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provisions of this Agreement shall survive as an Intergovernmental Agreement under
Section 66.0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The Sanitary Sewer Agreement will becomea
part of this Cooperative Plan. However, the Sanitary Sewer Agreement may be amended
from time to time by mutual agreement of the parties outside of the Cooperative Plan
review and approval process.

SECTION 10
SANITARY SEWER AND WELL PERMITS,
BUILDING PERMITS, LAND USE REVIEWS AND PERMITS,
REZONINGS, LAND DIVISIONS,

SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN CONNECTIONS,
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND CHARGES,
NONCONFORMING USES, AND
WITHIN THE VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

10.01 Restrictions On Exercise of Town Authority. In the Village Growth Area,
the Town will not have or exercise any power or authority to accept, process, review or
recommend applications, or approve any of the following:

10.011 Sanitary Sewer and Well Permits for new buildings and structures.

10.012 Building Permits for new buildings and structures, except as permitted
in Sections 10.021 through 10.023 of this Cooperative Plan.

10.013 Land use reviews and any other development permits for new
buildings and structures.

10.014 Land Divisions, or Condominium Developments as defined in Chapter
38 of the Village Code of General Ordinances.

10.015 Rezonings, Conditional Use Permits or Zoning or Use Variances.

10.016 Connections to Village Water Utility water mains or Village Sanitary
Sewer District sanitary sewer mains.

10.02 Exercise of Town Authority. In the Village Growth Area, the Town shall
have the power and authority to accept, process, review, recommend and approve, subject
to written notice of the following applications to and approved by the Village. The Village
shall have twenty-one (21) business days following receipt of such notice to approve or
disapprove. A dispute arising from disapproval shall be subject to the dispute resolution
provision of Section 30.02 of this Cooperative Pian.

10.021 Building Permits for additions to existing single and two family
residential buildings, not in excess of twenty (20%) percent of the size of the existing
building, or five hundred (500) square feet, whichever is greater,
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10.022 Building Permits for accessory buildings for single, two family
residential and agricuitural buildings which do not have sanitary sewer or water service.

10.023 Building Permits for single, two family residential and agricultural
buildings of equivalent size to buildings that were destroyed by catastrophe or act of God.

10.03 Attachment To Village Required. The Village requires property in
the Village Growth Area to be attached to the Village as a pre-condition to Village
exercising its power and authority to accept, process, review, recommend and approve any
of the following:

10.031 Building Permits for new buildings and structures, and additions
thereto, except as provided in Sections 10.021 through 10.023.

10.032 Site Plan and Conditional Use reviews and approvals for new buildings
and structures, except as provided in Sections 10.021 through 10.023.

10.033 Land Divisions, or Condominium Developments, as defined in Chapter
38 of the Village Code of General Ordinances.

10.034 Rezonings, Conditional Use Permits or Zoning or Use Variances.

10.035 Connections to Village Water Utility water mains and/or Village
sanitary sewer mains.

10.04 Special Assessments and Charges. The Village may levy special
assessments for municipal work or improvements under Section 66.0703 or impose a
special charge under Section 66.0627 on property in the Town and the Town may levy
special assessments for municipal work or improvements under Section 66.0703 or impose
a special charge under Section 66.0627 on property in the Village, if the property subjectto
the assessment or charge abuts and benefits from the work or improvement or is served by
current services rendered by the municipality imposing the special charge. Inthe case of
any such assessments, the governing body of the municipality where the property is
located shall by resolution approve the levy of the assessment as provided in Section
66.0707, Wis. Stats.

10.05 NonConforming Uses. Any parcel of land attached to the Village shall have
and/or retain any nonconforming use status available to such parcel under State Law as
established by Section 62.23(7), Wisconsin Statutes, and Section 12.08 of the Village
Zoning Ordinance, subject to amendments and court interpretations thereof.
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SECTION 11
ATTACHMENT OF TERRITORY IN VILLAGE GROWTH AREA OF TOWN TO
VILLAGE

Territory in the Village Growth Area of the Town shall be attached to the Village
during the twenty (20) year boundary adjustment period of this Cooperative Plan as
follows:

11.01 Procedure For Attachment. The Village shall give ten (10) days advance,
written notice to the Town Clerk/Treasurer, and without review and recommendation by the
Village Plan Commission or any other subunit of the Village, and without further review and
approval of the Town, adopt ordinances from time to time attaching the territory constituting
the Initial Attachment. The Village Clerk/Treasurer shali file immediately with the Secretary
of State a certified copy of the Attachment Ordinance, certificate and plat, and shall send
one (1) copy to each company that provides any utility service to the area that is attached.
The Attachment Ordinance that is filed or sent shall describe the attached territory and the
associate population. The Village Clerk/Treasurer shall record the Attachment Ordinance
with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds and file a signed copy of the Attachment
Ordinance with the Clerk of any affected school district. The Attachment Ordinance thatis
filed, recorded or sent shall describe the attached territory and the associated population.
Failure to file, record or send shall not invalidate the attachment and the duty to file, record
or send shail be a continuing one.

11.02 Intermediate Attachments. There may be intermediate attachments of the
territory of the Village Growth Area of the Town to the Village until the final attachment
hereinafter provided has become effective. The Village has sole discretion as to the time
Intermediate Attachments will be attached to the Village. The procedure for intermediate
attachments recognizes a political compromise respecting the desire of single and two
family zoned or lawfully used residential properties which are occupied by the owners:
(“Residential Property”) in the Village Growth Area to remain Town residents for the term of
this Cooperative Plan subject to the required Final Attachment in twenty (20) years. Real
Estate sales statistics show that very few Residential Property owners retain title to a given
parcel of real estate for more than twenty (20) years. This means that the Residential
Property owners who do attach to the Village will likely be those who bought their property
knowing that attachment to the Village is required. This limitation, in effect, grandfathers
Residential Property owners as Town residents for a period which could extend for twenty
(20) years unless those property owners petition the Village for earlier attachment. This
limitation further permits the sale from one owner to another of Residential Property,
without attachment, until the Final Attachment is required. Notwithstanding the above,
property owners who, prior to the effective date of this Cooperative Plan, have entered into
Annexation Agreements with the Village to annex their property to the Village upon the
occurrence of condition precedents, shali abide by those agreements. The Village shall
attach said properties in accordance with said Annexation Agreements. No Residential
Property shall be attached to the Village as an Intermediate Attachment without the
consent of the owner(s).
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11.03 Final Attachment. There shall be a final attachment of territory in the Village
Growth Area of the Town to the Village, including all territory remaining in the Village
Growth Area of the Town, irrespective of the occupancy, use or any other factors, effective
on the twentieth (20“‘) anniversary of the effective date of this Cooperative Plan.

11.04 Parcels of Land To Be Attached. Except for the Final Attachment, and
except for parcels of land which are located in both the Village Growth Area and Town
Growth Area as identified in Attachment C-2, only entire parcels of land in the Village
Growth Area of the Town will be attached to the Village.

SECTION 12
PROCEDURE FOR ATTACHMENT

12.01 Procedure for Intermediate Attachments.

Upon written petition for attachment filed with the Village Clerk/Treasurer on
Viliage forms by the owners of one-half of the land petitioned to be attached,
in either area or assessed value, the Village Board of Trustees shall, within
ten (10) days, give advance, written notice to the Town Clerk and without
review and recommendation by the Village Plan Commission or any other
subunit of the Village, and without further review and approval of the Town,
adopt ordinances from time to time attaching the territory constituting the
Intermediate Attachment. The Village Clerk/Treasurer shall file immediately
with the Secretary of State a certified copy of the Attachment Ordinance,
certificate and plat, and shall send one (1) copy to each company that
provides any utility service to the area that is attached. The Attachment
Ordinance that is filed or sent shall describe the attached territory and the
associate population. The Village Clerk/Treasurer shall record the
attachment ordinance with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds and file a
signed copy of the attachment ordinance with the Clerk of any affected
school district. The attachment ordinance that is filed, recorded or sent shall
describe the attached territory and the associated population. Failure tofile,
record or send shali not invalidate the attachment and the duty to file, record
or send shall be a continuing one.

In any event, however, no Residential Property shali be attached to the
Village as an Intermediate Attachment without the consent of the owner(s).

Notwithstanding Section 12.01(a), no parcel of land may be divided soas to
be part in the Village and part in the Town by an Intermediate Attachment
without the consent of the owner(s), except where the Cooperative Plan
permanent boundary line, shown on Attachment C-2, divides a parcel of
jand.

Where a petition for attachment involves Residentia! Property occupied by
electors other than the owner(s) (or land contract vendee), only the owner(s)
have the right to consent to the attachment.

9
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Territory may be attached to the Village, under this Cooperative Plan, subject
to all of the provisions of this Section 12.01, irrespective of size, shape, or
contiguousness of the territory covered by the petition. The Village, however,
may reject any petition to attach territory which is either not contiguous, or
not configured in a manner which will enable Village to provide adequate and
timely service until such time as the Village is able to provide adequate and
timely service, or until the Final Attachment. The Village is authorized to
confer with land owners interested in a petition for attachmentto recommend
the size, shape and contiguity of the territory to be covered by the petition.

Any territory not attached to the Village as an Intermediate Attachment shall
be attached to the Village as a final attachment in accordance with the time
frames and procedures governing final attachments.

12.02 Procedure for Final Attachment. The final attachment shall be effective as
provided in Section 11.03 without further notice, hearing or action. The Village Board shail
adopt an attachment ordinance for the purpose of memorializing the attachment. The
Village Clerk/Treasurer shall file, record or send the attachment ordinances in the same
manner as described under Subsection 12.01.

12.03 Public Right-of-Ways. Public right-of-way attachments in the Village Growth
Area will oceur as identified on Attachment C-2. Upon the Transfer Date, the right-of-way
of any boundary street identified in Attachment C-2 which was in the Town prior to the
Effective Date, shall remain part of the Town.

Where Intermediate Attachments abut a public right-of-way, the Village shall have
discretion as to whether or not to attach said public right-of-way to the Village at any time
prior to the Final Attachment or at the Final Attachment.

12.04 Transfer Date of Attachment. The Town territory in the Village Growth Area
constituting an Intermediate Attachment shall be attached to the Village effective on the
date after the day of publication of the Attachment Ordinance unless another date is
provided in the Attachment Ordinance (the “Transfer Date”). The Final Attachment shall
be effective as provided in Section 11.03.

12.05 Zoning of Attaéhed Parcels. Attached parcels shali come into the Village
under the most restrictive classification in the Village Zoning Ordinance, subject to the
provisions of Section 10.05 of this Cooperative Plan respecting nonconforming use.

SECTION 13
LOCAL ORDINANCES AFFECTING VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

The Village Growth Area, during the term of this Cooperative Plan, shall be

governed by Village, County, and Town General Ordinances, and by Village and County
(as applicable) Zoning Ordinances as hereinafter provided.

10
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13.01 Attached Territory. The Town territory, upon attachment to the Village
under this Cooperative Plan, shall become Village territory subject to all the Village Zoning
and Code of General Ordinances on the effective date of the attachment, subject to the
provisions of Section 10.05 of this Cooperative Plan respecting nonconforming uses.

13.02 Town Territory in The Village Growth Area.

13.02.1 Town territory in the Village Growth Area, prior to attachment, shalt be
subject to any County Zoning Ordinance. applicable within the Village limits; for example,
shoreland and public health ordinances. Village will assume and exercise all obligations
and responsibilities, and review and approval authority of the Town in administering all
Kenosha County zoning ordinances applicable to the Village Growth Area, including zoning
ordinances adopted under ss. 59.692, 87.30, and 91.71 to 91.78, Wisconsin Statutes,
where appropriate, as of the effective date of this Cooperative Plan.

SECTION 14
LOCAL ORDINANCES, COUNTY ORDINANCES AND
MUTUAL AGREEMENTS AFFECTING TOWN AREAS
OUTSIDE VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

14.01 The Town territory not included in the Village Growth Area shall continue to
be governed by the General Ordinances of the Town and the County of Kenosha relating
to zoning.

The Town has not enacted zoning regulations and has relied upon the County to
provide for said zoning regulations pursuant to ss. 59.69, Wisconsin Statutes. The County
regulations and the enforcement thereof are to remain with the County subject to change
only in accordance with the provisions of the statute or incorporation to a village or Village.

SECTION 15
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL

15.01 Itis a finding of fact between the Town of Salem and the Village of Paddock
Lake that uncontrolled storm water runoff and construction site erosion from land
development and land disturbing activities can have significant adverse impacts upon local
water resources and the heath, safety and general welfare of the community and diminish
the public enjoyment and use of natural resources.

15.02 To that end, it is in both municipalities’ interests to establish regulatory
requirements for land development and land disturbing activities aimed to minimize the
threats to public health, safety, welfare, and the natural resources from construction site
erosion and post-construction storm water runoff.

15.03 It is recommended that each municipality adopt erosion control and storm
water management ordinances addressing control of both water quantity and quality. Itis
further recommended that storm water management plans be prepared for areas of
significant existing and/or planned urban development. Priority should be given to those

11
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watersheds which experience serious drainage problems and those which are expected to
develop first. :

15.04 it is recommended that ordinances be consistent with the non-point source
pollution control standards set forth in Chapter NR 151, Runoff Management, of the
Wisconsin Administrative Code and that they include provisions to encourage fow impact
source controls and storm water management practices designed to maintain pre-
development hydrologic conditions by promoting infiltration where appropriate. Chapter NR
152 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, “Model Ordinances for Construction Site
Erosion Control and Storm Water Management”, can serve as a guide for development of
the water quality control sections of the ordinance. That mode! is consistent with the
requirements of Chapter NR 151.

15.05 Local ordinances should call for water quantity controls on new development
that incorporate post-construction release rates. The study area encompasses a
combination of lands that are ultimately tributary to the Fox River and lands that are
ultimately tributary to the Des Plaines River (see attachment “F”). For the lands within the
Fox River watershed, the ordinances should require controls such that the post-
construction peak storm water discharge rates shail not exceed the pre-construction peak
discharge rates for the 2-year, 10-year, and 100-year, 24-hour design storms. It is
recommended that a different standard is used for lands within the Des Plaines River
watershed. A 2003 study completed by the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning
Commission, “A Comprehensive Plan for the Des Plaines Watershed”, recommends that
ordinances be created to require controls to meet the post-construction 2-year storm peak
discharge rate of 0.04 cubic per second per acre of new development and the 100-year
peak discharge rate of 0.30 cubic feet per second per acre of new development. These
release rates should be considered as maximums.

15.06 It is also a finding of fact that in compliance with the provisions of Chapter
283 of the Wisconsin State Statutes ard Chapters NR 151 and 216 of the Wisconsin
Administrative code, owners and operators of municipal separate storm sewer systems
(MS4s) will be permitted to discharge storm water from all portions of the municipal
separate storm sewer system owned or operated by the municipality to waters of the state
in accordance with the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES)
General Permit No. W!-S050075-1. The Town of Salem and the Village of Paddock Lake
have been named as municipalities that will require MS4 permit Coverage. The Wisconsin
Department of Natural Resources anticipates authorizing MS4 permit coverage to the
municipalities covered under this agreement by late 2006 or 2007. This permit will require
the municipalities to reduce pollutants that discharge through its MS4 via public education
and outreach, public involvement and participation, illicit discharge detection and
elimination, construction site pollutant control, post-construction pollutant control and
practicing pollution prevention in its municipal operations.

12
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SECTION 16
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC STREETS, SIDEWALKS,
IMPROVEMENTS AND PLACEMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES IN STREET
RIGHT-OF-WAY IN VILLAGE GROWTH AREA PRIOR TO ATTACHMENT OF TOWN
TERRITORY TO THE VILLAGE

16.01 The Town, within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, shall
adopt and apply Village standards in the Village Growth Area with respect to the design
and construction of public streets, sidewalks, improvements generally placed in right-of-
ways (trees, signs, etc.), and the placement of public utilities (including, but not limited to,
water, electric, gas, telephone, and cable television, but not including sanitary sewers) in
the street right-of-way.

Within the Village Growth Area prior to attachment of Town territory to the Village,
when a party to this Cooperative Plan having jurisdiction over a street or highway which is
situated on a Village/Town boundary line improves such street or highway, or when either
the Village Water Utility or the Town install sanitary sewers or water mains within such
boundary street or highway, and the territory of the other party is benefited by such
improvements, the benefited party at the request of the party installing such improvements
shall pay for its pro rata share of the cost of such improvement based upon the benefits
received. Where the benefits received are specially assessable benefits to individual
property owners, the parties mutually agree to assist in the levy and collection of said
special assessments as provided by Wisconsin Statutes.

The party intending to perform such work in or upon a boundary street right-of-way
is required to give notice to the other party not less than sixty (60) days before
commencement of the work.

~ Anydispute regarding the appropriate allocation of costs shall be determined by a
joint report promptly prepared and issued by the engineers for the Town or Village (as to
street improvements), as appropriate. If and to the extent the engineers reach agreement,
the issues shall be deemed to be finally resolved. Ifthe engineers are not able to resolve
disputed issues, the Village Administrator and the Town Chairperson or Designee are not
able to resolve such issues after meeting at least twice within thirty (30) days following the
issuance of the engineers’ joint report or within such additional time as they may agree to
in writing, a mutually satisfactory arbitrator shall be selected by the Village Administrator
and the Town Chairperson or Designee within the next thirty (30) days or within such
additional time as they may agree to in writing. The remaining disputed issues shall then
be determined by binding arbitration. The Village and the Town shall equally share in the
costs of arbitration. Alternatively, the Village Administrator and the Town Chairperson or
Designee may agree in writing to litigate such issues in court, and such issues shall be
litigated in court if they fail to reach timely agreement on the selection of an arbitrator. In
either of which events the prevailing party shall have the right to recover from the other
party its reasonable litigation expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.
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SECTION 17
TOWN INCORPORATION AND AFFECT OF
TOWN INCORPORATION ON VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

417.01 ltis further understood that at some time in the future a portion or all of
the Town outside the Village Growth Area may be the subject of a petition to the State for
incorporation into a village or city. The Village agrees that it shall not oppose any future
incorporation petition filed by the Town or residents thereof under the standards for
incorporation in Sections 66.0201 through 66.0211, Wisconsin Statutes, as said statutes
exist on the effective date of this Cooperative Plan. A copy of said statutes are attached
hereto as Attachment G.

The consolidation of the Town with a bordering Town, or the incorporation of the
Town as a City or Village, will not affect the implementation of this Cooperative Plan, the
boundary changes provided for, or the obligations of the Town and the Village under this
Cooperative Plan. In the event of consolidation or incorporation of the Town, the ordinance
for consolidation or order for incorporation shall include a provision obligating the surviving
municipality to implement this Cooperative Plan, the boundary changes provided for, and to
otherwise carry out the obligations of the Town and Village under this Cooperative Plan.

SECTION 18
ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION OF THE COOPERATIVE PLAN

18.01 The Village and the Town have evaluated the environmental consequences
of this Cooperative Plan, including air and water pollution impacts, energy use, and effect
on urban sprawl and expect minimum impacts. This Cooperative Plan facilitates consistent
and coherent Town planning for infrastructure and other development in the Town teritory.

This Cooperative Plan is consistent with all applicable state and federal laws, municipal
regulations, shore land zoning ordinances and administrative rules.

Because intensive manufacturing development is not anticipated by this Cooperative
Plan, there are no potential adverse environmental consequences {including air and water
poliution) related to manufacturing development. The Master Plan for the Village Growth
Area reduces the potential impact of urban sprawl by providing for open space while
concentrating the location of residential and commercial development. The reservation of
all natural areas, wetiands, floodplains and upland woods will allow for the continuation of
natural vegetation absorbing air poliutants and preventing soil erosion.

On the Effective Date, the Town Wastewater Treatment Plant has adequate
capacity to serve the Village Growth Area and the Town Service Area existing on the
Effective Date.

Construction site maintenance and erosion control for new construction shall be -

regulated in the Village Growth Area by Chapter XXXIIi of the Village's Code of General
Ordinances.
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Section 15 of this Plan provides for storm water management and control in the
Village Growth Area and in the Town as it relates to the development of storm water
management plans and cooperative efforts to manage storm water.

The development of the Village Growth Area will be in compliance with State and
Federal environmental laws and regulations, Sanitary sewer and water extensions will be
subject to the Department of Natural Resources approvals. No major development is
expected in the Village Growth Area which would require Federal or State air poliution
control permits or waivers. Private wells upon premises served by Village water service in
the Village Growth Area must be maintained under a permit or abandoned under the
Village Code of General Ordinances. -

This Cooperative Plan and the Sanitary Sewer Agreement provide for Town sanitary
sewer service to the Village Growth Area. This service will provide for compact
development and minimize urban sprawl in the Village Growth Area.

Based upon plans developed atthe regional, county and local levels of govemment
for the surrounding communities, the impact of the boundary changes and the
development within the Village Growth Area affected by this Cooperative Plan will be
compatible with, and will have no negative impacts on, the surrounding communities. All
surrounding villages and towns are subject to zoning ordinances and land division control
ordinances.

SECTION 19
PERIODIC CONFERENCES AND LONG-RANGE PLANNING

19.01 Town and Village shall confer from time to time, to review and discuss
concerns relating to land use, stormwater management and drainage, boundary streets,
capital improvement projects, and other matters of mutual concern.

SECTION 20
LAND DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

20.01 The Village regulates land development by requiring, under ordinance, that
developers execute land development agreements which require developers to provide, at
their own cost and expense, all infrastructure required to serve their developments. The
Village will aiso consult with the Town and it's staff and/or consuitants to include in such
development agreements provisions sufficient to guaranty the timely construction of any
Town owned sanitary sewer infrastructure improvements required to support such
development

To the extent that there are certain infrastructure costs which must be borne by the
Village, the Village budgets for such expenditures under a five (5) year Capital
Improvements Plan funded through borrowing and bonding. At the present time the Village
has only exercised less than five (5%) percent of its borrowing capacity, demonstrating that

the Village has the financial resources to serve the Village Growth Area.
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SECTION 21
PETITIONS TO ANNEX PRIOR TO
EFFECTIVE DATE OF COOPERATIVE PLAN

21.01 The Village may process, review and approve any petition to annex property
in the Village Growth Area to the Village under Sections 66.0217 or 66.0219, Wisconsin
Statutes, while this Cooperative Plan is being reviewed by the State of Wisconsin,
Department of Administration.

SECTION 22
EXTRATERRITORIAL ZONING, LAND DIVISION, CONDOMINIUM PLATTING,
AND OFFICIAL MAPPING CONTROLS IN TOWN OUTSIDE THE
VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

22.01 The Village will not exercise any extraterritorial zoning, land division,
condominium platting, or official mapping controls in the Town outside the Village Growth
Area.

SECTION 23
MASTER PLANNING

23.01 Master Plans. Village adopted Master Pians for the Village Growth Area shall
govern land development until repealed, amended or superseded in accordance with State
law governing Master Planning.

23.02 Mutual Approval. Village has no objection to duly adopted Town Master
Plans applicable to Town territory outside the Village Growth Area. Town has no objection
to duly qdopted Village Master Plans applicable to the Village Growth Area.

23.03 New Master Plans and Amendments To Existing Master Plans. Village,
at any time, may adopt or amend any master plan for the Village Growth Area or any part
thereof. ,

SECTION 24
AUTHORIZING RESOLUTIONS, ATTEST BY AFFIDAVIT,
COOPERATIVE PLAN ADOPTION RESOLUTIONS, AND
RECORD OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

24.01 Initial Authorizing Resolutions. Section 66.0307(4)(a) of the Wisconsin
Statutes, requires that initial authorizing resolutions for the preparation of a Cooperative
Plan must be approved by each participating municipality (that is, the Village and the
Town) before Cooperative Plan preparation may commence. Authorizing resolutions must
be dated and signed by the chief elected official and attested by the municipal clerk of each
municipality participating in the Cooperative Plan. Copies of the Village and Town initial
authorizing resolutions are found in Attachment H. '
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24.02 Attest By Affidavit. Section 66.0307(4)(a)(1-4) of the Wisconsin Statutes
regarding the Cooperative Plan requires an attest by affidavit that authorizing resolutions
described under Section 24.01 above were sent to: The Department of Administration,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR), Department of Agriculture, Trade, and Consumer
Protection (DATCP), and Department of Transportation (DOT); the clerks of any
municipality, school district, vocational technical and adult education district, sewer or
sanitary district which has any part of its territory within five (5) miles of a participating
municipality; the clerk of each county in which a participating municipality is located; and,
any county zoning agency or regional planning commission whose jurisdiction includes a
participating municipality. The “Attests by Affidavit” is found in Attachment |.

24.03 Resolutions Indicating Adoption and Authorizing Transmittal of the
Cooperative Plan to the State, Copies of resolutions indicating adoption and authorizing
transmittal of the Cooperative Plan to the Wisconsin Department of Administration for
review, dated and signed by the chief elected official and attested by the clerk from each
participating municipality - the Village and the Town - are found in Attachment J.

24.04 Record of Public Participation and Comment. The public comment and
hearing requirements in Section 66.0307(4)(b) and (c) of the Wisconsin Statutes were met.
The public hearing comments are found in Attachment A.

SECTION 25
NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY

25.01 This Cooperative Plan is intended to be solely between the Village of
Paddock Lake and the Town of Salem. Nothing in this Cooperative Plan shall be
interpreted as giving to any person or entity not party to this Cooperative Plan any legal or
equitable rights whatsoever.

SECTION 26 : '
ADMINISTRATION OF THIS COOPERATIVE PLAN

26.01 This Cooperative Plan shall be administered on behalf of the Town by the
Town Chairperson or designee, on behalif of the Village, by the Village Administrator or
designee. The appointment of a designee must be in writing, and the other party to this
Cooperative Plan must be notified in writing of the appointment.

SECTION 27
ENFORCEMENT

27.01 Remedies. This Cooperative Plan is intended to provide each party with the
right and standing to chailenge in Court any act or omission which violates this Cooperative
Plan. This Cooperative Plan is intended to provide each party with the right and standing
to seek any available legal or equitable remedy to enforce this Cooperative Plan and to
seek damages for the breach of this Cooperative Plan.

17



Rev.10/3/2006

27.02 Notice of Breach/Dispute Resolution. [f a party to this Cooperative Plan
believes that the other party is in breach of this Cooperative Plan, the aggrieved party shall
promptly serve written notice of said breach upon the other party. The parties shall meet
promptly thereafter and shall endeavor in good faith to resolve any dispute amicably. Ifthe
initial meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the parties shall meet again within thirty (30)
days after service of the written notice. Failure or refusal of a party to meet promptly and
attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute shall be deemed a waiver by such party of any
right to recover any litigation expenses or attorney fees other than statutory costs;
provided, however, that good faith shall not require an amendment of this Cooperative
Plan. This subparagraph is intended by the parties to waive their respective statutory right
to any further notice under Subsection 893.80(1)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, to the extent such
subsection is applicable.

27.03 Limitation on Commencement of Civil Action. No civil action may be
commenced until after thirty (30) days from the effective date of written notice required by
this Cooperative Plan, except that a party may commence an action seeking specific
performance or injunctive relief in less than thirty (30) days if, in that party’s good faith
judgment, such an action is necessary to protect the public health, safety or welfare. -
Except as otherwise provided in this Cooperative Plan, the prevailing party in any action
concerning an alleged breach of this Cooperative Plan shall be entitled to recover from the
other party its reasonable costs and expenses of litigation, including reasonable actual

attorney's fees.

SECTION 28
NO CHALLENGES TO THIS COOPERATIVE PLAN

28.01 Village entities and Town entities hereby waive any right each may have to
commence or maintain any civil action or other proceeding to contest, invalidate or
challenge this Cooperative Plan or any of the actions required or contemplated by this
Cooperative Plan, or to take any actions, either directly or indirectly, to oppose in any other
way, or to initiate, promote or support the opposition of this Cooperative Plan or any of the
actions required or contemplated by this Cooperative Plan.

SECTION 29
AMENDMENT

29.01 This Cooperative Plan may be amended by the further mutual written
agreement of the Village and Town pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.0301 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. After this Cooperative Planis also fully adopted and approved under
the law under the provisions of Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin Statutes, however, then
this Cooperative Plan shall be amended pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.0307(8)
of the Wisconsin Statutes. In any event, either party may arbitrarily withhold its consent to
any amendment.
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SECTION 30
GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING

30.01 The parties hereby acknowledge that this Cooperative Plan imposes onthem
a duty of good faith and fair dealing.

SECTION 31
SEVERABILITY

31.01 The provision of this Cooperative Plan, and the individual parts of each such
provision, shall be severable. In the event that any provision of this Cooperative Plan, or
any part thereof, is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or ineffective, the
balance of this Cooperative Plan shall survive. In such event, the parties shall promptly
meet to discuss how they might satisfy the intent of this Cooperative Plan by alternative
means.

31.02 The parties shall use their best efforts to find, design and implement a means
of successfully accomplishing the intent of this Cooperative Plan. If necessary, the parties
shall negotiate appropriate amendments of this Cooperative Plan to maintain, as closely as
possible, the original terms, intent and balance of benefits and burdens of this Cooperative
Plan. In the event the parties are not able to reach agreement in such situation, either
party may, by thirty (30) days written notice to the other, require submission of such dispute
to an impartial arbitrator, to be mutually selected by the parties during such thirty (30) day
period, for binding arbitration. Town and Village shall promptly pay on an equal basis all
fees and expense of the selected arbitrator.

SECTION 32
INVALID OR INEFFECTIVE ORDINANCE

32.01 In the event that any ordinance, including but not limited to Attachment and
Zoning Ordinances, which the parties are required or entitled to enact and/or enforce by
this Cooperative Plan is adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
ineffective, in whole or in part, the parties shall promptly meet to discuss how they might
satisfy the intent of this Cooperative Plan by alternative means, including, without limitation,
enacting another ordinance designed to satisfy the court's objections. The parties shall
use their best efforts to find, design and implement a means of successfully accomplishing
the intent of this Cooperative Plan. If necessary, the parties shall negotiate appropriate
amendments of this Cooperative Plan to maintain, as closely as possible, the original
terms, intent and balance of benefits and burdens of this Cooperative Plan. In the event
the parties are not able to reach agreement in such situation, either party may, by thirty
(30) days written notice to the other, require submission of such dispute to an impartial
arbitrator, to be mutually selected by the parties during such thirty (30) day period, for
binding arbitration. Town and Village shall promptly pay on an equal basis all fees and
expenses of the selected arbitrator.

19



Rev.10/3/2006
SECTION 33
SUCCESSORS

33.01 This Cooperative Plan shall benefit and be binding upon the successors of
Town, including any portion which may hereinafter be incorporated, and upon Village.
Successors include, but are not limited to, a city, village or town being a party to a
consolidation, and any other governmental entity which may govern the Village Growth
Area.

SECTION 34
IMPLEMENTATION

34.01 Town and Village shall each take such actions as may be necessary or
desirable to implement and effectuate the provisions and intent of this Cooperative Plan,

SECTION 35
REFERENCES

35.01 Any references in this Cooperative Plan to any particular agency,
organization or official shall be interpreted as applying to any successor agency,
organization or official or to any other agency, organization or official to which
contemplated functions are transferred by statute or ordinance. Any references in this
Cooperative Plan to any particular statute or ordinance shall be interpreted as applying to
such statute or ordinance as recreated, amended, or renumbered from time to time.

SECTION 36
PARAGRAPH TITLES

36.01 Paragraph titles in this Cooperative Plan are provided for convenience only
and shall-not be used in interpreting this Cooperative Plan.

SECTION 37
INTERPRETATION

37.01 This Cooperative Plan shall be interpreted as though jointly drafted by the
parties.

SECTION 38
NOTICES

38.01 All notices required by or relating to this Cooperative Plan shall be in writing.
Each notice shall specifically refer to this Cooperative Plan by name and shall refer
specifically to the number of the paragraph(s) or subparagraph(s) to which the notice
relates. Any such notice shall be delivered in person to the clerk of the party receiving the
notice or to the person apparently in charge of the clerk’s office during normal business
hours, or shall be mailed to such clerk by certified mail, return receipt requested (or
equivalent private delivery service). Each notice to the Town shall be addressed to the
Town Clerk, Town of Salem, 9814 Antioch Road, Salem, Wisconsin 53168. Each notice to
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the Village shall be addressed to the Village Clerk/Treasurer, Village of Paddock Lake,
6969 236" Avenue, Paddock Lake, Wisconsin 53168. Each party may change its address
(or add addresses for facsimile, electronic mail or other communications media), for
purposes of this Cooperative Plan, by written notice to the other party pursuant to this
paragraph. Each notice shall be effective upon delivery in person, or mailing, or upon
actual receipt without regard to the method of transmission, whichever occurs first,

SECTION 39
APPROVALS AND EFFECTIVE DATE

39.01 Town Approval. This Cooperative Plan was approved by the Bong of the
Town of Salem at a duly noticed and convened public meeting on the 10 day of

Qgg_mbﬁr‘ , 20000 .

39.02 Village Approval. This Cooperative Plan was approved by the Common
Council of the Vii!age}gf Paddock Lake, Wisconsin at a duly noticed and convened public
meeting on the _&0 " day of Crapdyer 2000 .

49.03 Effective Date. This Cooperative Plan shall become effective, under the
provisions of Section 66.0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as on the date of which both this
Cooperative Plan and the Sanitary Sewer Agreement are contemporaneously executed by
the Village and the Town (the “Effective Date”). This Cooperative Plan shall also be
deemed adopted under the provisions of Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin Statutes as of
the date that this Cooperative Plan is approved in writing by the State of Wisconsin
Department of Administration, as required under Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin
Statutes.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties certify that this Cooperative Plan has been
duly approved by their respective governing bodies in accordance with state and local laws,
rules and regulations, and each party has caused their duly authorized officers to execute
this Cooperative Plan on the dates written below their respective signatures.

THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE,
WISCONSIN,
A Municipal Corporation

sy, O C. B, e

David Buehn, [—‘r7sident
Date; 12286 @

BY: Enlle, Lo kb

Emily Uhlen/‘n'ak . Clerk/Treasurer
Date:__ 12, Z‘&, ol

[}

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) SS.
COUNTY OF KENOSHA)

Personally came before me this _hday of ;ﬁfﬁ?jgﬁ ,200(, ,DAVID
BUEHN, President and EMILY UHLENHAKE, Clerk/Treasurer, of the VILLAGE OF
' PADDOCK LAKE, WISCONSIN, a Wisconsin municipal corporation, to me known to be
such President and Village Clerk/Treasurer of said municipa! corporation and
acknowledged that they executed the foregoing instrument as such officers as the °

agreement of said corporation, by its authority.
dﬂ% % &Mé

Notary Publié, Kenosha County, WL,
My Commission expires/is:_ 009

Cynthia R Ernest
Notary Public .-
State of Wisconsin
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TOWN OF SALEM

BY: 46/‘&/71/)1)@ %&f&/&)

Diann Tesar, Chairperson
Date.

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) SS.
COUNTY OF KENOSHA)

Personally came before me this 3 day of \/M»., , 200_2, Diann Tesar,
Chairperson and Lynn Pepper, Clerk/Treasurer of said Towsfship, and acknowledged
that they executed the foregoing instrument as such officers as the agreement of said
Township, by its authority.

A g e

Notéry Public, Kenosha®@ounty, WI.
My Commission expires/is: f’—-‘&—"‘"—‘—{
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MR: SCHOLZE: Tadies and gentlemen,
we will call to order the public hearing on the proposed
boundary agreement between the village of Paddock Lake
and the Town of Salem.

My name is Rich Scholze. I am town
attorney for the Town of Salem. We have some other more
knowledgeable people than I up here to help out
answering questions and kind of give a thumbnail sketch
of the proposed agreement and how it might affect
individual property owners.

I am going to have each of them I think
introduce themselves in just a second, but before I
start, I want to just point out a couple things as far
as ground rules because this is a public hearing and the
purpose of this is to get information to us representing
the various municipalities and I know there are members
of the village and the town boards here as well. We are
trying torget input here on this agreement because it 1is
at the point in time where we have at least a draft that
we want to work with, but it is the time to make changes
if changes are necessary, so that is why we need some
information, some input from the people here at the
public hearing.

We have a court reporter here who is

going to take down what we are saying and if you talk as

SUSAN K. TAYLOR 262-553-1058 COURT REPORTER
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quickly as I am talking right now, she will get mad at
you because it is easier for her to take this down if
you slow down, talk a little slower, and if we all don't
talk at one at a time, so I think the easiest way to do
that is if you have comments oOr questions after we go
through our brief explanation, come up here for a couple
reasons. Then we have one person talking at a time and
it would be easier for our court reporter to hear that
as well.

Other than that, as I had said, I am Rich
Scholze. I am here as the town attorney for the Town of
galem and if you guys just want to introduce yourselves
and explain who you are and we can get going.

MR. KAEMPFER: I'm Chris Kaempfer of
Kaempfer & Associates. We are consulting engineers for
the Town of Salem.

MR. BJELAJAC: My name is John
Bjelajac,'I am the attorney for the Town of Salem
Utility District.

MR. DAVISON: I'm Jeff Davison.
I'm the attorney for the Village of Paddock Lake.

MR. BENSON: I'm Bob Benson with
Baxter & and Woodman. We are the Village of Paddock
Lake engineers.

MR. BJELAJAC: We are going to try

SUSAN K. TAYLOR 262-553-1058 COURT REPORTER
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to do this as a tag team approach. Everybody is
standing together and trying to give you a broad brush
overview of two documents. One is called the
cooperative plan. I call it the boundary agreement
between the Village of Paddock Lake and the Town of
Salem. Part and parcel of that is a second agreement,
a sewer agreement, that I was more involved in along
with Jeff Davison and Chris Kaempfer and Steve Godfrey
of Baxter & Woocdman. Rich Scholze and Jeff Davison took
the lead as far as finishing up the boundary agreement.
I participated a little bit in that.

We are trying to give you a broad brush
overview of what we think are the key parts and then
when you come up here, if you have any questions, we
will try and answer them the best we can and more
importantly, what we want tO do is receive input on your
thoughts and your ideas and comments regarding this
project. It is not a project. It is a actually
beginning of a new era, the beginning of two
municipalities which is quite frankly pretty
spectacular.

How do you want to do it? Do you want to
talk about the boundary plan first?

MR. SCHOLZE: If you want to go

ahead and start on a summary of that.

SUSAN K. TAYLOR 262-553-10538 COURT REPORTER
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MR. DAVISON: I have two logistical
jssues T would like to address as a follow-up to what
Rich said. First of all, in the event that you have
questions, if you can hold them until after we have done
our brief presentation and then sort of follow that
same protocol. Because we have a court reporter, if you
can ask the question and then wait for the response in
the event that you have a follow-up question so that we
don't have two people who are talking at once and then
the court reporter is going to be mad at Rich and also
at me.

Secondly, to the extent that you might
have a question that you think of after the public
hearing, you have a period of 20 days to submit written
comments as well. Those comments can be submitted to
either the clerk at the town, the clerk of the Village
of Paddock Lake or by carrier pigeon to any of your
local eleéted officials. I am sure it will get to the
appropriate spot for a response. So don't feel bad if
you walk away and an hour later you think I should have
asked a question. You still have a chance to do so.

There is a statutory schemework the
legislature has enacted to allow municipalities and
towns to enter into to what has been termed -- at least

what's been referred to as a boundary agreement. 1In the
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past, there have been other vehicles produced to create
boundary agreements, but those vehicles never had the
blessing of the state in the sense that there was any
permanency to them and frankly, what has happened —- and
T have personal experience in this from the viewpoint of
representing the town —-— is that often, a municipality
will have much more bargaining power, ability to stay,
and will sometimes not be a good neighbor and so the
legislature —- and therefore, under the old boundary
agreement process, sometimes there was no way for one of
the two parties if there was a difference in bargaining
position to really enforce those provisions. So the
legislature enacted a process by which the state also
becomes a party to these agreements. So that once both
units of government come to an agreement, then it is
sent to the state department of administration and to a
pureau which is longer than needs to be mentioned at in
time and it is reviewed and once the state reviews the
boundary agreements and makes sure it meets all the
numerous criteria which they put in the statutes, then
the state becomes a signatory to the agreement.

The reason that is important is that no
one can worry about in the future whether or not one
side or the other side will live up to the promises they

have made in the agreement because the state will step
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in and enforce it in the event that there appears to be
any deviation from the agreement.

MR. BJELAJAC: Having said that, we
set this up because quite frankly, discussions that have
been going on between Paddock Lake and Salem have gone
extremely well. There's been no posturing, no games
being played. It is a good faith effort on all the
persons at these various negotiation sessions. The
goal is to hammer out a win/win situation both for the
village and the town and not worry about any past
tensions or anything else like that. I mention this for
this reason. What Jeff Jjust described is a way of
putting in place an agreement under one particular
section of the Wisconsin statutes where the state is a
partner, but we have drafted the boundary line agreement
as well as the sewer agreement to also take place
inmediately upon approval of the two boards under
another séction of the statutés. So even if there is
some —— for some strange reason the State of Wisconsin
would frown on this and say no, we don't think it is a
good idea, the two municipal partners here already think
it is a good idea and we are going to put in place an
agreement under the provisions of the other statute
right away. We will slot into the statute Jeff was

talking about when the state finally also approves the
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agreements we are talking about.

MR. DAVISON: Now I don't intend —-—
There is also an elaborate process for approval by each
of the two municipalities as well as approval by the
state which takes three or four months. I won't go
through all the details. We will be glad to answer the
questions you might have concerning those details, but I
don't know that it is necessarily germane to the
discussion this evening nor do I intend to go through
each element that must be in the plan.

suffice it to say, the state says you
have to cover all sorts of elements such as whether or
not there is any ample waterways, drainage, in addition
to the obvious guestion about utilities and how long the
planning period is going to be for the boundary
agreement itself.

So with that very, very thumbnail sketch,
the way tﬁis works is essentially, there is an ultimate
boundary agreed upon tentatively which 1is depicted on
this map over here keeping in mind that this agreement
is for a period of 20 years. Okay? So that the town
can rely upon the fact that for the next 20 years, the
village will be giving up any right that it might have
not only to annex property which is in the yellow area,

pbut also to exercise any sort of zoning or other land
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use restriction that it might be entitled to exercise
otherwise under state statutes.

The reason that is important is
municipal -- incorporated municipalities not only have
the right to make land use decisions for property that
is within their corporate limits, but also have the
ability to review any subdivision plans for example for
an area of a mile and a half outside their corporate
1imits. So as you can see, that is a pretty big swab
through the town. So that is eliminated.

One of the elements of this agreement is
that no land use restrictions, no land use decisions
are going to be exercised by the village for the next
20 years in any area outside the agreed upon planning
area. Okay? Now the agreed upon planning area is this
area that is brown.

MR. BJELAJAC: That is territory
presentlyrwithin the Town of Salem, but this is what we
call the village growth area, the brown area. During
that 20-year window, the boundary plan, this brown area
will become part of the Village of Paddock Lake. Now
during that 20-year window under the terms of the
boundary plan -— correct me if T am wrong —- if the
Village of Paddock Lake acquiesces and if the particular

property owner wishes to get into the Village of Paddock
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Lake sooner than later, steps can be taken to attach
particular parcels of land to the village. At the end
of the 20-year window, to the extent there are any
remaining portions of the brown area that are not yet
then in the village, they will become part of the
village. The plan —-- the brown area will eventually
become the Village of Paddock Lake.

Those of you with single-family
residences, you have more of an option. For you to
become part of the village during this 20-year window
requires your consent. You can't be forced into the
village during the 20-year window. You will become part
of the village at the end of the 20 years. You have a
20-year look at it and decide what you wish to do with
your property as far as keeping it or selling it. You
don't have to go into the village until the end of the
20-year period of time.

| MR. DAVISON: I can tell you that
for example, when I was representing the Town of Somers
in a similar agreement with the City of Kenosha, it's a
very important feature for residents of the town. They
have the option of whether and when they want to go into
the incorporated municipality. If during that pericd of
time you have no desire to go into the village and your

property is within the planning area, you don't have to
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go.

Now there are certain triggering events
which will require you to attach into the village and
those triggering events are essentially if you want to
subdivide your property in a subdivision, if you want to
have a change in zoning from residential to commercial,
something like that, and if you knock down your single-—
family home and want to start over, that is probably
going to require an attachment. There is provisions in
the agreement that allow you to put additions onto your
home without need of going into the village. Those
permits will still be processed through the town.
Unless you want to go into the village, unless you want
to develop your land, you can continue to have that
option to either remain in the town or go into the
village.

I think it is important to know that at
the end of the —— it is probably not to the —— as a
practical matter, it won't be a situation where at the
end of the 20-year period this is the new boundary and
there is not going to be further discussions. It is
highly likely that as we get ten, 15 years down the
road, 18 years down the road, we will see a pattern
of development and everybody who is involved in this

process is using their best estimate as to how the
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entire area will develop. It may very well be that
segments of the village have not come nearly as close to
these boundaries as they are depicted on this map and
there might be some further revisions at that time, but
the point of the matter is that for the next 20 years,
both the town and the village can be assured that as
relates to planning, planning subdivisions or other
developments that might be in the town or planning
subdivisions or other developments that might be in |
the village, they can go forward without fear of any
interference from the other side and can do sO in a
cooperative manner.

MR. BJELAJAC: Precisely. The other
advantage to the Town of Salem, by the way, 1is that
first of all, you have frozen the boundary line for
at least 20 years. Also, under the terms of the
boundary agreement, if the Town of Salem feels it is
appropriate to try to incorporate into a village under
the terms of the agreement, the Village of Paddock Lake
will not be objecting to that. T am not saying it is
appropriate to do it. Certainly not now, but maybe down
the road, it will be. The point is you have an
opportunity unfettered by any cbjections from the
Village of Paddock Lake to become a village if you soO

desire. What is important is that you have a nice long

SUSAN K. TAYLOR 262-553-1058 COURT REPORTER

FAX NO. 553-2010
12



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

period of time-for planning purposes without worrying
about what property is going to become What part of the
municipality.

The Village of Paddock Lake I think ——
both municipalities are interested in a boundary plan or
a boundary agreement. The Village of Paddock Lake is
also interested in sanitary sewer service and as you
know, the Town of Salem has a sanitary sewer utility
district which I represent. We approached both those
issues together. It is kind of a quid pro quo, if you
will. We will do a boundary plan with the village.

At the same time, we will do a sewer agreement with the
village.

The sewer agreement was set up SO that —-
intentionally so —-- so that the residents of the Town
of Salem are not subsidizing sewer service within the
village of Paddock Lake and within the Vvillage of
Paddock Léke, this new growth that pays for the sewer
service costs that are being provided under the new
agreement. We set that up I think pretty successfully.

Jeff, jump in here, too, if I'm
forgetting to state something or i1f I am misstating
something.

Under the terms of the agreement, the

sewer utility district will be providing what we call
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1,000 user charge equivalents of sanitary sewer service.
1,000 UCE's. What a UCE basically translates into is
one single-family residence. So by virtue of the
agreement, the village would have the ability and the
right to have 1,000 single-family residences —- if that
is the only thing they constructed —- to flow sanitary
sewage into our system.

Now here is how we set it up. First of
all, it is a rather detailed agreement as far as mutual
inspections and making sure high standards of
construction are attained. Any sanitary sewer system
located within the village and which is exclusively used
by village customers will be owned by the village and
constructed by the village and maintained by the village
and repaired by the village and replaced by the village
in the future. So all the village costs and expenses
remains within the village. Notwithstanding that fact,
though, tﬁose sanitary sewer customers within the.
village are going to be paying the same user charge —-
quarterly user charges that every Salem resident pays.
Even though we don't have to —— even though we don't
have to take care of the future maintenance and repair
costs and replacements, they will be paying the same
level of quarterly sewer charges as the regular Salem

residents where we do have that obligation.
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Additionally, every connection in the
village, 1,000 connections —— assuming is it is all
single-family residents, that may not be the case, but
let's assume so for discussion purposes tonight -- every
connection will pay the same connection fee that is paid
right now by Salem residents plus an additional amount
of $1,250 by way of a connection fee and the connection
fee in Salem right now is $3,500. That will be paid by
every village resident —— paid by the village on behalf
of the residents connecting. The village will be
getting those funds from the property owners themselves
who are connecting. The extra $1,250 is being paid also
by the village for those connecting to help offset some
of the costs, 1.25 million or roughly a million dollars
or more, to help offset some of the costs that we are
presently undertaking at the Salem Utility District for
some special projects that benefit both Salem and the
village aﬁd so there is going to be money into the Salem
system so that they create a better sanitary sewer
system. It is a broader base and it is a win/win
situation financially in the sense that the village --

T don't want to sound like it is a surcharge you are
paying, but they are at a minimum paying their fair
share.

In the future, if we have to —- Salem
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will forever in this arrangement provide for the 1,000
UCE's and the collection system no matter what we do
with the different collection pipes in Salem. But if
we have to upgrade, if the village needs more capacity,
they are going to pay for that in addition to what we
are talking about now and additionally, if we have to
upgrade the treatment plant for more capacity, the
village will pay for their fair share including the
1,000 UCE's that we are guaranteeing to them in the
collection system. We are guaranteeing in the
collection pipes, you will always have 1,000 UCE's
available to you even if Salem's costs and expenses, Wwe
have to do something different with the sewer mains.
But when it hits the treatment plant, if we have to
increase capacity, the Village of Paddock Lake will
participate and pay for the upgrades on a prorata basis
and it will include the 1,000 UCE's that are flowing
into the System.

MR. DAVISON: Just a follow-up on
the financial aspects of it for a second. I'm not as
inclined to be as eloquent on that topic as John is and
frankly, I don't care. The village should have to pay
a premium — village residents should have to pay a
premium to the town utility for the use of that system

and this is how that premium works.
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Although it is the same user fee, first
of all, there is no collection charge that the utility
will incur. The Village of Paddock Lake will be a
wholesale customer of the Salem utility so that the
Salem utility will have to send one bill except we will
pay retail rates and then it is up to the Village of
Paddock Lake to collect from the ultimate users of the
system. So that is feature number one; a guaranteed
source of payment, if you will.

Number two, because of the way as it was
explained and discussed in detall among the experts,
the way Salem —— the Salem utility presently finances
improvements system-wide, it is done through both the
user fees and also through those connection fees and
because this system that is going to be built by the
village is going to be connected -- it is going to be
PCV pipe, the types of problems that you don't generally
see in existing systems, that is, infiltration, there
won't be —- there will be very little, if any. Pipes
that are 20, 30, 40, 50 years old leak. Those are the
kinds of problems you have to fix and it is those
connection fees that you are using now to fix those
problems. You will have up to a thousand times the
connection fee which is presently 3,000 plus to help fix

other problems systemwide in the utility district with
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very little likelihood that those types of problems are
going to be encountered with the new pipes that are
going to be put in. Plus you are going to have that
additional $1,250 which is used to offset any charges
that could be directly or indirectly attributable to the
fact that there is additional sewage being put in the
system -— into the collection system.

MR. BJELAJAC: Under the terms of the
agreement, the Village of Paddock Lake customers will
always pay the same amounts as Salem customers, so if
through the passage of time and extra costs get incurred
to maintain the system area-wide, if the quarterly
charges increase, they increase not only for the Salem
residents, but also for the Village of Paddock Lake
residents that are connecting to the system.

Same thing; if we have to increase our
connection fees for whatever reason, the connection fees
that we péy for the remaining parcels in the village
that will be hooking up will pay the higher connection
fee rate. So we have uniformity that way with the add-
on of $1,250 per connection fee to help offset some of
the project costs of the three separate special projects
that I mentioned before.

Again, the effort here —-— this was

hammered out in large part by Jeff Davison and Chris
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Kaempfer and Steve Godfrey who is sitting somewhere
here. He is hiding way in the back. We will call this
the Godfrey plan and myself, but I say that smiling
because it was —- they were enjoyable discussions, they
were refreshing discussions because —— 1 said this
earlier —— we didn't play any games with each other.

We said let's work out something where this works and
let's work out something that is fair to the village and
something that is fair to the town and we believe we
have done that. There's been tradeoffs between the
poundary plan and the sewer agreement and things like
that that if you look at each of those agreements
separately, I can't think of anything that is really
unfair to any one party.

o T don't know what more you want to add
before we start getting your comments or questions, but
if somebody wants to step in, go ahead.

| MR. SCHOLZE: I think John covered
that very well. I have just a couple things that I want
to point out about not necessarily the sewer agreement
portion of the plan, but the boundary agreement portion
in addition to the things that Jeff and John have talked
about already tonight.

The agreement will provide that the

village and town work together on other issues like
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storm water drainage issues, long-range planning issues,
the construction of infrastructure within the planning
area, roads, utility pipes, those kinds of things so
that those are done in a manner that not only allocates
the cost fairly, but that we have a good quality product
when we are done, scmething that both the village and
the town residents will receive a good benefit from.

The other thing I wanted to mention was
that the agreement here, the sewer portion and the
boundary portion, cover a very broad spectrum of issues,
but it will not affect existing agreements between the
village and the town for things like the community
library, fire and rescue services, those kinds of things
where we already have agreements in place. So we can
continue to rely on those agreements that we have been
working with and that have worked well for both
municipalities.

| MR. DAVISON: If I could follow up
on that. A point was made earlier that the likelihood
that the state would no£ approve this agreement is
extremely low. The state —— As part of the process, we
have to attach copies of all of those other agreements
that Rich just mentioned, all the existing agreements,
because the state wants to see all the other areas in

which the two units of government are cooperating and
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the unit —-- the particular bureau and the state which is
going to be reviewing this also has responsibility for
reviewing annexations. It is their goal and they are
one of the promoters of the law that allows us —— it is
their goal to eliminate annexation, which this will do,
and to promote boundary agreements, SO they will be
thrilled to death when they see this.

One of the things they want to see is
all the agreements that we have entered into to date
together with the agreements, one of which is the sewer
agreement that will be an attachment to this agreement
and they want to see us to continue to cooperate on

other issues such as drainage.

MR. SCHOLZE: So if anyone has a
question.or a comment, come on up. For the benefit of
our reporter, if you could state your name SO that we
can get it into the record because this record, by the
way, will‘also be typed up and submitted with this plan
when we send it to the state for their review, they are
going to want to see your comments also, but came on up
and make your comment or ask your questions. If you
have questions, we will do our best to try and answer

those.

MR. BJELAJAC: This is Susan Taylor,
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the court reporter. She may ask you to spell your name
if it is not a common name, so humor her and spell your
name if necessary.

Does anybody have any questions or
conments?

MR. GOLITZ: My name is Paul
Golitz. Do you need to be contiguous in order to be
annexed?

MR. DAVISCN: No.

MR. GOLITZ: So if you are in the
brown area, you don't need to be contiguous with the
city?

MR. DAVISCN: No. That is something
we didn't cover before. For those of you who are not
familiar with the annexation process, in order for a
parcel to be attached to a municipality under annexation
law, you have to touch the municipality. Under this
process, 6nce the boundary agreement is approved by the
state —— If you have, for example, a parcel that is
over here and does not touch the village, but you want
to put in a subdivisioﬁ, you can go ahead and attach
without touching the village. The reason for that is
not only to allow flexibility of the owner of this
parcel to attach into the village, but also so as not to

require any property owners who might be in between to
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have to go into the village.

MR. BJELAJAC: Anybody else?

MS. FOLAN: My name is Kathleen
Folan. I live in Salem. I see we are going to be
annexed into Paddock Lake. Do we have to apply for the
sewer because —— we have sewer TO our home, but we are
not passed for sewer for the whole farm. I live on a
farm.

MR. BJELAJAC: You already have
sewer, ma'am?

MS. FOLAN: I have to the house,
but if we sold the property which is a hundred acres and
somebody came in to develop that, they would have to
apply where?

MR. BJELAJAC: They would apply
whenever they wished to apply whenever they wanted to
do a further development on the remaining acres of your
land. Yoﬁ and your house —— you are already serviced
sewer, so you would never be charged again for sewer
service, but anybody —-- if you subdivide your property,
whether you, yourself, or a developer does it after
buying the land from you, they would have to coordinate
with —— depending on where they are located, I guess you
are in the growth area, the brown area we call it —-

they would have to coordinate with both the Village of
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paddock Lake and to some degree, with the Town of Salem
for that future sewer service area to the proposed
developer.

MR. SCHOLZE: One of the provisions
of the plan or one of the events that would trigger a
property in the brown area going into the village,
pecoming attached to the village, would be a division.
g0 if somebody wanted to divide that into lots, for
example, building lots, that would trigger an attachment
to the village and the village would in effect have the
primary obligation there to go ahead and work with that
developer on providing sewer and all the other
requirements that would take place as part of the
development.

MR. BJELAJAC: That would be part of
the 1,000 UCE's that the village is contracting for
under the sewer agreement.

| THE WITNESS: Because we have had
people come to us, but we couldn't do anything because
when they went to Salem, they were told one story, when
they went to Paddock Lake, they were told another story
and we were between the two for the past year and a
half. We have passed up a lot of buyers.

MR. BJELAJAC: This agreement will

end that.
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THE WITNESS: How soon? If my
little man comes with his black bag tomorrow full of
money and I say you go down to the attorney in Salem and
he fix it for you.

MR. BJELAJAC: Here is my crystal
ball. I personally am hoping that ROTH the Village of
Paddock Lake and the Town of Salem town board will hold,
if necessary, special meetings probably December 20,
Decenber 21, so whatever dates those fall on, the days
just before Christmas, because that is the first time
frame that is really -- where we are really eligible
under the law to have both municipalities approve it and
once that is done, once both the village and the town
approve it, the sewer agreement is in place. Steps will
further be taken to try —— So will the boundary plan.
Steps will further be taken to try and have the State of
Wisconsin approve the plan under the other special
statute tﬁat we have been talking about, but both plans
will automatically be in place when approved by the two
boards.

MS. FOLAN: So we have to wait
for the state as well as Salem and Paddock Lake?

MR. BJELAJAC: As far as I know, no.

Am I correct saying no?

MR. DAVISON: That is correct. The
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state gets a couple of months to review it.
Historically, they usually use their whole time frame,
so I guess we can probably expect that they will in this
case as well. T think that everybody will have approved
it, assuming that everybody agrees with it, by April.

MR. BJELAJAC: We set this up so
both documents become effective right away upon both
municipalities approving it.

MS. FOLAN: So I could say to
somebody if they came in, we will sell if you go to
wherever, Paddock Lake I guess, and they will okay it.

MR. BJELAJAC: You should be good to
go, yes.

THE WITNESS: I should be good to
go now.

MR. BJELAJAC: After it is approved
by both municipalities.

| MR. DAVISON: After Christmas.

MS. FOLAN: After Christmas. By
January.

MR. BJELAJAC: Yes.

MS. FOLAN: Thank you very much.

MR. MOONEY: I don't think -~

Ernest Mooney Village of Paddock Lake. She has a unique

problem. She is not in the Salem 208 area. So I think
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she needs to be aware that there is a provision for
bringing her property into the Salem 208 area. That
will take a little longer because SEWRPC is also
involved.

MR. BJELAJAC: Thank you, Mr. Mooney.

Ma'am, what Mr. Mooney was telling me is
that you have this property that is in the brown area
and everything we were telling you 1s true assuming that
you are already in a sewer service area approved by
SEWRPC and the Department of Natural Resources. But if
you are not —— if your property is not in the present
sewer service area, for you to be served, we would have
to see if SEWRPC and the DNR would be willing to put you
into the sewer service area so you can get municipal
sewer. That is another issue. What I suggest you do is
you talk both with the village and/or the Town of Salem,
the utility district, and we can give you more
1nformati6n about that.

MS. FOLAN: T wrote a
letter —— I had an attorney write a letter in the spring
of this year. Is that enough or should I write one
again?

MR. BJELAJAC: I guess you better
write one again. BAnd I will give you my card. A1l

right?
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MS. FOLAN: Thank you.

MR, BJELAJAC: Anybody else?

MS. FORTNER: Joan Fortner. Is
this boundary agreement open to additional options or
is it hard and fast as to how it is written?

MR. BJELAJAC: I will respond and
anybody else can step in. What we have are drafts of
the boundary plan as well as a draft of the sewer
agreement. These drafts have been reviewed and
considered in closed session pursuant to the Wisconsin
statutes as part of the negotiation process, but they
have now been made public. They have not been approved
with any finality yet by either the Town of Salem or the
Village of Paddock Lake and the purpose of this
proceeding tonight is to get further input to see if
maybe something crops up where we should consider
changes to those documents, primarily, the boundary
plan, butralso the sewer plan if necessary.

So the short answer is we are down the
road as far as trying to come to terms with each other
on the content of the agreement, but it is not finalized
and we are always willing to be persuaded or consider
changes to the documents if that proves to be necessary.

MS. FORTNER: We have Heath Haven

Development (phonetic) and I have a request for a couple
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of options. The first option would be nobody mentioned
about the municipal water and if we are in Salem
township, but if we develop, we would like to use the
pPaddock Lake water which they are working on. They will
have it soon. How would that —— Would that have to be
written into the boundary agreement? Is there anything
about water in there?

MR, BJELAJAC: Let me take another
stab at this.

Guys, Jjump in.

Right now, the Town of Salem does not
have a municipal water service. The Village of Paddock
Lake does. The agreements or discussions that we have
had so far deal with provision of sanitary sewer service
for areas of the Village of Paddock Lake and with the
boundary agreement. We have not discussed or talked
about provisions for the Village of Paddock Lake
municipallwater system to provide water service within
the borders of the Town of Salem. That is always a
possibility. This is a golden age of cooperation
between the village and the town, but it's not been the
subject of any discussions to date.

If your property —— I don't think you are
in the growth area. If your property continues to be

in the Town of Salem, for you to get municipal water
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service through the Village of Paddock Lake, it would
require a further inter-governmental agreement between
the town and the village and I don't know that steps
will be taken —— at least I would personally recommend
against trying to revamp these agreements to also deal
with the water service as well because that is a fairly
monumental task, but rather, we would leave that to a
separate possible agreement for the near future or in
the future.

MS. EFCRTNER: Well, our property
borders on Paddock Lake and does this boundary agreement
negate it completely? Does it mention it at all?

MR. BJELAJAC: No, it does not negate
it. It just does not provide it for it. A further
document would have to provide for it.

MS. FORTNER: Qur other comment was
we are —— we were developing about five years ago now,
but becauée of zoning problems and water problems from
the school, we had to delay it. Now we are coming back
to beginning to develop it and we have somebody doing a
conceptual plan which we will submit soon and Heath
Haven is a development in Salem Township and it shares
the north —— the bottom of that long green thing. We
are the yellow part below it. We have to think of the

future and if we are in Salem Township, then we are
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obligated to the neighborhood plan that they have
arranged and the neighborhood plan is limiting what we
can do on our property. So I am just asking now if
there can be an option at some future date if everybody
agrees —— if all parties agree, to possibly go with
paddock Lake and annex at a future date so that we could
have the best and fairest use of our property. However,
when this plan is submitted, Salem may be more lenient
with it than the restricted R2 and R3 that they have now
because we are looking for R4 and we have the sewers
there because we spent $300,000 for those sewers, soO the
sewers do accommodate it, but the in a neighborhood plan
does not accommodate for it. Timing is not good because
once this is locked in, what are we going to do if we -
because we won't be able to develop because it is
limiting us. I am just seeing if it is possible to put
a unique option there for this particular parcel or for
other paréels, too.

MR. BJELAJAC: A1l T can say is that
this village growth area which is right here is right
now the territory destined to go into the Village of
paddock Lake. Your territory is right down here.

MS. EFORINER: And that will be
permanent?

MR. BJELAJAC: Well, it will boil
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down to a decision from both the Village of Paddock Lake
and the Town of Salem if they want toAfurther amend the
territory that will be the growth area. Right now as we
speak, under the drafts that they are considering, you
are not part of the growth area, soO your development
would have to occur within the Town of Salem.

MS. FORTNER: My question was there
could be an option put in there before it gets
permanently agreed upon.

MR. BJELAJAC: Both the village
hoard and the town board can always consider that. It
is their decision to make.

MS. FORTNER: We are very
concerned.

MR. BJELAJAC: Do anybody else wish
to make a comment or ask questions? Anybody else? If
not, we can officially close the public hearing. We
will stand around and answer any additional questions
you may have.

MR. DAVISON: Just before we close
the public hearing, I notice there are a number of
elected officials from both the Town of Salem as well
as the village here. I don’t want to embarrass anybody,
but I would like to acknowledge so that it is in the

minutes that are being prepared by the court reporter
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that there are several members, probably constituting a
quorum of both the Town of Salem town board as well as
the Village of Paddock Lake board of trustees. T also
noticed that there were other interested parties,
professionals from both —- consultants from both the
town as well as the village as well as members of the
press and I think on that note, that end my comments.

Just a reminder that anyone who has any
other comments have 20 days within which to submit
those.

I forgot Mr. West (phonetic). We have at
least one county board supervisor.

MR. WEST: I have a question.
Tt is more or less regarding -- like right now, Paddock
Lake and Salem have a land use committee, but the land
use committee as far as the variance, easement and so
forth, being a village, does not have to be passed
before the county board where Salem, their land use
committees, they pass it and then it goes to the county
board. When will that nullify that area where being in
Paddock Lake, some of these areas, is anything
grandfathered in if they want to go to Salem for zoning
or once it is through —-

MR. DAVISON: Assuming both boards

approve the agreements let's say hypothetically in
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December, at that point in time, any matters that would
be required to be reviewed by the Village of Paddock
Lake would immediately be reviewed by the Village of
Paddock Lake and the process of going through the town
and the county land use committee would end as of
approval of both boards. Now remember, that would
include subdivision developments, rezoning and so forth.

As it relates to additions to
single-family homes and those exceptions that are ——
that continue to be allowed to be pursued by single-
family homeowners, those would still go through the
town process. I am not sure that the county land use
committee would get involved in many of those because of
the nature of the exceptions, but I hope that answers
your question,

MR. BJELAJAC: We are getting out of
sequence because the court reporter is taking this down.

| MR. STOCKWELL: Dick Stockwell,

Madison, Wisconsin. The question I have that I don't
think has been addressed, you said this was developed in
closed sessions. Or did I miss that?

MR. BJELAJAC: Here is how it
developed. The main negotiations or discussions, if
you will, were just conducted primarily with four

people. Let me talk to the sewer agreement. Jeff,
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myself, Chris Kaempfer, Steve Godfrey. We worked hard
to hammer out the win/win document for both the village
and the town. Now once we came up with a document ——
and we met on a regular sustained basis —— once we came
up with what we thought was a fair document, we would
respectively meet in closed session as allowed under
Wisconsin statutes with our respective boards to let
them know what we are considering, what we are
proposing, do you think we are on the right track,
etc., and by virtue of doing that, we had to massage
and change certain things and went back and forth with
discussions, etc. Once we thought we had a draft that
was appropriate, then it went public. We publicly
distributed i1t and there was public discussion at the
town board and I know there was public discussion also
at the Village of Paddock Lake board, so it just
progressed in a normal due course for negotiated
documents;

MR. STOCKWELL: When was this made
public?

MR. BJELAJAC: About two or three
months ago, but I am bad on time frames.

MR. STCCKWELL: I only became aware
of it recently. My next question is what are the

alternatives available to a property owner who is
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adjacent to the brown area or on the border whether you
are included in it or —— let's say brown or yellow. If
you wanted the alternative.

MR. BJELAJAC: What I would suggest
you do —- and the same thing with Ms. Fortner when she
talked -- is send a written letter to both the town and
the village expressing your desires as far as will it
be part of the brown area or not. It is going to be
totally up to the Village of Paddock Lake and the Town
of Salem as far as whether any changes are made in
response to your letter, but that is the route to go
and that is the reason for this public hearing tonight
in large part.

MR. STOCKWELL: And you said the 21st
of December, they are eligible -- that is the first date
they could vote on this?

MR. BJEILAJAC: Within 20 days after
today's déte, so I think —— I didn't calculate it out,
but we get past the 20-day window, in that time frame,
yes.

MR. STOCKWELL: Thank you. That's
it.

MR. CLEP: Walt Olep. Earlier,
you did not discuss any of the infrastructure like

drainage, watercourses. Like the brown area is now, the
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yellow areas below them to going to probably develop and
they are going to be drainage issues. Are you following
the Southeast Regional Planning Commission on
environmental corridor as far as the Des Plaines River
is concerned?

MR. BJELAJAC: Why don't we have the
engineers respond to that? Bob or Steve or Chris?

MR. KAFMPFER: There are provisions
in the agreement for storm water management and those
would address those types of issues. I don't think
there is any thought of changing environmental corridors
or anything like that. Those all have to be observed,
SO ——

MR. SCHOLZE: I think to make it
clear on the environmental corridor issue, neither the
village nor the town have the authority to specify what
is an environmental corridor or what is not. They have
some authérity to make some regulations based on the
categorization of that property, but the determination
of that is set by SEWRPC.

On the storm water drainage issue, there
is a significant portion of the agreement that talks
about basically the cooperation between the town and
the village on those storm water drainage issues, but

the heart of that section of the agreement is compliance
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with the Department of Natural Resources requirements
and there are some newer requirements in place now to
address those storm water drainage issues.

So I think frankly even if this
agreement —— it does not do this, but even if the
agreement said village and town both say we don't care,
do whatever you want with drainage, it wouldn't matter.
The DNR has regulations that apply. The agreement
doesn't say that. Instead, it says we are going to
comply with those DNR regulations in both the town and
the village and do this in a manner that we are not
going to create issues or difficulties in either
municipality because of the way we are managing the
storm water —-

MR. OLEP: What you won't have
is a wholesale flooding of something from a new
subdivision into the village or into the environmental
corridor?r

MR. SCHOLZE: Exactly.

MR. BJELAJAC: Correct. That will
not happen.

MR. OLEP: Thank you. That's
all the question I had.

MR. BJELAJAC: Anybody else with a

question or comment?
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Rich, I turn this over to you. You
started it; wrap it up.

MR. SCHOLZE: If everybody who
has —— who wishes to make a comment or raise a question,
now is your chance because I think otherwise, I will say
thank you very much for coming and for your attention,
for your comments and your questions.

It is about five to 8:00 o'clock, so we
have gotten through this in about 53 minutes, very
officient. I think we can close this public hearing
unless -— last chance for any comments.

Hearing none, I think we will close this
public hearing. A final reminder. Jeff has mentioned
this a couple times, but I want to reiterate it. Do
not forget that you not only have the right under the
statute, but I know that the town board of the Town of
Salem and I am assuming that the village board as well
would appfeciate any written comments or questions that
you have regarding the agreement. If you want to obtain
a copy of the agreement, they are available at both
municipalities. You have that 20-day opportunity to do
that, so please take advantage of that because that will
be helpful to both municipalities in reviewing this
agreement and making sure that the ultimate agreement we

reach here is one that is beneficial for everybody.
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MR. BJELAJAC:

We will hang around to

answer any questions that you may have. Thank you.

(WHEREUPCN, PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 8:00 P.M.)
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VILLAGE GROWTH AREA DESCRIPTION

Beginning at the Northwest corner of the Northeast One Quarter of Section 4, Town 1 North,
Range 20 East of the Fourth Principal Meridian;

Thence North 88°06°33” East, along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter, 2587.93 feet
to the Southwest corner of Section 34, Town 2 North, Range 20 East,; '

Thence North 88°28°25” East, along said North line, 46.86 feet to the Northwest corner of the
Northwest One Quarter of Section 3, Town | North, Range 20 East;

Thence continuing North 88°28°25” East, along the North line of said Northwest One Quarter,
2595.43 feet to the Southwest corner of the Southeast One Quarter of Section 34, Town 2 North,
Range 20 East;

Thence North 88°28°47” East, along the North line of said Northwest One Quarter, 75.57 feet to
the Northwest corner of the Northeast One Quarter of said Section 3;

Thence continuing North 88°28’47” East along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter,
2568.93 feet, to the Southwest corner of the Southwest One Quarter of Section 35, Town 2
North, Range 20 East;

Thence North 88°23°58” East, along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 3,
104.28 feet to the Northwest corner of the Northwest One Quarter of Section 2, Town 1 North,
Range 20 East;

Thence continuing North 88°23’58” East, along the North line of said Northwest One Quarter of
Section 2, 2556.33 feet, to the Southwest corner of the Southeast One Quarter of Section 35,
Town 2 North, Range 20 East,;

Thence North 88°26°13” East, along said North line of the Northwest One Quarter, 48.06 feet to
the Northwest corner of the Northeast One Quarter of said Section 2;

Thence continuing North 88°26°13” East, along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter of
Section 2, 2600.40 feet, to the Southwest comer of the Southwest One Quarter of Section 36,
Town 2 North, Range 20 East;

Thence North 88°28°31” East, along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter of said Section
2, 7.92 feet to the Northwest corner of the Northwest One Quarter of Section 1, Town 1 North,
Range 20 East; _

Thence continuing North 88°28°31” East along the North line of said Northwest One Quarter of
Section 1, 2647.04 feet, to the Northwest corner of the Northeast One Quarter of said Section 1;
Thence North 88°45°17” East, along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 1,
2650.20 feet to the Northeast corner of said Section 1;

Thence South 02°13°33” East along the East line of the Northeast One Quarter of said Section |,
2705.55 feet to the Northeast corner of the Southeast One Quarter of said Section 1;

Thence South 01°55°23” East, along the East line of the Southeast One Quarter, 2634.57 feet, to
the Northeast corner of Section 12, Town 1 North, Range 20 East; '
Thence South 02°02°25” East, along the East line of the Northeast One Quarter of said Section
12, 2646.26 feet, to the Southeast corner of said Northeast One Quarter;
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Thence South 88°49°35” West, along the South line of said Northeast One Quarter, 2626.85 feet,
to the Southeast corner of the Northwest One Quarter of said Section 12;

Thence South 88°50°33” West, along the South line of said Northwest One Quarter of Section
12, 1318.28 feet, to the Northeast corer of the West One Half of the Southwest One Quarter of
Section 12, Town | North, Range 20 East;

Thence South 01° 00°50” East, along the East line of said West One Half, 508.94 feet;

Thence North 88°59°10” West, 417.42 feet;

Thence South 01°00°50” East, along a line 417.42 feet west of and parallel to said East line of
said West One Half to the North right-of-way line of 83 Street;

Thence westerly, along said North right-of-way line to the point of intersection with the North
right-of-line of 84™ Street;

Thence westerly along said North right-of-way line to the West line of said Southwest One
Quarter of Section 12;

Thence North 01°00°50” West, along said West line, 1481.2 feet, to the Northwest corner of said
Southwest One Quarter of Section 12;

Thence continue North 01°00°50™ West, 504.2 feet, to the Southerly line of the Town of Salem
Wastewater Treatment Facility;

Thence North 62°02°33” East, along said Southerly line, 793.00 feet, to the point of intersection
with the Easterly line of said Treatment Facility;

Thence North 01°53°55” West, along said Easterly line, 490.00 feet, to the point of intersection
with the Northerly line of said Treatment Facility;

Thence South 75°36°04” West, along said Northerly line, 92.0 feet;

Thence South 35°23°04” West, along said Northerly line, 148.2 feet;

Thence South 75°24°04” West, along said Northerly line, 552.65 feet;

Thence South 56°20°04” West, along said Northerly line, 715.7 feet;

Thence North 55°03°17” West, along said Northerly line, 155.55 feet;

Thence South 81°15°19” West, along said Northerly line, 853.28 feet;

Thence South 46°08'36” West, along said Northerly line, 320.0 feet, more or less, to the
northerly shoreline of Hooker Lake;

Thence following said shoreline, including that shoreline lying in and South of 75% Street, used
for access purposes, to a point of intersection with the South meander line for the Northwest One
Quarter of Section 11, Town 1 North, Range 20 East;

Thence South 88°28°32” West, along said South meander line, to the west meander comner for the
Southeast corner of said Northwest One Quarter of Section 11;

Thence South 89°10°42” West, along the South line of said Northwest One Quarter, 935.42 feet,
to the Southeast comer of the Northeast One Quarter of Section 10, Town | North, Range 20
East; ‘

Thence South 88°40°05” West, along the South line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 10,
2642.05 feet, to the Northeast corner of the Southwest One Quarter of said Section 10;

Thence South 01°54°34” East, along the East line of said Southwest One Quarter, 2652.32 feet,
to the Northeast comer of the Northeast One Quarter of the Northwest One Quarter of Section
15, Town 1 North, Range 20 East;

Thence South 02°10°45” East, along the East line of said Northeast One Quarter of the
Northwest One Quarter of Section 15, 1324.33 feet, to the Southeast comer of said Northeast
One Quarter of said Northwest One Quarter;
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Thence South 88°20°34” West, along the South line of said Northeast One Quarter of the
Northwest One Quarter, 1324.27 feet, to the Southwest corner of said Northeast One Quarter of
the Northwest One Quarter;

Thence North 02°02°01” West, along the West line of said Northeast One Quarter of the
Northwest One Quarter, 1326.25 feet, to the Southwest corner of the East One Half of the
Southwest One Quarter of Section 10, Town 1 North, Range 20 East;

Thence North 02°05°33” West, along the West line of the East One Half, of the Southwest One
Quarter of Section 10, 2647.39 feet, to the Northwest corner of said East One Half of the
Southwest One Quarter of Section 10;

Thence South 88°12°41” West, along the North line of said Southwest One Quarter of Section
10, 1334.35 feet, to the Southeast corner of the Northeast One Quarter of Section 9, Town 1
North, Range 20 East;

Thence South 88°46°19” West, along the South line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 9,
to the Southwest corner of the East One Half of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 9;

Thence Northerly along the West line of said East One Half of the Northeast One Quarter of
Section 9, to the Northwest corner of said East One Half of the Northeast One Quarter of Section
9,

Thence North 88°24°52” East, along the North line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 9,
to the Southeast corner of the Southeast One Quarter of Section 4, Town 1 North, Range 20 East;
Thence North 02°04°40” West, along the East line of said Southeast One Quarter of Section 4,
2645.79 feet, to the Southeast corner of the Northeast One Quarter of said Section 4;

Thence South 88°36°20” West along the South line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 4,
2612.46 feet to the Southwest corner of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 4;

Thence North 02°39°27” West, along the West line of said Northeast One Quarter of Section 4,
2621.18 feet to the Northwest corner of said Northeast One Quarter of said Section 4, and the
point of beginning.
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SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT
by and between
the Town of Salem and the Village of Paddock Lake

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Article]  DEFINITIONS ...cciivviviirmionmimsiomieiimineesssesssiessrssstsssisessss saessssnessssssssessnsesssssssnssssrons 3
1.01  TOoWN SEWEr SErviCe ATCA ....vvcvicerrererrerenriesrseesiieestsesessersssessessessssesssssressassssaersssrses 3
1,02 TOWN SEIVICE ZONE..cureurrereerieriirisinsieressesissstsessesesesssssnssssesissasesssssonsrassoseenssrsessessssens 3
1.03  Village SewWer ServiCe ATEa.....ccivvrireeeerrnrenrecrerresnirsesnisnesresisnsssssssssisssssesssssserasssns 3
1.04  Village Growth ATEa.......ceciiiieenieninincenine e ssssses e e ssssbessesnsnsessesanssasssssnes 4
OS5 Village SErviCe ZONE cuviieviiirenrirsersiesesvsesteserasiessesessssaesssssssessssassasessessossansssssnssiossen 4
1.06  Ultimate Sewer Service Area Boundary ......cocveveiivnvinennecneisenesesseessvesssenens 4
107 Town ULHHEY DISITICE. ....cccererereerreerensccrtrreseeesessasisssss s ssaseesseaseesstessssssseersnsssssensos 4
LLOB  PlaNS i erresaeraeseresssasssesassssssssanessssssasssasansessessvasssinesnsnsassos 5
1.09  EXCIUSIVE USE 1iviviciiiviiiinecrmnreiereseereseseeraensisesareessesessssrassssssssssssssssnsantasnsessersostssessnns 5
L0 JOINE USE tiiviiiirecrironeismisicrecasnseseissssaessassessesessssessesessesssiensesessensssesnessaraasossossssessonseston 5
1.11  Wastewater Collection FACIIIHES .......ccoureiererennicreesenrsenceee s sresre e srsnsesrecnssenesees 5
1.12 Wastewater Treatment Facilities.........cccocvcnneormninnininiinenieinsseesesiessreesssnnes 6
1,13 Existing FACIHHLY ...coev e sesnncnrissnsesnerissesen st ses s see s e sseseebe s esnsssssesrenssnees 6
114 NeW FaCiHLY .ccocooiceiecccirecciinniiisre st res s e se s e s e e e s b s s ssnssssse s snans s 7
1.15  Expanded Facility ......c.cccuieiiniiniimmiiiincansrnrecnsesssesessesreesesssesessnssssssessssnssrasseasses 7
1.16  DesSign Capacity ...cocviriiiiisiniisiiiestiseiesinssnssssrnessesesssssssssssastessessisscessssssssessosssssssssenses 7
117 DeSign PEriod... .ot siss s sessessessesasiessssssssssssnsssssssssssensas 8
118  Actual Capacity........ccocviiriinccinieicnienin it srrs s s s ses e s sae e e ese s st st e nnans s 8
1.1 Available Capacity ...t sas st e sn s bns 8
1.20 Billable Capacity........vieeereerirceccrnerenr st se st ssessresees st resssne e sbenssnssesenees 8
L21  WaaBtEWALEE......ceceeereecrrmec st estestes e srncremanes e canesbesne s ra st e sstassae b essnerrbasnsvnsasnrronns 9
122 Actual FIoW. ..o e e e 9
123 Actial Loading ....ccceviiiuirircercre st esie st s e s rens s e e sa s s saa st 9
1.24 Allocated Capacity ... ieiicirnccrianessissiessiaes e s s sasssersssesassssssessensenseseses 9
1.25  User Charge Equivalent (UCE) .....ccovcvrviinininrininniississssissssssisssssessessrsss saes 9
Article I  GENERAL CONDITIONS .....oceiictvieereiecrieere s saesnssesss s esearseesbsssnessssssssssssssesaeemnenessssnnens 10
2.01  Purpose of the ABIEEmENt.........cccoviiiiiiiie et bas e saa e vbbe e 10
2.02  Arcatobe Served...ccoveecvvivninnineinneenn. e eeereareerae e e e A et s ra e RT e e ra e erareanerren 10
2.03  Limitations on Wastewater CharacteriStiCs ......vvvvvievneeriinnivcesveinerrinsssssisssssssrssesssens 11
ATtiCle IIT  TERM ..ot res ettt s st a s e e s re e sreas s s es e ss e s e aba et e sessbsasanbenscanstessnnsnsensanense 12
J.0L  Effective DAte....cciicorieerivireereeiriissereseseeresieresssasssasessessenscssesssiessseresssensssnsssssassssesss 12
3.02  Term of ABTEEMENT..cciiviiierireriiriereiesesreiesresiesrersesressrsae s esesasraeseetesssersssassassassasents 12
F.03  TermMiNAtiON....csceveeriererieieresssesssiseesiesestereesersssessessentasesssasersersssnerssssnstsssassssssissansessanns 12

KAEIIN0SWMNMISCASSSA OUTLINE V5 WORD V 1 with page numbers,docPage 1 Of 3



Article IV ALLOCATED CAPACITY FOR VILLAGE.......ccocoeiviemvrnieniinsee i rireesreessssseessssssessessenene 13
4.01  Acquisition of Allocated Capacity.......cceimirrnierevinseirmnsesnierensssessssessesesssssssnns i3
4.02  Allocated Capatity.....cmcirnrerrienniesisenierssssasssrassrssosessessessesssssissessrssessesssnens 13
4,03 Use of Existing Facilities ......c.covceivrcriiniiisriisneiiis e ssssesesesessraseseeseesene 14
4.04  Profects il PrOZIEss......voveerciieeninenriretrniassasnssss s sesssas s ssssessserssessssssessisessne s 14
Article V. ADDITIONAL CAPACITY FOR VILLAGE........ociieiircnirereveneseessnessssasssssssssesssnsessessans 15
5.0  Acquisition of Additional Capacify .......cccvvivivemirirennninesrirres e ens s seseesseenas {5
5.02  Use of Existing FacilIties .....c..eccvvrreninieninrineesessseiiseronnseiesesessesssressssssssrsesessesesses 15
5.03  Expansion of EXisting FaCIlIIEs .......cvurviirrerienisniririssemsseeessveseesecressesecssasssrassases 16
504 Construction of New Facilities .....cccvenivecevicrennicrinreseiee s sessesssesenssensenes 16
505  Allocation of Capital COBtS.....ccviiricrinmiremmrresmsssirsesessseresesmssssssrssossssssssseseses 17
506 Ownership of FACIHES ...cciviinioniiiriicnerecsreie e nss e enes 19
5.07  Transfer of OWNership .......ccoviiiiini st es 19
5.08  Upgraded and Renovated Facilities ......cuvecvvveriinnvnrerenieeseeeisseecnee e neseesees 20
Article VI RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF VILLAGE .......oovoevieemersiieeseses e eeseseseressereanns 20
6.01  Operation and Maintenance of Village Facilities ........oocvreeeeveverecsrn v 20
6.02  Compliance with Applcable Laws....civciieoreererecereeererieseesissssesesreecsessssseneossssons 21
6.03  Adoption of Ordinances........c.uiviscvnieminnnn i e s enssse s 21
6.04  Connection Requirements and NOtifications .......c.ceevvuieeerevermeiiineicicsnasesssmenesnevene 21
6.05  Control of Infiltration and Inflow (I/T).....cecvmieviniiecireiereee s s rae s nnae 22
Article VII RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF TOWN ...c.ivcviimiivnsneiemresmsssicsssesecserensssesseassssenes 23
7.01  Operation and Maintenance of Town Facilities.........ouvuveermrrerrereresminsmresresesesssesssesins 23
7.02  Monitoring VIlage SYSte......cviiiceicrriiiieeinieriieess e essssssssssesssesesseseseessessessanes 23
Article VITREVIEWS AND APPROVALS.....ccooinmiieirinneeerirs s seressesssnsbssssessssssesstsssssssesenensessesssessnnens 24
B.O1  Development REVIEWS ........cocvurereeniesesiisesistns st essseressssssssssssessssrsssssessessessesnens 24
8.02  Plan Reviews and APProvals .........ccoirreinivmneinssmsserrssesressssessssessessssesssssssssasses 25
8.03  Engineering Standards ..o e e s e 25
8.04  Construction Standards ... veivrrereineeirsiren st eb st erasesesesn s 26
8.05  Construction Reviews and Approvals.......cecvvcininenenniesesinesresssesessesssessssnne 26
8.06  Cost of Town Reviews and APProvals ........cccciernoienenneereisnnsinessssesesssesessesnene 28
Article IX CHARGES, BILLINGS, AND PAYMENT ........cccoomimineerinseressensessneessessesssssososesesssensnes 29
D.01  USEI Chares.. v ceieiccrrienirerstisnresenereserssesesesserasss e ssssssesessssessasessessasessessesssmasssmene 29
9.02  Connection Fees.......cciviiiiiiiresnesrsressesie s ssessrs e ses s sessesssnorbenssnenssnerene 29
0.03  Capital CoStS...oiiiiiiiieiiiniiecrieriersrercsesesaerte et esess s s it s bsssbssnes bt bssaesresnesnenssnnen 30
9.04  Billings and PAYMENt ......cciiiirieieientinrist s sssre s s s ssssrsessassanssesssessssssssssons 30
9.05  Payment DISPUEES .....ccooiivirmierererceiennrerisessisssmes s sessssssssasesesebeansssbenmssosssesssrsansrssaas 30
9.06 Coordinated EfIOTt.........ccvirrieriniininininserrereseesesiesssressseveeessre s e srsrmsserse st ssessonessesrens 31
9.07  Access t0 RECOIS ..ttt s s s et sessessae st snans 31

KAET32WSWIMISCASSSA OUTLINE V5 WORD ¥V 1 with page numbefs,docPage 2 Of 3



Article X1

ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT ...cccciuiiinniinerinirnnscrnrssreriseessesesrssssssesssrsesssssostessessses 31
10.01  Definition of Defaull........ccieccniivieimininirnensieseessnesersssvsressesssssssssssssnssessssrens 31
10.02 Al Remedies Available........cccovvierncierniccerec e ecresrssessesesseress s ssrssssssserenns 32
10.03  EMETZENCY ACHION ... caeeiisse e ses s esasess et asebsssssstasrsserssnobsnessasios 32
GENERAL PROVISIONS ...corioriecrererieirtre e cersnrereesseesas s ceseerassesvassssssssrassnsennessesorsansessies 33
TEHOL  GOVEIMING LAW .ot enevesrescs s st ssme s s es e s s stssessasssssessaesaasssvanesssrorsonsnesnes 33
11.02  INterprefation. ... .ccoiimercniieinrcsncseaseeoresresse s srrsssssessesssserassessnrsrnssassessesesassrens 33
11,03 AMENAIMENTS ...cccoeeiiieeriererenieriesarsinsresesseraerssressesrtesereressressssssssersssssrassarsasssessensosserssen 33
11.04  Conflict With Other Laws.......cviuiieviannmmimenenesmiseiesssissseismecsssssesessesses 33
J1.05  NOTICES c.ovrurevrerrrrenriesrrsnrmisrisessissrssesbssssssssssssssssssssassss reasssasssasssarassaransansonssasassssenss v 33
11.06 No Challenges to this ABFEEIMENT ....cvvvvvviiiieriarmirrinireisiersrsesseseieessrssessissssssssereessreans 34
11.07  No Third-party BenefiCiary. . wiiimmimoeiiinneresseesessrssessseeserisssesssrassssssses 34
11.08 Administration of this ABIEEMENL ......c.ccvreeveriernrcrirsrineririerenrerrsresesee e s sseareesasseases 34
11,09 Complete AZIECMENL .....cvvvuiievreeerreerrsessiesresientsissassenessesseseressssssssssssesereersssaorrsssrtosses 35
11,10 SeVEIABILIEY «.cccveeeie e ctracrime e srear s s see st e s stere s s e e as s sae s s s neanensssanessantsnserrasans 35
11.11  Attached Exhibits and Introduction .......c.cceeicieeniienrecresecennves s s e 35
T102 W aVO e ccrersaessessesessesassressnes e ssesbasasrsenssstsssssnsersnsssinsassasentassssasssrasssssssnns 35
LIST OF EXHIBITS

Exhibit"A"  Map of Town and Village Sewer Service Areas

Exhibit "B" Map of Town and Village Service Zones

Exhibit "C" Legal Description of Village Growth Area Boundary

Exhibit "D"  Map of Village Growth Area

Exhibit "E" Limitations on Wastewater Characteristics

Exhibit "F" Allocated Capacity in Existing Facilities

Exhibit "G"  Capital Cost Allocation Examples for Additional Capacity in Existing Facilities
Exhibit "H"  Capital Cost Allocation Examples for Additional Capacity in New Facilities

KARII70S0IMISOSSSA OUTLINE V5 WORD V 1 with page mumbers docP’@ge 3 0f 3



AGREEMENT



Revision 9/28/06
SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF SALEM

AND THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

This Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and between:
a) The TOWN OF SALEM (the "Town"), being a town located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin,
with its Town Hall located at 9814 Antioch Road (Highway 83), Salem, Wisconsin 53168; and
b) The VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE (the "Village"), being a village located in Kenosha
County, Wisconsin with its Village Hall located at 6969 236th Avenue, Paddock Lake,

Wisconsin 53168.

Introduction

The Town has created and established the Town of Salem Utility District (the "Town Utility
District™) under the provisions of Section 66.0827 of the Wisconsin Statutes (and its predecessor statute).

The Town Board Supervisors of the Town are also the Commissioners of the Town Utility District.

The Town, through the Town Utility District, owns and operates a sanitary sewerage system
that serves properties located within the Sewer Service Area established for the Town Utility District by
the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC) and authorized by the Wisconsin

Department of Natural Resources (WDNR).
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The Village is located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, The Village wishes to obtain sanitary
sewer service from the Town and its Utility District for certain areas located within the corporate limits
of the Village, and also in those areas of the Town that may be attached into the Village in the future (the
"Village Growth Area") pursuant to a cooperative plan adopted under Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin

Statutes.

The Town and the Village are entering into this present Agreement, as an intergovernmental
agreement under the provisions of Section 66,0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes, for the purpose of
providing to the Village the sanitary sewer service as described above, all under the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement. The Town and the Village are also contemporaneously entering into a
further and separate written intergovernmental agreement entitled "Village of Paddock Lake/Town of
Salem Cooperative Plan", which will provide for the orderly future attachment of properties located in
the Village Growth Area into the corporate limits of the Village pursuant to Section 66.0307 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. The Town and the Village are entering into this present Agreement and the Village
of Paddock Lake/Town of Salem quperative Pian for the purpose of allowing both governmental bodies
to work together, in a cooperative and coordinated manner, on matters of mutual concern that are

addressed in the two agreements.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND

PROMISES CONTAINED HEREIN, THE ABOVE-NAMED PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS

FOLLOWS:
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Article | DEFINITIONS

1.01 Town Sewer Service Area

The "Town Sewer Service Area" is the area of the Town of Salem, Town of
Bristol, Town of Randall, Village of Silver Lake, and Village of Paddock Lake
designated by SEWRPC to receive sanitary sewer service from the Town Utility
District wastewater treatment plant. The current boundary of such area is as
shown on the map in Exhibit "A". Such area may be amended from time to time

by SEWRPC at the request of the Town,

1.02 Town Service Zone

The "Town Service Zone" is the area of the Town Sewer Service Area within the
Village of Paddock Lake and the Village Growth Area. The current Town

Service Zone is as shown on the map in Exhibit "B".

1.03  Village Sewer Service Area

The "Village Sewer Service Area" is the area of the Village of Paddock Lake and
Town of Salem designated by SEWRPC to receive sanitary sewer service from
the Village of Paddock Lake wastewater treatment plant. The current boundary
of such area is as shown on the map in Exhibit "A". Such area may be amended

from time to time by SEWRPC at the request of the Village.
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1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

Village Growth Area

The "Village Growth Area" is the area of the Town reserved for Village growth
as described in the "Village of Paddock Lake/Town of Salem Cooperative Plan,”
The boundary of such area is as described in Exhibit "C" and as shown on the

map in Exhibit "D".

Village Service Zone

The "Village Service Zone" is the area of the Village Sewer Service Area within

the Town of Salem. The current Village Service Zone is as shown on the map in

Exhibit "B",

Ultimate Sewer Service Area Boundary

The '"Ultimate Sewer Service Area Boundary" is the recommended common
boundary between the ultimate Town of Salem and Village of Paddock Lake
Sanitary Sewer Service areas as described in "Amendment to the Regional Water
Quality Management Plan, Town of Salem" as adopted by SEWRPC, March

2001,

Town Utility District

The "Town Utility District" is the Utility District operated by the Town of Salem
pursuant to Section 66.0827 of the Wisconsin Statutes to provide sanitary sewer

service within the Town Sewer Service Area.
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1.08

1.09

1.10

1.11

Plans

The "Plans" are the plans for Wastewater Collection System improvements, and
include specifications, standard details, special provisions, drawings, design and
engineering reports and other data needed to review, approve, and construct the

facility.

Exclusive Use

"Exclusive Use" means the facility only serves customers of one Party of this
Agreement. Exclusive Use by the Town means the wastewater collection facility
or facilities only serves or only will serve customers of the Town. Customers of
the Town include all other municipalities served by the Town except the Village.
Exclusive Use by the Village means the wastewater collection facility or

facilities only serves or only will serve customers of the Village.

Joint Use
"Joint Use" means the wastewater collection facility or facilities serves or will

serve customers of the Town and also serves or will serve customers of the

Village.

Wastewater Collection Facilities

"Wastewater Collection Facilities" include gravity sanitary sewers, gravity
sanifary sewer laterals, pressure sanitary sewers, pressure sanitary sewer laterals,
grinder pump stations, sewage lift stations, sewage force mains, flow

equalization facilities and associated appurtenances. The Wastewater Collection
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1.12

1.13

Facilities are collectively referred to in this Agreement as the "Wastewater
Collection System". The individual components of the Wastewater Collection

System are referred to in this Agreement as a "Wastewater Collection Facility"

Wastewater Treatment Facilities

"Wastewater Treatment Facilities" includes the influent pumping facilities,
preliminary treatment facilities, secondary treatment facilities, disinfection
facilities, effluent pumping and effluent disposal facilities, sludge treatment and
stabilization facilities, sludge storage and disposal facilities, operation and
maintenance facilities, ancillary facilities, administrative facilities, and
associated appurtenances operated by the Town Utility District for treatment of
wastewater from the Town Sewer Service Area, The Wastewater Treatment
Facilities are collectively referred to in this Agreement as the "Wastewater
Treatment System." The individual components of the Wastewater Treatment

System are referred to in this Agreement as a "Wastewater Treatment Facility".

Existing Facility

An "Existing Facility" is a Town Utility District Wastewater Collection Facility
or a Wastewater Treatment Facility in existence on the effective date of this
Agreement. Existing Facilities do not include Projects in Progress as described
in subarticle 4.04. Such an "Existing Facility" may also hereinafter be referred
to as an "Existing Wastewater Collection Facility" and/or an "Existing

Wastewater Treatment Facility."
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[.14 New Facility
A "New Facility" is a Wastewater Collection Facility and/or a Wastewater
Treatment Facility not in existence on the effective date of this Agreement that
provides a function not provided by an Existing Wastewater Collection Facility
and/or an Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility. Such a "New Facility" may
also hereinafter be referred to as a "New Wastewater Collection Facility" and/or

a "New Wastewater Treatment Facility".

1.15 Expanded Facility

An "Expanded Facility" is an Existing Wastewater Collection Facility and/or an
Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility that is modified or enlarged in any way
to provide additional capacity or relocated or replaced with a larger facility to
provide additional capacity. An Expanded Facility is not a New Facility. Such
an "Expanded Facility" may also hereinafter be referred to as an "Expanded
Wastewater Collection Facility" and/or an "Expanded Wastewater Treatment

Facility".

1.16 Design Capacity

The "Design Capacity" is the projected flow condition for the Design Period of a
Wastewater Collection Facility and/or the projected flow or loading condition
for the Design Period of a Waste\yater Treatment Facility. The Design Capacity
for an Expanded Facility includes the actual flows and/or loadings and projected
flows and/or loadings. The Design Capacity for a New Facility only includes

projected flows and/or loadings.
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1.17

1.18

1.19

1.20

Design Period

The "Design Period" is the economic life the facility is designed to serve. (By
way of example, and without attempting to establish standards through this
example, the Design Period for small sanitary sewers is typically 40 years, the
Design Period for large sanitary sewers, sewage [ift stations, and sewage force
main is typically 20 vears, and the Design Period for Wastewater Treatment

Facilities is typically 20 years.)

Actual Capacity

"Actual Capacity” means the maximum flow or loading condition that a
Wastewater Collection Facility or a Wastewater Treatment Facility can
accommodate without exceeding the design criteria for the facility or causing
operational or maintenance probiems. The "Actual Capacity" could be less than,
equal to or greater than the "Design Capacity”, depending on the then-existing

physical condition and/or physical attributes of the facility in question,

Available Capacity

"Available Capacity” is any capacity in a facility not being used by the Town
and/or the Viilage. The Available Capacity is equal to the difference between

the Actual Capacity of the facility and the actual flow or loading condition.

Billable Capacity

The "Billable Capacity” is the Design Capacity or portion of the Design Capacity

used to allocate capifal cost of a facility.
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1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

Wastewater
"Wastewater" is (i) the total liquid flow in the sewerage system, and (ii) includes
both organic and inorganic matter, and (iii) consists of sanitary sewage,

industrial wastes, and infiltration and inflow of water, in any combination.

Actual Flow
"Actual Flow" means the maximum flow condition that has occurred or is
projected to have occurred in an Existing Facility and is anticipated to continue

to occur in the future.

Actual Loading
"Actual Loading" means the maximum loading condition that has occurred or is
projected to have occurred in an Existing Facility and is anticipated to continue

in the future.

Allocated Capacity

"Allocated Capacity” is that portion of available capacity which is reserved for
the exclusive use of the Village, Allocated Capacity will be expressed in terms
of user charge equivalents, as further defined in Section 4.02 and attached

Exhibit "F".

User Charge Equivalent (UCE)

"User Charge Equivalent" {("UCE"™) is the basic unit of charging for sewer
service and shall represent the volume and demand factors of wastewater

discharged into the system by a single-family residence with the capability of
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producing normal domestic wastewater and shall further reflect the peak
discharge into the system by such a user. Each UCE is based upon an average

daily flow of two hundred (200) gallons per day.

Article I  GENERAL CONDITIONS

2.01 Purpose of the Agreement

The purpose of the Agreement is to establish specific requirements for the Town
to provicie, and the Village to receive, sanitary sewer service for the area of the
Village located in the Town Service Zone; and to delineate the rights,
responsibilities, and obligations of each of the Parties in connection with that

service.

2.02 Areato be Served

The area of the Village that shall receive sanitary sewer service from the Town,
under this Agreement, shall be the Town Service Zone. Nothing in this
Agreement prevents the Town from providing sanitary sewer service to another
municipality. The Town Service Zone shall not be enlarged or modified without
prior written consent of the Town, which consent may be granted or withheld at
the sole discretion of the Town. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Town shall
enlarge the Town Service Zone to include the Village Growth Area provided the
Village agrees to reduce the Village Sewer Service Area in a like amount if it is
required by SEWRPC. Inclusion of parcels into the Town Service Zone shall
only occur upon attachment of such parcels to the Village. The Town Sewer

Service Area outside the Village and/or the Village Growth Area may be revised
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2.03

by the Town and the Village shall not object to any such revision. The Village
Sewer Service Area inside the Village Growth Area may be revised by the
Village and the Town shall not object to any such revision so long as such
revision does not adversely affect the Town'’s ability to provide sanitary sewer
service in the Town Service Zone. The Town Sewer Service Area inside the
Village Growth Area and/or the Village may be revised by the Town only with
the approval of the Village. The Town Sewer Service Area and the Village
Sewer Service Area shall not be expanded past the Ultimate Sewer Service Area
Boundary for the two sewer service areas established by SEWRPC, unless both

Parties agree to revising the boundary.

Limitations on Wastewater Characteristics

The wastewater delivered by the Village to the Town under this Agreement shali
comply with the requirements stated in Exhibit "E". The Town may agree to
accept wastewater from a proposed customer with characteristics exceeding the
values in Exhibit "E". Such acceptance shall be by written notice from the Town
Utility District and shall indicate the limitations on wastewater characteristics
for such customer. Acceptance of wastewater with characteristics exceeding the
values in Exhibit "E" may be granted or withheld at the sole discretion of the

Town.
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Article III

TERM

3o

3.02

3.03

Effective Date
This Agreement shall be effective as of the date the "Village of Paddock
Lake/Town of Salem Cooperative Plan" (the "Boundary Plan") is executed by

both Parties.

Term of Agreement

This Agreement shall have a term of 20 years unless it is either terminated or

amended sooner by a further written agreement signed by both Parties,

Termination

This Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the expiration of the term of
the Agreement, or upon such other date as may be mutually agreed upon in
writing by both Parties. Upon any termination of this Agreement, the Town shall
continue to provide service to all existing customers in the Town Service Zone,
unless both Parties agree in writing otherwise. The Town will not be obligated
to accept any new customers in the Town Service Zone after termination.
Subject to the foregoing provisions, this Agreement shall automatically terminate

upon termination of the Boundary Plan.
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Article IV~ ALLOCATED CAPACITY FOR VILLAGE

4.01 Acquisition of Allocated Capacity

The Town shall provide, and the Village shall acquire, Allocated Capacity in the

Town Utility District in accordance with the provisions of this Article.

4,02  Allocated Capacity

(a)

KAEI05WHMISCASSSA AGREEMENT 9-28-06.do<

The Village shail be permitted to discharge wastewater into the
Wastewater Collection System of the Town Utility District in the manner,
fashion, and amount described in Exhibit "F". The amount of wastewater
that can be discharged to the Wastewater Collection System of the Town
shall be expressed as User Charge Equivalents of the improvements
connected to the Wastewater Collection System of the Village in the
'Town Service Zone. The connection of improvements, expressed as User
Charge Equivalents, to the Wastewater Collection System, as described in
Exhibit "F", constitutes and equates the Allocated Capacity of the Village
under this Agreement. The Allocated Capacity for the Village shall be
One Thousand (1,000) User Charge Equivalents. The connection points
for the Village to discharge to the Wastewater Collection System of the
Town Utility District and the Allocated Capacity that can be discharged at

each connection point shall be as described in Exhibit "F".
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4.03

4.04

(b) The Village shall be permitted to use two flow paths through the
Wastewater Collection System of the Town to convey wastewater from
the Village to the Wastewater Treatment Plant of the Town Utility
District. The flow paths available for use by the Village are as shown on

the map in Exhibit "F".

(¢} The Allocated Capacity for each pipeline segment and the Allocated
Capacity for each sewage lift station shall be as described in Exhibit "F".
Any capacity in excess of the Allocated Capacity shall be considered

Additional Capacity.

Use of Existing Facilities

The Village shall receive Allocated Capacity in the facilities of the two flow
paths of the Wastewater Collection System of the Town Utility District for
Twenty (20) Years from the date of this Agreement in accordance with the
provisions of this Section and subject to the provisions of Section 3.03 of this
Agreement. Such Allocated Capacity is being provided to the Village under this
Agreement in recognition of the connection fees and user charges that the
Village wiil be paying to the Town in the future under the provisions of Sections

9.01 and 9.02 of this Agreement.

Projects in Progress

The Town is presently proceeding with three projects that are needed to provide
sanitary sewer service to the Town Service Zone. The Village shall pay a lump

sum payment of One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,250.00) per UCE
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to the Town for the Village's proportional share of the capital cost of each of the
three facilities, as further described in Section 9.02 of this Agreement. The three
projects in progress are:

. STH '83' Sanitary Sewer Replacement

) Sewage Lift Station No. 8 Improvements

] Service Area No. 1 Wet Weather Flow Equalization Facilities

Article V. ADDITIONAL CAPACITY FOR VILLAGE

5.01 Acquisition of Additional Capacity

When and if the Village wishes to obtain any additional capacity in the
Wastewater Collection System which is in excess of the Village’s Allocated
Capacity (described in Section 4.02 and attached in Exhibit "F"), such additional
capacity ("Additional Capacity") shall be acquired by the Village in accordance

with the provisions of this Article.

5.02 Use of Existing Facilities

The Village shall be permitted to use any Available Capacity in the Existing
Wastewater Collection Facilities and the Wastewater Treatment Facilities of the
Town Utility District until 90 percent of the Actual Capacity of the Existing
Wastewater Collection Facility or the Existing Wastewater Treatment Facility is
reached. Such determination of Available Capacity and Actual Capacity shall be

made by the Town Utility District, and the Town shall provide to the Village the
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5.03

5.04

engineering data and calculations pertaining to such determination made by the
Town Utility District. An example of the application of this provision is

included in Exhibit "G".

Expansion of Existing Facilities

v

The Town shall be the Party responsible for constructing any Joint Use
Expanded Wastewater Collection Facility and/or any Wastewater Treatment
Facility. Either Party may require that the Wastewater Collection and Treatment
Facility be expanded if 90 percent of the existing Actual Capacity is reached.
All capacity in Existing Facilities used by the Village, in excess of the Allocated
Capacity of the Village, pursuant to Section 5.02, shall be returned for use by the
Town when Existing Facilities are expanded. The Village shall acquired
Additional Capacity in the Expanded Facility (as defined in Section 1.15) to
meet the projected needs of the Village, as determined by the Village, for the
Design Period of the facility being expanded. The Town shall acquire capacity
in the Expanded Facility to meet the projected needs of the Town in excess of
the Actual Capacity of the Existing Facility for the Design Period of the facility
being expanded. An example of the application of this provision is included in

Exhibit "G".

Construction of New Facilities

The Town shall be the Party responsible for constructing (i) all New Wastewater
Collection Facilities and/or New Wastewater. Treatment Facilities located in the

Town, no matter whether the same will be used by the Town and/or the Village,
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and (i

i) all New Wastewater Collection Facilities and/or New Wastewater

Treatment Facilities located in the Village, that will be required for the

Exclusive Use by the Town and/or Joint Use by the Town and Village. The

Village shall be the Party responsible for constructing all New Wastewater

Collection Facilities and/or New Wastewater Treatment Facilities located in the

Village that will be required for the Exclusive Use of the Village. An example

of the

I!H!I-

5.05 Alloca

application of this present Section 5.04 is contained in attached Exhibit

tion of Capital Costs

(a)

KABII2O0SMIMISCSSSA AGREEMENT 9-28-06.doc

The Town shall pay the entire capital cost for all New Wastewater
Collection Facilities and Expanded Wastewater Collection Facilities
required for the Exclusive Use of the Town. The Village shall pay the
Town the entire capital cost for all New Wastewater Collection Facilities
in the Town required for the Exclusive Use of the Village. The Village
shall pay the Town the Village's proportional share of the capital cost for
all New Wastewater Collection Facilities and Expanded Wastewater
Collection Facilities and all New and Expanded Wastewater Treatment
Facilities for Joint Use by the Town and the Village. The Village shall
pay the Town the entire capital cost for any New Wastewater Collection
Facilities, that will be for Joint Use by the Town and the Village, if the

Town has no immediate need for the Wastewater Collection Facilities.
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The Town shall pay the Village the Town's proportional share of the
capital cost for the New Wastewater Collection Facility when such

service is required by the Town,

The Village's proportional share of the capital cost of the facility shall be
computed as the Billable Capacity of the Village divided by the sum of
the Billable Capacities of the Town and the Village. The Town’s
proportional share of the capital cost of the facility shall be computed as
the Billable Capacity of the Town divided by the sum of the Billable

Capacities of the Town and Village,

The Billable Capacity for the Town for Expanded Wastewater Collection
Facilities and/or Expanded Wastewater Treatment Facilities shall be equal
to the difference between the Design Capacity of the Town for the
Expanded Facility and the Actual Capacity of the Existing Facility that is
being expanded. If the Actual Capacity of the Exis;[ing Facility that is
being expanded is equal to or greater than the Design Capacity of the
Town for the Expanded Facility, the Billable Capacity of the Town shall
be equal to zero. The Billable Capacity for the Village for Expanded
Wastewater Collection Facilities and/or Expanded Wastewater Treatment
Facilities shall be equal to the Design Capacity of the Village for the
Expanded Facility. The Allocated Capacity of the Village shall be

considered as part of the Design Capacity of the Town for Wastewater
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(d)

Collection Facilities. The Allocated Capacity of the Village shall be
considered as part of the Design Capacity of the Village for Wastewater
Treatment Facilities. An example of the application of this provision is

included in Exhibit "G".

The Billable Capacity for the Town for New Wastewat'er Collection
Facilities shall be equal to the Design Capacity of the Town for the New
Facility. The Billable Capacity for the Village for New Wastewater
Collection Facilities shall be equal to the Design Capacity of the Village
for the New Facility. An exampie of the application of this provision is

included in Exhibit "H".

5.06 Ownership of Facilities

All facilities that are in the Town shall be owned by the Town. All facilities that

are for the Exclusive Use of the Town or are for the Joint Use of the Town and

the Village shall be owned by the Town, no matter whether located in the Town

or in the Village. All facilities that are in the Village and are for the Exclusive

Use of the Village shall be owned by the Village.

5.07 Transfer of Ownership

Owner

ship of any Town Wastewater Collection Facility that is for the Exclusive

Use of the Village and is located on property that is annexed or attached to the

Village shall transfer to the Village upon annexation or attachment. Any and ail

remaining debt associated with the facility shail be allocated or transferred
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5.08

pursuant to the provisions of the Boundary Plan. The Town shall transfer
ownership of all sites and assign rights for all easements to the Village for all

Wastewater Collection Facilities that ownership has been transferred to the

Village.

Upgraded and Renovated Facilities

The Town shall be responsible for upgrading and renovating the Wastewater
Collection System and/or the Wastewater Treatment System of the Town Utility
District when deemed necessary or desirable by the Town or when required by
the WDNR. The Town acknowledges that the contribution of resources by the
Village towards such upgrading and renovating is contained in the user fees and
connection fees paid by the Village on an ongoing basis. The requirements of
the Village to pay a proportional share of the capital cost of a project shall not
apply to upgraded or renovated facilities when no additional capacity is created

in such facility.

Article VI RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF VILLAGE

6.01

Operation and Maintenance of Village Facilities

The Village shall operate and maintain, at its own cost and expense, all
Wastewater Collection Facilities owned by the Village. Such costs and expenses
shall be paid using revenues of the Village from whatever source or sources

received.
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6.02

6.03

6.04

Compliance with Applicable Laws

Village shall construct, maintain, and operate its municipal Wastewater
Collection Facilities, which are connected to the Wastewater Collection
Facilities of the Town, in full compliance with all applicable governmental laws,
rules and regulations. This shall include, but not be limited to, (i) all applicable
laws of the State of Wisconsin, rules and regulations of the WDNR, and (i) all
ordinances. of the Town, as may from time to time be adopted, which establish
regulations or standards for use of the Town's Wastewater Collection Facilities

and Wastewater Treatment Facilities,

Adoption of Ordinances

The Village shall adopt such ordinances and resolutions as may from time to
time be reasonably required to (i) enable the Village to operate its municipal
Wastewater Collection Facilities in full compliance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations (including, but not limited to, the applicable ordinances
adopted by the Town as described in Section 6.02 of this Agreement), and (ii)
enable the Parties to this Agreement to exercise their rights, duties and

obligations contained in this Agreement.

Connection Requirements and Notifications

The Village shall require the Owners of all existing and future structures in the
Town Service Zone located in the Village with plumbing to connect to the
Wastewater Collection Facilities when they become available to the property.
The Village shall issue a Connection Permit for each and every connection to the

Wastewater Collection Facilities. The Village shall provide a copy of the
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6.05

Connection Permit with a copy of a Town "Request for Service" form to the
Town Utility District within five working days of issuing the permit. The Town
Utility District shall notify the Village, within fifteen (15) working days of
receiving the "Request for Service" form, of the billing rate and fees the Town
Utility District will charge the Village for the customer. The criteria for
establishing the user charge equivalents (UCE's) for customers located within
the Village shall be identical to the criteria for customers located within the
Town. Billings by the Town Utility District for new customers will begin the

first full month after the Connection Permit is issued by the Village.

Control of Infiltration and Inflow (I/T)

(a)  The Village, at its own cost and expense, shall take all steps reasonably
required to prevent any significant infiltration or inflow (I/I) of clear
water into the Wastewater Collection Facilitics owned by the Village in
the Town Service Zone, and in any event shall not exceed the maximum
level of infiltration and inflow of clear water that is specified in attached

Exhibit "E".

(b)  The Village, at its own cost and expense, shall perform all sewer system
evaluation survey (SSES) work and sewer rehabilitation work needed to
correct any I/l problem that may occur in Village owned Wastewater
Collection Facilities in the Town Service Zone. The Village shall provide
a copy of all SSES and sewer rehabilitation documents to the Town
Utility District for review. The Village shall inspect all structures

connected to the Village owned Wastewater Collection System in the
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Town Service Zone for illegally connected sump pumps or other illegal
connections not less frequently than the frequency of inspections
conducted by the Town. The Village shall submit copies of all sump
pump inspection reports from the Town Service Zone of the Village for

each year of inspections to the Town annually.

Article VII' RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF TOWN

7.01

7.02

Operation and Maintenance of Town Facilities

The Town shall operate and maintain, at its own cost and expense, all
Wastewater Collection Facilities and Wastewater Treatment Facilities owned by
the Town. Such costs and expenses shall be paid using the revenues of the Town

Utility District from whatever source or sources received.

Moeonitoring Village System

The Village shall allow the Town to meter, sample, and test wastewater at any
point in the Town Service Zone of the Village. The Town will provide a copy of
all metering and testing results to the Village. All metering, sampling, and
testing shall be at the cost and expense of the Town. The Village shall allow the
Town to inspect all Existing Wastewater Collection Facilities in the Town
Service Zone of the Village. The Town will provide a onc week notice of
inspection to the Village for routine inspections, The Town will notify the

Village as soon as possible of any emergency inspection.
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Article VIII REVIEWS AND APPROVALS

3.01

Development Reviews

(a)

(b)

The Village shall submit a copy of all information on proposed
developments in the Town Service Zone of the Village to the Town
Utility District for review and comment. The Town Utility District shall
review the information and perform a Sewer Service Feasibility
Evaluation. The Village shall provide any additional information needed
by the Town Utility District to perform a Sewer Service Feasibility
Evaluation. The Sewer Service Feasibility Evaluation shall identify the
connection point for the proposed development, shall identify if Available
Capacity exists in Existing Wastewater Collection Facilities and the
Wastewater Treatment Facilities, and shall identify if New Facilities

and/or Expanded Facilities are needed.

The Sewer Service Feasibility Evaluation shali (i) identify all Wastewater
Collection Facilities and Wastewater Treatment Facilities that would need
to be expanded or constructed, and (ii) provide an estimated cost for
construction. A copy of the Sewer Service Feasibility Evaluation shall be
submitted to the Village within one week of the evaluation being
completed. The Village shall not proceed with any development in the
Town Service Area until the Town Utility District notifies the Village in
writing that capacity for the proposed development is available under the

terins and provisions of this Agreement.
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8.02 Plan Reviews and Approvals

3.03

The Village shall submit to the Town Utility District, for review and approval,
five (5) copies of Plans for all Wastewater Collection System improvements
desired by the Village within the Town 'Service Zone of the Village. The Plans
will be reviewed for conformance with (i) the engineering standards of the Town
Utility District, and (ii) the construction standards adopted by the Village and
approved by the Town Utility District, and (iii) the terms and provisions of this
Agreement. Two sets of Plans shall be returned to the Village marked
"conditionally approved" or "revise and resubmit". An "Owner Approval Letter"
as required by NR 110.12 shall be provided by the Town Utility District with
Plans marked "conditionally approved”. Plans marked "revise and resubmit"
shall be updated and five (5) sets of the updated Plans shall be resubmitted to the
Town Utility District for review and approval. The review process shall be
repeated until the Plans are acceptable to the Town Utility District and are
marked "conditionally approved". Two sets of Plans shall be returned to the
Village marked "rejected" if adequate capacity is not available or will not be

available for the proposed development to be served by the Plans.

Engineering Standards

All Wastewater Collection System Plans shall be designed in accordance with
the Engineering Standards described herein. All drawings shall be on 8%"x 11"
sheets for standard details, 11"x17" sheets for half-size drawings, and 22"x34"
sheets for full-size drawings. A separate set of drawings shall be prepared

exclusively for the proposed Wastewater Collection System improvements. The
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drawings shall show all existing features and facilitiecs and shall show the

proposed Wastewater Collection Facilities and all proposed facilities to be

constructed in conjunction with the Wastewater Collection System

improvements such as roadways, public water system facilities and storm water

manag

ement facilities.

8.04 Construction Standards

All Wastewater Collection Facilities shall be constructed in accordance with

construction standards mutually acceptable to the Town of Salem and the Village

of Paddock Lake and approved by the WDNR.,

8.05 Construction Reviews and Approvals

(a)

(b)
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A preconstruction conference shall be held with representatives of the
Village, the Town Utility District, the Contractor, and the Developer (if a
developer is involved) to discuss construction requirements, testing
requirements, and project schedule after the Plans have been approved by
the WDNR. The Village shall provide a copy of the WDNR approval
letter, a copy of all permits, and a copy of the project schedule to the
Town Utility District and everyone attending the meeting. The Village
shall submit three (3) copies of all required submittals to the Town Utility

District for use by the Town.

During the course of construction the Village shall give the Town Utility
District full and adequate opportunity to inspect such construction work,

if the Town Utility District desires to determine that the work is being
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done in full compliance with this Agreement, and the project information
submitted by the Village and reviewed by the Town Utility District. This
right of inspection on the part of the Town, however, shall not relieve the
Village of its obligation for supervising and inspecting all such work, and
the Town shall not assume hny liability or responsibility for any errors
and/or failures of construc.tion merely because of the Town's exercise of

its inspection rights granted hereunder,

(c)  Upon completion of construction, the Village shall submit the following

items to the Town Utility District for review:

L. One copy of all daily inspection reports prepared by the

construction representative of the Village,

2. One copy of the results of all performance tests required to
demonstrate compliance with the Village of Paddock Lake
Construction Standards and any Special Provisions approved for

the project.

3, Two copies of alf sewer televising tapes and reports.
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4, Two copies of half size (11"x17") and two copies of full size
(22"x34") record drawings revised to reflect the “as-built"
arrangement of the Wastewater Collection Facilities. A digital file
of the record drawings in an AutoCAD .dwf format and a .dwg

format.

(d) The Town Utility District shall perform a final inspection of the
Wastewater Collection Facilities, to verify the construction work is
complete, after all required information is submitted and reviewed. A
"Certificate of Acceptance"” shall be issued to the Village by the Town
Utility District after the final inspection has been performed and all
construction work is complete. The Village agrees not to issue any
Connection Permits for the facility until a Certificate of Acceptance has
been issued by the Town, which Certificate shall be issued within 30 days
of submission of the previously mentioned documents. In the event no
Certificate is issued within such time, the Village may proceed to issue

connection permits.

8.06 Cost of Town Reviews and Approvals

All inspections, reviews or compliance checks performed by the Town shall be

at the Town's expense.
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Article IX CHARGES, BILLINGS, AND PAYMENT

9.01

9.02

User Charges

The Village shall pay the Town Utility District the User Charge Equivalents
("UCE’s") attributable to the Village customers in the Town Service Zone. The
user charge payment for sanitary sewer service shall equal the then-existing total
UCE's that would be payable by the Village customers if such Village customers

were instead the direct customers of the Town Utility District.

Connection Fees

The Village shall pay the Town Utility District a connection fee payment for
sanitary sewer service for all Village customers in the Town Service Zone that
connect to the Town Utility District's sanitary sewerage system at the time of
connection of a lateral after the effective date of this Agreement, The
connection fees payable by the Village customers shall be equal to (i) the
then-existing connection fee payable by all customers of the Town Utility
District, plus (ii} an added connection fee (the "Added Connection Fee") in the
amount of One Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars ($1,250.00) per UCE
connected. This Added Connection Fee is being paid for and as the Village's
proportional share of the capital costs of the projects in progress as described in

Section 4.04 of this Agreement.
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0.03

9.04

9.05

Capital Costs

The monies payable by the Village to the Town for the Vil!ag&;’s proportional
share of capital costs may be paid by the Village (for each separate project)
cither (i) in one lump sum payment at the time of the substantial completion of
the project, or (ii) in Twenty (20) equal annual installment payments of principal
and interest (such interest rate to be the interest rate incurred by the Town in its
financing of the project), or (iii) in such other manner and arrangements as the

Parties may mutually agree in writing,

Billings and Payment

The Town Utility District shall bill the Village quarterly for UCE payments for
sanitary sewer service. The Town Utility District shall bill the Village monthly
for connection fee payments for sanitary sewer service. All invoices from the
Town Utility District to the Village are due within -30 days of receipt of the
invoice by the Village. The Village is responsible for making all payments

regardless of receiving payment from their customers.

Payment Disputes

The Village agrees to pay any disputed invoice upon receipt and provide notice
and -details-of such dispute with such payment. The Town shall review the
notice and details of such dispute within 30 days of receiving the notice and shall
érovide a refund within 30 days of receiving notice of the disputed item if a
billing error has been made or shall provide details of why such billing was not

in error if no error was tnade.

KAEII MOS0 IMISCSSSA AGREEMENT 9-23-06.doc 3 O



9.06 Coordinated Effort

The Village shall promptly give notice to the Town Utility District of any
changes in the number or type of customers that are in the Town Service Zone,
and shall provide to the Town Utility District such other information as may be
reasonably requested from time to time by the Town Utility District to establish
the charges and fees payable by the Village to the Town Utility District under

this Agreement.

9.07 Access to Records

Both the Town Utility District and the Village shall maintain complete and
accurate documents and records in connection with the activities and
administration of this Agreement. Each Party may inspect the records of the

other Party at any time during regular business hours upon reasonable notice.

Article X ~ ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT

10.01 Definition of Default

A Party shall be in default under this Agreement if such Party fails to remedy or
cure any failure of performance or compliance under or with this Agreement
within thirty (30) days after receiving from the other Party a written notice
describing such failure of performance or compliance. In the event the remedy
or cure for such failure, other than the failure to pay money, is of such a nature
that it cannot reasonably be competed within such thirty-day time period, then a

Party shall only be in default under this Agreement if such Party (i) fails to
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10.02

10.03

commence the remedying/curing of such failure within thirty (30) days after
receiving from the other Party written notice of the same, and (ii) further fails to
thereafter proceed with such remedying/curing of the said failure(s) with due

diligence.

All Remedies Available

Upon default, the nondefaulting Party shall have available to it all remedies

avatlable under the law.

Emergency Action

In the event a conditiop and/or situation exists that creates an imminent threat to
(i) the health, safety and welfare of the customers of any Wastewater Collection
Facilities, and/or (ii) the proper and lawful operation of the Town Utility District
Wastewater Treatment Facilities, then either party may immediately and without
any prior notice take such steps as are reasonably necessary to remedy or cure
the failure or defect. In such an event, the employees and/or contractors of either
party may undertake and perform such emergency remedial action wherever the
same is reasonably required. The acting party shall give notice to the other party
of any such emergency remedial action undertaken as soon as reasonably

practicable.
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Article XI  GENERAL PROVISIONS

11.01 Governing Law
This Agreement shali be governed, controlled, interpreted and construed by and

under the faws of the State of Wisconsin,

11.02 Interpretation

This Agreement shall be interpreted as though jointly drafted by both Parties,
11.03 Amendments

This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by all

Parties.

11.04 Conflict with Other Laws

In the event any terms or provisions of this Agreement are in conflict with any
laws and/or the requirements of any grant(s) or loan(s) received by either of the
Parties from the State of Wisconsin and/or the United States of America (or from
any of their departments or agencies), then the Parties of this Agreement shall in
good faith renegotiate such conflicting terms and provisions in an effort to

resolve such conflict,

11.05 Notices
Any notices required to be given under this Agreement by any Party to the other
Party shall be in writing, and shall be delivered to such other Party either by (i)

personal service, or by (ii) certified mail in a postpaid envelope addressed to
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11.06

11.07

11.08

such other Party at the address specified on the first page of this Agreement, or
to such other address as may, from time to time, be designated in writing by the

Parties hereto.

No Challenges to this Agreement

The Town and the Village hereby waive any right each may have to commence
or maintain any civil action or other proceeding to contest or challenge the
adoption or the validity of this Agreement. This paragraph shall not be
construed to prevent a Party to this Agreement from commencing a declaratory

judgment action regarding the interpretation of this Agreement.

No Third-party Beneficiary

This Agreement is intended to be solely between and for the benefit of the Town
and the Village. Nothing is this Agreement shall be interpreted as giving to any
person or entity not a Party to this Agreement any legal or equitable rights

whatsoever,

Administration of this Agreement

This Agreement shall be administered on behalf of the Town by the Town
Chairman or designee; and on behalf of the Village by the Village President or
designee. The other Party to this Apreement shall be promptly notified in

writing of the appointment of any designee pursuant to this paragraph.
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11.09 Complete Agreement

This Agreement represents the entire integrated agreement between the Parties
and supersedes all past agreements and all negotiations, representations,
promises or agreements, either written or oral, made during the course of

negotiations leading up to this Agreement.

11.10 Severability

If any provision, paragraph, word, section, or subsection of this Agreement is
invalidated by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions,
paragraphs, words, sections, and subsections shall not be affected and shall

continue in full force and effect,

11.11 Attached Exhibits and Introduction

The "Introduction" and all exhibits attached to this Agreement are hereby

incorporated into the Agreement as if fully set forth herein.

11.12 Waiver
The failure of either Party at any time to require performance by the other Party
of any term or condition of this Agreement shall not affect the full right of
performance at any subsequent time. - The waiver by either Party of strict
performance of any term or condition of this Agrecment by the other shall not
constitute a waiver of any succeeding breach of a term or condition or a waiver

of the term or condition itself.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned and duly authorized officials of the above-named Parties

to this Agreement have duly executed this Agreement as of the day of
, 2006.
Town of Salem Village of Paddock Lake
Kenosha County, WI Kenosha County, WI
by: _ by:
Diann Tesar David C. Buchn
Town Chairperson Village President
by: by:
Lynn Pepper Emily Ulenhake
Town Clerk Village Clerk
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EXHIBIT "A"

MAP OF TOWN AND VILLAGE SEWER SERVICE AREAS
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EXHIBIT "B"

MAP OF TOWN AND VILLAGE SERVICE ZONES
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EXHIBIT "C"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF VILLAGE GROWTH AREA BOUNDARY
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF VILLAGE GROWTH AREA BOUNDARY
to be provided by

Baxter & Woodman
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EXHIBIT "D"

MAP OF VILLAGE GROWTH AREA

EAEIINSWIMISCASSSA EXHIBITS V5 WORD V | NEW clean.doc






EXHIBIT "E"

LIMITATIONS ON WASTEWATER CHARACTERISTICS

KAEDI205\0WISC\S S5 A EXHIBITS V5 WORD ¥V | NEW clean doc



LIMITATIONS ON WASTEWATER CHARACTERISTICS

The wastewater delivered by the Village to the Town shall be within the following limits and
parameters:

1. The wastewater shall be normal domestic strength sanitary sewage, discharged from
single-family and multi-family residential dwellings, commercial buildings, and public buildings,
and shall not exceed the following limits;

a) BOD 200 mg/L or less
b) Suspended Solids 240 mg/L or less
c) Phosphorus 10 mg/L or less
d) TKN 50 mg/L or less
e) Ammonia 25 mg/L or less
2. Infiltration and inflow of clear water into the collection system of the Village shall not
:i(;:ed Two Hundred (200) Gallons per day per each diameter inch of sanitary sewer main per each
| .
| 3. The volume of the wastewater delivered by Village to the Town shall not exceed One

Hundred (100) Gallons per person/occupant in the Town Service Zone per day,
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EXHIBIT "F"

ALLOCATED CAPACITY IN EXISTING FACILITIES
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ALLOCATED CAPACITY IN EXISTING FACILITIES

The Village shall be permitted to discharge wastewater into the Wastewater Collection System of the
Town Utility District in the manner, fashion, and amount described in this Exhibit. The amount of
wastewater that can be discharged to the Wastewater Collection System of the Town shall be expressed as

User Charge Equivalents (UCEs) of improvements connected to the Wastewater Collection System of the
Village in the Town Service Zone.

A UCE is the basic unit of charging for sewer service, It represents the volume and demand factors
of wastewater discharged into the system by a single-family residence with the capability of producing
normal domestic wastewater and shall reflect the peak discharge into the system by such user. Each UCE
is based upon an average daily flow of two hundred (200) gallons per day.

The capacity allocated to the Village is expressed as UCEs to eliminate the need to measure water
use or the discharge of wastewater from customers of the Village in the Town Service Zone. The method
of determining UCEs for the Village will be the same method used by the Town as described in
Section 13.11 of Chapter 13 "Municipal Utilities" of the Town Ordinances, as the same may from time to
time be amended by the Town. No user will be considered to be less than 1.0 UCE. UCEs for residential
users will be determined in accordance with the values in Table F-1.

Table F-1' User Charge Equivalents for Residential Users

Classification Number of UCEs
Single Family Residential E.0/unit
Multiple Family Residential L.0/unit
Mobile Home L.0/unit

UCEs for public, comnmercial, and industrial users shall be determined in accordance with Section
13.11 of Chapter 13 of the Town Ordinances, as the same may from time to time be amended by the
Town.

The Allocated Capacity for the Village shall be 1,000 UCEs. The 1,000 UCEs are in addition to the
existing users in the Town Service Zone that are presently served by the Town Utility District. The
Allocated Capacity of 1,000 UCEs means that up to 1,000 UCEs of new residential, public, commercial,
and mdustrial improvements in the Town Service Zone located in the Village can be connected to the
Wastewater Collection System of the Town Utility District.

The connection points for the Village to discharge to the Wastewater Collection System of the Town
Utility District and the Allocated Capacity that can be connected to each connection point shall be as
shown in Figure F-1 and indicated in Table F-2. The Allocated Capacity for each connection point may
be adjusted up to plus or minus Ten Percent (10%) by the Village, but the total number of UCEs shall not
exceed One Thousand (1,000) UCEs. Additional adjustments may be made if approved in writing by the
Town.

Table F-2 Connection Points and Ailocated Capacity

Allocated Capacity for
Connection Point Connection Point, UCEs
CTH'AH' Trunk Sewer 225
STH 5" Trunk Sewer : 245
CTH 'F' Trunk Sewer 350
STH '83' North Trunk Sewer 180
Total Allocated Capacity 1,000
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Each connection point is a sewer segment. The Village may connect the Allocated Capacity of
UCEs for each connection point at any point on the sewer segment or at multiple points on the sewer
segment.

The Village shall be permitted to use two flow paths through the Wastewater Collection System of
the Town to convey wastewater from the Town Service Zone of the Village to the Wastewater Treatment
Plant of the Town Utility District. The two flow paths available for use by the Village are designated as
the East Flow Path and the West Flow Path. The location of the East Flow Path is shown in Figure 2.
The location of the West Flow Path is shown in Figure F-3,

The East Flow Path includes nine (9) sanitary sewer segments and three (3) sewage lift stations. The
West Flow Path includes eight (8) sanitary sewer segments and four (4) sewage lift stations. The last
two (2} sanitary sewer segments of both paths are common to both flow paths. - The two (2) common
sanitary sewer segtnents of each flow path are designated as the Combined Flow Path.

The Allocated Capacity for each of the first seven (7) sanitary sewer segments of the East Flow Path
and each of the three (3) sewage lift stations is designated in Table F-3.

Table F-3 Allocated Capacity for the East Flow Path

Facility Allocated Capacity, UCEs
STH '50' Trunk Sewer 245
Sewage Lift Station 106 245
CTH 'F' Trunk Sewer 595
STH '83' North Trunk Sewer 775
Hooker Lake West Interceptor Sewer 775
Sewage Lift Station 102 775
Hooker Lake East Interceptor Sewer 715
Sewage Lift Station 100 715
Wilmot Road Interceptor Sewer 775
CTH 'C' East Interceptor Sewer 775

The Allocated Capacit).f for each of the first six (6) sanitary sewer segments of the West Flow Path
and each of the four (4) sewage lift stations of the West Flow Path is designated in Table F-4.

Table F-4 Allocated Capacity for the West Flow Path

Facility Allocated Capacity, UCEs
CTH'AH' Trunk Sewer 225
269th Avenue Interceptor Sewer 225
Sewage Lift Station 211 225
273rd Avenue Interceptor Sewer 225
Sewage Lift Station 212 225
272nd Avenue Interceptor Sewer 225
270th Avenue Interceptor Sewer 225
Sewage Lift Station 208 225

The Allocated Capacity for each of the two (2) sanitary sewer segments of the Combined Flow Path
is designated in Table F-5. The location of the flow path wastewater collection systemn facilities are
shown in Figure F-4.

Table F-5 Allocated Capacity for the Combined Flow Path

Facility Allocated Capacity, UCEs
113th Street Interceptor Sewer 1,000
WWTP East Interceptor Sewer 1,000
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EXHIBIT "G"

CAPITAL COST ALLOCATION EXAMPLES
FOR
ADDITIONAL CAPACITY IN EXISTING FACILITIES
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CAPITAL COST ALLOCATION EXAMPLES
FOR
ADDITIONAL CAPACITY IN EXISTING FACILITIES

Example No. 1 (Article 5.02)

The Village plans to add a subdivision that would discharge to an existing Town Utility District
sewage lift station and sewage force main. The existing capacity of the sewage lift station and
sewage force main is 300 gallons per minute (gpm). The existing flow to the sewage lift station
from Town customers is 150 gpm. The available capacity is 150 gpm. The design flow for the
Village subdivision is projected to be 50 gpm. The Village design flow (50 gpm) is less than the
available capacity (150 gpm); and the design flow for the facility for the next five (5) years
(150 gpm + 50 gpm = 200 gpm) does not exceed 90 percent of the actual capacity of the facilities.
The Village may use the available capacity. The Village can use the existing Town wastewater
collection facilities without any allocation of capital cost for expanding facilities until the actual flow
or the design flow reaches 270 gpm (90 percent of 300 gpm).

Example No. 2 (Article 5.02)

The Village plans to add a subdivision that would discharge to an existing Town Utility District
collector sewer. The existing capacity of the collector sewer is 400 gpm. The existing flow in the
collector sewer from the Town is 300 gpm. The projected flow for the collector sewer from
proposed developments in the Town in the next five (5) years is 350 gpm. The available capacity is
equal to the difference between the actual capacity of the collector sewer (400 gpm) and the
projected flow (350 gpm), which equals 50 gpm. The design flow for the Village subdivision is
projected to be 20 gpm. The Village design flow (20 gpm) is less than the available capacity of the
collector sewer;but the design flow for the collector sewer (350 gpm + 20 gpm = 370 gpm) exceeds
90 percent of the actual capacity of the facilities. The Village cannot use the existing collector sewer
without expanding the capacity,

Example No. 3
Part | (Article 5.03)

The Village plans to add a subdivision that would discharge to an existing Town Utility District
trunk sewer. The existing capacity of the trunk sewer is 500 gpm. The existing flow in the trunk
sewer from Town customers is 350 gpm. The existing flow from the Village customers is 75 gpm,
The design flow for the proposed Village subdivision is projected to be 75 gpm,

The existing flow and the design flow for the Village subdivision equals or exceed 90 percent of the
capacity of the existing trunk sewer. The trunk sewer must be expanded to provide additional
capacity. The design period for the trunk sewer is 40 years. The design flow for development in the
Town for the 40-year design period, including existing flow, is projected to be 475 gpm. The design
flow for development in the Town Service Zone of the Village for the 40-year design period,
including existing flow, is projected to be 300 gpm.

The capacity of the existing trunk sewer is 500 gpm. The Town will have use of the entire existing
capacity after the existing facility is expanded. The design flow for the Town is 475 gpm. The
design flow for the Town (475 gpm) is less than the existing capacity of the trunk sewer (500 gpm)
so the Town does not need any additional capacity in the expanded facility.
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The design flow for the Village is 300 gpm. The Village must acquire 300 gpm of capacity in the
expanded facility. The design flow for the expanded facility will be equal to the capacity of the
existing trunk sewer (500 gpm) plus the design flow for the Village (300 gpm), which equals
800 gpm.

Part 2 (Article 5.05)

The trunk sewer is an expanded facility for joint use by the Town and Village. The billable capacity
for the Town is equal to the difference between the design capacity of the Town (475 gpm) and the
capacity of the existing facility (500 gpm). The billable capacity for the Town is equal to zero
(475 gpm — 500 gpm = -25 gpm) because the existing capacity of the facility is equal to or greater
than the design capacity of the Town. The billable capacity for the Village is equal to the design
capacity of the Village (300 gpm).

The Town's proportional share of the capital cost of the expanded facility is equal to the billable
capacity of the Town (0) divided by the sum of the billable capacities of the Town (0) and the
Village (300 gpm), which is zero (0). The Village's proportional share of the capital cost of the
expanded facility is equal to the billable capacity of the Village (300 gpm) divided by the sum of the
billable capacity of the Town (0) plus the billable capacity of the Village (300 gpm), which equals
100 percent.

Example No. 4

Part | (Article 5.03)

The Village plans to add a subdivision that would discharge to an existing Town Utility District
trunk sewer. The existing capacity of the trunk sewer is 400 gpm. The existing flow in the trunk
sewer from Town customers is 300 gpm. The existing flow from the Village customers is 50 gpm.
The design flow for the proposed Village subdivision is projected to be 50 gpm.

The existing flow (350 gpm) and the design flow for the Village (50 gpm) subdivision equals or
exceed 90 percent of the capacity of the existing trunk sewer. The trunk sewer must be expanded to
provide additional capacity. The design period for the trunk sewer is 40 years. The design flow for
development in the Town for the 40-year design period, including existing flow, is projected to be
500 gpm. The design flow for development in the Town Service Zone of the Village for the 40-year
design period, including existing flow, is projected to be 300 gpm.

The capacity of the existing trunk sewer is 400 gpm. The Town will have use of the entire existing
capacity after the existing facility is expanded. The design flow for the Town is 500 gpm. The
design flow for the Town (500 gpm) is greater than the existing capacity of the trunk sewer
(400 gpm) so the Town will need 100 gpm (500 gpm — 400 gpm = 100 gpm) of additional capacity
in the expanded facility.

The design flow for the Village is 300 gpm. The Village must acquire 300 gpm of capacity in the

expanded facility. The design flow for the expanded facility will be equal to the design flow for the
Town (500 gpm) plus the design flow for the Village (300 gpm), which equals 800 gpm.
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Part 2 (Article 5.05)

The trunk sewer is an expanded facility for joint use by the Town and the Village. The biilable
capacity for the Town is equal to the difference between the design capacity of the Town (500 gpm)
and the capacity of the existing facility (400 gpm). The billable capacity for the Town is equal to
100 gpm (500 gpin — 400 gpm = 100 gpm). The billable capacity for the Village is equal to the
design capacity of the Village (300 gpm).

The Town's proportional share of the capital cost of the expanded facility is equal to the billable
capacity of the Town (100 gpm) divided by the sum of the billable capacities of the Town (100 gpm)
and the Village (300 gpm), which equals 25 percent. The Village's proportional share of the capital
cost of the expanded facility is equal to the billable capacity of the Village (300 gpm) divided by the
sum of the billable capacities of the Town (100 gpm) and the Village (300 gpm), which equals
75 percent.

Example No. 5
Part 1 (Article 5.03)

The Town and the Village plan to add development that will discharge to the existing Utility District
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). The existing capacity of the WWTP is 1.5 million gallons
per day (mgd). The existing flow from the Town is 1.0 mgd. The existing flow from the Village is
0.25 mgd. The projected design flow for the proposed development in the Town is 0.10 mgd. The
projected design flow for the proposed development in the Village is 0.10 mgd.

The existing flow (1.25 mgd) and the design flow for the Town and the Village proposed
developments (0.20 mgd) equals or exceeds 90 percent of the capacity of the existing WWTP. The
WWTP must be expanded to provide additional capacity. The design period for the WWTP is
20 years. The design flow for development in the Town for the 20-year design period, including
existing flow, is projected to be 2.0 mgd. The design flow for development in the Village for the
20-year design period, including existing flow, is projected to be 1.0 mgd.

The capacity of the existing WWTP is 1.5 mgd. The Town will have use of the entire existing
capacity after the existing facility is expanded. The design flow of the Town is 2.0 mgd. The design
capacity of the Town (2.0 mgd) is greater than the capacity of the existing facility (1.5 mgd) so the
Town will need 0.5 mgd (2.0 mgd — 1.5 mgd = 0.5 mgd) of additional capacity in the expanded
WWTP.,

The design capacity for the Village is 1.0 mgd. The Village must acquire 1.0 ingd of capacity in the
expanded WWTP. The design flow for the expanded WWTP will be equal to the design flow for the
Town (2.0 mgd) and the design flow for the Village (1.0 mgd), which equals 3.0 mgd.

Part 2 (Article 5.05)

The WWTP is an expanded facility for joint use by the Town and the Village. The billable capacity
for the Town is equal to the difference between the design capacity of the Town (2.0 mgd) and the
capacity of the existing WWTP (1.5 mgd). The billable capacity for the Town is equal to 0.5 mgd
(2.0 mgd- 1.5 mgd = 0.5 mgd). The billable capacity for the Village is equal to the design capacity
of the Village (1.0 mgd).
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The Town's proportional share of the capital cost of the expanded facility is equal to the billable
capacity of the Town (0.5 mgd) divided by the sum of the billable capacities of the Town (0.5 mgd)
and the Village (1.0 mgd), which equals 33 percent. The Village's proportional share of the capital
cost of the expanded facility is equal to the billable capacity of the Village (1.0 mgd) divided by the
sum of the billable capacities of the Town (0.5 mgd) and the Village (1.0 mgd), which equals
67 percent.
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EXHIBIT "H"

CAPITAL COST ALLOCATION EXAMPLES
FOR
ADDITIONAL CAPACITY IN NEW FACILITIES
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CAPITAL COST ALLOCATION EXAMPLES
FOR
ADDITIONAL CAPACITY IN NEW FACILITIES

Example No. 1
Part 1 (Article 5.04)

A new sewage lift station and sewage force main are required to serve the Town and the Village.
The design period for the new sewage lift station and sewage force main is 20 years. The design
flow for development in the Town for the 20-year design period is projected to be 300 gpm. The
design flow for development in the Village for the 20-year design period is projected to be 100 gpm.
The design flow for the new facility is 400 gpm.

Part 2 (Article 5.05)

The sewage lift station and sewage force main is a new facility for joint use by the Town and the
Village. The billable capacity for the Town is equal to the design capacity of the Town (300 gpm).
The billable capacity for the Village is equal to the design capacity of the Village (100 gpm).

The Town's proportional share of the capital cost of the new facility is equal to the billable capacity
of the Town (300 gpm) divided by the sum of the billable capacities of the Town (300 gpm) and the
Village (100 gpm), which equals 75 percent. The Village's proportional share of the capital cost of
the new facility is equal to the billable capacity of the Village (100 gpm) divided by the sum of the
billable capacities of the Town (300 gpm) and the Village (100 gpm), which equals 25 percent.

Example No. 2
Part 1 (Article 5.04)

A new collector sewer is required to serve the Village. The new collector sewer passes through the
Town. The portion of the Town that would be served by the collector sewer is not in the Town
Sewer Service Area, and there are no immediate plans for development in the area.

The design period for the collector sewer is 40 years. The design flow for the area in the Town
served by the collector sewer for the 40-year period is projected to be 50 gpm. The design flow for
development in the Village for the 40-year period is projected to be 200 gpm. The design flow for
the new facility is 250 gpm.

Part 2 (Article 5.05)
The collector sewer is a new facility for joint use by the Town and the Village. The billable capacity

for the Town is equal to the design capacity of the Town (50 gpm). The billable capacity for the
Village is equal to the design capacity of the Village (200 gpm).
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The Town's proportional share of the capital cost of the new facility is equal to the billable capacity
of the Town (50 gpm) divided by the sum of the billable capacities of the Town (50 gpm) and the
Village (200 gpm), which equals 20 percent. The Village's proportional share of the capital cost of
the new facility is equal to the billable capacity of the Village (200 gpm) divided by the sum of the
billable capacities of the Town (50 gpm) and the Village (200 gpm), which equals 80 percent.

The Town has no immediate need for the collector sewer so the Village pays the Town the entire
capital cost. The Town will pay the Village the Town's proportional share of the capital cost when
the Town needs to use the collector sewer.

Five years after the collector sewer is built, the Town plans to add a subdivision to the collector
sewer. The area to be developed is added to the Town Sewer Service Area. The design flow for the
subdivision is 25 gpm. The Town pays the Village the Town's proportional share of the capital cost,
based on the design capacity of 50 gpm, when the sanitary sewer plans for the proposed
development are approved.

Example No. 3

Part 1 (Article 5.04)

A new collector sewer is required for the exclusive use of the Village. The new collector sewer must
pass through the Town to connect to an existing Town Utility District trunk sewer. The Town shall
construct the new collector sewer in the Town for the exclusive use of the Village.

Part 2 (Article 5.05)

The Village shall pay the Town the entire capital cost for the collector sewer required for the
exclusive use of the Village in the Town.
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waiver request, and the financial effects on the political subdivi-
sion of each waiver that was granted.
History: 2001 a. 109; 2003 a. 321.

SUBCHAPTER 11
INCORPORATION; MUNICIPAL BOUNDARIES

66.0201 Incorporation of villages and cities; purpose
and definitions. {1) Purrosg, It is the policy of this state that
the development of territory from town to incorporated status pro-
ceed in an orderly and uniform manner and that toward this end
cach proposed incorporation of territory as a village or city be
reviewed as provided in ss. 66.0201 to 66.0213 to assure com-
pliance with certain minimum standards which take into account
the needs of both urban and rural areas.

(2) DEeemntTions. Inss. 66.0201 to 66.0213, unless the context
requires otherwise:

(am) “Board” means the incorporation review board.
{ar) “‘Department” means the department of administration.

{bm) “Isolated municipality” means any existing or proposed
village or city entirely outside any metropolitan comnuunity at the
time of its incorporation.

(c) “Metropolitan community” means the territory consisting
of any city having a population of 25,000 or more, or any 2 incor-
porated municipalities whose boundaries are within 5 miles of
each other whose populations aggregate 25,000, plus all the con-
tignous area which has a population deasity of 100 persons or
more per square mile, or which the department has detennined on
the basis of population trends and other pertinent facts will have
a minimum density of 100 persons per square mile within 3 years.

(d) “Metropolitan municipality” means any existing or pro-
poscd village or city entirely or partly within a metropolitan com-
nanity.

{(dm) “Population” means the population of a local unit as
shown by the last federal census or by any subsequent population
cstimate certified as acceptable by the department.

History: 1977 ¢.29; 1979 ¢, 361 5, 112; 1991 a, 39; 1995 a, 27 55, 3306 and 9116
(5); 19972, 27; 1999 a, 150 5. 33; Stats. 1999 5. 66.0201; 1599 a. 186; 2003 2. LT1.

66.0203 Procedure for incorporation of villages and
cities. (1) NOTICE oF INTENTION. At least 10 days and not more
than 20 days before the circulation of an incorporation petition, a
notice setting forth that the petition is te be circulated and includ-
ing an accurate description of the territory involived shall be pub-
lished within the county in which the territory is located as a class
I notice, under ch, 985,

{2} (a) The petition for incorporation of a village or city shall
be in writing signed by 50 or more persons who are both electors
and freecholders in the territory to be incorporated if the population
of the proposed village or city includes 300 or more pcrsons;
otherwise by 25 or more persons who are both electors and free-
holders in the territory to be incorporated.

(b) The petition shall be addressed to and filed with the cireuit
court of a county in which all or.a major part of the territory to be
incorporated is located. The incorporation petition is void unless
filed within 6 months of the date of publication of the notice of
intention to circulate.

{c)} The petition shall designate a representative of the petition-
ers, and an alternate, who shall be an elector or freeholder in the
terrifory, and state that person’s address; describe the territory to
be incorporated with sufficient accuracy to determine its location
and have attached to the petition a scale map rcasonably showing
the boundaries of the territory; specify the current resident popula-
tion of the territory by number in accordance with the definition
given ins. 66.020f (2) (dm); set forth facts substantially establish-
ing the required standards for incorporation; and request the cir-
cuit court to order a referendum and to certify the incorporation
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of the village or city when it is found that all requirements have
been met,

(e) No person who has signed a petition may withdraw his or
ber name from the petition. No additional signatures may be
added after a petition is filed.

(f) The circulation of the petition shall commence not less than
10 days nor more than 20 days after the date of publication of the
notice of intention to cireunlate.

(3) HEeARMNG; coSTS. {a) Upon the filing of the petition the cir-
cuit court shall by order fix a time and place for a hearing giving
preference to the hearing over other matters on the court calendar,

(b) The court may by order allow costs and disbursements as
provided for actions in circuit court in any proceeding under this
subsection.

(c) The court may, upon notice to all parties who have appeared
in the hearing and after a hearing on the issne of bond, order the
petitioners or any of the opponcnts to post bond in an amount that
it considers sufficient to cover disbursements.

(4) NoTIcE. (a) Notice of the filing of the petition and of the
date of the hearing on the petition before the circuit court shall be
published in the territory to be incorporated, as a class 2 notice,
under ch, 985, and given by certificd or registered niail to the clerk
of each town in which the territory is located and to the clerk of
cach metropolitan municipality of the ietropolitan community in
which the territory is located. The mailing shalf be not less than
10 days before the tine set for the hearing.

(b} The notice shall contain:

[. A description of the territory sufficiently accurate 1o deter-
miine its location and a statement that a scale map reasonably
showing the boundaries of the territory is on file with the cirenit
court.

2, The name of each town m which the territory is located.

3. The name and post-office address of the representative of
the petitioners.

(5) ParmiEs. Any povermnental unit entitled to notice pur-
suant to sub. (4), any school district which lies at least partly in the
territory or any other person found by the court fo be a party in
interest may become a party to the proceeding prior fo the time set
for the hearing.

{6) ANNEXATION RESOLUTION. Any municipality whose
boundaries are contiguous to the territory may also file with the
circuit court a certified copy of a resolution adopted by a two—
thirds vote of the clected meinbers of the governing body indicat-
ing a willingness to annex the ferritory designated in the incorpo-
ration petition. The resolution shall be filed at or prior to the
hearing on the incorporation petition, or any adjournment granted
for this purpose by the court.

(7) AcTion. (a) No action to contest the validity of an incor-
poration on any grounds, whether procedural or jurisdictional,
may be commenced after 60 days from the date of issuance of the
certificate of incorporation by the secretary of state.

(b) Anaction contesting an incorporation shall be given prefer-
ence in the circuit court.

(8) FUNCIION OF THE CIRCINT COURT. (a) After the filing of the
petition and proof of notice, the cireuit cowrt shall conduct a hear-
ing at the time and place specified in the notice, or at a time and
place to which the hearing is duly adjourned.

{b) On the basis of the hearing the circuit court shall find if the
standards under s, 66,0205 are met. If the court finds that the stan-
dards are not inet, the court shall dismiss the petition. Subject to
par. (¢}, if the court finds that the standards are met the court shall
refer the petition to the board. Upon payment of any fee imposed
under s. 16.53 {14), the board shalt determine whether the stan-
dards under s. 66.0207 are met.

(¢} 1. The court shall determine whether an annexation pro-
ceeding that affects any territory included in the incorporation
petition has been initiated under s, 66.0217, 66,0219, or 66.0223.
A court shall consider an annexation proceeding under s. 66,0223

Text from the 2005-06 Wis, Stats. database updated by the Revisor of Statutes. Only printed stafutes are certifled under s. 35.18
{2), stats. Statutory changes effective prior to 9-2-07 are printed as if currently in effect. Statutory changes effective on or after
9-2-07 are designated by NOTES, Report errors at (608) 266-2011, FAX 264-6978, hitp./fwww.legis.stale.wl.us/rsb/
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(a) Characteristics of tesritory. The cntire territory of the pro-
posed village or city shall be reasonably homogeneous and com-
pact, taking into consideration natural boundaries, natural drain-
age basin, soil conditions, present and potential transportation
facilities, previous political boundaries, boundaries of school dis-
tricts, shopping and social customs. An isolated municipality
shali have a reasonably developed community center, including
some or all features such as retail stores, churches, post office,
telecommunications cxchange and similar centers of conumunity
activity.

(b) Territory beyond the core. The territory beyond the most
densely populated one—half square mile specified in s, 66,0205 (1)
or the most densely populated square nile specified in s, 66,0205
(2) shall have an average of more than 30 housing units per quarter
section or an assessed value, as defined in s, 66.0217 (1) (a) for
real estate tax purposes, more than 25% of which is attributable to
existing or potential mercantile, manufacturing or pubtic utility
uses. The territory beyond the most densety populated square
mile as specified in 5. 66.0205 (3) or (4) shall have the potential
Tor residential or other urban land use development on a substan-
tial scale within the next 3 years. The board may waive these
requirements to the extent that water, terrain or geography pre-
vents the development,

{2} In addition to complying with each of the applicable stan-
dards set forth in sub. (1) and s. 66.0205 in order to be approved
for referendum, a proposed incorporation nwst be in the public
interest as determined by the board upon consideration of the fol-
lowing:

(a) Tax revenue. The present and potential sources of tax reve-
nue appear sufficient to defray the anticipated cost of govemmen-
tal services at a local fax rate which compares favorably with the
tax rate in a similar area for the same level of scrvices.

(b) Level of services. The level of governinental services
desired or needed by the residents of the territory compared to the
level of services offered by the proposed village or city and the
level available from a contiguous municipality which files a certi-
fied copy of a resolution as provided in s. 66.0203 {6).

{c) fnpact on the remainder of the fown, The impact, financial
and otherwise, upon the remainder of the town from which the ter-
ritory is to be incorporated.,

(d) fmpact an the metropolitan community. The effect upon the
future rendering of governinental services both inside the territory
proposed for incorporation and elsewhere within the metropolitan
community. There shall be an express finding that the proposed
incorporation will not substantially hinder the solution of govern-
mental problems affecting the metropolitan community.

Hlsigry: 1977 ¢, 29; 1983 2. [89 5. 320 {14); 1985 2. 297 5. 76; 1999 2 150 5. 38;
Stals. 1999 5. 66.4207; 20607 a. {71

The delegation of legislative power under sub. (2) (d) is constitutional. Westring
v. Janes, 71 Wis. 2d 462, 238 N.W.2d 695 (1976).

Incorporatica of a town in a metropolitan area is discussed. Pleasant Prairie v,
Department of Local Affairs and Development, 113 Wis. 2d 327, 334 N.W.2d 893
{1983),

That the depariment approved annexations that helped create fragmented town
borders Jid not render arbitrary and capricious the department’s determination that
the town’s proposed corporation did not nieet the requirement of homogeneity and
compactness. Incorporation of the Town of Pewaukee, 186 Wis, 2d 515, 521 N.w.2d
453 (CL App. 1994),

Whether incorperation weould benelfit the proposed villags arca is not the standand
for allowing incorporation. An arca must incet all the requiremeuts of subs, (1) and
(2). Walag v, DOA, 2001 WI App 217, 247 Wis, 2d 850, 634 N.W.2d 206, 00-3511.

66.0209 Review of incorporation-related orders and
decisions. (1} The order of the circuit court made under s,
66,0203 (8) or (9) (f) may be appealed to the court of appeals,

(2) The decision of the board made under s. 66.0203 (9) is sub-
jeet to judicial review under ch. 227.

{3} Where a proceeding for judicial review is commenced
under sub, {2), appeal under sub, (1} may not be taken and the tine
in which the appeal may be taken does not commence to run until
judgment is entered in the proceeding for judicial review.

{4) An incorporation referendum ordered by the circuit court
under s. 66.0203 (9} (f) may not be stayed pending the outcoine
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of further litigation, unless the court of appeals or the supreme
court, upon an appeal or npon the filing ofan original action in the
supreme court, concludes that a strong probability exists that the
order of the circuit court or the decision of the board will be set
aside.

History: 1977 c. 29, 187; Sup, Ct. Order, 146 Wis. 2d xiii (1988); 1999 a, 1505,
39; Stats_ 1999 s 66.0209; 20041 a. 103; 2003 0. 171

When a petition to incorporate is dismissed dug to BOA disapproval, sub. (2) pre-
vents appeliate cour review prior to judizial review under ch. 227, Petition to lncor—
porate Powers Lake Village, 171 Wis. 2d 659, 492 N.W.2d 342 (Ct, App. 1992).

66.0211 Incorporation referendum procedure.
(1) OrpER. The circuit court’s order for an incorporation referen-
dum shail specify the voting place and the date of the referendum,
which shall be not less than 6 weeks from the date of the order, and
name 3 inspectors of election. If the order is for a city incorpora-
tion referendum the order shall further specify that 7 alderpersons
shall be elected at large from the proposed city. The city council
at its first meeting shall determine the number and boundaries of
wards in compliance with s, 5.15 (1} and {2), and the combination
of wards into aldermanic districts. The number of alderpersons
per aldermanic district shall be determined by charter ordinance,

(2} NOTICE OF REFERENDUM. Notice of the referendum shall be
given by publication of the order of the circuit court in a newspa-
per having general circulation in the territory, Publication shall be
once a week for 4 successive weeks. The first publication may not
be more than 4 weeks before the referendum.

{3} RGTURN. An incorporation referendum shall be conducted
in the same manner as an annexation referendum under s, 66,0217
(7} to the extent applicable cxcept that the ballot shall contain the
words “For a city [village]” and “Apgainst a city [village]”. The
inspectors shall make a returs to the circuit court.

{4) Costs. If the referendum is against incorporation, the
costs of the election shall be borne by the towns involved in the
proportion that the number of electors of each town within the ter-
ritory proposed to be incorporated, voting in the referendum,
bears to the total number of electors in the territory voting in the
referendum. If the referendum is for a viilage or city, the costs
shall be charged against the municipality in the apportionment of
town assets.

(5) CERTIFICATION OF INCORPORATION. If a majority of the
votes in an incorporation referendum are cast in favor of a village
or city, the clerk of the circuit court shall certify the fact to the sec-
retary of state and supply the sccretary of state with a copy of &
description of the legal boundaries of the village or city and the
associated population and a copy of a plat of the village or city.
Within 10 days of receipt of the description and plat, the secretary
of state shall forward 2 copies to the department of transportation
and one copy each to the department of adiinistration, the depart-
ment of revenue and the department of comtnerce, The secretary
of state shall issue a certificate of incorporation and record the cer-
tificate.

History: 1971 ¢. 304; 1973 ¢. 37,90; 1977 ¢. 29 5. 1654 (8) (c); 1977 ¢. 273; 1979
¢.36] 5. 112; 1981 c. 4 5. 19; 1981 c. 377; 1993 a. 184; 1995 a, 27, 5. 9116 (5); 1999
a, 150 5, 40; State, 1999 5. 66.0211,

A referendum is effective imniediately il the majority of votes are for incorpora-
tion. 70 Atty. Gen. 128.

66.0213 Powers of new village or city; elections;
adjustment of taxes; reorganization as viliage. {1} Vi-
LAGE OR CITY POWERS. A village or city incorporated under ss.
66.0201 to 66.0213 is a body corporate and politic, with powers
and privileges of a municipal corporation at common law and con-
ferred by these statutes,

(2} ExX1STMNG ORDINANCES. (a) Ordinances in force in the terri-
tory incorporated or any part of the territory, to the extent not
inconsistent with ¢hs. 61 and 62, continue in force until altered or
repealed,

(b} A county shoreland zoning ordinance enacted under s,
59.692 that is in force in any part of the territory continues in force
until altered under s. 59.692 (7) (ad).

Text from the 2005-06 Wis. Stats. database updated by the Revisor of Stafutes. Only prinfed statutes are certified under s, 35.18
(2}, stats. Statutory changes effective prior to 9-2-07 are printed as If currently in effect. Statutory changes effective on or affer
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RESOLUTION NO. 05-02-14

TO AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN OF THE TOWN OF SALEM, WITH THE
ASSISTANCE OF SUCH TOWN AND UTILITY STAFF AS MAY BE
NECESSARY, PURSUANT TQ §66.0307, WISCONSIN STATUTES, TO
PARTICIPATE WITH THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE IN THE
PREPARATION OF A COOPERATIVE PLAN, UNDER THE GUIDANCE OF
THE TOWN BOARD AND THE TOWN PLAN COMMISSION

WHEREAS, § 66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, authorizes municipalities to set the boundary
iines betwesn/among themselves upon adopting and having approved by the State of Wisconsin
Department of Administration, a Cooperative Plan in accordance with statutory procedurcs and
requirements; and

WHEREAS, the Cooperative Plan shall be made with the general purpose of guiding and
accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the territory covered by
the Plan which will, in accordance with existing and future needs, best promote public health,
safety, morals, order, ﬁonvertience, p-rosperity or the general welfare, as well as efficiency and
economy in the process of development; and _

WHEREAS, cooperative planning is in the besr;t interest of the participating
municipalities;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Board of the Tovm of Salem,
Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the Chairman and other Town Designees, with the assistance
of such Town and Utility staff as may be necessary, are authorized pursuant to § 66.0307,
Wisconsin Statutes, to participate with the Village of Paddock Lake in the preparation of a

Cooperative Plan, under the guidance of the Town Board and Town Plan Commission.

- T Attachment“H*> ———— ~ —-



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notice of this Resolution shall be given, in writing,
by the Town Clerk, within five (5) days after its adoption, to the parties specified in

§ 66.0307(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes.

Adopted this 14th day of February, 2005.

TOWN OF SALEM, KENOSHA COUNTY,
WISCONSIN

Drafied by:

Joshua L. Gimbel
Special Town Attomey




THW@&“{ADDOCK LAKE

6969 236th AVENUE
PHONES - 262-843-2713 or 262-843-2400 FAX 262-843-3409 SALEM, WISCONSIN 53168

STATE OF WISCONSIN
KENOSHA COUNTY
VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

I, Emily Uhlenhake, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified Clerk-
Treasurer of the Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, a Municipal Corporation, and as
such official, I am the legal custodian of all papers and record of said village, I further
certify that [ have compared the attached:

Resolution No. 307, To Authorize the President and Village Administrator of the Village
of Paddock Lake, with the Assistance of Such Village Water Utility Staff as may be
Necessary, Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 66.0307, to Participate with the Town of
Salem in the Preparation of a Cooperative Plan, Under the Guidance of the Village Board

) and the Plan Commission, with the original in my possession and that the same is a true,
correct and complete copy thereof.

I further certify that this resolution was adopted by the Village of Paddock Lake Board of
Trustees at a regular board meetmg on the 16™ day of February, 2005 and such resolution
was posted on February 17 2005 at the Paddock Lake Municipal Building, M&I Bank —
Paddock Lake and Southport Bank —~ Paddock Lake.

In Witness Whereof, [ hav-e hereunto set my hand and seal of the Village of Paddock
Lake, Wisconsin, this 8" day of March, 2007.

Col Lih o bt

Emily Uhlehhake, Clerk-Treasurer
Village of Paddock Lake
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RESOLUTIONNO. 30 7
TO AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR OF
THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE, WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF SUCH
VILLAGE WATER UTILITY STAFF AS MAY BE NECESSARY,
PURSUANT TO §66.0307, WISCONSIN STATUTES, TO PARTICIPATE
WITH THE TOWN OF SALEM IN THE PREPARATION OF A
COOPERATIVE PLAN, UNDER THE GUIDANCE OF THE VILLAGE
BOARD AND THE VILLAGE PLAN COMMISSION
WHEREAS, §66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, authorizes municipalities to set the
boundary lines between/along themselves upon adopting and having approved by the State of
Wisconsin Department of Administration, a Cooperative Plan in accordance with statutory
procedures and requirements; and
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Plan shall be made with the general purpose of
guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the territory
covered by the Plan which will, in accordance with existing and future needs, best promote
public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity of the general welfare, as well as
efficiency and economy in the process of development; and
WHEREAS, cooperative planning is in the best interest of the participating
municipalities.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village of
Paddock Lake, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the President and the Village Administrator,
with the assistance of such Village and Water Utility staff as may be necessary, are authorized
pursuant to §66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, to participate with the Town of Salem in the

preparation of a Cooperative Plan, under the guidance of the Village Board and the Village Plan

Commission.

1

DAVISON & MULLIGAN, LTD.
1207 55™ Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140
Telephone No. (262) 657-5165 Fax No. (262) 657-5517 E-mail: dmitd@sbcglobal.net



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notice of this Resolution shall be given, in
writing, by the Village Clerk, within five (5) days after it adopting, to the parties specified in

§66.0307(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes.
|

Adopted the 1l day of Eebhrug R , 2005.

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By: 105:7 C 60-‘//")

David Buehn, President

Attest: AL eqew) -7( Mdfn'

Doris Raditz, Clerk

2

DAVISON & MULLIGAN, LTD.
1207 55" Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140
Telephone No. (262) 657-5165 Fax No. (262) 657-5517 E-mail: dmltd@sbeglobal.net
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PHONES — 262-843-2713 or 262-843-2400 FAX 262-843-3409 SALEM, WISCONSIN 53168

STATE OF WISCONSIN
KENOSHA COUNTY
VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

I, Emily Uhlenhake, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified Clerk-
Treasurer of the Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, a Municipal Corporation, and as
such official, I am the legal custodian of all papers and record of said village, I further
certify that I have compared the attached:

Resolution No. 307, To Authorize the President and Village Administrator of the Village

of Paddock Lake, with the Assistance of Such Village Water Utility Staff as may be
Necessary, Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute 66.0307, to Participate with the Town of
Salem in the Preparation of a Cooperative Plan, Under the Guidance of the Village Board

and the Plan Commission, with the original in my possession and that the same is a true,
correct and complete copy thereof.

I further certify that this resolution was adopted by the Village of Paddock Lake Board of
Trustees at a regular board meetmg on the 16™ day of February, 2005 and such resolution
was posted on February 17" 2005 at the Paddock Lake Municipal Bulldmg, M&I Bank —
Paddock Lake and Southport Bank — Paddock Lake.

I further certify that the attached list of entities was mailed copies of the authorizing
resolution,

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and seal of the Village of Paddock
Lake, Wisconsin, this gt day of March, 2007.

Cd,
Emily Uhlenhake, Clerk-Treasurer
Village of Paddock Lake

ATTACHMENT “1”
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RESOLUTION NO._30 7
TO AUTHORIZE THE PRESIDENT AND VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR OF
THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE, WITH THE ASSISTANCE OF SUCH
VILLAGE WATER UTILITY STAFF AS MAY BE NECESSARY,
PURSUANT TO §66.0307, WISCONSIN STATUTES, TO PARTICIPATE
WITH THE TOWN OF SALEM IN THE PREPARATION OF A
COOPERATIVE PLAN, UNDER THE GUIDANCE OF THE VILLAGE
BOARD AND THE VILLAGE PLAN COMMISSION
WHEREAS, §66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, authorizes municipalities to set the
boundary lines between/along themselves upon adopting and having approved by the State of
Wisconsin Department of Administration, a Cooperative Plan in accordance with statutory
procedures and requirements; and
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Plan shall be made with the general purpose of
guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the territory
covered by the Plan which will, in accordance with existing and future needs, best promote
public health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity of the general welfare, as well as
eﬂiciency_and economy in the process of development; and
WHEREAS, cooperative planning is in the best interest of the participating
municipalities.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village of
Paddock Lake, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, that the President and the Village Administrator,
with the assistance of such Village and Water Utility staff as may be necessary, are authorized
pursuant to §66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, to participate with the Town of Salem in the

preparation of a Cooperative Plan, under the guidance of the Village Board and the Village Plan

Commission.

1

DAVISON & MULLIGAN, LTD.
1207 55" Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140
Telephone No, (262) 657-5165 Fax No. (262) 657-5517 . E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notice of this Resolution shall be given, in
writing, by the Village Clerk, within five (5) days after it adopting, to the parties specified in

§66.0307(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes.

| o3
Adopted the | (o day of Thrue ry , 2005.
\

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By: JOG:} C gb-‘//‘q

David Buehn, President

Attest;_ A etcd) % ,M/f;

Doris Raditz, Clerk

2

DAVISON & MULLIGAN, LTD.
1207 55" Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140
Telephone No., (262) 657-5165 Fax No. (262) 657-5517 E-mail: dmltd@sbcglobal.net



Company
State of
Wisconsin

State of
Wisconsin

Village of
Silver Lake
Randall
School
District
Town of
Dover
Village of

Union Grove

Village of
Sturtevant
City of
Burlington
Burlington
Area School
District
Office

State of
Wisconsin

State of
Wisconsin

Village of
Twin Lakes
Town of
Wheatland
Town of
Dover
Village of

Union Grove

City of
Racine

City of
Burlington
Walworth
County

JobTitle
Department of
Administration

Department of
Natural Resources

Department of
Agriculture Trade

& Consumer
Protection

Department of
Transportation

Addressl
P.O. Box
7864

P. O.Box
7921

113 South
First Street
1130
Medinah
Way

P.O. Box 670

1015 State
Street
2801 85th
Street

300 North
Pine

100 North
Kane

P.O. Box
8911

P. O.Box
7910

P.O, Box
1024

P.O. Box 915

P.O. Box 670

1015 State
Street

730
Washington
Avenue
6551 South
Pine

P.O. Box
1001

City
Madison

Madison

Silver Lake

Twin
Lakes

Kansasville
Union
Grove
Sturtevant

Burlington

Burlington
Madison

Madison

Twin
Lakes

New
Munster
Kansasville

Union
Grove
Racine
Burlington

Elkhorn

State
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

PostalCode
53707-7864

53707-7921

53170

53181

53139-0670
53182
53177
53105

53105

53718

53707-7910

53181
53152-0915
53139-0670
53182

53403

53105

53121

Attn
Mark
Marcmarotta
Secretary
P. Scott
Hassett,

Secretary
Sewer Utility

Kim Mackay
Clerk

Merry Dems!
Clerk/Treasu
Jan Winget,
Clerk/Treasu
WWTF

City Clerk

Rod
Nilscstuen,

Secretary

Frank
Busalacchi,

Secretary
Utility Distric

Sheila Siegle
Clerk

WWTF
Carolyn
Moskonas,
Clerk

County Clerk



Company

State of
Wisconsin
State of
Wisconsin

Randall
Town Hall
Rainbow
Lake Manor
Kansasville
Graded 1-8

Village of
Sturtevant
Town of

Burlington

Burlington
High School

Gateway
Technical
College
Union Grove
Grade and
Middle
School
Paris
Consolidated
School
District
Kenosha
County
Racine
Unified
School
District
Village of
Mount
Pleasant
Village of
Elmwood
Park

City of
Kenosha

JobTitle

Department of

Commerce
Director of

Intergovernmental

Relations

Joint School
District #1

Joint #1

Sewer Utility

Addressl
P.O. Box
7970
P.O. Box
1645

34530
Bassett Road
19900 128th
Street

4101 South:
Beaumonth
Avenue
2801 89th
Street
32288
Bushnell
Road

400
McCanna
Pkwy

380
McCanna
Pkwy

540 Maurice
Drive

2805 176th
Avenue

1010 56th
Street

2220
Northwestern
Avenue

6126 Durand
Avenue

P.O. Box
085882

625 52nd
Street

City
Madison
Madison

Bassett
Bristol

Kansasville

Sturtevant

Burlington

Burlington

Burlington

Union
Grove

Kenosha

Kenosha

Racine

Racine

Racine

Kenosha

State
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

PostalCode
53707-7970
53703-3219

53101

53104

53139

53177

53105

53105

53105

53182

53144

53140

53404

53406

53408

53140

Attn
Cory Nettles,

Secretary
George Hall

Phyllis Kaske
Clerk

School Boarc
Clerk

Clerk/Treasu

Clerk/Treasu

Bill White

Linda Terry

Edna Highlas
Clerk
Clerk

Bob Pucely,
Utility
Manager
Barbara J.
Lange,
Clerk/Treasu
Jean Morgan
Clerk



Company
Village of
Pleasant
Prairie
Village of
Pleasant
Prairie
Central High
School
Gateway
Technical
College
Racine
County

Central High
School

Village of
Silver Lake

Kenosha
Unified
School
District #1
State of
Wisconsin

Southeastern
Wisconsin
Regional
Planning
Commission
Racine
County

Village of
Mount
Pleasant
City of
Racine City
Hall Annex

Kenosha
County

JobTitle

Community
Development
Director
District of
Westosha

District of
Westosha

Department of
Administration

Planning and
Development
Director

Water and
Wastewater
Utility

Planning and
Development

Addressl
9915 39th
Avenue

9915 39th
Avenue

P.O. Box 38

118 Circle
Parkway

730
Wisconsin
Avenue
P.O.Box 38

113 South
First Street

2902 35th
Street

P.O. Box
7864

P.O. Box
1607

14200
Washington
Avenue
6126 Durand
Avenue

830 Center
Avenue

19600 75th
Street

- City
Pleasant
Prairie

Pleasant
Prairie

Salem
Williams
Bay
Racine
Salem

Silver Lake

Kenosha

Madison

Waukesha

Sturtevant

Racine

Racine

Bristol

State
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

PostalCode
53158

53158

53168

33191

53403

53168

53170

53140

33707-7864

53187-1607

53177

53406

53403

53104

Attn
Jane M,
Romanowski
Clerk
Jean Werbie

Doug Potter

Alice Morav;

Secretary

Joan Rennert
Clerk

Mary
Anderson,
Clerk
Marjorie
Saucerman,
Clerk

Mark Stalker
Clerk

Mark
Marcmarotta
Secretary
David B.
Falstad,
Chairman

Julie Anders¢

Juliett
Edmonds,
Clerk/Treasu
Thomas
Bunker,
General
Manager
George
Melcher,
Director



Company JobTitle
Bristol
School
District
Salem
Consolidated
Grade
School Joint
Wilmot
Union High
School
District
Village of
Paddock
Lake

Union Grove
High School
District
Town of
Salem
Town of
Somers
Kenosha
Water
Utility
Riverview
Joint School
District #1
Village of
Paddock
lake
Wheatland
Center
School Joint
District #1
Wilmot
Grade
School
Somers
Utility
District #1
Town of
Bristol
Silver Lake
Village Hall

District #2

Building
Inspector .

Addressi
20511 84th
Place

6800 243rd
Avenue

1112 308th
Avenue

6969 236th
Avenue

538 13th
Avenue

P.O. Box 443
P.O. Box 197

4401 Green
Bay Road

422 School
Street

6969 236th
Avenue

7601 368th
Avenue

P.O. Box 52

P.O. Box 197

P.O. Box 187

113 South
First Street

City
Bristol

Paddock
Lake

Wilmot

Salem
Union
Grove
Salem
Somers

Kenosha

Silver Lake

Salem

Burlington

Wilmot

Somers

Bristol

Silver Lake

State
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

PostalCode
53104

53168

53192

53168

53182

53139
53171

53144

53170

53168

33105

53192

53171

53104

53170

Attn
Lori Baird,
Clerk

Catherine
Krueger, Cle

Clerk

Doris Raditz,
Clerk

Steve
McClelland,
Clerk
Antonette
Seitz, Clerk
Kay Goergen

Ed St. Peter

Chris
Willkomm,
Clerk

Tim Popanda

Debra A. Loi
Clerk

Marcie Badtk
Clerk

Carol Fischei

Randy
Kerkman
Royce
Kennedy,
Building



Company

Town of
Brighton
Brighton
Elementary
School
District
Trevor State
Grade
School
District 7

Town of
Paris
Town of
Bristol

JobTitle

Addressl

P.O. Box 249 Kansasville

29430 31st
Street

26735 106th
Street

19514 60th
Street
P.O. Box 187

City

Burlington

Trevor

Bristol

Bristol

State
Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

Wisconsin

PostalCode
53139

53105

53179

53104

53104

Attn
Inspector
Linda Perona
Clerk
Jan Crane,
Clerk

Bill Barhyte,
Clerk

Orlando
Infusino, Cle
Amy Klemke
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RESOLUTION NO. 06-12-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SALEM, KENOSHA
COUNTY, WISCONSIN ADOPTING THE VILLAGE OF
PADDOCK LAKE / TOWN OF SALEM COOPERATIVE PLAN
UNDER SECTIONS 68.0307 AND 66.0301, WIS. STATS.

WHEREAS, the Town of Salem (the Town) and the Village of Faddock Lake
(the Village) have negotiated a Cooperative Plan subject to the approval of the State
Department of Administration under the authority of Sections 66.0301 and 66.0307 of the
Wisconsin Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the Town and the Village intend to enter into the Cooperative
Plan for the purposes of establishing permanent boundaries, assuring orderly
development, accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development of the
territory covered by the Cooperative Plan and for the provision of sanitary sewer services
both in the Village and in the Town; and

WHEREAS, the Town and the Village have developed a Cooperative Plan
following a review of existing regional, county and local plans; and

WHEREAS, the Village and the Town have held a joint public hearing on the
Cooperative Plan pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin Statutes
on November 16, 2006, and have considered the comments which were received both at
that public hearmg and subsequent thereto in the preparation of the Cooperative Plan as
more fully described therein; and

WHEREAS, the Vlllage and the Town intend to immediately Implement and
make effective this Cooperative Plan and the attendant sanitary sewer agreement as of the
date the same are contemporaneously executed by the Village and the Town;

NOW, THEREFORE, the Town Board of the Town of Salem, Kenosha
County, Wisconsin does hereby resolve as follows:

1. The Village of Paddock Lake / Town of Salem Cooperative Plan, a
copy of which Is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference,
is hereby approved.

2. The Town Chairman and Town Clerk are authorized to execute the
Cooperative Plan Agreement on behalif of the Town of Salem and to
take such further action as may be necessary to obtain the review and
approval of the plan as required by Statute.

ATTACHMENT “J”
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Adopted by the Town Board of the Town of Salem, Kenosha County,
Wisconsin, this 20th day of December, 2006.

"TOWN OF SALEM
Kenosha County, Wisconsin

o Dm0 . Taar)

Diann D. Tesar, Town Chairman

Attest: )
@. Pepper, Tolvn Clerk
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TOWN OF SALEM
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- %&{ADDO(K LAKE -

PHONES - 262-843-2713 or 262-843-2400 FAX 262-843-3409 SALEM, WISCONSIN 53168

STATE OF WISCONSIN
KENOSHA COUNTY
VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

I, Emily Uhlenhake, hereby certify that I am the duly appointed, qualified Clerk-
Treasurer of the Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, a Municipal Corporation, and as
such official, I am the legal custodian of all papers and record of said village, I further
certify that I have compared the attached: '

Resolution No. R06-14, To Request the State of Wisconsin Department of
Administration to Approve the Village of Paddock Lake/Town of Salem Cooperative

Plan Under Section 66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes with the original in my possession and
that the same is a true, correct and complete copy thereof.

J I further certify that this resolution was adopted by the Village of Paddock Lake Board of
Trustees at a regular board meeting on the 20® day of December, 2006 and such
resolution was posted on December 21, 2006 at the Paddock Lake Municipal Building,

. M&I Bank ~ Paddock Lake and Southport Bank — Paddock Lake.

In Witness Whereof] I have hereunto set my hand and seal of the Village of Paddock
Lake, Wisconsin, this 26" day of January, 2007.

Emily Uhlénhake, Clerk-Treasurer
Village of Paddock Lake

seal



RESOLUTION NO. 0¢- B Q{a,&

TO REQUEST THE STATE OF WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT

OF ADMINISTRATION TO APPROVE THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK

LAKE/TOWN OF SALEM COOPERATIVE PLAN

UNDER SECTION 66.0307, WISCONSIN STATUTES

BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village of Paddock Lake,
Wisconsin, that having approved the Village of Paddock Lake/Town of Salem Cooperative Plan
under Section 66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes, the Village Board requests the State Department of
Administration to approve said Cooperatjve Plan.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Clerk/Treasurer is directed to
send a copy of this Resolution to the Clerk/Treasurer of the Town of Salem and to the State of
Wisconsin Department of Administration,

oot
Dated this &% __ day of December, 2006,

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By: /20~ . B

David Buehn, President

Attest: ? /hvé!. / ,ZM%A

Emily Uhlenbake, Clerk/Treasurer

DAVISON & MULLIGAN, LTD,
1207 55™ Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140
Telephone Na. {262) 657-5165 Fax No. (242) 657-5817 E-mail: dmitd@sbeglobal.net
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SOUTHEASTERN ~ WISCONSIN REGIONAL PLANNING 3160
E £

W2392 N1812 ROCKWOOD DRIVE » POBOX 1607 » WAUKESHA, W1 53187-1607 1';)
ZISFANE

Serving the Counties of: Satin-

December 28, 2006 / S e o waAute:

- R, UZAUKE;E?(‘
M. Jeffrey J. Davison REGE /21 NS U
Attorney at Law wasHINGTON TR SER T

i 3 WAUKESHA SEhEsRyA

Davison & Mulligan, LTD, 2227 7008
1207 55™ Street =
Kenosha, W1 53140

DAVISOM & LLLLICAN, LTD.
Dear Mr. Davison:

Pursuant to your letter request of November 27, 2006, the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission
has revizwed the cooperative boundary plan and companion sanitary sewer service agreenient prepared by the Town
of Salem and the Village of Paddock Lake dated October 3, 2006, and September 28, 2006, respectively. The
Commission has made the following findings relative to the cooperative boundary plan as required by the provisions
of Section 66.0307 of the Wisconsin Statutes:

1.~ Upon its approval and implementation by all parties concerned, the plan and the boundary agreements set
forth therein should serve to facilitate implementation of the master plan for the Southeastern Wisconsin
Region adopted by the Commission under Section 66.945(9) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

2. Implementation of the boundary plan should serve to enhance the delivery of essential municipat services
to the boundary adjustment area identified in the plan; provide for a more logical boundary between the
] communities involved; clarify policies relative to zoning and extraterritorial plat reviews; and facilitate the
' potential incorporation of the remainder of the Town.

With respect to the future provision of sanitary sewer service in the areas concerned, the proposed sewer agreement
appropriately incorporates a Commission recommendation for the establishment of a common boundary between the
ultimate Town and Village sewer service areas. The Commission will work with the Town and the Village in the
years ahead to appropriately amend their respective sewer service areas in a manner consistent with the proposed
agreement. .

The Town and Village are to be congrafulated on reaching agreement relative to these matters of significance to all
parties concerned. The execution of these agreements wili represent a major intergovernmental achievement.

We trust that the foregoing findings are responsive to your request and will be helpful to the Village of Paddock Lake
and the Town of Salem. {t is the Commission’s hope that the boundary plan and sewer service agreement will be
approved by all parties concerned. |

Sincerely,

It €. irtngim

Phitip C. Evenson
Executive Director

PCE/DAS/mlh , L S
#123851 vl - SALEM/PADDOCK LAKE AGREEMENT . L -

) cc: David Buehn, President, Village of Paddock Lake
Diann Tesar, Chairperson, Town of Salem
George Melcher, Director, Kenosha County Department of Planning and Development



J}COUNTY OF KENOSHA

Department of Planning and Development

George E. Melcher, Director Larry B. Brumback, Director
Depattment of Planning and Development Division of County Development

_ Department of Planning and Development
RECEIVED 19600 - 75th Street, Post Office Box 520
Bristol, Wisconsin 53104-0520

JAN =8 ?ﬁgﬁ Telephone: (262) 857-1895
bl Facsimile: (262) 857-6508

CANSSR ML -
January 5, 2007

M. Jeffrey J. Davison
Attorney at Law

Davison & Mulligan, LTD.
1207 55™ Street

Kenosha, WI 53140

Dear Attorney Davison:

As per your request, the Kenosha County Depattment of Planning and Development has reviewed
the cooperative boundary agreement prepared by the Village of Paddock Lake and the Town of

) Salem. We are in support of the boundary agreement as presented and thank you for the
oppottunity to review and comment on it.

Should you have any questions or comments regatding this mattet, please feel free to contact us

accordingly.

Sincetely,

/5,

Larry B. Brumback, Director
Division of County Development
Department of Planning and Development
LBB:aw '
cc: Diann Tesar, Chairperson, Town of Salem
David Buehn, President, Village of Paddock Lake






NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
FOR THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE AND TOWN OF SALEM
COOPERATIVE PLAN AND BOUNDARY AGREEMENT

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Village of Paddock Lake and Town of Salem
will hold a joint public hearing on Thursday, November 16, 2006, at 7:00 p.m. in the AP Room
(All Purpose Room) of Central High School District of Westosha which is located at 24617 75®
Street, Salem, Wisconsin.

AGENDA
| Call public meeting to order and statement of the purpose and format for the hearing,
2. Introduction of public officials present at the hearing.

3. Briefing on the Village of Paddock Lake/Town of Salem Cooperat:ve Plan Under Section
66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes.

4, Public comments.
5. Adjourn public hearing.
Dated this 12" day of October, 2006,

Emily Uhlenhake, Village Clerk/Treasurer
Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin

Lynn Pepper, Town Clerk
Town of Salem, Wisconsin

DAVISON & MULLIGAN, LTD.
1207 55" Street, Kenosha, Wisconsin 53140
Telephone No. (262) 657-5165 Fax No. (262) 657-5517 E-mail: dnﬂtd@sbcglobal.net






AN AGREEMENT FOR FIREFIGHTING, FIRE INSPECTION AND RESCUE
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE TOWN OF SALEM FIRE/RESCUE
DEPARTMENT TO THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE, WISCONSIN

This Agreement is entered into this / ¢ day of Rouesr ey 2003, by and
between Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department hereafter referred to as the
“Department”, and the Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, hereafter referred to as the

“Village".

WHEREAS, the Village desires to purchase firefighting, fire inspection and
rescue services (fire services) within the Village, the Viltage being willing to assume the
cost of this protection; and

WHEREAS, the Department Is willing to provide these services to the Village
under certain terms and conditions,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between the parties as follows:
1. Statement of Agreement

Department and its officers agree to provide fire and rescue services to the
Village of Paddock Lake located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin, and the Village of
Paddock Lake agrees to engage the Department to provide such services in
accordance with and subject to the terms of this Agreement,

2. Legal Basis
This Agreement is authorized by the provision of Wisconsin Statutes Sec.

66.0301 and pursuant to Village of Paddock Lake Board Resolution No. /s , dated
2t /9 2004 and Resolution adopted by the Department dated Y- 19 o037

3. Fire Services Defined

Firefighting, fire inspection and rescue services consist of and all auxiliary and
technical services as may normally be provided by a fire department and/or rescue
squad under the laws of the State of Wisconsin. It shall include the enforcement of al}
applicable laws in effect in the Village. All references to fire services contained in this
Agreement are references only to services that shall be delivered under the terms of

this Agreement,

4. Delivery of Services

4.1 Service Areas: The Department shall provide fire services within the
corporate limits of the Village of Paddock Lake.




4,2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Enforcement Responsibilities: The Department shall enforce State
Statutes, and applicable ordinances of the Village. The Department shall

not be required to assume any other enforcement duty or function not
consistent with those customarlly performed by the Department under the
Statutes of this State and ordinances of the Village. Such responsibilities
include, but are not limited to, issuing citations for false alarms, and the
like.

Delivery of Service: The Department shall provide such equipment and
personnel as it deems necessary and appropriate taking into
consideration recognized firefighting and rescue/paramedic standards.

Mutual Aid and Fire Prevention: The Department will maintain any and all
mutual aid programs necessary for the protection of the Village. In
addition, the Department will conduct all required fire department public
education, fire prevention and fire inspection in the Village.

Miscellaneous: The Department will provide, in addition to personnel and
vehicles, all overhead or administrative costs associated with provision of
fire and rescue services including any wages, payment of any worker's
compensation, unemployment compensation, health or life insurance
premiums, fuel, repair, replacement and maintenance of equipment
including communications equipment and will provide for all training of fire
and rescue personnel.

Reporting: The Department shall provide to the Village quarterly report of
activities generated as a result of this contract. This report shall include
response time and the number of calis for service in the Village, Village
ordinance violations, court appearances, and other items of relevance.
The quarterly report referred to herein shall be delivered to the
representatives of the Village designated pursuant to this contract.

Service Management; The planning, organization, hiring, assigning,
scheduling, direction, supervision, discipline and dismissal of the
Department's personnel and all other matters incident to the delivery of
the fire and rescue services to the Village shall be as determined by the
Department. The Department shall retain exclusive authority over the
activities of Department personnel working in the Village.

Responsiveness; The Department shall give prompt consideration to all
requests of the Village regarding the delivery of fire inspection services,
The Department shall make every effort to comply with these requests,
but the Department shall retain final authority to make the final decision as
to the manner in which such services shall be rendered. All such requests



4.9

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

shall be made by the Village through its designated representatives.
Department agrees to cooperate with Village attorneys and/or Village
Building Inspector in prosecuting any actions in Municipal or Gircuit Court.
The Department shall provide to the Village, not iater than March 31, an
annual report of all fire inspections conducted in the preceding year for
any year which this contract or any renewals are in effect.

Representatives: The Village hereby designates the Chairman of the
Village standing committee on police and fire as its designated
representative for matters pertaining to this contract. The Village and the
Department shall confer upon matters concerning the delivery of fire and
rescue services to the Village and shall meet to receive requests,
complaints or suggestions for the implementation of the delivery of such
services. A command officer, designated by the Department, shall mest
quarterly with the members of the standing Village committee on police
and fire at such times as may be designated and which are mutually
convenient to the parties hereto., :

5. Resources

Department Responsibilities: Except as otherwise stipulated, the

Department shall furnish all labor, equipment, materials, vehicles,
communication systems, facilities, and supplies required to provide fire
and rescue services to the Village,

Village Responsibilities: The Village agrees to assume the responsibility
and associated costs for prosecuting any Village ordinance violations and

furthermore agrees to budget, tax and levy for the expenses and costs
associated with this contract.

Individual Ownership; The Department and the Village shall retain title to
the property each may acquire to fulfill its obligations under this
Agreement. Upon the termination of this Agreement, each party may
dispose of its property as it sees fit.

6. Liability

Department: Except as hereinafter set forth, the Department shall assume
liability for, defend against, and secure the Village from ali costs or
damages for injury to person or property caused by the negligence or
intentional misconduct of the Department's personnel in providing fire and
rescue services to the Village.

Village: The Village shall assume liability for, defend against, and exempt
and hold harmless the Department from (1) all costs or damages for



7.1

7.2

7.3

intentional or negligent injury to person or property caused by the Village,
and (2) all costs or damages for intentional or negligent injury to person or
property arising out of the lawful enforcement of a Village ordinance, it
being the intent of the parties hereto that the Village shall assume liability
In all respects for any loss caused as a result of the unconstitutionality,
vagueness or other impropriety of a Viliage ordinance.

7. Personnel

Employee Selection and Status: Al persons engaged In fire and rescue

service under the terms of this contract shall be selected and employed
pursuant to the selection process employed by the Department and shall
be employees of the Department.

Payment: The Village shall not be llable for and shall not make the direct
payment of salaries, wages or other direct or indirect compensation to
Department officer or employees providing fire or rescue services to the
Village and the Department shall hold the Village harmless from and
indemnify the Village for such costs,

Indemnity: The Village shall not be fiabie for indemnity to any Department
officer or employee for injury or sickriess of the officer or employee arising
out of his employment in providing fire and rescue services to the Village,
it being understood that the Village is compensating the Department for
Workmen's Compensation Insurance as part of administrative costs
incidental to this contract.

8. Municipal Agency

For the sole purpose of giving official status to their acts when performing
municipal functions within the scope of this Agreement, every Department officer or
employee assigned to and engaged in providing fire and rescue services to the Village
shall be considered an agent of the Village and for no other purposes.

8.1

9.2

9. Fees

Total Sum: The Village shall pay the Department annually the sum of One
Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars ($130,000) as and for fire services
provided herein (including all related administrative costs), said payment
to be paid in 12 monthly instailments. Said payment to be made by the
12" day of each month to the Treasurer of the Town of Salem.

Fire Insurance Rebate: In return for fire inspection functions provided
under the terms of this contract, the Department shall be entitled to



receive all monies from the State of Wisconsin which are derived through
any state fire inspection program, including, but not limited to, the 2% fire
insurance rebate program,

10. Term

This Agreement shall take effect on January 1, 2004 and shall continue through
December 31, 2004, unless terminated sooner as provided herein, This agreement
shall be renewed from year to year on identical terms uniess a party gives the other
wiitten notice of its intention not to renew on or before July 1 of the year preceding the

renewal.

11. Modification

The terms of this contract may be modified at any time by mutual consent of the
signatories of this contract or their successors so as to expand or restrict the scope of

this Agreement,

12. Successors

This Agreement shall be binding on any and all successors to the signatories of
this contract.

13. Waiver

No waiver of a breach of any of the agreements contained herein shall be
construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other
agreement or condition contained In this contract.

14. Scope

The terms of this Agreement shall be exclusively binding upon all parties to this
Agreement and their successors regardless of any prior statements, be they oral or

written, made by any party.
15. Termination
This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon six (6) months advance
written notice to the other parties of its intention to withdraw. Such notice fo be

forwarded to the Clerk of appropriate Board by certified letter.

16. Execution

Signatories: The parties hereto have executed this Agreement at Paddock Lake,
Wiscorisin, the day and year first written above.



homas M. Walsh, Town Chalrman

Antonette C. Seitz, Town Clerk )

Attest: (1 sh e aes (D, Am%

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By:/){- A/{

By:Mf/gda?—

Oclober 30, 2003



PADDOCK LAKE - SALEM TCOWNSHIP
JOINT LIBRARY AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 43.56
Iof the Wisconsin Statutes, this agreement is made
and entered into this ,3& t/Z day of%nri y
1980, by and between the Village of Paddock Lake,
Kenosha County, Wisconsin and Salem Township,

Kenosha County, Wisconsin,

RECITATION

On IFebruary 20, 1980, the Village Board of the
Village of Paddock Lake unanimously passed Resolution
~ No. 49 to cooperate in an agreement for the establish-
'ment, maintenance and upkeep of a joint municipal - 7
library to provide library services to the community.

On Aprii 1l, 1980, residents of Salem Township
responded affirmatively to a referendum favoring the

establishment of a joint municipal library.

AGREEMENT

A, The Village of Faddock Lake and Salem Towvm-
ship hereby create and establish a Joint Library Board

for the purpose of operating a public library at the



Salem Consolidated Grade School, Jt. District #2, or
at such other location as such Board may hereafter
determine.

B. The Joint Library Board shall have all the

powers provided in Section 43.58, Wis. Stats. and any

other applicable Wisconsin Statute relating to libraries
and shall be composed as follows:

l. Five members, all of whom shall be
residents of the Village of Paddock Lake or Salem
Township. Two members shall be appdinted by the Chairman
of the Salem Tovmship Board and confirmed by the Salem
Township Board, Two members shall be appointed by the
President of the Paddock Lake Village Beard and confirmed

by the Paddock Lake Village Board, The fifth member shall

~ be appointed by the Administrator of the Salem Consolidated

Grade Scheol, Jt. Distribt #2, and confirmed by the Salem
Consolidated Grade School, Jt. District #2 School Board.
2. The five member board shall be divided
into three classes, Initially, two to serve for three
years, two to serve for two years and one to serve for
one year. Each municipality shall appoint one member
to a three-year term and one member to a two-year term.
The Administrator of the School District shall appeint
one member for a one-year term, Thereafter, each regular
appointment shall be made for a term of three years.,

3. Appointments to the Board shall be made



as soon as practical after approval of this agreement
by the municipalities., The initial appointees shall
serve interim terms of office expiring on April 30,
1981, at which time the three-year, two-year and one-
~year terms set forth shall commence.

4L,  Vacancies on the Board shall be filled
within 30 days by appointment for any unexpired term
by the appointing authority in the same manner as
original appointments are made.

5. A majority of the members of the Joint
Library Board shall constitute a quorum.

C. As soon as practicable after the initial
appointments are made, the members of the Joint Library
Board shall organize and elect from thelr number a
~ President, Vice President, Secretary and other such
officers as they desm necessary. .

D. No compensation shali be paid to members
of the Joint'Library Board for their services, but they
may be reimbursed for actual and necessary expenses
incurred if so authorized by the Joint Library Board.

E. Tlhie Board shall appolnt a librarian and
other such assistants and employees as it deems necessary
and shall prescribe their duties and compensation. The
librarian and other employees appointed by the Board
shall be considered and treated as employees of the

Joint Municipal Library for tax witholding purposes and



for the purpose of handling fringe benefits (i.e., re-
tirement, social security.)

F. The Board shall prepare and submit to the
municipal boards, not later than October 1st of each
- year commencing October 1, 1980, a budget to cover the
Board's income and expenses for the following calendar
year. In addition, the Board shall, as soon as practical
after its appointment, prepare a budget for any portion
of the calendar year 1980, during which expenditures
will be incurred on behalf of the joint library. Such
budget shall be in the form prescribed by Wis Stats.
Section 65.90 in respect to municipal budgets. No ex-
penditures shall be made until the budget has been
approved by both municipal boards. No expenditure shall
. be made or contracted for by the Board or any employee
thereof except aé authorized by such budget.

G. The Board may establish and make public rules
and regulatidns governing the use of facilities operated
by the Board pursuant to Section 43,52, Wis. Stats.

The Board may, in its discretion, discontinue library
privileges to any person who violates the rules and
regulations adopted and published by the Board.

H. Physical assets acquired by the Library Board
shall be owned Jjointly by both municipalities, subject to

the provisions for division of assets on termination of
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this agreement as set forth in Paragraph J.

I. In its exercise of the powers and duties set
forth in Section 43,58 Wis. Stats., the Board will in-
terpret the word '"municipality" as referring severally
~to both Village and Township except that with respect
to Section 43.58 (2) the Board shall designate the
Treasurer of the Village of Paddock Lake to pay all
expenditures as approved by the Board and to receive
all Board receipts.

Said treasurer shall keep eeparate records
of all Board receipts and expenditures. The net ex—
penses of the Joint Library Board as established by
the budget shall be borne and paid by the two munici-
palities in proportion to the equalized real estate tax
. assessments of each municipality., Salem Township shall,
on receipt of statements from the Viliage of Paddock Lake,
reimburse the Village of Paddock Lake for Salem Township's
proportionate share of such expenditures. The Village of
Paddock Lake shall keep complete and accurate records
of all receipts and expenditures of the Library Board
~and furnish Salem Township with quarterly reports thereof.

J. This agreement shall be in effect from the
date of execution by both municipalities for a period
ending December 31, 1981, and shall continue thereafter

from year to year on a calendar basis unless any party



6

gives written notice to the other party not later than
October 1st of any year commencing with the year 1981,
that the agreement is to terminate at the end of the
year in which notice is given, If the termination of
the agreement results in the closing of the library,
.the assets thereof shall be divided among the two
municipalities in accordance with the ratio of expense
sharing in existence in the year of termination. In the
event of a dispute with respect to such distributioﬁ,
all assets shall be sold with the proceeds thereof dis-

tributed on the same hasis.

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK Lfiz :
By: J ;; ,

Vl%iif;7fr951deﬂ% 67
Countersigned: //Z/Q24ﬂll ;zz7:azéﬂééii

Village Clerk

W@I’M Lee %cd &0, /972

Dated:

SALLHM TOWN%HIP

By:
Chairman,

Countersignel: Géfjﬁubég. /ézeﬂﬁﬂu/
Township Clerk

Llgf A Lova 1 1950
(;2é bated: V




} RESOLUTION HO. 69

-

WHEREAS, a community library as an adjunct of
Salem Consolidated Grade School was open to this community
in February, 1977, and

_ ‘ WHEREAS, said library service has been kept and
maintained by volunteers and through the use of Salem
Consolidated Grade School facilities, and

WHEREAS, the Village Board of the Village of
Paddock Lake recognizes the benefits of library services
to the community, and

WTHEREAS, it now becomes necessary that if the
library is to survive, it must have municipal participation
and financial support, all as required by Statutes of the
State of Wisconsing

MO, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

That the Village Board of the Village of Paddock
: Lake does hereby go on record as favoring a‘ community library
) which will provide library services to all citizens of the
Village of Paddock Lake and surrounding communities and will
encourage pavticipation ofiother municipalities within the
area to participate in a cooperative agreement for the
establishmant, méintenance and upkeep to provide library
services to the entire community.

Passed this 20th day of Februarv -, 1980,

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By /Z——-—; :,( Mw&? /ZQ

Attest: i Haﬁyéy K. Ylunderiich, President

& |
mdcfzjéé;;;ﬁaf :Zégi;gagéﬁéﬁ/ ..

Grace lieller, ‘Village Clerk

© e e medm— e



RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, at the Spring election of 1280 the
voters of the Town of Salem approyed of a referendum
to enter into an agreement with the Village of Paddock
Lake to support a public library for the residents of
Salem and Paddock Lake;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:

That the Town Board of the Town of Salem pro-
ceed with implementing said peferendum and commence
negotiations with the Village Board of the Village of
Paddock Lake to establish a joint library with an
appropriate library board as proyided by Chapter 43
Statutes of the State of Wisconsin.

Passed this 10th day of April, 1980.

TOWN BOARD, TOWN OF SALEM

B : f . .
l.ghr,liiferv1sor
) .

L

LY
uperyisor

Attest;

. -’/‘ Q ;
gstelle Bloss, Clerk




AHEFDHENT TO
PADDOCK LAKE - SALEM - SILVER LAKE
JOINT LIBRARY AGREEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 43 of the Wisconsin
Statutes, the Paddock Lake - Salem - Silver Lake Joint Library

Apreement dated the day of , 1987, as adopted

by the Village of Paddock Lake, Town of Salem, and Village of
Silver Lake is hereby amended as follows:
1. Article C is recreated to read as follows:

"The members of the Joint Library Board shall elect from
their number a President, Vice-president, Secretary, and
Treasurer, and such other officers as they deem necessary."

2. Article I 1is recreated to read as follows:

"The Treasurer of the Joint Library Board shall keep
accurate records of all Community Library receipts and
expenditures. The net expenses of the Community Library as
established by budget shall be borne and paid by the three
municipalities in proportion to the equalized real estate
tax assessments of each municipality. The payment of tax
funds collected by the municipalities for the Community
Library or the amount of such sum budgeted for the
Community Library by such municipality shall be paid to the
.Community Library in quarterly installments as follows:

lst payment: March 31

2nd payment: June 30

3rd payment: September 30
4th payment: December 15

Dated: VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By: ﬂ@@ Adbssned /%/77 President
Attest: WJ/ZEM # [5 y Clerk

Dated: TOWN OF SALEM
By: , Chairman
Attest: y Clerk
Dated: VILLAGE OF SILVER LAKE
By: y President

Attest: y Clerk




INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEENT
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE,
THE VILLAGE OF TWIN LAKES QOPY
AND THE TOWN OF BRISTOL
REGARDING MOSQUITO CONTROL

This is an intergovernmental agreement made and entered into as of the 16™ day of
June, 2004, by and between the Village of Paddock Lake and the Village of Twin Lakes, each of
which is a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin,
located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin (herein collectively referred to as “Villages” and
individually as “Paddock Lake” and “Twin Lakes” respectively) and the Town of Bristol, a
municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Wisconsin,
located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin (herein referred to as “Bristol”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.0301 authorizes villages and towns as
“municipalities” to contract for the joint exercise of any power or duty required or authorized by
statute; and

WHEREAS, the Villages and Bristol have long recognized that intergovernmental
cooperation and joint planning provide for the efficient delivery of municipal services; and

WHEREAS, the spread of West Nile disease has developed to the point where
mosquito abatement in Southeastern Wisconsin has become a high priority for local units of
municipal government; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Villages and Bristol to jointly plan for,
acquire materials to conduct and implement a mosquito abatement program to effectuate cost
savings for all of the parties to this agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties
hereto, the receipt and sufficiency of which is mutually acknowledged, it is stipulated and agreed
as follows: ' '

1. Each of the Villages and Bristol warrant and represent that they will, to the
extent practicable, consult with each other so as to provide the most cost-
effective delivery of a municipal mosquito abatement service to all
properties located within each municipality. To this end, it is the intention
of the parties hereto that to the extent practicable, they shall use their
combined purchasing power to purchase materials, equipment (if
necessary), to lease or rent equipment, to obtain operational training for the
application of persons designated to take part in the mosquito program and
to share equipment.

2, Administration of Agreement. This agreement shall be administered on
behalf of each of the Villages by the Village Administrator (in the case of
Paddock Lake and Twin Lakes) or by the Village President and by the
Bristol Town Board Chairperson or his or her designee. The appointment
of a designee must be in writing and all other parties to this agreement must
be notified of the appointment. The administration of this agreement shall
include the implementation of policies and procedures which will effectuate



the purposes and spirit of this agreement and shall empower each designee
to execute documents on behalf of that designee’s principal to implement
the purposes of this agreement including, but not limited to, purchase orders
for materials, leases for equipment or agreements allowing the loan of
equipment from one municipality which is a party to this agreement to
another.

3. No Third Party Beneficiary. This agreement is intended to be solely
between the signators hereto. Nothing in this agreement accords any third
party any legal or equitable rights whatsoever which may be enforced by
any non-party to this agreement.

4. Term. The term of this agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years,
commencing on the first day of the first month after all parties have fully
executed this agreement. If the expiration of the first and each subsequent
term, this agreement will automatically be renewed for an additional five (5)
year term unless a party notifies all of the parties in writing, at least thirty
(30) days prior to the expiration of the initial term, or any additional term,
of its intention not to renew the agreement,

5. Advancement of Mutual Interests. The parties acknowledge that in order to
effectively implement this agreement, it may be necessary to obtain the
cooperation and approval of other governmental agencies, including, but not
limited to, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources, Kenosha
County, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation or the Environmental
Protection Agency. In all matters necessary to implement this agreement,
the parties agree to seek the cooperation and approval of all relevant
agencies. To the extent practicable, the parties will, where necessary to
obtain such required approval, submit a single, joint request or other
appropriate documents requesting the approval sought.

6. Enforceability, The parties have entered into this agreement under the
authority of §66.0301 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Its enforceability will not
be affected by changes in the forms of government or changes in elected
officials. The parties agree that this agreement be construed so as to be
binding on their respective successors, agents and employees.

7. Authority to Act. By executing this Agreement, the parties below
acknowledge that this Agreement was passed by duly authorized public
meeting of the respective governing board of the Village or Town
immediately above the signatories name wherein a quorum of duly elected
members of such Village or Town was present and a majority of such
quorum voted in favor of the passage of a motion or resolution approving
this Agreement. Such approvals as recited herein shall presumptively
establish that the action of the Board shall also be binding upon such
Village or Town.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the execution of this
Agreement by their duly authorized officers as of the date first written above.

-2-



EXECUTED IN MULTIPLE
ORIGINALS

EXECUTED IN MULTIPLE
ORIGINALS

EXECUTED IN MULTIPLE
ORIGINALS

VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE

By: A0 <2 (. fBee"—
David Buehn, President

By: \Z/“JZH /,f IDQ»-ALLK"

Emily Uhlenhake, Clerk/Treasurer

VILLAGE OF TWIN LAKES

By: @# éi,: @v
Howard K. Skinner, President

By: VML« @ el

Kathleen Richardson, Clerk/Treasurer

Gossling, Chajtman

By: Curey \Havao
Amy Klemko, Clerk/Treasurer
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT

BETWEEN THE TOWN OF BRISTOL AND C =
THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE =€ ) %y
REGARDING THE DISPOSAL OF WASTE OIL i ‘

This is an intergovernmental agreement made and entered into as of the A day of

; e 2002, by and between the Town of Bristol, a municipal corporation,
located at 8301 198" Avenue, Bristol, Wisconsin 53104 and its related utilities (herein referred to as
“Town") and the Village of Paddock Lake, a municipal corporation, located at 6969 236™ Avenue,
Paddock Lake, Salem, Wisconsin 53168 (“*Village™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Wisconsin Statutes Section 66.30 authorizes towns and villages as
“municipalities” to contract for the joint exercise of any power or duty required or authorized by
statute; and

WHEREAS, the Town and the Village have long recognized that intergovernmental
caoperation and joint planning provide for the best use of land and natural resources, and high quality
and efficient services; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town and the Village to resolve municipal service
issues in order to avoid costly and time-consuming duplication of services and to provide effective
and efficient delivery of services in the Town and Village; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of both the Town and the Village not 10 provide a duplication of
municipal waste oil recycling service to serve properties located in the Town and the Village, and

WHEREAS, the Town is willing to allow the Village to share the use of its established waste
oil recycling facilities pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties hereto, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is mutually acknowledged, it is stipulated and agreed as follows:

1. USE OF WASTE OIL RECOVERY FACILITIES.

The Village and its residents shall be entitled to utilize the waste oil recycling facilities owned
and maintained by the Town during term of this Agreement. The Town reserves the right to
implement such rules and procedures as well as hours of operation as it deems reasonable and
necessary for the operation of these facilities. All ownership of the recycling facilities for waste oil
shall be retained by the Town and any individual charges, service fees or other charges imposed by the
Town, as owner, shall be retained by the Town. However, it is understood and agreed that except for
the consideration paid by the Village to the Town under the terms of this Agreement as stated in the
following paragraph, the Village at its residence shall not be charged for non-commercial utilization of
the Town recycling facilities.

DAYISON, MULLIGAN & SCHILTZ, 1,TD., 1207 35TH STREET, KENOSHA, WISCONSIN 53140
(262) 657-5165 FAX NO, (261) 6575517 E-MAIL: dnsltd@execpc.com
KENOSHA LAKE GENEVA
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7. COMPLETE AGREEMENT.

- This Agreement represents the entire integrated agreement between the parties and supersedes
all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral.

8. SEVERABLE PROVISIONS.

All of the Agreement’s terms are intertwined and interconnected and shall not be severed or
modified. It is agreed that the terms and provisions are interdependent. If any material party of this
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or ineffective or if subsequently
enacted federal or state law, rule or regulation renders any of the material terms of this Agreement
unlawful, the parties shall have thirty (30) days in which to negotiate in good faith to remedy the
unlawful or unenforceable provisions.

9. ADVANCEMENT OF MUTUAL INTERESTS.

The parties acknowledge that in order to effectively implement this Agreement, it may be
necessary to obtain the cooperation and approval of other governmental agencies, including but not
limited to, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and Kenosha County. In all matters
necessary to implement this Agreement, the parties agree to seek the cooperation and approval of all
relevant agencies. To the extent practicable, the parties will, where necessary to obtain such required
approval, submit a single, joint request or other appropriate documents requesting the approval.

10. ENFORCEABILITY.

The parties have entered into this Agreement under the authority of Section 66.30 of the
Wisconsin Statutes. Tts enforceability will not be affected by changes in the forms of Town
government or from Town government to Village government or City government, or changes in
elected officials. The parties agree that this Agreement be construed so as to be binding on their
respective successors, agents and employees. The parties will not challenge the provisions of the
Agreement or they that this Agreement be construed so as to be binding on their respective
successors, agents and employees. The parties will not challenge the provisions of the Agreement or
they will be subject to the penalty provisions herein, except upon breach by the other party.

1. NO WAIVER.

The failure of any party to require strict performance with any provision of this Agreement
will not constitute a waiver of the provision or of any of the parties’ rights under this Agreement.
Rights and obligations under this Agreement may only be waived or modified in writing, A writing
waiving a right must be signed by the party waiving the right. If any obligation of a party is being
waived or released, the writing must be signed by all affected parties. Waiver of one right, or release
of one obligation, will not constitute 2 waiver or release of any other right or obligation of any party.
Waivers and releases will affect only the specific right or obligation waived or released and will not
affect the rights or obligations of any other party that it not sign the waiver or release.

} DAVISON, MULLIGAN & SCHILTZ, LTD., 1207 55TH STREET, KENOSHA, WISCONSIN 53140
{262) 657-5165 FAX NO, {262} 657-5517 E-MAIL: dwslitd@execpc.coms
KENOSHA LAKE GENEYA
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I2.  PERFORMANCE STANDARD.

This Agreement requires the parties to act or to refrain from acting on a number of matters,
The parties hereby acknowledge that this Agreement imposes on them duty of good faith and fair
dealing.

By executing this Agreement, the parties below acknowledge that this Agreement was passed
by duly authorized public meeting of the respective governing boards of the Town of Bristol and the
Village of Paddock Lake wherein a quorum of Board members was present and a majority of such
quorum voted in favor of the passage of a motion or resolution approving this Agreement. Such
approvals as recited herein shall presumptively establish that the action of the Board shall also be
binding upon the Town and the Village, respectively. Such meetings were held at the Town or
Village Halls, respectively, on the dates and times as follows:

Town of Bristol Board meeting conducted on the 4" day of Ovigenizx
2002, at _1q.uL o’clock p.m.

L™
Village of Paddock Lake Board meeting conducted on the 20~ day of
2002, at 7 o'clock p.m.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the execution of this Agreement by their
duly authorized officers as of the date first written above.

TOWN OF BRISTOL

EXECUTED IN DUPLICATE By: Ao | S
o~ Chairperson
- Attest: C\..Vl‘b\\ t \LQ_G.‘V\\‘ALJ
Clerk
VILLAGE QOF PADDOCK LAKE
EXECUTED IN DUPLICATE By: .

Dawvid Buehn, Président

Attest:__/J wedd A ’4,&%
Doris Raditz, Clerk

DAVISON. MULLIGAN & SCHILTZ, LTD,, 1207 S5TII STREET, KENOSHA, WISCONSIN 53140
(262) 657-5165 FAX NO. (242) 657-5517 E-MAIL: dmslid@execpc.com
KENOSHA LAKE GENEVA



SENT .BY,-: TOWN OF BRISTOL; 2-19- 3 12:11PM; 262 857 2136 => 2628433408; #5/5

Rev. 11/20/2002)

| TOWN OF BRISTOL
EXECUTED IN DUPLICATE By, A~ s
= Chairperson
Attest: C'-mq_ £ N onvg
Clerk
VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE
EXECUTED IN DUPLICATE By: Do C 3 il

Deavid Buehn, President

Attest__Qopio  Kedid

Doris Raditz, Clerk - ¢

DAVISON, MULLIGAN & SCHILTZ, LTD,, 1207 S5TH STREET, KENOSHA, WISCONSIN 53140
(262) 657-5165 FAX NO. (262) 657-5517 E-MAIL: dusitd@execpe.con
KENOSHA LAKE GENEYA
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COMMUNITY LIBRARY

JOINT OPERATING AGREEMENT

pursuant to the provisions of Section 43.53 of the Wisconsin
Statutes, this agreement is made and entered into by and among
the Village of Paddock Lake, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, the Town
of Randall, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, the Town of Salem,; Kenosha
County, Wisconsin, the Village of Silver Lake, Kenosha County,
Wisconsin and the’ Village of Twin Lakes, Kenosha County, Wisconsin,

RECITATION

On February 20, 1980, the Village Board of the Village of
Paddock Lake unanimously passed Resolution No. 49 to cooperate in
an agreement for the establishment, maintenance and upkeep of a
joint municipal library to provide library gservices to the

cCOommunity.

On April 1, 1980, residents of the Town of Salem responded
affirmatively to a referendum favoring the establishment of a
joint municipal library.

The Boards of the Village of Paddock Lake, Town of Salem,
and village of Silver Lake have all subsequently adopted
Resolutions authorizing the participation of the.Village of Twin
Lakes and the Town of Randall in said joint library system.

A

On June 8, 1992, the Village Board of Twin Lakes unanimously
passed Resolution No. R-92-62 expressing the intention of the
Village of Twin Lakes to join the Community Library System and

enter into this joint operation agreement.

on June 11, 1992, the Town of Randal)l passed a resolution to
jeln the Community Library System. :
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AGREEMENT

A The Village of Paddock Lake, Town of Randall, Town of
Salem, and Village of Silver Lake and Village of Twin Lakes
hereby recreate and re-establish a Joint Library Board for the
purpose of operating a public library at 409 East Lake Street, in
the Village of Silver Lake and a branch at 110 South Lake Aveaue,
in the Village of Twin Lakes, or at such other location or
locations as the Board may hereafter determine.

B. The Joint Library Board shall have all the powers
provided in Section 43.58, Wisconsin Statutes and any other
applicable Wisconsin Statutes relating to libraries and shall be

composed as follows:

l. Ten members, all of whom shall be residents of the
Village of Paddock Lake, Town of Randall, Town of Salem, Village
of Silver Lake or Village of Twin Lakes and 'an eleventh member to
represent a school district. Two members from each municipality
shall be appointed by the Town Chairman or Village President and
confirmed by the Town or Village Board. The existing seven
members of the Board shall remain members of the new Board
created hereunder and two additional members shall be appointed
by the Village President of the Village of Twin Lakes and
confirmed by the Twin Lakes Village Board and two members shall
be appointed by the Town Chairman of Randall and confirmed by the
Randall Town Board. The initial terms of the members shall be
established by the Library Board President to be staggered so
that no mere than four members® terms shall expire in any one
year and so that no two terms of members from a single
municipality shall expire in the same year. Thereafter each
regular appointment shall be made for a term of three years. The
term of each board member shall expire at the end of a calendar

year. )

2. Upon the expiration of the term of the board member
appointed by the Administrator of Wilmot Union High School, a
member shall then be appointed by the Administrator of Westosha
Central High School and confirmed by its governing board for a
period of three years. The school representative shall continue
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to alternate for three year periods between the two schools. Any

member appointed to be the school representative shall be a
resident of that school district. The member whose term is about
! to expire shall notify the Administrator of the school next

eligible to appoint a member to the board.

3., Vacancies on the Board shall be filled within 30 days
by appointment for any unexpired term by the appointing authority’
in the same manner as original appointments are made.

4. A majority of the members of the Joint Library Beard
shall ¢onstitute a guorum.

cC. As soon as practicable after the recreation of the
eleven member Joint Library Board its members shall crganize and
elect from their number a President, Vice president, Secretary,
Treasurer and other such officers as they deem necessary.

D. No compensation shall be paid to members of the Joint
Library Board for their services, but they may be reimbursed for
actual and necessary expenses incurred if so authorized by the
Joint Library Board.

E. The Board shall appoint a librarian, who shall appoint
assistants and employees as he/she deems necessgary and shall
prescribe their duties and compensation. The librarian and other
employees shall be considered and treated as employees of the
Joint Municipal Library for tax withholding purposes and for the
purposes of handling fringe benefits (i.e., retirement, social

security).

F. The Board shall prepare and submit to the municipal
boards, a preliminary budget not later than September lst and the
final budget, not later than October lst of each year commencing
September lst, 1992, to cover the Board's income and operating
expenses for the following calendar year. Such budget shall be
in the form prescribed by Wisconsin Statutes Sectiom 65.90 in
respect to municipal budgets. No expenditures shall be made
until the budget has been approved by all five municipal boards.

-3=
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The Board shall have the authority to amend the budget for the
purpose of reallocating budgeted funds as may be necessary due to
special circumstances or emergencies.

G. The Board may establish and make public rules and
regulations governing the use of facilities operated by the Board
pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 43.52. The Board may, at its
discretion, discontinue library privileges to any person who
violates the rules and regulations adopted and published by the

Board.

H, Physical assets except land and buildings acquired by
the Library board in the past or in the future shall be owned
jointly by all five municipalities subject to the provisions for
division of assets on termination of this agreement as set forth

in Paragraph J.

I. The Treasurer of the Joint Library Board shall keep
accurate records of all Community Library receipts and
expenditures. The net operating expenses of the Community
Library as established by budget shall be borne and paid by the
five municipalities in proportion to the equalized real estate

J tax assessments of each municipality. The payment of tax funds
collected by the municipalites for the Community Library or the
amount -of such sum budgeted for the operating expenses of the
Community Library by such municipality shall be paid to the
Community Library in monthly installments on the 15th day of each

month. .
R 11

J. This agreement shall be in effect from the date of
execution by each municipality for a period ending December 31,
1993, and shall continue thereafter from year to year on a
calendar basis unless any party gives written notice to the
parties not less than 18 months prior to the end of a calendar
year, 1f the termination of this agreement results in the
closing of the library, the assets thereof excluding land and
buildings shall be divided among the five municipalities in
accordance with the ratio of expense sharing in existence in the
year of termination., In the event of a dispute with respect to
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the distribution, all assets exclusive of land and pbuildings
shall be sold with the proceeds thereof distributed on the same

basis.

K. A separate capital agreement shall be entered into
among the participating municipalities to describe the
acquisition and distribution of land and buildings.

DATED QLJ,Z/ AN AT~ VILLAGE OF PADDQCK LAKE
J 7 7/’ w3
By i /43ﬁ2§fiﬁ fﬂdxﬁzﬁfﬁﬁsf
. President ’
Attest: 544“_) v i
Clerk o
DATED C\;!‘jl 16 l‘i"?.i). F SAL '
\ ] ' Z
By: 2
e (¥ 1)
Attest: N | i ]T\'\.‘H" . £ LI
.Clerk T )
1

DATED gZAﬁ,M,V/ & /772~ /\'J_;%LAGE og(:’n.vsa Lﬁﬁ:
) ) BYI- \(f‘ (,:)/'\Q ? ) A (&. 4 ':1’&' }

\__;.,{ Flo A

P‘ge/s}ident
Attest:\ﬁfégz;4*wac:;2 74;::557b4f“’/
- Clerk !
DATED 7&&2‘7 93’—2”, Jax TOWN OF RANDALL 3
By: M}{/_g/u////
Pre.sident //
f/; Y 7 /y T,
Attest: (L‘,..ﬁz}.,» ., 2’4;-».;(’?--—*
Cl_—;érk /
(. Ly 42, 1995
DATED Al AL, A VILLAGE OF TWIN LAKES

J ¢ by:  Lerr Ol
Pregstident i
Attests /ﬂ/éﬂ/’:/ /wf:ﬂfﬂd./
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MUTUAL AID BOX ALARM SYSTEM
AGREEMENT

‘This Agreement made and entered into the date set forth next to the signature of the respective
parties, by and between the units of local governmient subscribed hereto (hereafter “Unit{s)") that
have approved this Agreement and adopted same in manner as provided by law and are hereafter
listed at the end of this Agreement. g

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have determined because of geographical considerations it is
itmportant for linois units and Wisconsin unis to coordinate mutual aid through the Mutual Aid
Box Alarm System for the effective and efficient provision of Mutual aid; and

WHEREAS it is recogrized and acknowledged that emergencies, natural disasters, and man-
mide catastrophes do niot conform to designated territorial limits and state boundaries; and

WHEREAS the Wisconsin Statute 66.30(2) authorizes any municipality to contract with other
municipalities for the Teceipt or furnishirig of services, such & fire protection and emergency
medical services. Such a contract may be with municipalities of another state. (Wis. Stats,

66.30(5)).
WHEREAS thie State of Illinois hag provided similar provisions under the “Intergovernmental

Cooperation Act” of 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.

WHEREAS, the partiés hereto have determined that is is in their best inferests to enter into this
Agreement to'secure to each the benefits of mutual aid in fire protection, firéfighting and the
protection of life and property from an_émergeﬁcy or disaster; and,



WHEREAS, the parties hereto have determiined that it is in their best interests to form an
association to provide for communications procedures, training and other necessary functions to
further the provision of said protection of life and property from an emergency or disaster.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the Unit's membership in the
Mutual Aid Box Aldrm System (hereinafter ‘MABAS") and the covenants contained herein,
THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE ASFOLLOWS:

SECTION ONE
Purpose

Tt is recognized and acknowledped that in certain sifuations, such as, biit not limited to,
emergencies, atural disasters and marmade catastrophes, the use of an individual Member
Unit’s personnel and equipment to' perform fimetions outside the territorial limits of the Memiber
Unit is desirable and necessary to p:ese,l'v'c. and protect the health, safety and welfare of the
public. It is furtlier expressly ackiiowledged that in certain situations, such as the
aforementioned, ths use of other Member Unit's personnel and equipment to perform fimctions
within the terriforial limits of a Member Unit is desirable and necessary to preserve and protect
the health, safety and welfare of the public, Further, it is ackriowledged that coordination of
mutual aid through the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System is desirable for the effective and efficient
‘provision of mutual aid.



SECTION TWO
Definitions

For the purpose of this Agreement, the following terms as used in this agreement shall be defined

as follows:

‘A, “Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (hereinafter referred to as “MABAS”™): A definite and

prearranged plan whemby response-and assistance is provided to a Stricken Unit by the
Aiding Unit(s) in accordance with the system established and maintained by the MABAS

Member Units and amended from time to fime;

“Member Unit™; A unit of local government including but not limiited to a city, village,
town, or Fire Protection District having a fire department recognized by the State of
Tlinois, or the State of Wisconsin, or-an intergovernmental agency and the units of which
the intergovernmérifal ageficy is comprised which is & party fo the MABAS Agreement and
has been appropriately authorized by the governing body to enter into such agreement, arid
to comply with the rules and regulations of MABAS;

“Stricken Unit”; A Metmber Unit which requests aid in the event of an eniergericy;

“Aiding Unit”; A Member Unit furnishing equiprent, personnel, and/or services o a
Stricken Unit;

“Emergency™ An.occurrence or condition in 2 Meniber Unit's teritorial jurisdiction which
results in a situation of such magnitude and/or consequence that it cannot be adequately
handled by the Stricketi Uit and such that a Membér Unit determines the necessity and

advisability of requesting aid.
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“Division”; The geographically associated Member Units or unit which have been grouped
for operational efficiency and representation of those Member Units.

“Training™: The regular scheduled practice of emergency procedores during non-
emergency drills to implement the necessary joint operations of MABAS.
& .
“Byecutive Board™ The governing body of MABAS comprised of Division
representatives.
SECTION THREE

Authority and Action to Effect Mutual Add
The Member Units hereby authorize and direct their respective Fire Chief or his designee to
take necessary and proper action to render and/or request mutual aid from other Member
Uniits in accoidance with the policies and procedures established and maintained by the
MABAS Member Units. The aid rendered shall be to the extent of available personne! and
equipment nof required for adsquate protection of the territorial Hmits of the Aiding Unit.
Thé fiudgement of thé Fire Chief, or his designes, ofthe Aiding Uit shall bé final ss to the
personne] and equipment available to render aid.

Whenever an emergency occurs and conditions are such that the Fire Chief; or his designee,
of theStricken Uit deterimisis it advisable to request sid parsiant to this Agreemett, be
shall potify the Alding Unit of the nature dtd location of the emérgency and the type dnd
gmount of equipmeérit and persontie! and/or services requested from the Aiding Unit,



»

C. ‘The Fire,Chief, or his designee, of the Aiding Unit shall take the following action
immediately upon being requested for aid:

1. Determine what equipment, personnel aitd/or services is requested according to the
system mainfained by MABAS;

2. Determine if the reqliested equipment, personnel, and/or services can be committed in
response to the request from the Stricken Unit;

3. Dispatch immediately the requested equipmeént, personnel and/or services, to ths
extent available, to the location of the emergency reported by the Stricken Unit in
accordance with the procedures of MABAS;

4. Notify the Stricken Unit if any or all of the requested equipthent, personnel and/or

services cannot be provided.

SECTION FOUR

Jurisdiction Over Personnel and Equipment
Personnel dispatched to aid a party purcussit to this Agréenient shall remsin employees of the
Aiding Unit, Personnel rendering aid shall report for direction and assignment at the scens of the
emergency to thé Fire Chisf or Senior Officer of the Stricken Unit. The party rendering aid shal
&t all times have the right to withdraw any and all aid upos the order of its Fire Chief or his
designee; provided, however, that the party withdrawing such aid shall notify the Fire Chief or
Senior Officer of the pirty requesting aid of the withdrawal of such aid and the extent of such

SECTION FIVE
Compensation for Aid

Equiptierit, personnel, and/or services provided pursuant fo this Agrésment shall be at rio charge
to the party requesting aid; however, any expenses recaverabie from third parties shall be
equitably distributed among responding parties. Nothing hereii shall operate to bar any recovery
of funds from any state or federal agency under any existing statutes,

—5—



T SECTION SIX

Insurance

Each party hereto shall p'rocm'c and maintain, at its sole and exclusive expense, insurance
coverage, including: comprehensive liability, personal injiry, property damage, workman’s
compensation, and, if applicable, emergency medical setvice professional liability, with
minimum Hmits of $1,000,000 auto and $1,000,000 combined single limit general liability and
professional liﬁbility; No party hereto shell have any obligation to Brovide or extend insurance
coverage for any of the items enumérated lierein to any other party hersto or its persorinel. The
obligations of the Section may be satisfied by a party’s membership in a self-insurance pool, a
self-insurance "plaﬁ or afra;.iigement with an insurance provider approved by the state of
jurisdiction. The MABAS may reqmre that copies or other 'evidenc’e of compliance with the
provisions of this S_ec‘ti'on"be provided to ttie MABAS, Upon request, Member Units shall
provide such evidence as"l.1ere'in provided to the MABAS members,
SECTION SEVEN

A _Indemnification
Each party hereto agrees to waive all clalms against all ottier parties hereto for any loss, damage,
personal i mjmy ordeath occurrmg in consequence of the performance of this Mutual Aid
Agvr_eemcnt; prowded,'hm!avgr,' that such claim is not a result of gross negligence or willful

misconduct by a party hereto or its personnél

Each party requeﬂmg b‘:fi:féjvi‘ding aid pursuant to this Agreement hereby expressly agrees to
hold harmless, mdemmﬁr a.nd defend the party rendering aid and its personnel from any and all
claims, demands, habﬂlty, losses suits in law of in equity which are tnade by a third party. This
indeminity shall includs attomcy feey and costs thit mnay arise from providing aid pursuant to this
Agreement. Provided, however!--that all employee benefits, wage and disability payments,
pensions, workman’s co'rﬁfs'ensaﬁon claims, damage to or destruction of equipment and clothing;
and medical ex.penses of the _parly rendering aid shall be the sole and exclusive responsibility ¢ of

- .,.,-.
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the respective party for its employees, provided, however, that such claims made by a third party
are not the result of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the party rendering aid.

SECTION EIGHT
Non—Liability for Failure to Render Aid

The rendering of assistance under the terms of this Agreement shall not be mandatory if local
conditions of the Aiding Unit prohibit response. It is the responsibility of the Aiding Unit to
immediately notify the Stricken Unit of the Aiding Unit's inability to respond; however, failure
to immediately notify the Stricken Unit of such inability to resporid shall not constitute evidence
of nonconiplja‘ncefwith the terms of this section and no liability may be assigned. No liability of
any kind or nature shall be atiributed to or be assumed, whether expressly or.implied, by 2 party
hereto, fts duly authorized agents and personnel, for failure or refisal to reiider aid. Nor shall
thére bie any lisbility of a patty for withdrawal of aid once provided pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement,

SECTION NINE
This Agreement shall be in effect for 2 termt of oné year from the daté of signature hereof arid
shall automatically renew for successive one year terms unless terminated in accordance with
this Section.
Any party hereto may terminate its participation in this-Agreement at any time, provided that the
pirty Wishing to termiinate its participation in this Agreement shiall give written notice to the
Board of their Division ard to the Executive Board specifying the data of termination, such
notice to be given at Jeast 90 calendar days prior to the specified date of termination of
participation, The writen notice provided herein shall be:given by personal delivery, registered
mail or certified mail,



SECTION TEN

Effectiveness
This Agreement shall be in full force and effective upon approval by the parties hereto in the

manner provided by law and upon proper execution hereof,

SECTION ELEVEN
Binding Effect ¢
This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 1o the benefit of any successor entity which may
assume the obligations of any party hereto, Provided; however, that this Agreement may not be
assigned by afi\.{er;:xber Unit without prior writien consent of the parties hereto; and this
Agreement shall not be assigned by MABAS without prior written consent of the parties hereto.

SECTION TWELVE
Validity

The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shiall not render invalid any other provision. If,

for any reason, any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction fo be invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed seyerable and this
- Agreement may Be?'q_nfbrced with that provision severed or modified by court order,
SECTION THIRTEEN
Notices
All notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be served personally, by registered mail or
certified mail to the paities at stich addresses as my be designated from fime to time on the
MABAS mailing lists or; to other such address ag shall be agreéd upor

SECTION FOURTEEN
Governing Law:

This Agreement shall be govemned, interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Tllinois and'the State o Wisconsin,




T SECTION FIFTEEN
ot Execution in Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts or duplicate originals, each of which
shall constitute and be deemed as one and the same document.

~ SECTION SIXTEEN
Executive Board of MABAS

An Executive Board is hereby established to consider, adopt and amend from time to time as
needed rules, procedures, by-laWs and any other matters deemed necessary by the Member Units,
The Executive Board shall consist of a memiber elected from edch Division within MABAS who

shall serve as the yoting representative of said Division on MABAS matters, and may appoirit a
desigriee to sexrve temporarily in his stead. Such designee shall be from within the respective
division end shall have all rights and privileges attendanit to a representative of that Member

'Unit,

A President and Vice President shall be elected from the representatives of the Member Units
and shall sérve without comperisatior. The President and sitch other officers as dre provided for
i the by Iaws shall céordinate the activities of the MABAS:

SECTION SEVENTEEN -
Dutles of the Executive Board

The Executive Board shall mest regularly fo conduct business arid o consider and publish tho
rules, procedures and by laws of the MABAS, which shall govern the Executive Board meetings
and such other relevant matters a3 the Exeicutive Board shall deem necessary,

SECTION EIGHTEEN

xleg arid Pracedurés

Rules, procedures and by laws of the MABAS shall b established by fhie Metiber Units via the
Executive Board as deemed ngcessary froni time to time for the putpose of admiinistrative i
funictions, the exchange of infotriation and the coimon velfire of the MABAS,

B
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)l SECTION NINETEEN
ot Amendments

This Agreement may only be amended by written consent of all the parties hereto. This shall not
preclude the amendment of rules, procedures and by laws of the MABAS zs established by the
Executive Board to this-Agreement.

The undersigned unit of local governmient or public agency hereby has adopted, and subscribes
to, and approves this MUTUAL AIDBOX ALARM SYSTEM Aggeement to which this
signature page will be attached, and agrees to be & party thereto and be bound by the terms
thereof, '

This Signatory certifies that this Mutual Aid Box Alaiin Systedi Agréement has been adopted
and approved by ordinance, resolirtion, or other mianner approved by law, a copy of which
document is attached hereto,

| 7.;0?3%

tnu'm p\ERﬁ
Title

512 o
Date |
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RESOLUTION NO. 01-03-12__

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING A
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT FOR EMERGENCY
SERVICES.

WHEREAS, the Kenosha County Chief ‘s and Captain’s Association has obtained
approval from the Wisconsin Attorney General of a form of mu‘tuél aid agreement which
would provide fire and rescue support between the municipalities in Kenosha and Walworth
Counties in the State of Wisconsin and Lake, McHenry, Boone, Winnebago and Cook
Counties in the State of lllinois, and;

WHEREAS, the Kenosha County Chief's and Captain’s Association has
recommended approval of the mutual aid agreement by all of the municipalities within
Kenosha County; and

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Salem has reviewed the agreement
which is entitled the “Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Agreement” and feels that it would be
in the best interests of the Town of Salem to have the emergency service organizations within
the Town of Salem participate in said agreement;

. o NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Board of the Town of Salem,
Kenosha County, Wisconsin:

1. That the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System Agreément submitted for
consideration and approval be and it is hereby approved and that the four
emergency service organizations within the Town; namely the Wilmot
Fire Department, the Trevor Fire Department, the Salem Fire Department
and the Salem and Silver Lake Rescue Squads may participate in the
mutual aid agreement in accordance with its’ terms.

2. That the Town Chairman and Town Clerk be, and they hereby are
authorized to sign the said agreement in the form presented and submit
it to the Mutual Aid Alarm System Executive Board.

3. That each of the emergency service organizations within the Town of
Salem be furnished with a copy of the signed agreement and of this
Resolution.

Introduced and adopted at a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of
Salem, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, held on March 12, 2001,



TOWN OF SALEM,

Kenosha Coynty, Wisconsin

By:

Shirley Boening, TgWn Chairman Q

Attes :
Antonette C, Seitz, Town Clerk

This instrument was drafted by:
Milton C. Konicek, Attorney
Burlington, Wisconsin
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Town of Salem Fire/Rescue
9814 Antioch Rd.

PO Box 443

Salem, WI 53168

(262) 843-2313 Business

(262) 843-4432 Fax

ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT INTERCEPT AGREEMENT

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue and Silver Lake Rescue desire to demonstrate their commitment to
providing the best possible care to their patients by entering into this Advanced Life Support Intercept

Agreement.

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue agrees to provide Silver Lake Rescue with Advanced Life Support (ALS)
intercept service when Silver Lake Rescue requests such service, When such response is requested and
provided to Medicare recipients, the billing procedures outlined within this Agreement will be followed.

1. When Town of Salem Fire/Rescue provides ALS care and Silver Lake Rescue transports the panent
in their vehicle;

a.) Silver Lake Rescue will be responsible for the billing and collection associated with the ALS
service provided by Town of Salem Fire/Rescue as required by HCFA regulations,

b.) It is understood that Silver Lake Rescue Medicare provider number 34 ¥7¢4 shall be used
when Town of Salem Fire/Rescue is involved in & Silver Lake Rescne transport.

c.) 'i‘own of Salem Fire/Rescue accepts responsibility to accurately track reimbursements for ALS
intercepts in which they provide transport so as to adhere to the gnidelines set forth in this

billing agreement.

2. When Towu of Salem FireJRescue provides ALS care and transports the patient in 2 Town of Salem
Fire/Rescue vehicle:

a.) Town of Salem Fire/Rescue will be responsible for the billing and collection associated with
its service.

3. Transports not ii:volving Medicare patients will be billed independently by each ambulance service for
the services that were provided to the patient.

This agreement will become effective when signatures from both parties have been placed on this .
Agreement and will remain in effect until either party provides the other party with thirty (30) day written
notice of cancellation or modification,

Signature Page to Follow

PAGE 1



ADVANCED LIFE SUPPORT INTERCEPT AGREEMENT
Signature Page

Dated this_2. { day of g cossadan, 200 Dated this 22 day of Deconser, 200 H_

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Silver Lake Rescue
Name of Intercepting Service Name of Service Accepting Intercept

e 0l - be.
Signature Signature g
Chief David M. Slover ‘@—%L—A%L——
Print Name Print Nam

Fire/Rescue Chief

Title Tille & 000 Al Wpacece. |

PAGE2



KANSASVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
P.O. Box 545 - 23730 Durand Ave.
Kansasville, WI 53139
Ph. 262-878-3811
Fax 262-878-7560

It is hereby agreed, that the Salem Fire Department will automatically respond to
all structure fires and/or alarms for fire protection in the Kansasville Fire
Departments Contracted coverage area of the Town of Brighton, WI.

The department, which is responding automatic mutual aid will respond with a
minimum of one engine and one water tanker.

Upon receiving an alarm of fire, the Racine and Kenosha County Dispatch
Centers will simultanecusly dispatch both Kansasville and Salem Fire
Departments.

This Agreement will remaln in place until either department is unable to fulfil
their obligation.

Dated this _27 _ day of 22X, 2004.

Fire Chief, Kansasville FD

I sl

Mike Slover, Fire Chief, Salem Fire Rescue




TOWN OF SALEM FIRE/RESCUE

Mike Slover, Fire Chief
8339 - Anlioch Rd.
Salem, Wisconsin 53168

Talephone: 1-262-843-2170
FAX: 1-262-843-3256

AGREEMENT
Date: 1/1/04
This agreement is between the Kansasville Fire Dept.
and the Town Of Salem Fire/Rescue. The Kansasville Fire Dept.
Should supply an engine and manpower at the request of the Town Of Salem
Fire/Rescue. On the working stiil alarm level of the MABAS box alarm.
This is for any fire call involving smoke or fire in a structure in a specific area
of the Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Station 58 protection areas. The Town Of

Salem Fire/Rescue Station 58 will supply the Same service to the Kansasville

Fire Dept.

Z._—- W ,44’/ b
) Chief Mike Slover
Kansasville Fire Department Town Of Salem Fire Rescue
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AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this _.3 _day of _,Qmﬂ_m 2005 between Siiver Lake Rescue
Squad, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “Rescue Squad” and the Town of Salem, Kenosha
County, Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “The Town.”

The Town and Rescue Squad hereby agree that Rescue Squad shall provide rescue
services to The Town on the terms and conditions set forth in this agreement:

1. DELIVERY OF SERVICES.

a.

Initial EMS Response. Rescue Squad shall provide initial EMS and
rescue response services to that portion of The Town designated in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, 24
hours daily beginning as of the 1% day of January, 2008 and
continuing until such time as this agreement is terminated as provided
herein. Rescue Squad warrants and represents that it has under its
control sufficient equipment and trained personnel to provide rescue
services in the area designated in Exhibit A and further that Rescue
Squad shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses and shall comply
with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders
which would affect its operation within the scope of this agreement
and shall pay all charges in connection therewith.

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department shall respond to all calls
designated as ALS (Advanced Life Support), MVA (Motor Vehicle
Accidents) with injuries or Structure Fires within the area designated
in Exhibit A. Following initial assessment on scene, Rescue Squad
Command may cancel Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department Fire
Apparatus and Ambulance or may have them continue as non-
emergency, provided however, that Town of Salem Fire/Rescue
Department paramedics shall go to the scene of all such calls and
shall be involve in patient assessment in order to make a
determination whether the call classification may be downgraded. All
ALS transports shall be made with a Town of Salem Fire/Rescue
Department paramedic. ALS transports may be made in Rescue
Squad or Town of Salem Fire/Rescue ambulance with first
consideration be given to transport in a Silver Lake Rescue Squad
ambulance.

2. TITLE TO EQUIPMENT AND PROCEEDS. Rescue Squad shall at all times
retain title to all equipment and property provided under the terms of this
agreement and under no circumstances shall the Rescue Squad's officers
or members be considered employees or agents of the Town. Rescue
Squad shall have sole discretion in the allocation and deployment of its
resources, including all equipment and personnel and shall be responsibie



for providing personnel for each call received. All proceeds received by
Rescue Squad in the course of its provision of rescue services as provided
in this agreement shall vest in and remain the property of Rescue Squad,
with the exception of calls designated as ALS (Advanced Life Support), MVA
(Motor Venhicle Accidents) with injuries or Structure Fires. The transporting
department shall be responsible for patient billing and payment, upon
collection, shall be evenly divided between the departments.

MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS. Rescue Squad shall have the authority to
enter into mutual aid agreements with other fire and rescue depariments
calling for mutual aid and assistance, provided any such agreement shall
contain a clause that such aid on the part of Rescue Squad shall be
rendered only in the event that the rescue services called for under the terms
of this agreement in the area described in Exhibit A attached hereto will not
be adversely affected. Any charges or expenses related to mutual aid
required by Rescue Squad shall be at Rescue Squad's expense.

RECORDS. Rescue Squad shall supply reports and records upon request
in writing and in keeping with the standards set by the State of Wisconsin.
Financial records shall be presented by Rescue Squad in the form of a
budget indicating disbursement of funds received from The Town for the
current year under the terms of this agreement and a proposed budget for
the expenditure of such funds for the coming year. Budgets will be prepared
by Rescue Squad personnel and shall be presented to The Town no later
than November 1 each year.

COMPENSATION. As and for compensation for the services and facilities
furnished pursuant to the terms of this agreement, Rescue Squad shall
annually receive from The Town the sum of $15,000.00 for rescue services.

RISKS AND INSURANCE. All risks of fire, criminal theft, liability, personal
injury, property damage, and worker's compensation remain with Rescue
Squad. Rescue Squad shall provide its own insurance coverage and shall
file with The Town certificates of insurance indicating the required insurance
policies are in full force and effect.

TERM. This agreement shall remain in effect from and after January 1, 2006
until terminated as provided herein. The agreement may be terminated upon
one hundred eighty (180) days written notice by either party. If the
agreement is terminated at request of the Town prior to the end of the
calendar year, the Town shall compensate the Rescue Squad a prorated
portion of the calendar year of the full amount and fifty (50) percent of the
balance from the time of termination to December 31% of the confract year.
The agreement may be amended by written consent of both parties at any
time.



8. NOTICE. All notices shall be sent by registered or certified mail to the party
to be notified at the followmg addresses or at such other address as either
party shall designate in writing:

Town of Salem Silver Lake Rescue Squad, Inc.
P.O. Box 443 P.O. Box 776
Salem, W1 53168 Silver Lake, WI 531807

Executed as of the date first set forth above.

Silver Lake Rescue Squad, Inc. Town of Salem

By:g&) %%%,L , c,/«.af’ By\‘[ )(,uf)’\/)’b \f\S %Ad/{;

Diann D. Tesar, Town Chairman

Y.
nM\. Pepper, Town Clerk

C:\Documents and Settings\mslover.FIRERESCUE, G00WMy Documents\Fire & EMS committee\Department Opsrations\Silver Lake
Rescua Agr 11 09 05.wpd
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AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE FIRE AND RESCUE SQUAD SERVICES

This Agreement: This agreement is made by and between the Town of Salem
Fire/Rescue Department, hereinafter referred to as the “Fire/Rescue Department” and
the Town of Brighton, a municipal corporation, located in Kenosha County, Wisconsin,
hereinafter referred to as the “Town”. This agreement replaces any existing agreement
between the parties for the purpose of providing fire/rescue protection services.

Notices: Any notices hereafter required between the parties following the
execution of this agreement regarding this agreement shall be mailed to the following
addresses transferred by regular mail;

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department Town of Brighton PO.BOX 24"
P.O. Box 443 die=gdiifvenwe 2SS ODO-R V2L
Salem, WI 53168 Kansasville, W! 53139 3
The Purpose: The parties make this agreement for the purpose of providing &

fire/rescue service to the Town of Brighton. Both parties further agree to cooperate with
each other in every way possible to provide firefrescue service as safely, efficiently, and
cost effectively as possible within the parameters set by Federal and State of Wisconsin
laws. The Fire/Rescue Department shall be responsible for providing and have full
.control over the equipment and manpower responding with the department. The
Fire/Rescue Department shall establish and follow all policies, procedures, guidelines,
bylaws or constitution necessary for providing fire/rescue service subject to all State
and Federal laws and requirements. [t is further agreed that the Fire/Rescue
Department shall have the right to enter into contracts with other municipal corporations
for the same or similar purposes as this agreement and that the decision to enter Into
any such agreement so long as such additional agreements do not adversely affect
fire/rescue service provided by this agreement.

Responding to Emergency Calls: The Fire/Rescue Department will respond to
emergency calls within the territorial limits of the Town of Brighton. The Fire/Rescue
Department will be dispatched to a scene requesting fire/rescue service through the
dispatching capabilities of the Kenosha County Sheriff's department 911 dispatchers on
duty. When at the reasonable discretion of the Town of Salem Fire Chief (hereinafter
referred to as “Fire Chief") or a member empowered by the Fire Chief the fire/rescue
service response cannot be reasonably pursued because of road, weather or trave!
conditions, or any other cause which the Fire/Rescue Department has no control over,
then the response reasonably withheld will be deemed proper with no present or future
llability against the Fire Chief, officers of the Fire/Rescue Department, members of the
Fire/Rescue Department or assets of any of the aforementioned or the Fire/Rescue
Department or its assets. The Fire/Rescue Department, the Fire Chief, the officers of
the Fire/Rescue Department, the members of the Fire/Rescue Department or anyone
representing the Fire/Rescue Department by the authority of the Fire/Rescue

,  Department shall not be liable for any fallure to furnish fire/rescue sefvice response or
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protection, for acts or omissions in fire/rescue service, in failing to respond to an alarm,
in failing to arrive at a scene of an emergency within any certain amount of time, or for
any other acts unless these acts are of gross negligence. It is also understood that in
the event of simultaneous calls in the area covered under this agreement and any other
agreements which the Fire/Rescue Department has in force with other parties, that, in
that event the Fire Chief or a member empowered by the Fire Chief shall use their
discretion as to which call to respond to first, and that damages or circumstances
proven to be created or perceived by others to be created as a result of any decision,
lack of decision or judgment of the Fire Chief or a member empowered by the Fire
Chief, no liability shall be attached against the Fire/Rescue Department, the Fire Chief,
the officers of the Fire/Rescue Department, the members of the Fire/Rescue
Department or anyone representing the Fire/Rescue Department by the authority of the
Fire/Rescue Department.

Cost of Fire/Rescue Services: Itis agreed that the charged cost for fire/rescue
services provided to the Town will be a yearly fixed rate in accordance with the
computation formula agreed upon between the parties herein. The charged cost shall

be based on the rate of . (“mill rate") per thousand dollars of assessed property
value in the Town fo revious year, This rate schedule will be updated annually
and shall be submitted to the Town at the same time as the annual report is presented.

At no time during the term of fire/rescue service provided shall the annual charged cost
go below that charged for the previous year of service. A copy of the current rate
schedule is attached to this agreement as schedule "A" and becomes part of this
agreement untif this rate schedule is altered. It is further agreed that the Fire/Rescue
Department may bill the property owners directly and will not bill the Town for any
additional costs associated with fire/rescue service calls. In no instance, however, shall
the Fire/Rescue Department bill any owner in excess of said owner's insurance
coverage. : '

Payment: The payment for fire/rescue service shall be made by the Town to
the Fire/Rescue Department in two equal payments. The first payment shall be due on
or before March 31, The second shall be due on or before August 31%,

Term of this Agreement: The term of this agreement shall be for one year and this
agreement shall automatically renew itself on a year to year basis and on the same
conditions and terms as this agreement unless within one hundred twenty (120) days
prior to the expiration of this agreement, or any renewal term, one party notifies the
other in the manner as set forth previously in this agreement of intentions not to renew
the agreement. A rate schedule for the upcoming agreement renewal period will be
submitted to the Town along with the Fire/Rescue Department annual report regarding
the previous fiscal year. The fiscal year of the Fire/Rescue Department extends from
January 1% through December 31%. The agreement period for these fire/rescue
services extends from January 1% through the following December 31%,



Manrch
Dated this é day of Qeteber, 2003,

Town of Brighton

Byi_%m— W, /%—-——

Thomas W. Kerkman, Town Chairman

Attest: g)wvai& Qj—@w

Linda Perona, Town Clerk

TOWN OF SALEM

By:

Thomas M. Walsh, Town Chairman

Aftest:

Antonette C. Seitz, Town Clerk

Qctober 30, 2003



SCHEDULE “A”

RATE SCHEDULE

2002 property assessment value for Town of Brighton:

(Divided by 1,000)

multiplied by mill rate of ‘P&
| 25

Total charge for fire/rescue service for 2003

$

OoRhZ2

oo

514,052 .(

$ X 259

$

rd

68

=



Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department
Attn: Mike Slover

P.O. Box 443

Salem, WI 53168

Town of Brighton
P.0O. Box 249
Kansasville, W1 53139

March 6, 2004
Re: 2004 Fire/Rescue Contract
Mike,

Aftached is the revised contract between the Town of Brighton and Town of Salem for
Fire and Rescue service to the Town of Brighton, ' '

Per our discussion, the total fee for 2004 to the wan of Salem includes last year’s fire
retainer fee of $34,979.94 plus the $2,500.00 retainer fee for rescue. This 2004 contract
total of $37,568.62 is higher than last year’s fee.

You and I discussed the fact that the value of the Town of Brighton increased 20% last
year, but the cost of services to the Town of Brighton did not increase accordingly, The
new contract reflects a mill rate change from .291 to .259 per thousand dollars of town
value. - A February payment of $21,105.15 was sent. The balance due in August is
$16,463.47 for the 2004 contract. .

We should discuss a maxir._num increase rate for future contracts,

Sincerely,

Tom Kerkman, Chairman
Town of Brighton



An Agreement for the Provision
of Emergency Medical Services (EMS)

to the Town of Brighton, Kenosha County, Wisc_onsin

The four EMS providers serying portions of the Town of Brighton are the
Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department, Silver Lake Rescue Squad,
Burlington Rescue, and Medlx Ambulance.

P

Kansasville Fire Department and the Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department
provide fire protection service to the Town of Brighton.

The purpose of this agreement is to implement First Responder/EMT initial
response by Kansasville and Salem Fire Service personnel for medical calls in
the Town of Brighton.

Initial dispatch of medical calls by Kenosha City/County Joint Services will
..include a mutual aid request to the Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department or
to the Kansasville Fire Department, depending on the location of the call.
Kansasville personnel will be responding in personal vehicles until Kansasville
obtains a First Response vehicle. Salem personnel will respond with an engine.
These vehicles are equipped with Automatic External Defibrillators (AED)

| The Fire Department personnel responding are authorized to utilize their
skills and training to the extent of their Wisconsin EMS certifications under
the guidelines established by their Medical Director.

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department:

M3
ghief: 7&} (Lu-./ Date: Z_/Q_/Qﬂ
Medical Director: M‘”‘”‘Q 4 M Date: / A"f
Kansasville Fire Department:

Chief: %./j %— Date: {ég@m/

Medical Director: Date: _ 4-20-2004
Dernzrment SHIER - Uley eEove /Yo L. CLee «2esus,

S U




Silver Lake Rescue Squad:
KA s ST
Chief: _[}’%&.ﬂb—J ;/ Date: (F/ ?é—;—

Medical Director: " Date:

Burlmgton Rescue Squad

Chlef 4TMMMM Z Date: L{ 2/'64
Medical Dlrector DV D{MN\QQ W&i‘{&:ﬂ/t/ Date: LI AN

Medix Ambulance Service:

Chief: _ Date:

Medical Director; Date:

Brighton Town Board Chairman\:ngma ,/M__Date: _m_?@@ /.




. Phone: 262-878-2218

Town of Brighton
25000 Burlington Road
P.O.Box 249
Kansasville, WI 53139

Fax; 262-878-5489

E-mail: b ghtontown@voyager.net

. February 1, 2005

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue
9814 Antioch Road

P.O. Box 443

Salem, WI 53168

Re: Change in rescue service to the Town of Brighton

To Whom It May Concern:

. Effective February 1, 2005 it is the Town of Brighton’s understanding that the Town of
Salem Fire/Rescue will now provide rescue service to the area east of State Highway 75
and north of State Highway 142, This service will be in addition to the area of the Town
of Brighton previously covered by the Town of Salem Fire/Rescue. This change was
unanimously approved at the January 10, 2005 Town of Brighton board meeting,

Sincerely, -

Linda Perona, Clerk-Treasurer
. Town of Brighton
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AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT made this_3 _day of { }usn s 2005 between Silver Lake Rescue
Squad, Inc., hereinafter referred to as “Rescue Squad” and the Town of Salem, Kenosha
County, Wisconsin, hereinafter referred to as “The Town.”

The Town and Rescue Squad hereby agree that Rescue Squad shall provide rescue
services to The Town on the terms and conditions set forth in this agreement;

1. DELIVERY OF SERVICES.

Initial EMS Response. Rescue Squad shall provide initial EMS and
rescue response services to that portion of The Town designated in
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, 24
hours daily beginning as of the 1 day of January, 2006 and
continuing until such time as this agreement is terminated as provided
herein. Rescue Squad warrants and represents that it has under its
control sufficient equipment and trained personne! to provide rescue
services in the area designated in Exhibit A and further that Rescue
Squad shall obtain all necessary permits, ficenses and shall comply
with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders
which would affect its operation within the scope of this agreement
and shall pay all charges in connection therewith.

Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department shall respond to all calls
designated as ALS (Advanced Life Support), MVA (Motor Vehicle
Accidents) with injuries or Structure Fires within the area designated
in Exhibit A. Following initial assessment on scene, Rescue Squad
Command may cancel Town of Salem Fire/Rescue Department Fire
Apparatus and Ambulance or may have them continue as non-
emergency, provided however, that Town of Salem Fire/Rescue

' Department paramedics shall go to the scene of ali such calls and

shall be involve in patient assessment in order to make a
determination whether the call classification may be downgraded. All
ALS transports shall be made with a Town of Salem Fire/Rescue
Department paramedic. ALS transports may be made in Rescue
Squad or Town of Salem Fire/Rescue ambulance with first
consideration be given to transport in a Silver Lake Rescue Squad
ambulance.

2, TITLE TO EQUIPMENT AND PROCEEDS. Rescue Squad shall at all times
retain title to all equipment and property provided under the terms of this
agreement and under no circumstances shall the Rescue Squad’s officers
or members be considered employees or agents of the Town. Rescue
Squad shail have sole discretion in the allocation and deployment of its
resources, including all equipment and personne! and shall be responsible



for providing personnel for each call received. All proceeds received by
Rescue Squad in the course of its provision of rescue services as provided
in this agreement shall vest in and remain the property of Rescue Squad,
with the exception of calls designated as ALS (Advanced Life Support), MVA
(Motor Vehicle Accidents) with injuries or Structure Fires. The transporting
department shall be responsible for patient billing and payment, upon
collection, shall be evenly divided between the departments.

MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS. Rescue Squad shall have the authority to
enter into mutual aid agreements with other fire and rescue departments
calling for mutual aid and assistance, provided any such agreement shall
contain a clause that such aid on the part of Rescue Squad shall be
rendered only in the event that the rescue services called for under the terms
of this agreement in the area described in Exhibit A attached hereto will not
be adversely affected. Any charges or expenses related to mutual aid
required by Rescue Squad shall be at Rescue Squad's expense,

RECORDS. Rescue Squad shall supply reports and records upon request
in writing and in keeping with the standards set by the State of Wisconsin.
Financial records shall be presented by Rescue Squad in the form of a
budget indicating disbursement of funds received from The Town for the
current year under the terms of this agreement and a proposed budget for
the expenditure of such funds for the coming year. Budgets will be prepared
by Rescue Squad personnel and shall be presented to The Town no later
than November 1 each year.

COMPENSATION. As and for compensation for the services and facilities
furnished pursuant to the terms of this agreement, Rescue Squad shall
annually receive from The Town the sum of $15,000.00 for rescue services.

RISKS AND INSURANCE. Ali risks of fire, criminal theft, liability, personal
injury, property damage, and worker's compensation remain with Rescue
Squad. Rescue Squad shall provide its own insurance coverage and shali
file with The Town certificates of insurance indicating the required insurance
policies are in full force and effect.

TERM. This agreement shall remain in effect from and after January 1, 2006
until terminated as provided herein, The agreement may be terminated upon
one hundred eighty (180) days written notice by either party. If the
agreement is terminated at request of the Town prior to the end of the
calendar year, the Town shall compensate the Rescue Squad a prorated
portion of the calendar year of the full amount and fifty (50) percent of the
balance from the time of termination to December 31 of the contract year.
The agreement may be amended by written consent of both parties at any
time.



8. NOTICE. All notices shall be sent by registered or certifled malil to the party
to be notified at the following addresses or at such other address as either
party shall designate in writing:

Town of Salem Silver Lake Rescue Squad, Inc.
P.O. Box 443 P.O. Box 776
Salem, WI 53168 Silver Lake, W1 53180

Executed as of the date first set forth above.

Silver Lake Rescue Squad, Inc. Town of Salem

By:@ W%;LL ) cx’%{’ By:\i){:&/)’\/}@ \{\S %Mt

Diann D. Tesar, Town Chaiman

C:\Documents and Settings\mslover. FIRERESCUE.C00WMy Documants\Fire & EMS committee\Department Operations\Siiver Laka
Rescue Agr 11 09 05,wpd
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AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into by and between GANDER
MOUNTAIN, INC., a corporation located at Wilmot, Wisconsin (hereinafter referred to
as "Gander Mountain"), the TOWN OF RANDALL, a municipal body (hereinafter
referred to as "Randall”), the TOWN OF SALEM, a municipal body (hereinafter
referred to as "Salem"), and SALEM UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2, a town utility district

(hereinafter referred to as the "District™);
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the District, under the general supervision and control of Salem,
operates a sanitary séwer system within the boundaries of the District in the Town of

" Salem: and

WHEREAS, Gander Mountain is a corporation with offices located on Highway W
in the Town of Randall and is desirous of connecting its sanitary sewer system to the
District's sanitary sewer system by means of a private sewer extending along Highway W
from its lands to the presently existing sewer at Wilmot, Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, Gander Mountain is located within the sewer service area of the
District as established by the areawide plan; and

WHEREAS, Salem and the District are prepared to permit the connection of the
Gander Mountain sanitary sewer system to the District's sanitary sewer system on the
terms and conditions herein set forth; and

WHEREAS, Randall is desirous of having the District extend sanitary sewer
service to Gander Mountain on the terms and conditions herein set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein
contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Salem and the District agree that Gander Mountain may connect its sanitary
sewer system to the District's sanitary sewer system at the southemmost existing manhole
located in Highway W at Wiltiiot, Wisconsin, Such connection shall be by a private sewer
Tine exteriding from Gander Mountain property in and along Highway W to the point of
conriection, to be installed by and at the ¢ost of Gander Mountain.

2. The private sewet line extension shall be installed in accord with plans
prepared by the Gander Mounitain and approved by the District, Randall, and the state
agency with jurisdiction over the same, Such plans shall meet the construction
requirements which the District imposes on such construction within the District.



a. Prior to construction of such private sewer line extension, Gander
Mountain shail submit such plans to the District and Randall for their respective reviews
and approvals. Such reviews and approvals shall be completed promptly. If not
disapproved within thirty (30) days of submittal, the plans shall be deemed 1o have been

approved by the District and Randall.

b. All such construction shall be subject to the ordinances, rules,
regulations and permits of Randall and the District. In the event of conflict in the
requirements of Randall and the District, the most stringent requirements shall govern.

c. All such construction shall be subject to inspection by the District,

' 3.  After the installation of the private sewer line extension by Gander
Mountain, but not later than one (1) year after completion of such installation, Gander
Mountain shall assign all its right, title and interest in and to such private sewer line to th
District, after which such private sewer line extension shall become a part of the
District's public sanitary sewer system. Thereafter, the District shall have the full
responsibility for the maintenance of such sewer line extension. Prior to such assignmen
of rights and interest by Gander Mountain to the District, however, Gander Mountain
shall be solely responsible for the proper and timely care, operation and maintenance of
the said private sewer line in conformance with all applicable governmental laws
(including, but not lirnited to, the ordinances, rules and regulations of the District,

Randall and Saler).

4, As acondition to connecting to the District's sewer system, Gander
Mountain agrees as follows:

a.  Gander Mountain shall pay to the District the standard connection
charge currently imposed by the District as a precondition to connection to the District's
sewerage system.

~b.  Gander Mountain shall pay to the District all user charges imposed
by the District from time to time for sewer service; provided, however, that Gander
Mountain shall have all legal rights granted to it by law to object to and appeal the
reasonableness of the rates imposed upon it in proceedings before duly authorized courts
and/or admiriistrative agencies.

c. In the event Gander Mountain shall fail to pay the user charges
imposed upon it by the District when due, the District may take legal action to recover
the same and, in addition thereto, at the request of the District, Randall shall levy an
amount equal to such unpaid charges as a special charge against the real estate of Gander
Mountain which received such sewer service. Such special charges shall be levied and
collected by Randall pursuant to Section 66.60 (16), Wis. Stats., and shall constitute 2 lien
upon such real estate as therein provided. Randall shall remit such charges so collected tc

the District.



5. The parties hereto agree that after the private sewer line extension installec
heréunder has been transferred by Gander Mountain to the District as provided in
paragraph 3 hereof, the following shall pertain:

a. The District and Randall shall require the owners of real property
located adjacent to the said sewer line to connect to the sewer line, if such connection
would be required under the applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the District
and Salem for properties located in the Town of Salem. Upon the request of any such
property owner so required to connect to the sewer line, Randall may, in its sole
discretion, grant to such real property owner a time period of up to one (1) year after th
date of the said transfer of the private sewer line to the District in which to complete suc

connection. .

b. Gander Mountain shall pay for the cost of installing sewer laterals
from such sewer line to presently existing buildings which, because of proximity to such
sewer line, are required to be connected to such sewer line by ordinances of Salem and/c
Randall in thé form in effect as of the date of this agreement. Such lateral installations
shall be done pursuant to contract let by Gander Mountain covering all such installations
As a coridition of such installation, the property owner or owners shall authorize the
contractor to enter upon the premises as reasonably required to install such lateral.
Gander Mountain shall inform the property owner or owners of the availability of a
lateral for connection. Gander Mountain shall not have any liability (a) to connect the
building plumbing and sewer to the lateral installed hereunder by Gander Mountain, (b)
to extend the lateral around the building to be serviced, (¢) to abandon any on-site

_sewerage systems, or (d) to pay for any connection charge or charges for the connection
of such building to the séwer system. The property owners shall bear such
responsibilities.

c. In the event a property owner who is entitled to a lateral installation
hereunder desires to install his lateral or to install the same at a later date, Gander
Mountain shall only be responsible for the actual cost of such work, but in any event, not
more than the cost which Gander Mountain would have been obligated to pay to its
contractor for such work, As a precondition to payment of such costs, the property
owner shall submit the contractor's proposal for such work to Gander Mountain for
review and approval prior to such work being done,

d. Gander Mountain shall have no responsibility to pay for any part of
the cost of lateral installation to buildings for which construction begins subsequent to thi
agreement or for buildings which are not required by ordinarice to be connected to the
sewer line extension installed by Gander Mountain hereunder.

e.  Allsuch parties connecting to the sewer line extension shall be
customers of the District. Gander Mountain shall have o responsibility with respect to

3-



the providing of sewer service to such properties or the maintaining of the sewer line or
laterals installed by it hereunder,

f. Randall shal! adopt such ordinances and resolutions as may be
necessary to:

1) Make applicable to all users/customers
connected to the said sewer line the ordinances,
resolutions, rules and regulations that may from time
to time be adopted by Salem and/or the District in
goveming, regulating and operating the District's
municipal sanitary sewerage system;

2) Allow the District to exercise its rights, duties

and responsibilities in the future operation,
maintenance and repair of the said sewer line; and

3) Collect for the District and/or Salem, in a same
and similar manner as described in sub-paragraph
4(c) abave for collections from Gander Mountain,
any delinquent user charges dnd/or other delinquent
costs due the District from the users/customers
connected to the said sewer line. (The District shall
othierwise be solely responsible for directly billing
and collecting user charges or other costs from the
usersfcustomers.)

Al such ordinances and resolutions shall be adopted by Randall in such form that
they are in effect in the District at the time that the sewer line extension becomes

operational,

| 6. . Except for the connecticns contained in the approved plans described in
Paragraph 2 above for sewer service to Gander Mountain, and except for any connection:
required of any adjacent property owners along the said sewer line as described in

subparagraph 5(a) above, there shall be no other connections to the said sewer line
installed by Gander Mountain hereunder without the prior written consent of Salem and

Randall,

7. Gander Mountain shall reimburse Salem and/or the District for all of its
administrative, legal and engineering costs reasonably incurred by them with respect to
the negotiation and construction of the private sanitary sewer lines described herein.

8.  This agresment shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their successors
and assigns. =



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this agreement to be executed ¢

of the 3¢™_day of _Alov. , 1992,

GANDER MOUNTAIN, INC,

By: 7&@/«9/
Attest: %ﬂéq’ g—///:ﬁ%

TOWN OF RANDALL

By it K st/

Town Chaitifian

TOV;/N OF SALEM ,
By: 2 j{/"’“Q""] A

Town Chainv@'n u ._

Town Clerk

CAttest

SALEM UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2
(By the Town Board of the Town of
Salem, acting ag its Commissioners)

< «

By:

- To lerk
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AGREEMENT FOR THE
TREATMENT OF
SANITARY SEWERAGE
This agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement”), effective as of December
31,'1993, is made and entered into pursuant to Wis, Stat. § 66.30 by and between the
following municipalities:
a) THE TOWN OF SALEM UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 2, being a utility district
duly organized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, with its main offices located
at 28737 Wilmot Road, Trever, Wisconsin 53179 (hereinafier referred to as

"Salem"); and

b} THE TOWN OF BRISTOL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 4, being 4 utility
district duly organized under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, with its main offices
located at 8301 198th Avenue, Bristol, Wisconsin 53104 (hereinafter referred to as

"Bristal™),

Introduction
Salem is the owner and operator of a municipal sanitary sewerage system located
adjacent to Bristol. The sanitary sewerage that is received by Salem from its collection
system is treated at its treatmient facility located at 28737 Wilmot Road, Trevor, Wisconsin
(hereinafter referréd to as the "Treatment Facility™).
Bristol is the owner and operator of a municipal sanitary sewerage system having a
service area (hercinafter referred to as "Service Area) which ) has a legal description as

contained in attached Exhibit A (such Exhibit A being hereby incorporated herein by



reference), and (ii) is depicted in the map attached hereto as Exhibit B (such Exhibit B being

hereby incorporated herein by reference).
The sanitary sewerage that is received by Bristol from its collection system is

transferred to Salem through a sanitary sewer main connection to Salem’s collection system,
and Bristol's sanitary sewerage, so transferred to Salem’s collection system, is then treated
by Salem at Salem’s Treatment Facility,

Salem receives and treats Bristol's sanitary sewerage pursuant to a written agreement
previously eatered into by both parties, such written agreement being dated December 12,
1983, Salem and Bristol are entering into this present Agreement for the purpose of

replacing such agreement of December 12, 1983.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE ABOVE-NAMED PARTIES, IN CONSIDERATION OF

THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND PROMISES CONTAINED HEREIN, HEREBY

AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE
JREATMENT OF SANITARY SEWERAGE
L.l. Introduction. The foregoing *Introduction” is true and correct, and such
Introduction (along with all exhibits referred to therein) is hereby incorporated herein by

reference.

1.2. Treatment of Sanitary Sewerage, Salem shall receive into its collection system

and treat at its Treatrmient Facility the sanitary séwerage of Bristol. Bristol’s sanitary



sewerage shall be delivered to Salem’s collection system through the sanitary sewer main
presently connecting the two municipal sanitary sewerage systems, such point of connection
being at manhole number 1.4 located at the intersection of 216th Avenue and 117th Court in

the Lake Shangri-La Beach Subdivision, in Kenosha County, Wisconsin.

1.3,  Specific Service Area. The sanitary sewerage delivered by Bristol to Salem
under this Agreement shall only be the sanitary sewerage originating from and generated by
the customers 6f Bristol's municipal sanitary sewerage systerm located within Bristol’s Service
Area (such Service Area being described in attached E;thibits A and B). The Service Area of
Bristol shall not be enlarged or modified without the prior written consent of Salem (which

consent may be granted or withheld in Salem’s sole discretion).

1.4. Limitations on Sewerage Received. The sanitary sewerage delivered by Bristol

to Salem under this Agreement shall comply with the specifications stated in attached Exhibit

C, such Exhibit C being hereby incorporated herein by reference.

ARTICLE
RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF BRISTOL
2.1, Qperation of Bristol's System. Bristol shall, at its own cost and expense,

conistruct, opérate aid malntaln its municipal sanitary sewerage system. This shall include,

but not be limited to, the obligation on the part of Bristol to install, construct, maintain,



repair and/or replace all of the sanitary sewer mains and other related components which are

located within Bristol’s Service Area and which comprise Bristol's sanitary sewerage system.

2.2, Compliance with Applicable Laws. Bristol shall construct, maintain and

operate its municipal sanitary sewerage system in full compliance with all applicable
governmental laws, rules and regulations. This shall include, but not be limited to, () all
applicable laws, rules and regulations of the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources, and (ii) all ordinances of the Town of Salem, as may from time to time be
adopted, which establish reasonable regulations or standards for the construction,

maintenance and/or use of Salem’s sanitary sewerage system,

2.3.  Construction Approval by Salem. Prior to constructing and/or modifying any

portion of the sanitary sewer miains or other related components which comprise Bristol’s
sanitary sewerage system, Bristo] shall first obtain the written approval of Salem of the
engineering and/or construction plans, drawings, diagrams and specifications for the project.
No construction shall commence until such approval is obtained from Salem, During the
course of construction, Bristo! shall give to Salem full and adequate opportunity to inspect
such construction work, if Salem so desires, to determine that the same is being done in full
compliance with this Agreement ::md the project information submitted by Bristol for Salem’s
approval. (This right of inspection on the part of Salem, however, shall not relieve Bristol
of its obligation for supervising and inspecting all such work, and Salem shall not assume
any Liability or responsibility for any érrors and/or failures 6f construction merely because of



Salem’s exercise of its inspection rights granted hereunder.) Bristol shall reimburse Salem
for any costs reasonably incurred for the review of the project information submmitted by

Bristol for Salem’s approval and for Salem’s inspection of such construction work,

This provision shall not govern inspections of construction or repair of laterals or
sewer connectlons by customers of Bristol, which inspection shall be the sole responsibility
of Bristol and for which Bristol shall provide by ordinance applicable to customers of Bristol.
Salem may conduct inspections of construction or repair of Jaterals or sewer connections by
customers of Bristol, and Salem shall bear the cost of any such inspection, provided however
that customers of Bristol need not apply to both Bristol and Salem for approval of
construction or repair of laterals or sewer connections, but need only apply to Bristol, which
shall consider the advice and recommendations of Salem, in addition to-the provisions-of this

Agreement, in determining whether to approve any such application.

2.4. Adgption of Ordinances. The Town of Bristol sha]l adopt such ordinances and
resolutions as may from time to time be reasonably required to (i) enable Bristol to operate
its municipal sanitary sewerage system in full compliance with all applicable laws (iacluding,
but not limited to, the applicable ordinances adopted by the Town of Salem as described in
above Sectiori 2.2 of this Agreement), and (ii) enable the parties to this Agreement to

exercise their rights, duties and obligations contained in this Agrecment,



2.5, Inflow/Infiltration. Bristo! shall take all steps reasonably required to prevent
any materially harmful inflow or infiltration of clear water into Bristol's sanitary sewerage

system, and in any event shall not exceed the maximum level of inflow/infiltration of clear

water that is specified in attached Exhibit C.

ARTICLE TII
RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF SALEM
3.1. Operation of Salem's System. Salemi shall, at its own cost and expense,
construct, operate and maintaln its municipal sanitary scwerage system as necessary to
perform its obligations under this Agreement. This shall include, but not be limited to,
operating and maintaining Salem's collection system and Treatment Facility as the same
pertain to the transportation and treatmeént of the sanitary sewerage being received from

Bristol under this Agreement.

3,2, Inspection of Brstol’s System. In addition to the construction inspection rights

given to Salern 'u'ndcr this Agreement in above Section 2.3, Salem may, should it so desire
and at Salem's own cost and expense, take steps to monitor, inspect and/or test the sanitary
sewer mains and other related components of Bristol's sanitary sewerage system to ensure
that the same conform a.nd_onmpl},r with the termas of this Agreement and all applicable

governmental laws,



ARTICLE IV
PAYMENTS DUE SALEM

4.1, Parity With Salem Customers. Bristol shall pay to Salem an emount of money

equal to the charges and fees which would be payable by the customers of Bristol's municipal
sanitary sewerage system if such Bristol customers were instead the direct customers of

Salem’s municipal sanitary sewerage system. This shall include, but not be limited to:

a) Sewer service charges (which are presently based on a user charge equivalent
(UCE) or unit charges established for each customer based on that customer's

potenfial for discharge into the system); and
b) Connection fees.

Bristol shall be solely responsible for recovering from its own customers through its own

billings such amounts payable hereunder to Salem.-

4.2. Time of Payment. The charges and fees payable by Buistol to Salem as

described above shall be paid as follows:

a) Connection fees shall be pald prior to the customer cornecting to the collection

system.



b) Sewer service charges and any other fees shall be paid on a calendar quarterly
basis. Salem shall at the end of each calendar quarter preseat to Bristol an itemized
statemnent of such charges, and Bristol shall within Fifteen (15) Days of its receipt of

such statement pay such charges to Salem,

4.3, Coordinated Bfforts. Bristol shall promptly give notice to Salem of any
changes in the number and/or type of customers that are discharging sanitary sewerage into
Bristol's municipal system, and Bristol shall provide to Salem such other information as may
be reasonably required by Salem to establish the charges and fees payable by Bristol to

Salem under this Agreement.

ARTICLE V
ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT

5.1. Definition of Default. A party shall be in default under this Agreement if such
party fails to remedy or cure any failure of performance or compliance within Thirty (30)
Days after receimg from the other party a written notice describing such failure of
performance or compliance. In the event the remedy or cure for such failure, other than the
failure to pay money, is of such a nature that it cannot reasonably be completed within such
thirty day time period, then a party shall be in default under this Agreement if such party (i)
fails to commence the remedying/curing of such failure within Thirty (30) Days after |
receiving from the other party written notice of the same, and (ii) further fails to theceafter

proceed with such remedying/curing of the said failure(s) with due diligence.

-8~



5.2. All Remedies Available, Upon default, the nondefaulting party shall have

available to it all remedies available under the law.

5.3. Emergency Action. In the event any act of omission or commission on the
part of either party in the operation dnd/or maintenance of its municipal sanitary sewerage
system creates an imminent threat to the health, safety and welfare of the customers of the
other party’s municipal sanitary sewerage system, including without limitation the proper and
lawful operation of Salem’s Treatment Facility, then the other party may immediately and
without any prior notice take such steps as are reasonably necessary to remedy of cure the

failure or defect, all at the cost and expense of the party that creates the imminent threat.

ARTICLE V]
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS
6.1, Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed, controlled, interpreted

and construed by and under the laws of the State of Wisconsin.

6.2. No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed
to be the language chosen by the parties hereto to express their mutual intent, and the rules

of strict construction will not be applied against any party.

6.3. Ameddmeénts. This Agiéement may be modified only by a written amendmient

sigiied by all parties,



6.4. Conflict With Other Taws. In the event any terms or provisions of this

Agreement are in conflict with any laws and/or the requirements of any grani(s) or loan(s)
received by either of the parties from the State of Wisconsin and/or the United States of
America (or from any of their departments or agencles), then the parties to this Agreement

shall in good faith renegotiate such conflicting terms and provisions in an effort to resolve

such conflict.

6.5. Temm of Apreement. This Agreement shall continue indefinitely in full force

and effect unless and until it ig either terminated or amended, which in either case requires

written agreement signed by both parties.

6.6, Notices. Any notices required to be given under this Agreement by any party
to the other party shall be in writing, and shall be delivered to such other party either by (i)
personal service, or by (if) certified mail in a posipaid envelope addressed to such other party
at the address specified on the first page of this Agreement, or to such other address as may,

from time to time, be designated in writing by the parties hereto.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-named parties, through their duly authorized

undersigned officers, have caused this Agreement to be executed this 27 deay of January,

1594,

Town Board of the Town of Salem, acting
as the Commissioners of the Town of
Salem Utlhty District No. 2

————as ‘..—.._—.,

< f* . [ o
of d A
By, R_,Q)-* \-’—\

[4 .i

Shirley Bdening  \
Town Chairman

’ ,,,,-—\

Attesfe.__3 ﬂ’ e =t m
Antonette C. Seitz
Town Clerk

%
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Town Board of the Town of Brstol, acting
as the Commissioners of the Town of
Bristol Utility District No. 4

Aud:ey Van' §
Town Chairman

Attest: ,g/ﬁx--t
Gloria L. Bailey
Town Clerk

.
/



Attachment A

Lake Shangri-La Area
Sewsr Utility District No. ¢
Town of Bristol, Kenosha County, Wisconsin

Description of lands comprising Sewer Utllity District No. 4, located in the
Northwest Quarter of Saction 31, Town 1 North, Range 21 East of the Fourth
Principal Meridian, Town of Bristol, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, described as

follows:

Beglnning at the Northwest corner of Section 31; thence Zast along the
North line of Section 31 and thae centerlina of 166th Street {County Truni
Highway V) a dlstance of 1636.19 feet more or less to the Northeast
cornar of f.ake Shangri-La Beach 2nd Addition, Document No. 280196,
recorded on August 33, 1945 in Volume 8 of Platg, pages 74, 73 and 76;
thence South along the East line of Lake Shangri-La Beach Znd Addition a
distance of 2642.316 feet to a point on the South line of the Northwest
Quarter of Section 31 and the Southeast.corner of Lake Shengri~La Beach
2nd Addition; thence Wast along the South line of the Northwest Quarter
of Section 31 and the South line of Lake Shangri-lLa Beach 2nd Additlon a
distance of 621.3 feet more or less to the shere of Lake Shéngri-La;
thence Northerly and Westerly along the shore lina of Lake Shangri-La to
the West liné of Section 31; thence North along the West line of Section
31 a distance of 465 feet more or less to the point of beginning.

EXHIBIT _A
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EXHIBIT

‘The sanitary sewerage delivered by Bristol to Salem shall be within the following
limits and parameters;

1, The sanitary sewerage shall be normal domestic strength wasiewater,
discharged from single-family residential dwellings, and shall not exceed the following

limits:

a) BOD 200 mg/L or less

'b)  Suspended Solids 240 mg/L or less

c) Phosphorous 10 mg/L or less

d) TKN 50 mg/L or less

e) Ammonia 25 mg/L or less
2.  Infiltration and inflow of clear water into the collection system shall not
exceed Two Hundred (200) Gallons per day per each diameter inch of sewer main
per each mile.

3. The volume of the sanitary sewerage delivered by Bristol to Salem shall not
exceed Oné Hundred (100) Gallons per person/occupant in the Service Area per
day.
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provided in s, 8.37. Ifan advisory referendum is held, the munici-
pality’s goveming body may not vote to approve the agreement
under sub. (2) until the report under par. (d) is filed.

(b} The advisory referendum shall be held not less than 42 days
nor more than 72 days after adoption of the resolution under par.
(a) calling for the referendum or not less than 42 days nor more
than 72 days after receipt of the petition under par. (a) by the
municipal clerk. The municipal clerk shall give notice of the ref-
erendum by publishing a notice in a newspaper of general circula-
tion in the municipality, both on the publication day next preced-
ing the advisory referendum election and one week prior to that
publication date.

(¢) The advisory referendum shall be conducted by the munici-
pal election officials. The governing body of the municipality
may specify the number of election officials for the referendum,
The balltots shall contain the words “For the revenue sharing
agreement” and “Against the revenue sharing agreement” and
shall otherwise conform to the provisions of s. 5.64 (2). The elec-
tion shall be conducted as are other municipal elections in accord-
ance with chs. 6 and 7, insofar as applicable.

(d) The election inspectors shall report the results of the elec-
tion, showing the total number of votes cast and the numbers cast
for and against the revenue sharing. The election inspectors shall
attach their affidavit to the report and immediately file the report
in the office of the municipal clerk.

(e) The costs of the advisory referendum election shall be
borme by the municipality that holds the election.

History: 1995 a.270; 1999 a. 150 5. 72; Stats, 1999 5. 66.0305; 1999 2 182s. 202,

66.0307 Boundary change pursuant to approved
cooperative plan. (1) DeriNITioNs. In this section:

(a) “Department” means the department of administration.

(b) “Municipality” means a city, village or town.

(2) BOUNDARY CHANGE AUTHORITY. Any combination of
municipalities may determine the boundary lines between them-
selves under a cooperative plan that is approved by the department
under this section. No boundary of a municipality may be
changed or maintained under this section unless the municipality
is a party to the cooperative agreement. The cooperative plan shall
provide one or more of the following:

(a) That specified boundary line changes shall occur during the
planning pericd and the approximate dates by which the changes
shall occur.

(b} That specified boundary line changes may occur during the
planning period and the approximate dates by which the changes
may occur, :

(c) That a required boundary line change under par. (a) or an
optional boundary line change under par. (b} shall be subject to the
occurrence of conditions set forth in the plan.

(d) That specified boundary lines may not be changed during
the planning pericd. )

(3) CooPERATIVE PLAN. (a) Who may prepare plan. The
Municipalities that propose to set the boundary lines between
themselves under this section shall prepare a cooperative plan.

(b} Purpose of plan. The cooperative plan shall be made with
the general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated,
adjusted and harmonious development of the teritory covered by
the plan which will, in accordance with existing and future needs,
best promote public health, safety, morals, order, convenience,
Prosperity or the general weifare, as well as efficiency and econ-
omy in the process of development.

(c) Content of ptan; physical development of territory. The
cooperative plan, and any accompanying maps, plats, charts and
descriptive and explanatory materials, shall show the plan agreed
Upon for the physical development of the territory covered by the
Plan. The plan may include, without kimitation because of enu-
Meralion, any of the following:

L. The general location, character and extent of streets, high-
ways, freeways, street grades, roadways, walks, bridges, viaducts,
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parking areas, tunnels, public places and areas, parks, parkways
and playgrounds.

2. Sites for public buildings and structures, airports, pierhead
and bulkhead lines and waterways.

3. Routes for railroads and buses.

4. The general location and extent of sewers, water conduits
and other public utilities, whether privately or publicly owned.

5. The acceptance, widening, narrowing, extension, reloca-
tion, removal, vacation, abandonment or change of use of any of
the public ways, grounds, places, spaces, buildings, properties,
utilities, routes or terminals described in subds. 1. to 4.

6. Historic districts.

7. The general location, character and extent of community
centers and neighborhood units,

8. The general character, extent and layout of the replanning
of blighted districts and slum areas.

9. A comprehensive zoning plan.

{d) Content of plan; boundaries and services., The cooperative
plan shall: .

1. Idemify any boundary change and any existing boundary
that may not be changed during the planning period.

2. Identify any conditions that must be met before a boundary
change may occur.

3. Include a schedule of the period during which a boundary
change shall or may occur.

4. Include a statement explaining how any part of the plan
related to the location of boundaries meets the approval criteria
under sub. (5) {c) 4. and 5.

5. Describe the services to be provided to the territory covered
by the plan, identify the providers of those services and indicate
whether the provision of any service has received preliminary
approval of any relevant governmental regulatory authority.

6. Include a schedule for delivery of the services described
under subd. 5.

7. Include a statement explaining how provision under the
plan for the delivery of necessary municipal services to the terri-
tory covered by the plan meets the approval criterion under sub.
(50 3.

8. Designate the municipalities that are participating in the
cooperative plan and that are required to ratify any boundary
changes by enacting an ordinance under sub. (10).

(dm) Content of plan; environmental consequences and hous-
ing needs. The cooperative plan shall:

1. Idemtify any significant adverse consequences to the natu-
ral environment, including air and water pollution, energy use,
development outside compact urban areas and contribution to
urban sprawl, that may be caused by the proposed physical devel-
opment of the territory covered by the plan.

2. Demonstrate that each participating municipality has con-
sidered alternatives to the proposed physical development of the
territory covered by the plan, in order to minimize or avoid signifi-
cant adverse environmental consequences, including those under
subd. 1., and include in the plan a description of the alternatives
considered.

3. If the physical development of the territory covered by the
plan is subject to federal environmental laws or regulations, state
laws or state environmental rules, describe how compliance with
the laws, regulations or rules will be achieved.

4. Address the need for safe and affordable housing to meet
the needs of diverse social and income groups in each municipal-
ity that is participating in the preparation of the plan.

5. Include a statement of why the cooperative plan meets the
approval critedion under sub. (5) (c) Sm.

(¢) Content of plan; comparibility with existing law. The coop-
erative plan shall describe how the plan s consistent with current
state and federal laws, county shoreland zoning ordinances under
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s. 59,692, municipal regulations and administrative rules that
apply to the territory affected by the plan.

{(f) Content of plan; planning period. The cooperative plan
shall specify the duration of the proposed planning period, which
shall be for a period of 10 years, except that the duration of the pro-
posed planning period may be for a period greater than 10 years
if a duration greater than 10 years is approved by the department

(8) Content of plan; zoning agreement. The cooperative plan
shall include all agreements under sub. (7m).

(h) Existing plans may be used. A cooperative plan may be
based on, contain elements of or duplicate any existing plan for the
same territory.

(4) PROCEDURE FOR ADOPTING COOPERATIVE PLAN. (a) Autho-
rizing resolution. Each municipality that intends to participate in
the preparation of a cooperative plan under this section shall adopt
a resolution authorizing participation in the preparation of the
plan. Notice of each resolution shall be given in writing, within
5 days after the resolution is adopted, to all of the following:

1. The depariment, the department of natural resources, the
department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection and the
department of transportation,

2, The clerks of any municipality, school district, technical
college district, sewerage district or sanitary district which has any
part of its territory within 5 miles of a participating municipality.

3. The clerk of each county in which a participating munici-
pality is located.

4. Any county zoning agency under s. 59.69 (2) or regional
planning commission whose jurisdiction includes a participating
municipality,

(b) Public hearing. At least 120 days after adoption under par.
(2) of the last resolution by a participating municipality and at least
60 days before submitting a cooperative plan to the department for
review and approval under sub. (5), the participating municipali-
ties shall hold a joint hearing on the proposed plan. Notice of the
hearing shall be given by each participating municipality by class
3 notice under ch, 985,

(¢) Camment on plan. Any person may comment on the plan
during the hearing and may submit written comments before, at
or within 20 days following the hearing. All comments shall be
considered by each participating municipality. A county zoning
agency under s. 59.69 (2) or regional planning commission whose
jurisdiction includes any participating municipality shall com-
ment in writing on the plan’s effect on the master plan adopted by
the regional planning commission under s. 66.0309 (9), or devel-
opment plan adopted by the county board or county planning
agency under s, 59.69 (3), and on the delivery of municipal ser-
vices, and may comment on any other aspect of the plan. A county
in the regional planning commission’s jurisdiction may submit
comments on the effect of the cooperative plan on the master plan
adopted under s. 66,0309 () and on the delivery of county ser-
vices or on any other matter related to the plan.

(d) Adoption of final plan. 1. Subject to subd. 2., after the pub-
lic hearing under par. (b) and consideration of comments made on
the proposed cooperative plan, the plan panticipants may revise
the plan in response to the comments and may, by. resolution
adopted by each participating municipality, adopt a final version
of the plan.

2. If within 30 days after the public hearing under par. (b) a
petition opposing the plan, signed by a number of qualified elec-
tors equal to at least 10% of the votes cast for governor in the
municipality at the last gubematorial election, is filed with the
clerk of a participating municipality, the final version of the plan
may be adopted in that municipality only by an affirmative vote
of three-fourths of the members of the municipality’s governing
body who are present and voting. The petition shall conform to
the requirements of s. 8.40.

(e) Advisory referendum. 1. Within 30 days after adoption of
a final plan under par. (d), the governing bedy of a participating
municipality may adopt a resolution calling for an advisory refer-
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endum on the plan. An advisory referendum shall be held if,
within 30 days after adoption of the final plan under par. (d), a peti-
tion, signed by a number of qualified electors equal to at least 10%
of the votes cast for govemnor in the municipality at the {ast guber-
natorial election, is filed with the clerk of a participating munici-
pality and as provided in s. 8.37, requesting an advisory referen-
dum on the cooperative plan. The petition shall conform to the
requirements of s. 8.40. -

2. The advisory referendum shall be held not Iess than 42 days
nor more than 72 days after adoption of the resolution under subd.
1. calling for the referendum or not less than 42 days nor more than
72 days after receipt of the petition by the municipal clerk. The
municipal clerk shall give notice of the referendum by publishing
a notice in a newspaper of general circulation in the municipality.
both on the publication day next preceding the advisory referen-
dum election and one week prior to that publication date.

3. The advisory referendum shall be conducted by the munici-
pal election officials. The governing body of the municipatity
may specify the number of election officials for the referendum.
The ballots shall contain the words “For the cooperative plan” and
“Against the cooperative plan" and shall otherwise conform 1o the
provisions of s. 5.64 {2). The election shall be conducted as are
other municipal elections in accordance with chs. 6 and 7, insofar
as applicable.

4. The election inspectors shall report the results of the elec-
tion, showing the total number of votes cast and the numbers cast
for and against the cooperative plan. The election inspectors shall
attach their affidavit to the report and immediately file the report
in the office of the municipal clerk. The election inspector shall
file a certified report of the resulls in the office of the clerk of each
municipality that is a party to the cooperative plan,

5. The costs of the advisory referendum election shall be
bome by the municipality that holds the election.

() Submirtal of final plan to deparnnent. If no advisory refer-
endum is held under par. (e), the plan padticipants may submit the
final version of the cooperative plan to the department for
approval under sub. (5) at least 60 days but not more than 180 days
after the public hearing under par. (b). If an advisory referendum
is held under par. (e), each participating municipality shall deter-
mine, by resolution, whether to submit the final version of the
cooperative plan te the department for approval under sub. {5).
The resolution shall be adopted within 60 days after the last advi-
sory referendum is held. If any of the plan participants fails or
refuses to approve submittal of the cooperative plan to the depart-
ment, the plan may not be submitted, Any written comment
received by a participating municipality on any version of the
cooperative plan shall be submitted to the department at the time
that the cooperative plan is submitted. If the cooperative plan is
nat submitted to and approved by the department, it may not be
implemented under this section by any of the participating munic-
ipalities.

(5) DEPARTMENT REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF LOCAL OR COOPER-
ATIVE PLAN. (a) Generally. The department shall make a written
determination of whether to approve a cooperative plan within 90
days after receiving the plan unless the department and the parties
to the plan agree to a longer determination period. The department
shall consider written commenits on the plan received by a munici-
pality under sub. (4) (c) that is submitted to the department under
sub. (4) {f) or from any other source. The department may request
information relating to the cooperative plan, including any com-
prehensive plan or land use plan currently being utilized by any
participating municipality, from that municipality, and from any
county or regional planning commission. The department may
seek and consider comments from any state agency on whether the
cooperative plan is consistent with state laws and administrative
rules under the agency's jurisdiction. Any state agency requested
to comment on a cooperative plan shall comply with the request.
The department shall issue its determination of whether to
approve the cooperative plan in writing, supported by specific
findings based on the criteria under par. (c). The approval or dis-
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approval of a cooperative plan by the department under this sec-
tion is not a contested case, as defined in s. 227.01 (3), for pur-
poses of ch, 227,

(b) Hearing. Any person may request a public hearing before
the department on a cooperative plan submitted to the department
for approval. A request for a public hearing shall be in writing and
shall be submitted to the department within 10 days after the coop-
erative plan is received by the department, If requested, the
department shall, and on its own motion the department may, hold
a public hearing on the cooperative plan. If requested to hold a
public hearing, the department is required to hold only one hear-
ing, regardless of the number of requests for a hearing, Any public
hearing under this paragraph shall be held in a municipality that
is a party to the cooperative plan,

(c) Approval of cooperative plan. A cooperative plan shall be
approved by the department if the department determines that all
of the following apply:

1. The content of the plan under sub. (3) (c) to (e) is sufficient
to enable the department to make the determinations under subds.
2, to 5m.

2. The cooperative plan is consistent with current state laws,
municipal regulations and administrative rules that apply to the
territory affected by the plan,

3. Adequate provision is made in the cooperative plan for the
delivery of necessary municipal services to the territory covered
by the plan.

4. Any boundary maintained or any boundary change under
the cooperative plan is reasonahly compatible with the character-
istics of the surrounding community, taking into consideration
present and potential transportation, sewer, water and storm drain-
age lacilities and other infrastructure, fiscal capacity, previous
political boundaries, boundaries of school districts and shopping
and social customs.

5. The shape of any boundary maintained or any boundary
change under the cooperative plan is not the result of arbitrariness
and reflects due consideration for compactness of area. Consider-
ations relevant to the criteria under this subdivision include quan-
tity of land affected by the boundary maintenance or boundary
change and compatibility of the proposed boundary maintenance
or boundary change with natural terrain including general topog-
raphy, major watersheds, soil conditions and such features as riv-
ers, fakes and major bluffs. .

5m. The cooperative plan adequately identifies and addresses
the significant adverse environmental consequences to the ratural
environment that may be caused by the proposed physical devel-
opment of the territory covered by the plan, the municipalities
submitting the plan have adequately identified and considered
alternatives to minimize or avoid the significant adverse environ-
mental ¢onsequences, the proposals in the plan for compliance
with federal environmental laws or regulations and state environ-
mental laws or rules are adequate and the need for safe and afford-
able housing for a diversity of social and income groups in each
community has been met,

6. Any proposed planning period exceeding 10 years is con-
sistent with the plan.

(d} Return and resubmittal of plan. The department may return
a cooperative plan, with comments, if the departinent determines
that the cooperative plan, if revised, may constitute a pian that can
be approved by the department. If a cooperative plan is returned
under this paragraph, each participating municipality may revise
the plan, as directed by the department, adopt the revised plan by
resolution and resubmit the plan to the department within 90 days
after the plan is returned. After receiving a resubmitted coopera-
tive plan, the department shall make a determination on approval
within 30 days.

(6) BINDING ELEMENTS OF COOPERATIVE PLAN, Ifa cooperative
Plan is approved by the department under sub, (5) or an amended
Plan is approved under sub. (8), provisions in the plan to maintain
existing boundaries, the boundary changes in the plan, the sched-
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ule for those changes, the plan for delivery of services and the
schedule for those services are binding on the parties to the plan
and have the force and effect of a contract.

(7) OTHER BOUNDARY PROCEDURES. (a) Other procedures
after hearing, After the joint hearing under sub. (4) () is held, no
other procedure, except the procedure under s, 281.43 (Im), for
altering a municipality’s boundaries may be used to alter a bound-
ary included in the proposed cooperative plan under sub, (3) (d)
1. until the boundary s no longer included in the proposed cooper-
ative plan, the municipality withdraws from the proposed cooper-
ative plan or the proposed cooperative plan fails to receive
approval from the department, whichever occurs first,

(b) Otker boundary procedures during the planning period.
During the planning period specified under sub. (3) (£), no other
procedure for altering a municipality’s boundaries may be used to
alter a boundary that is included in the cooperative plan under sub.
(3) (d) 1., except if an annexation is conducted under s. 281.43
(Im), regardless of whether the boundary is proposed to be main-
tained or changed or is allowed to be changed under the plan.
After the planning period has expired, the boundary may be
altered.

(7m) ZoNING IN TOWN TERRITORY. If a town is a party to a
cooperative plan with a city or village, the town and city or village .
may agree, as part of the cooperative plan, to authorize the town,
city or viliage to adopt a zoning ordinance under s, 60.61, 61.35
or 62.23 for all or a portion of the town territory covered by the
plan. The exercise of zoning authority by a town under this sub-
section is not subject to s. 60.61 (3) or 60.62 (3). If a county zoning
ordinance applies to the town teritory covered by the plan, that
ordinance and amendments to it continue until a zoning ordinance
is adopted under this subsection. If a zoning ordinance is adopted
under this subsection, that zoning ordinance continues in effect
after the planning period ceases until a different zoning ordinance
for the territory is adopted under other applicahie law. This sub-
section does not affect zoning ordinances adopted under ss.
59.692, 87.30 or 91.71 to 91.78.

(8) AMENDMENTS TO COOPERATIVE PLAN. (a) Authority fo
amend plan. A cooperative plan may be amended during the plan-
ning period if all the parties to the plan agree to the amendment and
if the amendment is approved by the department.

(b) When full procedure required. Anamendment to a cooper-
ative plan that proposes to change a municipality's boundary or to
change the approved planning period shall follow the same proce-
dure as that required for an original plan,

{¢) When expedited procedure may occur, An amendment to
a cooperative plan that does not propose to change a boundary or
the planning period shall follow the same procedure as that
required for an original plan except that the hearing under sub, (4)
(b) is not required unless objection to the amendment is made in
writing by any person to the clerk of a participating municipality.
An amendment under this paragraph shall be adopted by resolu-
tion of each of the participating municipalities, Notice of the
amendment and adopting resolution shall follow the procedures
specified in sub, (4) (a). Notice that the amendment will be sub-
mitted directly to the department unless objection is made in writ-
ing shall be given by each participating municipality by a class 3
notice under ch, 985. If no written objection to the amendment is
received within 7 days after the last required notice is published,
the amendment may be submitted direcily to the department for
approval, If written objection is timely made, the public hearing
and other requirements under sub. (4) (b) and (c) apply.

(9) COURT REVIEW OF DEPARTMENT DECISION, The decision of
the department under sub. (5) (c) or (d) or (8) to approve or not to
approve a cooperative plan or an amendment to a plan is subject
to judicial review under ch. 227.

(10) BOUNDARY CHANGE ORDINANCE; FILING AND RECORDING
REQUIREMENTS. A boundary change under a cooperaiive plan shall
be accomplished by the enactment of an ordinance by the govern-
ing body designated to do so in the plan. The filing and recording
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requirements under s, 66.0217 (9) (a), as they apply to cities and
villages under s. 66.0217 (9) (a), apply to municipalities under this
subsection, The requirements for the secretary of state are the
same as those required in s. 66.0217 (9) (b).

(11} TivE FOR BRINGING ACTION, No action to contest the
validity of a cooperative plan under this section or an amendment
{0 a cooperative plan, regardless of the grounds for the action, may
be commenced after 60 days from the date on which the depart-
ment approves the cooperalive plan under sub, (5) or the amend-
ment under sub. (8), respectively. No action refating to com-
pliance with a binding element of a cooperative plan may be
commenced fater than 180 days after the Failure to comply.

History: 1991 a 269, 1993 a 213, 301, 329, 399; 1995 a 35, 201, 216, 227; 1997
a.27, 35,1999 a 1505, 67; Stats, 1959 5. 66.0307; (9092 132 s, 159; 2001 a_30.

66.0309 Creation, organization, powers and duties of
regional planning commissions. (1 ) DeFNITIONS, In this
section; .

(a) “Goveming body” means the town, village or county board
or the legislative body of a city.

(b) “Local governmental units™ or “local units” means cities,
villages, towns and counties,

(¢} “Population” means the population of a local unit as shown
by the last federal census or by any subsequent population esti-
mate under s. 16.96,

(2) CREATION OF REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSIONS. (a) A
regional planning commission may be created by the governor, or
a state agency or official as the govemor designates, upon petition
in the form of a resolution by the governing body of a local gov-
emmental unit and the holding of a public hearing on the petition.
If the petition is joined in by the governing bodies of all the local
units in the proposed region, including the county board of any
county, part or alt of which is in the proposed region, the governor
may dispense with the hearing. Notice of any public hearing shall
be given by the governor by mait at least 10 days in advance to the
clerk of each local unit in the proposed region.

(b) If the govemor finds that there is a need for a regional plan-
ning commission, and if the goveming bodies of local units within
the proposed region which include over 50% of the population and
equalized assessed valuation of the region as determined by the
last previous equalization of assessments, consent to the forma-
tion of such regional planning commission, the governor may
create the regional planning commission by order and designate
the area and boundaries of the commission’s jurisdiction taking
into account the elements of homogeneity based upon, but not lim-
ited to, such considerations as topographic and geographic con-
formations, extent of urban development, the existence of special
or acute agricultural, forestry, conservation or other rural prob-
lems, uniformity of social or economic interests and values, park
and recreational needs, civil defense, or the existence of physical,
social and economic problems of a regional character.

(c) Teritory included within a regional planning commission
that consists of one county or less in area also may be included in
the creation of a multicounty regional planning commission. The
creation does not require that the existing regional planning com-
mission consisting of one county or less in area be terminated or
altered, but upon creation of the multicounty commission, the
existing commission shall cease to have authority to make charges
upon participating local governmental units under sub. (14) and
shall adopt a name other than “regional planning commission”.

(2m) LiMITATION ON TERRITORY. No regional planning com-
mission may be created to include territory located in 3 or more
uniform state districts as established by 1970 executive order 22
dated August 24, 1970. Any existing regional planning comumis-
sion which includes territory located in 3 or more uniform state
districts shall be dissolved no later than December 3 1, 1972,

(3) COMPOSITION OF REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSIONS, (a)
The membership composition of a regional planning commission
which includes a city of the first class shall be as follows:

1. One member appointed by the county board of each county,
part or all of which is initially within the region or is later added.

2. Two members from each participating county shall be
appointed by the govemor. At least one appointee shall be a per-
son, selected from a list of 2 or more persons nominated by the
county board, who has experience in local government in elective
or appointive offices or who is professionally engaged in advising
local governmental units in the fields of land—use planning, trans-
portation, law, finance, engineering or recreation and natural
resources development. The governor in making appointments
under this subdivision shall give due weight to the place of resi-
dence of the appointees within the various counties encompassed
by the region.

3. The secretary of commerce or a designee shall serve as a
nonvoting member of each regional planning commission orga-
nized under this section.

{b) For any region which does not include a 1st class city. the
membership composition of a regional planning commission shall
be in accordance with resolutions approved by the governing bod-
ies of a majority of the local units in the region, and these units
shall have in the aggregate at least half the population of the
region. For the purposes of this determination a county, part or all
of which is within the region, shall be counted as a local unit, but
the population of an approving county shall not be counted. In the
absence of the necessary approval by the local units, the member-
ship composition of a commission shall be determined as follows:

1. For regions which include !and in more than one county
par. (a) shall apply. .

2. For regions that include land in only one county, the coin-
mission shalt consist of the following:

a. Three members appointed by the county board.

b. Three members appointed by the governing bedy of each
city, village and town in the region having a population of 20,000
or more. If there is no city, village or town having a population of
20,000 or more, the govemor shall appoint one member from each
city, village or town with a population of 5,000 or more within the
region. All governor appointees under this subd. 2. b, shall be per-
sons who have experience in local government in elective or
appointive offices or who are professionally engaged in advising
local governmental units in the fields of land-use planning, trans-
portation, law, finance or engineering.

¢. Three members appointed at large by the governor. All
govemor appointees under this subd. 2. c. shall be persons who
have experience in local government in elective or appointive
offices or who are professionally engaged in advising local gov-
emmental units in the fields of land-use planning, transportation,
law, finance or engineering,

(¢} Terms of office for regional planning commission members
shall be as follows:

1. If the composition of the commission is approved by local
units under par, (b), the terms shall be as prescribed in the resolu-
tions of approval.

2. For members of all other commissions the term is 6 years
after the initial term. At the first meeting of the commission it shall
be determined by lot which of the initial members shall have 2, 4
and 6-year terms, respectively, and each group shall be as nearly
equal as may be.

(d} All regional planning commission members shall be elec-
tors of the state and reside within the region.

(4) COMPENSATION: EXPENSES. A per diem compensation may
be paid members of regional planning commissions, This shall
not affect in any way remuneration received by any state or local
official who, in addition to serving as a state or local official,
serves also as a member of the regional planning commission. All
members may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred as
members of the commission in carrying out the work of the com-
mission,
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emorandum

To: Jeff Davidson

From: Tim Popanda

Date:  8/29/2007

Ra: Self help, Affordable housing

I have researched and personally counted the
current number of self help homes in the Village
of Paddock Lake. That number is 168 single
family dwellings constructed under the HUD self
home project, administered by southeastern
nsin Housing Corp. from the late 1970’s
gh 1995. The affordable homes represent
oximately 14% of the village dwelling units.







11
Recommended by Village Plan Commission:
january 21, 2005

Adopted by Village Board:

Vandewalle & Associates April 20, 2005

Madison, Wisconsin




ORDINANCE NO. 552

AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
OF THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE, WISCONSIN.

The Village Board of the Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows:

SECTION 1. Pursuant to sections 60.22(3) and 62.23(2) and (3) of Wisconsin Statutes, the
Village of Paddock Lake is authorized to prepare and adopt a comprehensive plan as defined
in sections 66.1001(1)(2) and 66.1001(2) of Wisconsin Statutes.

SECTION 2. The Village Board of the Village of Paddock Lake has adopted and followed
written procedutes designed to foster public participation in evety stage of the preparation
of a comprehensive plan as required by section 66.1001(4)(a) of Wisconsin Statues.

SECTION 3. The Plan Commission of the Village of Paddock Lake, by 2 majority vote of
the entire Commission recorded in its official minutes, has adopted a resolution
recommending to the Village Board the adoption of the document entitled “VILLAGE OF
PADDOCK LAKE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN,” containing all of the elements specified
in section 66.1001(2) of the Wisconsin Statutes.

SECTION 4. The Village of Paddock Lake has held at least one public hearing on this
ordinance, in compliance with the requirements of section 66.1001(4)(d) of Wisconsin
Statutes, and provided numerous other opportunities for public involvement per its adopted
public participation strategy and procedures. '

SECTION 5. The Village of Paddock Lake has tesponded to each of the comments received
on the Comprehensive Plan and those changes are documented in a memorandum to the
Village Board, dated March 25th, 2005, which is attached to this ordinance.

SECTION 6:; The Village Board of the Village of Paddock Lake, Wisconsin, does, by
enactment of this ordinance, formally adopt the document entitled, “Village of Paddock
Lake COMPREHENSIVE PLAN,” pursuant to section 66,1001(4)(c) of Wisconsin Statutes,
as modified in the manner specified on the memorandum to the Village Boatd dated March
25™, 2005.

SECTION 7 This ordinance shall take effect upon passage by a majority vote of the
members-elect of thg Village Board and publication/posting as required by law.

Adopted this 20 day of Agr-l, 2005.

David Buehn, Village President

Attest:

y

Monii) Madik

Doris Raditz, \fi]lage Glbrk
Published/Posted on: O{y.f 85,200,

LY.



To:  Village of Paddock Lake Village Board
From: Makela Mangrich, AICP
Date: Friday March 25, 2005

Re: Revised responses to cornments received on “Near Final” Draft of Comprehensive Plan

This memorandum reflects the Village Board’s desired changes to its Comprehensive Plan, hased on discussions at
the Public Hearing on March 16, 2005, and in response to the comments seceived on the “Near Final” Draft of the
Village'’s Comprehensive Plan. I have tracked the changes the Village Board suggested T make to the orginal
memorandum, dated March 16, 2005, so the Board can easily see what changes will be brought forward to the Final
Plan.

I recommend the Village Board adopt the Comprehensive Plan at its next regularly scheduled meeting, provided it is
comfortable with the following changes to the Plan. Once these changes are incorporated, VANDEWALLE &
ASSOCLATES will prepare twenty (20) final copies of the adopted Plan for distribution to the required parties, and for
the Village’s use.

SEWRYC Letter

Comment  Synopsis of Their Vandewalle & Associates Recommendation

Number Recommendation

ia. The Village and Towa should work Accept with modifications, Add to bulleted list under C.1 on
together to develop planned land Page 94 the following: “Develop planned Jand uses for areas of

uses within that portion of the the Town within the Village’s extratertitorial planning area™.
Town of Salem located within the
Village's ET] planning area

ib, Areas within the Town of Salem Accept with modifications. The Village does not object to
planned sewer service atea outside | urban uses within the Town of Salem. However, I would
pririary environmental comridors recommend vsing the Intergovernmental Agreement as the tool
should be designated for utban use | to resolve land use and sewer provision issues between the
on the Village plan. Town aad the Village. To that end:

Modify text for g on Page 21 and g. on Page 36 as follows
“Require new urban development within 1.5 miles of the Village
of Paddock Lake to be located with the Village’s planned
sanitary sewer service arca and the Village's corporate limits.
New urban development could alse be pemmitted within the

Town of Salem’s sanitary sewer service area pending approval of | Deleted: Modify the Planned Land Use

. /1 Map so that those areas within the Toun's
an mte’.’rgovc:rmnenta.l agreement between the Village and the | /| fofer service area ate designated as “woan
Town! : £ | reserve, with exact land uses detennied

A during intergovernmental agreement
Modify the Planned Land Use Map again after negotiations ogt :f::;o s bereeen =
Vandewalfe & Assoclates
120 East Lakestde Streei » Madison, Wisconsin 53715
508 255-3988 « 608 255-0814 Fax+ va@vandewaile.com

Planning = Creating » Rebuilding

L



Futare Jand uses to specify actual land use types, as described in
an adopted Intergovemnmentzl Apreement between the Town
and the Village.

3 Add paragraph explaining ET] Accept. Add to H.1. on Page 14, before last sentence :**This is
boundary agreement with the true for the Village except where the boundary ovetlaps with the
Village of Sitver Lake to Page 14. extraterditoral area for the Village of Silver Lake and where 2
mutually agteed-upon boundary has been negotiated and
accepted by both paties (see Map 1 and Page 91}.”
4a. Modify environmental corridor Accept as suggested.
definition to better reflect
SEWRPC’s definition.
4b. Show environmental comidors as a | Decline with caveat. Environmental comidors are shown as
solid color on Map 4 hatched to reflect the undedying planned land use category. 1
recommend modifying the hatch marks slightly to make their
representation on the map finer grained.
Sa. Modify discrepancy between land Accept as suggested.
use categories on Map 3 and those
listed on page 29 of Plan.
5b. Revise definition of “wetland” and | Acceptas suggested.
“woodland” on page 29
6. Resolve issue of detailed | Agree. Add to bulleted list under C.1 on Page 94 the following
neighborhood planning for ateas text: “Resolve conflicts between Town of Salem neighborhood
located in hoth the Town and plans for areas located in the Village’s planned growth areas to
Village planning areas through ensure effident planning for both judsdictions”.
intergovernmental agreement
negotiatons
1. Add a density range for “mixed Accept.
residential” and “planned .
neighborhood” land use categotes | Add to “Mixed Residential”, before last sentence: “Densities
to pages 38 and 39. may range from 6 to 14 units per acre, although exact densities
and height limits will be determined throngh zoning standards”,
Add to “Planned Neighborhood™ after last sentence of second
paragraph: “Housing densities are designed to be variable within
each of these Planned Neighborhoods, with some lower density
bomes (34 units per acre) as well as higher density housing
units, such as those descobed for the “mixed residential” land
use category. However, the overall net density of these Planned
Neighbothoods should ot exceed the densities found within,
the existing Village neighborhoods, typically between 4 and 3
units peracre.”
8. Addlangusge regarding the future | Accept. Add language to page 37, after £, as follows: “Work
modifications of the Village's sewer { with SEWRPC and WDNR to modify the Vilage Sanitary

Sewer Service Area to be fully consistent with the planned land

L QMSIOS, oo e Page 20f8
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service area uec recormmendations shown on Map 47
9a. Update floodplain Accept.
recommendations to reflect recent
updates and refinement by Remove parcathetical on Map 2 for floodplains.
SEWRPC in the Des Flaines
Watershed Plan. Modify Floodplains paragraph on page 19 to read as follows
“[n Wisconsin, floods are one of the most common types of
natural disasters and each year Wisconsin communities suffer
millions of dollars in flood damages. The Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) dlesignated floodplain areas in the.
State, SEWRPC _recently o dated aod_refined floodplain
mapping for the entire Des Plines River ‘watershed, which 7~
includes much of the Village and its EI], Floodplains are
areas, .. Although the Village does not have floodplain zoning, it
intends to adopt the floodplain boundaries described in the Des
Piaines River Plan and floodplain zoning to limit development
in floodplains.”
Also, add this recommendation to Figure 32 Implementation
Actions, under O rdinances” on Page 98 of the Plan.
9b. Adopt Des Plaines River Watershed | Accept, with caveat Add 2 recommendation on page 22 to
Plan, the floodplain mapping | wit
embodied in it, and foodphin
zoning regulations “Adopt the “Comprehensive Plan for the Des Plaines River
Watershed” and move forward with floodplain zoning. The
Village intends to adopt the SEWRPC plan entiled “A
Comprehensive Plan for the Des Plaines River Watershed” by
ordinance with the following exception. The Village intends to
exciude the paragraph on page 591 of Part Two regarding the
Village and Town of Bristo! investigating consolidation of
sewage treatment fadlitics. The Village intends to update their
zoning map and ordinance to correspond to recommendations
made in the Plan regarding their floodphins zoning regulations
and mapping to help prevent incompatible development within
the floodplain areas in the fatare” '
9c. Add entire extent of floodplain Accept, provided it is digitally avaiable. Recommend
mapping on Map 2 Vandewalle & Assodates requests these data for inclusion.
10a. Add planned arterial highways to | Accept.
Planned Land Use Map :
10b. Add/comect highway names on Accept. Recommend we add all those mentioned, except CTH
Map 4. SA, which is off the map.
10c. Modify the last paragraph on page Accept. Recommend we add language as specified.
50) to reflect moze updated ,
information regarding SEWRPC's
A Regional Transportation System

..--{ Deleted: gpicatly )
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2020

1. Add recommended bikeways along | Accept. Recomm end we add those planned facllities to Map 4.
CTH K and Des Plains River. .

12. Incarporate recommendations of A | Accept as follows:

Regional Natural Areas and Critical
Spedes Hahitat Protection and

an nt Plan for Sou te
Wisconsin in text and map form.

Add language to “Rare Species Qcecumences” paragraph on page
20 that mentions Silver Lake as supporting state-designated
threatened or endangered  fish species, and Hooker,
Montgomery, and Paddock Lake, Brghton Creek and Salem
Branch supporting state-designated special concem fish species.
Also mention presence of Blanchard’s cricket frog habitat area
northeast of the existing Village limits at the intersection of the
four Towns. Also reference SEWRPC’s patural areas plan at

end of paragraph.

Include 2 sepamte section entitled “Natural Areas” after
“Ecological Landscapes” paragraph and include a description of
the four natural areas and cument plans to acquire additiomal
property in each area.

Identify the location of these four natural areas, the habitat area
for the Blanchard’s Cricket Frog and the water bodies
supporting state designated endangered of threatened  fish
species, and spedial concern fish spedes on Map 2.

Enclosure | See document

Accept all suggested revisions except the following:

Page 17: 1 do not recommend adding A-1 zoning to Map 2
since this is an exsting natural featares map, not intended to
address zoning designations.

Pages 21 and 36: 1 world recommend the language be as I
stated it in 1b, above.

Map of Planned Land Uses (Map ) General industrial actually
includes landfills and quaries, so the legend is correct as is.

Page 94: 1 recommend C.1 read: “Limit development in areas
outside the Village's planned sanitary sewer service area and
outside the Town's sanitry sewer service area and within the

Villages ET].”

[y
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Kenosha County Letter

Comment
Number

Synopsis of Their
Recommendation

No recommended action

Vandewalle & Associates Recomm endation

N/A

3 Resolve Town of Salem
neighborhood planning and their
overlap into the Village's planned
growth areas through an
intergovernmental agreement.

Accept change. Already addressed  in  SEWRPC’s

recommendation 6 above.

4. Adopt the Des Plaines River
Watershed Plan and corresponding
floodplain mapping. Use to create
floodphin zoning standards.

Accept change. Alseady addressed in SEWRPC’s
tecommendations 9a and 9b above.

Town of Salem (Meehan & Company) Letter

Comment  Synopsis of Their
Number  Comment/ Recommendation

1 Feels that the 2.9% population
growth is too high, and mentions it is
inconsistent with SEWRPC’s

Vandewalle & Associutes Response/ Recommendation

No change recommended. We recopnize that this is
inconsistent, but we feel the 29% population projection, which
is what the Village actually expesienced between 1990 and 2000
The Village intentionally used the higher
growth rate to be prepared for the growth should it cccut, as
opposed to underestimating growth and not being prepared for
requirement for the Village to adopt Stte or

assumptions for the 2020 regional  |-is the most probable
fand use plan.
it. There is no
) SEWRPC growth projections.
2. Reminds the Village of the survey
results indicating 78.4% felt the
Village should oy to limit new

housing development.

No change recommended. “I'his was an issue throughout the
planning process. The Village residents do not necessarily waat
to encourage growth and development, but the Village should
be prepared to manage and shape the growth that occurs, and
an important first step in that is to map growth areas on a
planned kind use map. 1 addition, it should be noted that the
Planned Neighborhoods shown on Map 4 are not entirely
residential, but include some commerdial development, as well

3. Address how development will occur Accept change, This has been addressed already in SEWRPC's
«within the sewer service areas within | comments (see 1b}
the Towm.

4, Appears that o much development | No change recommended. We recognize that there is a large
is planned ' amount of land shown on the Planned Land Use Map. The

reason for this is to accommodate projected wban growth,

account for market realities that do not aborays allow 2

D OOMABIOS, e
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scller and willing buyer of land to be available at the same time, |
and to position the Village so that it is ready to accommeodate
growth over a potentially 2040 year timeframe. Moreover, on
page 37, the Plan recommends careful consileration of the
tirning of the Plan to ensure well-planned growth phasing,

5. Should identify conflicts between
Town and Village land use plans, and
describe processes to resolve such
conflicts, per State Smtutes.

Accept change. 1 recommend we add the following language
to page 92, after the first sentencer *“The Town lras an adopted
land use phn (amended in 1999) that recommends urban
development within the Town’s sewer service area, hut within
the Village's 1.5-mile ET] acea. Map 4 of this Plan identifies

some areas within the Town of Salem’s sewer service area as
eventually becoming part of the Village, and some areas
{generally south of CTH AH) as “urban reserve”, intended for
arban development. The Village intends to resolve the
discrepancies between the Town’s adopted land use plan and
Map 4 of this Plan though 20 interpovernmental agreement.
"The Village has adopted 2 resolution formally stating their desire
to and authorzing the Village's offidals and staff to pursue such
an agreement with the Town.”

1 also recommend the begioning of recommendaton C.1. on
page %4 read as follows: “Atternpt in earnest to enter into an
intergovermnmental agreement with the Tow of Salem. Due to
the conflicts between the Town’s adopted land use plan and
Map 4 of this Plan, and 2 variety of related conflicts, the Village
intends to enter into negotiations with the Town to adopt 2
lasting intergovernmental agreement that will wotk to the
benefit of both jusisdictions. The interpovernmental agreement
should accomplish the following objectives:.. 2

6 Take into account the Town’s

‘ various neighborhood area
delineations and the Town’s
neiphborhood plans that have been

Accept change. This has been addressed in SEWRPC's

comments (see 6), although I should add that the Village was

sot included in the detailed neighhorhood planning, and my

requests to sce such plans were not denied durng the Village’s

comprehensive planning process. In addition, the Vilage

invited the Town to, and then scheduled and funded the staffing
of an intergovemnmental discussion with the Town of Salem to

discuss such issues in October 2004 and there was not a single.
representative from the Town who attended.

would define half-acre lots as low-density  residential

No change recommended. I would not recommend
increasing the minimum lot size to almost a halfacre in size. 1

development, which is by and large undesinable in a sewered
subdivision to be built to urban standards. A 16,000 squuare-foot
lot size minimum is appropriate, gENerOUs, and adequate to
accommodate the style of- development desired within  the
Village.

prepared.

7. Take into account the Town’s typical
20,000 square-foot lot minimum area
requirement. ‘

8. Identify new park sites on Map 4.

No change recommended.' "The Vilage will be updating its
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan in 2005-2006 at

which time it will identify future park sites and fadilitieg needed

[ OOUIBOS, e
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for each.

9. Identify and specifically address Accept change per bullet point 5. above
existing conflicts and processes to be :
used to resolve each of those existing
conflicts.

10. Change date for pursuing an Accept change as stated.
intergovernmental agreement from
2007 to 2005.

Town of Salem (Kaempfer & Associates) Letter

Commtent  Synopsis of Their Vindewalle & Associates Recommendation
Number Recommendation

1 U?date municipal boundaries for 1 recommend we double-check that all munidpal boundaries are
Village. . .
cosrect at the time of Plan adoption.
2 %hﬂf}i distinction between the Change recommended.
own’s sewer service area and the
Town’s Uility District.
3 Recommend Village adopt Town Change not recommended. While we understand the absolute
land use plan and zoning regulations | necessity of ensuting adequate capadty of the wastewater
within Town of Salem Sewer managernent system to accommodate new development, it is
Service Area, and vice-versa. not in the Village's best interest to adopt at this time Town land
use plans nor its zoning regulations for areas within the Town of
Salemn’s sewer scrvice area. The Village should, however, work
out land uses and densities with the Town during
intergovernmental agreement negotiations.
That said, this important issue should be addressed in the Plan.
I recommend adding the following language 1o page 58, after
the Tast sentence: “The Town of Salem is in the process of
preparing a wastewater management plan as this Plan is being
adopted. The wastewater management plan includes areas | e )
within the Village’s planned growth areasy T on issues ;d,:gd to development d:min‘:s
g and and vse to ensure that the Toum's
4a, Should include language to indicate 2 states: o mﬁé{ﬁ‘?ﬁ&
a coopemtive agreement will be a_coopentive pgre gr sewerage requisements of the Vilage's
needed for the Southwestand - ens shown on Map 4 within the Town of Salem's sew K prowth aeas. Moreover, doser
Southeast Growth Areas, as well as | service area, mﬁ“ﬂ:g‘s‘w Bable
the Westside Growth Area. “.‘. requirements E‘iﬂh the Vilhge's current and
Y future sewer service areas.”
4b, Should indicate how the Villape will | No change recommended. The last sentence included in 3. ‘E{gteﬁg Change recommended as ]
provide sewer service to areas of the | above s adequate. suated 3
Town located in the Village of ,
Paddock Lake Sewer Service Area,

‘,{Feleted: 03725/05 _]




5.

Mentions that Map 4 shows
development occurming outside of
Hoth sewer service areas

As addressed in SEWRPC’s comments (See 8). The Plan rmlzr;;1
it very clear that no development will occur outside of an area

designated for sewer service.

Mentions that development shown
on Map 4 is in conflict with the
Sewet Service Area Plan and that
the Village’s plan recommends
development in the Town be
prevented.

“This is addressed in SEWRPC's comments (See 1aand 1h).

Mentions that the objective on page
21 is in conflict with the planned
land use map that shows
development in the Town of Salem
Sewet Service Area.

This is addressed in SEWRFPC’s comments (See 1a and 1b).

[V
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1. ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES

This chapter provides the baseline data necessary to develop a comptehensive undesstanding of the changes
taking place in the Village. It includes population, houschold and employment trends and forecasts, age dis-
tribution and education levels, and employment and income characteristics.

A. Purpose of this Plan

The purpose of this plan is to update the Village’s 1997 De-
velopment Plan and to bring the Village into comphiance with
Wisconsin’s 1999 Smart Growth planning legislation. By de-
veloping a comprehensive plan and using it as a basis for land
use decision-making, a community can improve its ability to
guide future development.

The Village of Paddock Lake has entered an era in which land
use issues are receiving increased attention from local officials
and the general public. This is due to the growing realization
that land use, cost of living, and quality of life are closely in-
rerrelated. Land use planning and development controls pro-
vide the best way of achieving optimum resuits in this rela-
tionship. In Wisconsin, the ability and commitment of local
jurisdictions and metropolitan regions to implement their
adopted plans varics significantly. The purpose of this docu-
ment is to strengthen the ability of the Village to implement
its own planning goals, and to improve its ability to cootdi-
nate its planning cfforts with other jurisdictions.

"The major planning themes discussed in the Plan include the
following:

s Identification of areas appropriate for development and
preservation over the next 20 years

= Land use types for specific areas in and close to the Vil-
lage;

u  Needed ransportation and community facilities to serve
future land uses;

»  Municipal services to current and future residents includ-
ing water, sewer, SO SEWer, roadways, sidewalks, po-
lice, fire, recreation, and protection to the environment;

s Village development authority and annexation powers
granted under State law;

= The Village's commitment to work with SEWRPC and
neighboring communities in its efforts to build a better
overall living environment for all of Kenosha County.

The Village of Paddock Lake recognizes that a better community can be built through the enactment of
propert development controls, This Plan provides the direction necessaty to assist the Village in future growth
and expansion without jeopardizing the quality of life, cconomic development, and aesthetic characteristics of

the community. In order to continue to provide guality services and maintain the high quality of life in the
Village, this growth must occut in 2 logical, well-planned manner.

e
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With urban and exurban development approaching from various directions, the past several years have seen 2
marked increase in the number and size of proposed residential developments in the Village. With this new
growth, a host of devciopment—rclatcd issues confront the Village and its neighboring communities. These
rssues are outlined in Section H: Key Planning Issues and Opportuaities.

“This Plan will act as a guide for identifying the type, Jocation, and density of that development based on
community goals, the carrying capacity of local land and infrastructure, and other measures of sound land use
planning. The Plan provides the Village with a road map that builds on past SUCCESSES and provides tools t©
create a better community. It contains goals, objectives, and policies that were developed to allow the Village
to expand and to meet its resident’s needs well into the future.

The remainder of this Comprehensive Plan contains the required clements referenced in the State “Smart
Growth” law. Each chapter begins with background information on the element (e.g., land use, transporta-
tion, economic development) followed by an outline of the Village’s policy desires related to that element and
ends with detailed recommendations for the element. The final chapter (Imp]ememation) provides recom-
mendations, strategies, and timelines to ensure the implementatdon of this plan.

ey
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B. Popuiation Trends and Forecasts

The Village of Paddock Lake is located in western Kenosha County, west of Interstate Highway 94 (IH %49
along State Trunk Highway 50 (STH 50). The Village is located near larger metropolitan areas along the Wis-
consin/Tlinois bordet, including Chicago, Milwaukee, Kenosha, and Racine and has access t0 other regional
highways including STH 83 and STH 75. Because of its location and excellent highway access, Paddock Lake
has become a sub-regional center for employment and housing, and for educational, recreational, municipal,
and transportation services. The STH 50 corridor has experienced significant commercial development dur-
ing the past ten years, and Paddock Lake serves as the commercial market center for both Village residents
and residents of surrounding communitics

Over the past thirty years, the Village has experienced steady population growth. Figure 1 shows the Village’s
census population from 1980 to 2000, and compares jt to historic populaton growth for nearby towns and
villages, Kenosha County, the seven-County SEWRPC service area, and the State. In 2000, the Village’s
population reached 3,012 residents according to the United States Burcau of the Cersus.

Much of this growth can be attributed to in-migration. Accotding to 2000 census data, about 18 percent of
the Village population (esided somewhere else in the County in 1995, about 19 percent resided in a different
County in Wisconsin, and 12 percent lived in a different State. These numbers are similar to in-migration
rates for the towns of Salem and Bristol, the Village of Silver Lake, and Kenosha County-

The Village’s growth rate between 1990 and 2000 was about 33 percent, greater than most of the surrounding
towns and the County, except the Town of Salem, which experienced an increase of 2,725 persons, COIre-
sponding to a 38.1% increase in that decade, All of the jurisdictions included in Figure 1 significantly out-
paced regional (SEWRPC) and statewide growth. The Village of Paddock Lake 2003 population estdmate,
prepared by the Department of Administration (DOA), was 3,076 persons.

Figure 1: Population Trends, 1980 - 2000

Pop. Change % Change
1980 1990 2000 (1990-2000) (1990-2000)

Village of Paddock Lake 2,207 2,262 3,012 750 33.2
Town of Salem 6,292 7,146 9,871 2,125 38.1
Town of Bristol 3,599 3,968 4,538 570 14.4
Village of Silver Lake 1,077 1,210 1,598 388 32.1
Kenosha County 123,137 | 128,181 | 149,577 21,396 16.7
SEWRPC 1764919 | 1,810,364 | 1,932,908 122,544 6.8
Wisconsin 4705767 | 4,891,769 | 5,363,075 471,906 9.6

Sources: U.S. Census of Population and Honsing, 1970 — 2000

Figure 2 shows the Village’s projected population in five-year increments over the next 23 years based on
forecasts prepared by DOA ‘n 2003. Forecasts for neighboring communities, the County, and the State are
Also shown. According to these forecasts, the Village’s populaton is projected to grow to 3,692 residents by
2020. Strong growth is forecast for the entire County during this pedod.

Expansion of the nearby metropolitan areas is driving much of this growth. Chicago’s commutet rail system,
METRA, now extends into the City of Kenosha, which is considered part of the greater Chicago region as
reflected in its inclusion in the Chicago Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). It also goes to the Village of An-
tioch. Many people from the surrounding area, including some from the Village of Paddock Lake, drive to
Antioch to take the METRA to Chicago- This is a transportation facility that has and will continue to place
strong development and growth demands on the Village of Paddock and surrounding towns.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 5
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Town of Salem

‘Town of Bristol

Kenosha County
SEWRPC

Wisconsin

Village of Paddock Lake
e ]

e
Village of Silver Lake
e

Figure 2:

DO
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to accommodate the 1990 to 2000 population growth scenario. This scenatio is consistent with previous Vil-
lage planning efforts, including the 2020 Facilities Plan adopted in 1997 to address wastewater treatment ca-

pacity.

C. Demographic Trends and Forecasts

The Village’s changing age structure has important implicatons for education, service, housing and transpot-
tadon needs, Overall, the population in paddock Lake has remained fairly young — only 8 percent of the
population is over 65 years old. Approximately 30 percent of the Village’s population is under 18. This is also
true of many of the surrounding towns, suggesting this area SUpports younger families. In 1980, the percent
of school age kids (under age 18) living in Paddock Lake was 28 percent, which is about the same proportion
reported in the 2000 census. The Village’s median age has increased during the past two decades, increasing
from 27.4 years of age in 1980 to 34.5 years of age in 2000, which is about the same as the County and
slightly younger than the State average. Given trends over the past 20 years, the Village will probably continue
to attract working-age residents. Figure 4 compares the Village’s age and sex distribution in 2000 with the
County and State.

Figure 4. Age and Gender Disiribuiion, 2000

Median Age %o under 18 % over 65 % Female

Village of Paddock Lake 34.5 29.9 8.0 48.7
Town of Salem . 34.9 29.6 8.2 49.3
Town of Bristol 38.6 25.9 12.5 50.8
Village of Silver Lake 35.0 30.5 101 49.8
Kenosha County 34.8 27.1 115 50.4
Wisconsia 36.0 25.5 - 1341 50.6

anree: .S, Census of Population and Housing, 2000

Between 2000 and 2020, Kenosha County’s age demographics are expected to change. The number of work-
ing-age people (20-64) and retirees (65+) is expected to increase steadily over the planning perod. The num-
ber of people in younger age groups (under 19) and is expected to increase more stowly (See Figure 3). The
Village will likely see similar patterns of increasingly oldet residents, and fewer younger people. This projected
change in age demographics has important planning jmplications for the future, and may help the Village de-
termine the approprate fme to begin planning for additional schools and senior housing.

I
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Figure 5: Kenosha County Age Cohort Forecasts, 2000 to 2020

2000 87,469
I e

2005 11,040 34,952 94,780 17,163
I SR BN

2010 11,411 34,659 101,698 17,910
J | Y

2015 12,239 34,261 107,389 19,735
I |

2020 12,638 35,971 110,458 22,626
D et A DA

% Change 2000 - 2020 26.3

Source: Wisconsin Departnsent of " Administraiion, 2003

D. Household Trends and Forecasts

cted household characteristics for Paddock Lake with the County and State, The Vil-

lage’s average houschold size was higher than both comparable populadons. The Village's average houschold
size dropped from 2.99 in 1990 to 2.84 in 2000. Despite this drop, Paddock Lake has a larger houschold size
Because the Village’s average household size has declined over the past 30 years,
s, it seems likely that it will continue to shrink

Figure 6 compares scle

than adiacent communities.
and because this trend pamﬂels that of state and national trend

over the planning period.

Figure &: Household Characteristic Comparisons - 2000

Total Total Average %, Single-person
Housing Units Houscholds Household Size househoid
Village of Paddock Lake 1,185 1,056 2.84 17.9
Town of Salem 3939 3,529 2.79 18.8
Town of Bristol 1,818 1,715 2.65 22.3
Village of Silver Lake 964 876 2.67 23.9
Kenosha County 59,989 56,057 2.60 25.5
Wisconsin 2,321,144 2,084,544 2.50 26.8

o
Toree: U.S. Census of Population and Housing, 2000

Assuming 2.9% average annual population growth and declining household size trends from 1990-2000 con-
tinue, the Village can expect to se¢ an increase of 1,243 households over the next 20 years, which represents a

jittle more than a doubling of current houscholds in the Village, The Town of Salem, according to Depart-

ment of Administragon household projections, is expected to add 1,888 new households over the same time
addock Lake, More information on

period, which may affect community services such as schools, within P’
household characteristics for Paddock Lake can be found in Chapter 6, Housing and Neighborhood Devel-

opment.
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Figure 7: Household Projections, 2005-2025

Households Projected Houscholds

2000 2005 2010 2015

Village of Paddock Lake* 1,056 1,237 1448 | 1,695 | 1,978 | 2,299
Town of Salen** 3,529 3,987 4453 | 4922 | 5401 | 5875 1,888
Town of Bdstol** 1,715 1,832 1053 | 2072 | 2195 | 2,313 481
Village of Silver Lake** 876 953 1030 | 1,108 | 1,187 | 1,265 312
Kenosha County** 56,057 50056 | 63,897 | 67,870 | 71,944 75,788 15,832

Sonree: *Assures 2.9% poputation gronth, which corresponds 1o 1990 1o 2000 growth rates. **Projections front Wisconsin Departaent of Administration, 2004

E. Education and Income Levels

Educational attainment is the highest degree or level of school completed, and is 2 variable used to assess 2
community’s labor force potential. Educational attainment differs by ethnicity, access to higher education,
employer expectadons and socioeconomic status. According to 2000 census data, almost 81 percent of the
Village’s population age 25 and older attained a high school-level education. For comparison, the high school
graduation rate for County was 83.5 percent and for the State it was about 85 percent. Approximately 14 per-
cent of this same age group in the Village had attained 2 college level education (bachelor’s degree of higher).

Another measure of a community’s economic well-being is median household income, According to 2000
census data, the Village’s median household income was $53,382 in 1999. For comparison, the median
household income reported for the entire County in 1999 was 346,970 and statewide it was 343,791, The Vil-
lage’s pet capita income was $20,621 in 1999. According to the 2000 census, about 33 persons age 15 ot
over (10.4 percent) were living below the poverty \evel. More information on the Village's income characteris-
tics is provided in Chapter Seven: Economic Development. )

E. Employment Characteristics

"The proximity of Paddock Lake to urban centers such as the Cities of Kenosha, Racine, Milwaukee, and sub-
urban Chicago provides 2 wide variety of employment opportunities for Paddock Lake residents. The major-
ity of employed Village residents are between the ages of 30 and 54, with slightly more men than women in
the labor force. There are quite a few workers under 30 as well (See Figure 8).

Perhaps a more interesting look at employment pattetns can be seen in Figure 9, which shows persons who
are not in the labor force. More women than men between the ages of 30 and 54 are opting out of the work
force, suggesting that women are choosing work inside the home in those years or other work that is not
categorized as “employment”. "This ts typically celated to at-home parenting. Likewise, mote women than men
are not in the workforce past retirement age, reflecting the trend for women to live longer than men, but also
suggesting that more older men than women choose to continue to be employed after retirermnent age.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 9
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Figure 8: Persons in Labor Force in the Village, 2000

= Male (911 iotat)

w Femata {139 total

Number in Labor Force

Figure 9. Persons Not in Labor Force in the Village, 2000

Male (221 total)
@ Female (411 tatal)

Number Not in Labor Force

%

Adopted: April 20, 2005



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

The largest proportion of the 1,608 employed persons living in Paddock Lake were employed in the manufac-
turing sector (25 percent), foliowed by the education, health and social services seCtors, which made up 17
percent of the labor force. Many of the local residents holding jobs within these sectors travel outside of Pad-
dock Lake for work.

Mote information on the Village’s employment characteristics is provided in Chapter Seven: Economic De-
velopment.

G. Results of Public Participation Efforts :

The Village of Paddock Lake has embarked on several public participation events to iavolve and educate pub-
lic officials and private citizens in the comprehensive planning process. The following is 2 summary of these
efforts, which will be used to guide the more detailed recommendations of this comprehensive plan.

1. Public Participation Plan
In January 2004, the Village Board adopted its Public Participation Strategy and Procedures. This
plan was developed to assure that citizens had a variety of opportunitcs and methods for receiving
information about and having input into the Village’s planning process and planning related issues.

2. Village Opinion Survey
In April 2004, the Village of Paddock Lake participated in 2 Village opinion survey. The purpose of
the survey was to obtain input from residents and properry ownets on local and regional land use
planning issues and their preferred approaches to addressing those issues. The survey was scnt to ap-
roximately one third of Village households, and 102 were returned. This resulted in a response rate
of 10.2% {a good return ratc is considered to be 20%). A summary of some of the most revealing in-
formation gathered from the survey resuits is as follows:

a. About 86% of the respondents indicated they were cither “Very Satisfied” or “Somewhat Satis-
fied” with Paddock Lake as 2 place to live. The remainder of the respondents provided the fol-
lowing reasons why they were either «“Somewhat Dissatisfied” ot “Very Dissatistied” with Pad-

dock Lake as a place to live:

»  Lack of sidewalks, streetlights, city water.

Strects are in poor condition and are too NATTOW.

®  Drainage problems.

»  Lack of home and propefty aintenance. Upkeep of homes is not adequate. Many areas
were considered unsightly, which respondents felt devalues those homes around them.

s Our ordinances need to be enforced — burning, unauthorized vehicles, property mainte-
nance.

s ‘Taxes are very high for the services offered, and people on fixed incomes.

» Disappointed in the quality of area schools. Respondents felt that there were too many chil-
dren in each class at Salem Flementary and at Central High School and that students are not
getting adequate education to prepare for the futare.

s Natural beauty has not been taken care of.

»  There is a need for more "kid friendly" areas. Parks are in need of equipment and upkeep.

b. Almost 67% of respondents felt the Village’s appearance was either “Average” or “Poor”.

c. The following statements received strong support from respondents, with over 75% stating they
either “Strongly Agree” or “Somewhat Agree” with them:

s Paddock Lake should promote the preservation of farmland and open spaces.
= Village tand use policies should be strengthened to better guide growth.
s Most new development should occur adjacent to areas that are already developed.

W
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»  The scenic beauty and rural appearance of Paddock Lake should be preserved through sign
and other appearance regulations.

»  paddock Lake should have better regulations to contral the appearance and enforce clean-up
of pootly maintained properties.

= Jris important to coordinate Paddock Lake’s future Jand use plans with surrounding towns
and cides.

4. 78.4% of respondents felt the “yillage of Paddock Take should try to limit the amount of new
housing development that occurs™.

e. 91% of respondents felr that it was either “Very important” or “Somewhat important” to ensure
a balance in the Village's tax base.

3. Village Visioning
The Village held a Community Vision Forum in May 2004 to ensure that this Plan is based on the vi-
sion of the Village residents. The Village was responsible for publicizing and encouraging partcipa-
tion in the meeting, Local residents were informed of these sessions through press releases, flyers,
and public service announcements on cable television. Approximately 20 people attended the Vision

Forum.,

Key Planning Issues Exercise

Participants were first asked to express their opinions about the region’s strengths, weaknesses, Op-
portunities and threass. Small groups then established community planning goals, or vision elements,
meant to guide the comprehensive planning process. The group developed the following consensus
vision statements, and then brainstormed methods for achieving the visions individually. Frequently
mentioned items included the need for an intergovernmental boundary agreement, additional
commercial tax base, more Jocal jobs and light industry, better management of residential
development, more trails and better access for pedestrians especially around the lake, and
more green space in developments. Others mentioned concerns over traffic and growth impacts
on the environment, lack of citizen support and concern, potcntial overcrowding at the high school,

‘housing affordability, and increased costs for community services for new developments.

Visual Preference Sutvey

Forum participants also viewed a seres of slides depicting images of development they would and
would not like to see in the Village. "They rated these images on 2 scale of -5 to +5, with -5 represent-
ing the least favorite image and 15 representing an image that was viewed most favorably. In general,
commercial developments rated highly if they incorporated:

s Natral building materials, such as wood, brick of stone;

*  Awnings, covered walkways, and other pedestrian amenites;

»  Piiched roofs, often multi-planed with pronounced gable sections;

* 1% to three story building appearance——with cach story being of “aormal” (ten to eighteen feet)
height;

s Snall to moderate commercial building footprint—n0 “mepga-box” retail buildings;

»  Articulated building fagades (protrusions and recesses in exterjor walls);

s Architectural details such as porches, arches, columns, dormer windows, and geomettic design
details in commercial buildings walls and windows;

»  Attractive landscaping.

T

Adopted: April 20, 2005



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

Figure 10: Highest-Rated (left) and Lowest-Rated (right) Commercial Images

Residential developments rated highly for many of the same reasons listed above, but no muld-family
buildings scored positively, and the highest rated duplex or townhome Wis just 1.0ona scale of -5 to
+5. As a group, single-farnily residential buildings scored higher. Participants rated highest a larger
home on a one-half acre lot with many trees (See Figure 11). The least popular images depicted
streetscapes with similatly designed homes, and front-protruding garages.

Figure 11: Highest-Rated (left) and Lowest-Rated (right) residential Images

4. Draift Comprehensive Plan Open House

The Village of Paddock Lake held an Open House in December, 2004 to review the Draft Compreben-

sive Plan. Approximately twenty five residents of the Village of Paddock Lake and the Town of Salem
listened to a presentation on the Plan, discussed exhibits with Village and Consultant staff members,
and asked questions about the Plan, Comment cards were distributed to participants, but no partici-
pant chose to return comment cards. In general, the attendees viewed the Plar favorably, asking
guestions about intergovemmenml cooperation with the Town of Salem, and the Planned Land Use
Map. Many people felt that the Planned Land Use Map showed an adequate amount of jand to ac-
commodate anticipated growth and development within the next twenty to twenty five years.

Iy -
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5. Public Hearing and “Near Final” Plan Review
The Village held a formal public hearing on the “Near Final” draft of the Village’s Comprehensive
Plan on March 16, 2005. Prior to this public hearing, and as part of the required State Statutes, coples
of the Plan were distributed to the following cntities:

»  Wisconsin Department of Administration

s \Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

»  Wisconsin Departient of Transportation

»  Town Clerks for Towns of Salem, Paris, Bristol, and Brighton
s Central High Schoot District of Westosha

»  Brighton Elementary School District

s Salem Grade School District

«  The Community Library, Salem Branch

s Kenosha County Planning and Development Department

»  Southeast Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission

In response, the Village received comments from Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Com-
mission (SEWRPC), Kenosha County, and the Town of Salem. These comments Were well-reasoned
and constructive suggestions for improvement, all of which were taken into consideration. The vast
majority of the suggested changes have been incorporated into this final Plan document.

H. Key Planning Issues and Opportunities

The Village of Paddock Lake currendy faces an array of planning opportanitics and challenges. The Compre-
hensive Plan for the Village will assist Paddock Lake in achieving its goals by establishing a framework to plan
for infrastructure needs, community character and cconomic development, and future housing needs. A
aumber of important planning :ssues have been identfied by residents and planning commiissioners at the
outset of the planning process, including:

s Identify and locate 2 new municipal water and sewer system by identifying the Village’s growth shed

2 Create a Village commercial center

s Identify the types of jobs desired and locate them

s Select the appropriate scale for commercial/retail development

= Consider types of development and their contribution to the community tax base

s Plan for mixed housing development

»  Promote edge development that is consistent with development in the surrounding towns

" Create process for dealing with “tear downs”, reconstruction and rebuilding along the lake and in the rest
of the community

= Address traffic concerns on State Highway (STH) 50

»  Preserve community character

1. Key Exiraterritorial Area Planning Issues
Extraterritorial planning involves guiding development o1 the Village’s periphery and on lands that
may someday be annexed to the Village. ‘According to Wisconsin Statutes, the extraterritorial jurisdic-
tion (ETJ) boundaries for a Village may be up to one-and-a-half miles from the Village limits. ‘This is
true for the Village except where the boundary overlaps with the extratertitorial arca for the Village
of Silver Lake and where 2 mutually agreed-upon boundary already has been negotiated and accepted
by both partes {See Map 1 and Page 91). The four ET] powers available to the Village include:

= ET] Planning: Villages may include their ETJ in planning documents adopted under Wisconsin
Statutes.

%
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»  ETJ Official Mapping: Villages have the right to include fands in their ETJ on their Official
Maps. The Official Map is a tool used to identify the location of current and planned public fa-
cilities, and can be used to prevent Structures from being effected on identified sites or assure
that subdivisions provide for planned facilities.

= ETJ Land Division Review: Villages have the ability to adopt land division/subdivision ordi-
nance provisions to approve of deny land divisions and subdivisions within their ETJs. ETJ land
division review authoriry may be used to require consistency with the Village’s Comprehensive
Plan and Official Map, ensure the proper design of the land division, and establish lot size or
density standards. Construction standards (¢.g: curb and gutter, sidewalk) can generally not be
imposed through this power.

s ET] Zoning: Villages have the ability to enact zoning authority with all or parts of their ET]s.
This authority has the effect of freezing town or County zoning in the selected area for between
rwo to three years. This provides an opporwnity for the development of a joint Village/Town
ET1] Committee to develop and adopt a4 permanent ETJ zoning ordinance and zoning map to
apply to the selected area. This authority dissolves after two years, unless extended for another
year by joint agreement of the Village and Town, of unless the ET} zoning ordinance and map
are adopted. If adopted, the town and village are then jointly responsible for making future zon-
ing decision in the selected ETJ area. ETJ zoning authority is usually exercised in 8 cooperative
way, or as a last resort if the other ETJ powers and intergovernmental discussions are ineffective
and critical zoning issucs ariscs.

"This planning process :dentified a desire to consider an intergovernmental agreement with the Towns
of Salem and Brstol. Such an agreement could:

s Identify “off limits” arcas for Village annexation;

= Identify growth boundaries for the Village;

»  Examine the larger regional context affecting extraterritorial planning issues;

»  Identify areas needed for detailed traditional neighborhood plans-~potentia]lj,r to be conducted
jointly with neighboring jurisdictions;

» Identify long-term rural holding areas and agricultural preservation criteria and preservation arcas
within the ET]J area.

2. Proximity to Metropolitan Areas

The Village of Paddock Lake’s proximity to the major metropolitan areas along the western shore of

Lake Michigan presents an array of planning issues and opporrunities. In recent decades, this small
Village, developed largely as a recreational lake area providing 2 retreat for working families, has be-
come subject to growing development pressures. This pressure is Jargely driven by the Village’s close
proximity to several growing metropolitan areas and access to regional transportation facilities. Re-
cently, the METRA extended commuter rail to the City of Kenosha and the Village of Antioch.
METRA may extend the line to the Village of Silver Lake, which would increase the demand for
growth in many of the surrounding jurisdictions, including the Village of Paddock Lake. As Paddock
Lake continues to grow, it is necessary that the Plan give clear guidance to residents, developers,
property OWners, and elected officials on the desired type, quality, density, and location of future de-
velopment.

3. Transportation
The Village of Paddock Lake is situated at the junction of STH 50 and STH 75. STH 50 provides
convenient east/west access berween the Village and the Village of Kenosha and STH 75 extends
north/south from the Village’s western boundary. In many respects, this important transportation in-
fraserucrure and the ease of access it provides has been the driver of growth for the Village. Because

of its Iocation, the Village is well positioned to take advantage of the economic opportunities these

R
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roadways provide. However, Paddock Lake must also plan carefully to assure future development re-
lated to these highways occurs in a manner consistent with resident’s vision for the Village and that
transportation capacity and efficiency is not negatively affected by development. More information
on transportation is included in Chapter Three: Land Use and Chapter Four: Transportation.

. Overail Goals, Objectives, and Policies

Each chapter of this comprehensive plan includes a sct of goals, objectives and policies which will provide
the vision and policy guidance that the Village Plan Commission, Village Board, Village residents and Jand-
owners, and other interested groups and individuals need to guide the future preservadon and development
of Paddock Lake over the next 20+ years.

Goals, objectives and policies are defined as:

= Goals arc broad statements that express general public priorities about how the County should ap-
proach development issues during the next 20+ years. These goals arc based on key issues, opportunities
and problems that affect the community.

¥  Objectives are more specific than goals and are usually attainable through planning and implementa-
tion activities. The accomplishment of an objective contributes to the fulfillment of a goal.

»  Policies arc niles or courses of action used to ensure plan implementation and to accomplish the goals
and objectives. The policies are intended to be used by decision-makers on a day to day basis.

On the following page is an overall vision and statement of goals to guide future preservation and develop-
ment in the Village of Paddock Lake over the 20-year planning period. Policics and programs that forward
these goals relevant to cach clement of this Plan are presented in subsequent chapters.
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Il. AGRICULTURAL, NATURAL, AND CULTURAL
RESOURCES

The Village of Paddock Lake is located in the Des Plaines River watershed, a resource rich area with
abundant natural features. This chapter contains a compilation of background data, goals, objectives, policies,
and recommended programs for agricultural preservation, natural resource conservation, and cultural re-
source protection, s required by §66.1001, Wisconsin Statutes.

A. Agricultural Resource Inventory

Agriculture has historically been an important part of the economy in the Paddock Lake area. The majority of
the land in and around the Village is classified by the U.S. Department of Agriculture and SEWRPC as na-
tional prime farmland (See Map 2). Land in Paddock Lake not falling under chis classification is listed as farm-
land of statewide significance.

Agricultural trends in Kenosha County mirror the State. Agricultural operatons are moving towards fewer,
but larger farms, on average. Overall, however, total farm acreages are declining in Kenosha County {Figure
12).

Figure 12: Farm Trends in Kenosha County, 1987 - 1997

Wisconsin Kenosha County
1992 1987 1992 1997
MNumber of Farms 75,131 67,959 65,602 505 420 388
Acres of Land in Farms 16,606,567 | 15,463,551 14,900,205 | 100,678 92,761 84,744
Average Size of Farms (Acres) 221 228 227 199 221 218

Souree: U.S. Department of Agricsitire, National Agriculiural Statistics Database 2004

This trend will likely result in the gradual urbanization of some areas with good soils that surround the cur-
rent urban arca—particularly in areas where sanitary sewer and public water can be provided at a reasonable
cost. In other areas, where the cost-effective provision of urban scrvices is not possible or desired, long-term
agricultural preservation is appropriate.

8. Natural Resource Inventory

Although the Village of Paddock Lake is faicly well developed, it is surrounded by signficant open space. The
surrounding patchwork of wetlands, woodlands, lakes and open space enhance the Village’s high quality of
life and make it a desireable location.

The natural resource base, especially the soils, slopes, wetlands, and floodplains, are crifical factors in local
planning decision making. Maintenance of these natural features is important for both the visual attracovness
of Paddock Lake and continued ecological integtity of the area. Knowing the location of these constraints can
help the Village avoid severe developmental or environmental problems that may be difficult and cosdy to
correct in the future, Map 2 depicts the Village’s key natural resources, SOme of which are described in more
detail below.

1. Landforms/Topography
The Village’s landforms and topography were sculpted by glaciers during the Wisconsin Age. These
glaciers created the genily rolling to level soils throughout the Village and the County. The terrain
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within the Village is relatively flat to rolling, with elevations ranging from 750 feet above sea level to
850 feet above sea level.

2. General Soils Information

Soil suitability is a key factor in determining the best and most cost-effective locatons for new devel-

opment. As defined by the United States Department of Agriculture, the soils in the Village of Pad-
dock Lake are almost exclusively in the Morley-Beecher-Ashkum association. The Morley series soils
in this association are generally well or moderately drained soils consisting of a thin silt mantel under-
Jain with clay to silty clay Joam. The Beecher and Ashkum series soils are typically pootly drained and
are comprised of a thin silt mantel with silty clay to silty clay loam subsoils. According to the US.
Soil Conservation Service, a1l three of these soil types have sevete to very severe limitations for on-
site (septic) sewage disposal systems due to the slow permeability and, in the case of the Ashkum and
Beecher series, the high water table. Although the Morley and Beecher series have low bearing capac-
ity and, for the Beecher soils, seasonally a high watet table, they present only moderate limitadons for
residential development. The Ashkum series has severe limitations for residential nse due to low
bearing capacity, high soil shrinking/swelling capacity, and a high water table. Of the three soil types,
the Morley series is most suitable for commercial and/or light industrial uses.

3. Drainage Basins
The Village of Paddock Lake lies in the Des Plaines River Watershed, which drains Kenosha and
Racine Counties in southeastern Wisconsin. The watershed is drained by approximately 69 miles of
perennial rivers and streams, including the Des Plaines River and its tributades: Jerome Creek, the
Kilbourn Road Ditch, Center Creek, Brighton Creek, and the Dutch Gap Canal. This watershed
fiows 133 miles in a southeast direction toward the Lllinois border. Within Kenosha County, the wa-
tershed serves five municipalities, including Paddock Lake,

4. Groundwater
Nearly all of the watet for domestic, commercial and industrial uses in Kenosha County is supplied
by groundwater. In the Village of Paddock Lake, groundswater is primarily used for domestic pur-
-poses, A recent study of the Village’s groundwater shows that the quality meets primary drinking wa-
ter standards. In certain locations in the Village, groundwater may have iron and manganese contents
in violation of sccondary drinking water standards. Both of these minerals can affect the taste of
drinking water.

In general, groundwater use has increased Countywide and throughout the region as urban areas con-
tinue to grow, requiring significant quantities of water for residential, commercial, and industrial vses.
This has resulted in a significant draw down of the local aquifer. To help alleviate pressure on the
groundwater supply and maintain good water quality, the Village has placed 2 moratorium on the de-
velopment of unsewered single-family residential units in its extraterritorial planning area.

5. Surface Waters
Paddock Lake is the most important surface water resource in the Village. Other significant surface
waters include League Lake, north of the Village, and Hooker Lake, Salem Branch Lake and Mont-
gomery Lake south of the Village. Hooker Lake and Paddock Lake feed into the Salem Branch tribu-
taty of the Des Plaines River. About 254 acres, almost 7 percent of the area within the Village limits,
is surface water. The Village has a Shoreland Protection Overlay District to protect shore vegetation
within 100 fect of the navigable waterways.

A Paddock Lake Inland Lake Protection and Rehabilitation District was formed in 1975. Lake Dis-
tricts are a special-purpose unit of government formed under Chapter 33 of the Wisconsin Statutes
to maintain, protect, and improve the quality of a lake and its watershed. The District may conducta

number of lake improvement activities, including:

I
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1) Studying existing water-quality conditions to determine the causes of existing or expected futare
water-quality problems;

2) Controlling of aguatic organisms and algac;

3) Implementing lake rehabilitation techniques, including aeration, diversion, nutdent removal of
inactvation, dredging, sediment covering, and drawdown;

4) Controlling nonpoint source poliution, and;

5) Creating, operating, and maintaining a water safety patrol unit.

6. Floodplains
In Wisconsin, floods arc one of the most common ypes of natural disasters and each year Wisconsin
communities suffer millions of dollars in flood damages. The Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) designated floodplain areas in the State. SEWRPC recently updated and refined
floodplain mapping for the entire Des Plaines River watershed, which includes much of the Village
and its ET].

Floodplains are arcas predicted to be inundated with flood waters in the 100-year storm event (€.g., 2
storm that has a 1% chance of happening in any given year). Development is strongly discouraged in
floodplains to avoid both on-site and up- and downstream property damage. The State requires
County and Village regulation of development in floodplains.

Although the Village does not have floodplain zoning, it intends to adopt the floodplain boundaries
described in the Des Plaines River Plan and to adopt floodplain zoning to limit development in
floodplains. In addidon, it has a Shoretand Protection Overlay District which regulates development
in some floodplain areas.

Map 2 shows the boundaries of mapped floodplains in the Village of Paddock Lake.

7. Weilands
Wetlands feature prominently in the Village’s landscape, comprising approximately 137 acres, ora lit-
tle over 8 percent of the Village. Many of the arex’s wetlands are contiguous to the lakes, although
some are somewhat more isolated.

“These wetlands are important for aquifer recharge, groundwater and surface water quality improve-
ment, and wildlife habitat, and serve social functions such as open space, recreation, and aesthetcs.
Historically, the greatest threats t© wetlands in the Village have been agricultural drainage and urban
development. Thousands of acres of hydric soils in the region have been drained and converted to
farmland o filled for roads and urban development. All known wetland areas over 2 acres have been
identified and mapped by WisDNR through its Wisconsin Wetlands Inventory, which was used to
create the wetland layer on Map 2.

The Village Zoning Ordinance includes 2 Wetland Protection Overlay District, which restricts uses
within wetlands of 5 acres of moI¢ in size. Generally, allowed uses include passive recreation, agricul-

rural uses, and some limited construction where appropriate.

8. Woodlands

According to the 2000 SEWRPC land use inventoty, approximately 85 acres, of 5 percent of the

Village, are covered by woodlands. These tend to be focused on the southwest side of the Village,
although there are significant stands just outside the Village limits to the east and north. Dominant
forest types include oak-hickory and maple-basswood communities. Many of these woodlands have
been identified as high value wildlife areas, and also serve as valuable contributors to the area’s char-
acter and beauty. There is no forestland in the Village enrolled in the Managed Forest Law (MFL)
program, administered by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (W isDINR).

T
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. Hilltops and Ridgetops

Hilltops and ridgetops serve to define the horizon—and provide a “natural edge” for a community.
Large structures constructed on top of them including homes) tend to be visually prominent-—
especially if not blending with the area’s rural character in terms of color, material, or style. These
ridgelines and tandforms also setve to define cost-cffective urban service area boundaries and natural

separation zones between neighboring communites.

10.Rare Species OccuIrences

11.

WisDINR’s Natural Heritage Inventory program maintains data on the general location and status of
rare, threatened, or endangered plant and animal species and natural communities in the State. This
data is obtained through field inventory. The inveatory includes data for the Town of Salem, which
includes the Village of Paddock Lake. As of May 2004, there were 41 documented ocCurrences of
race or threatened species of communities in arcas surrounding the Village. These included two
butterfly, four bird, ten fish, one frog, and thirtecn plant species, and twelve natural community
types.

SEWRPC’s A Regional Natural Areas and Critical S ccies Habitat Protection and Management Plan
for Southeast Wisconsin {“The Natural Areas Plan”) also Jiscusses rare species 0Ccurrences. This
document mentions in text and map form that Silver Lake supports state-designated threatened or
endangered fish species and Hooker, Montgomery and Paddock lakes, as well as Brighton Creck and
Salem Branch support state-designated special concern fish species. The Natural Areas Plan also
mentions the presence of Blanchard’s Cricket Frog habitat in the northeast part of the Village, at the
intersection of the four Towns.

According to the WisDNR «Fact Sheets”, the fish species are endangered primarily because of an in-
creasc in turbidity (cloudiness) of the water, increased sedimentation, and water pollution from aggi-
cultural munoff. The plant species and natural community types are also imperiled because of the
widespread alteration of the landscape due to increased residential development. Effective protection

of a natural community will maintain populations of many native plants and animals, their interac-
tions, and the ecological processes upon which they are dependent. More specific information on lo-

.cation and type of specie Is available from the WisDNR’s Bureau of Endangered Resources.

Ecological Landscapes

The Village of Paddock Lake lies in an ecological region known as the “Southern Lake Michigan
Coastal Ecological Landscape.” This landscape is located in the southeastern corner of Wisconsin
along Lake Michigan. The landforms in this ecological landscape are characteristic of glacial lake in-
fluence, with ridge and swale topography, clay bluffs, and lake plain along Lake Michigan. Further
intand in the region of Paddock Lake, ground moraine is the dominant {andform. Soils typically have
a silt-loam surface overlying loamy and clayey tills.

Several rivers cross the Ecological Landscape near Lake Michigan including the Root, Des Plaines,
and Pike. The Lake Michigan shoreline is an important ccological area, especially for migratory birds.
The watetsheds, streams, and lakes of this Ecological Landscape rank as the third most polluted, ac-
cording to rankings by the Wisconsin DNR.

12.Natural Areas

The Paddock Lake area boasts a number of natural areas, which are shown on Map 2. Natural areas
are designated according t0 their quality by WisDNR. NA-1 is the highest quality site, reflecting an
area of statewide or greater significance. NA-2 sites are not quite as high quality, but still an excellent
and ccologically significant site, NA-3 sites ate less quality than NA-2 sites, may require some €on-
certed management, but are still very important natural areas.

Natural areas around the Village include:

5
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1 Silver Lake Bog State Natural Area (NA-1): This arca remains one of the better acid bogs in
the region. Few bogs of this quality occur this far south, The Silver Lake Sportsman Club and
other privatc entities own the site. A non-profit conservation organization plans to acquire an

additional 4 acres to add to this State Natural Area.

5 Hartis Marsh and Oak Woods natural area (NA-2): This areais a large, good-quality marsh
adjacent to Brighton Creek. Kenosha County has plans to acquire the remaining portions of this
site as port of the Des Plaines River Parkway. Total planned acquisition is about 13 acres.

3. Montgomery Lake natural area (INA-3): This arcais a deep and shallow cattatl marsh border-
ing Montgomery Lake. A non-profit conservation organization plans to acquire an additional 29
acres to add to this natural area.

4. Hooker Lake Marsh natural area (NA-3): Located on the northwestern edge of Hooker Lake,
this arca is a deep and shallow cattail marsh. WisDNR has plans to acquire 3 acres adjacent to
this arca that comprise the remaining portions of the marsh area.

C. Agriculture and Natural Resource Goals, Objectives and Policies

Goal: Protect and enhance natural features and ecological systems in the Village’s
planning area.

Objectives, Policies and Programs:

a. Preserve environmental corridor features including watenvays, floodplains, wetlands, ground
water recharge area, steep slopes, wildlife habitat, scenic vistas, hilltops, drumlins, and sig-
nificant woodlands through the adoption and enforcement of environmental protection zoning and
subdivision ordinance standards.

b. Require environmental corridor features to be depicted on all site plans and preliminary plats in
order to facilitate preservaton of natural resources.

¢. Preserve productive agricultural lands from premature urban development. Recognize the value
of farmland for its economic and open space benefits and its importance in maintaining safe and se-
cure local food networks, Protect farm operations from encroaching land uses and activities that may
adversely affect the capital investment in agricultural land, improvements, and equipment.

d. Enhance the aesthetic quality of development occurring adjacent to park and open space sites.

c. Encourage compact development patterns that minimize the “footprint” and environmental im-
pact of new development.

f Work with sutrounding communities and utility/sanitary districts to implement the recom-
mendations of this Plan and thereby achieve an orderly, efficient development pattern that pre-
serves natural resonrces and minimizes conflicts between urban and rural land uses.

g. Require new urban development within 11 /2 miles of the Village of Paddock Lake to be located
within the Village of Paddock Lake planned sanitary sewer service area and the Village's
corporate limits. New urban development could also be permitted within the Town of Salem’s sani-

tary sewer service area pending approval of an intergovernmental agreement between the Village and
the Town.

h. Work to reduce the amount of groundcover removed during new development and to maximize
the use of native plants in Jandscape plantings.
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i, Protect and improve surface watet quality by supporting streambank management, natural shore-
line restoration, erosion control, clean-up initiatives, proper agriculmra.l practices, stormwater marn-
agement and use of vegetated buffer areas.

j. Protect groundwater quality through encouraging the clean-up of environmentally contaminated
sites, monitoring and carefully revising uses that may result in contamination in the future, identfying
and protecting wellhead protection areas for municipal wells, constructing on-site detendon and infil-

tration systems to reduce non-point SOUrces, and supporting sewer connections to existing uses with
older septic systems.

k. Work to protect rare species and wildlife habitat areas, such as through submittal of a “Wiscon-
<in Natural Heritage Inventory Request Form” to WisDNR whenever a new subdivision or majot
development proposal is presented within 2 section of land where a rare species has been identified.

Work to help protect rar¢ species within the area’s natural aceas by considering the recommended
protection measures identified for each in the regional Natural Areas Plan.

. Build on the Village’s natural resources, particularly water bodics, to promote tourism and local
economic development.

m. Support updated mapping of floodplain areas in the future as is consistent with sound environ-
mental practice.

n. Cooperate with other units of government and non-profit land conservation agencies on
preservation of natural resources which are under shared authority or cross government bounda-
ries.

o. Encourage programs that help educate citizens on the tools, programs, and incentives that pro-
tect the natural environment.

D. Natural Resovrce Recommendations

Fxpanding on the policies listed above, this section provides specific recommendations for conserving the
Village’s natural areas.

1. Protect Environmental Corridors

Environmental corridors are important clements of the natural resource base. They have environ-

mental, ecological, passive recreational, stormwatert management, groundwater protection and re-
charge, erosion control, wildlife, timber, and scenic value. Environmental corridors also have severe
limitations for development; therefore, minimizing development in these areas also protects private
property. The environmental corridors depicted on Map 4 show general boundarics and should be
used to identify arcas where new ot expanded development may not be approprate. Lands within
that designation may be removed under one or more of the following circumstances:

»  An updated or more detailed study reveals that the characteristic(s) which originally resulted in its
designation as an environmental corridor no longer exists, nevet existed, or exists in 2 different
location or configuration on the site, or

= Approvals from appropriate agencies are granted to alter a property s¢ that the characteristic
which resulted in its classification as an environmental cortidor will no longes exist, OT

» A mapping error has been identified.

SEWRPC has delineated those areas in Southeastern Wisconsin in which concentrations of the best
remaining elements of the natural resource base occur. The protection and preservation of such areas
in essentially natural, open uses is critical to maintaining both the ecological balance and natural
beauty of the Region and the Village.

&
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Identification of environmental corridors is based on the presences of one or more of the following
important elements of the natural resource base:

®  Takes, vers, and streams and their associated shoreland and floodplains

»  Wetlands

=  Woodlands

»  Praires

= Wildlife habitat areas

= Areas of wet, pootly drained, and organic soils, and

" Arcas of ragged terrain and high-relief topography.

» The presence of elements that are closely related to the catural resource base, including parks
and open space sites, historic sites, scenic viewpoints, and natural areas is also considered in the
delineation of environmental corridors.

Primary environmental corridors include a wide variety of these important resource and resource-
related elements and area at least 400 acres in size, two miles in length, and 200 feet in width, Secon-
dary environmental corridors that are not connected to primary corridors are at least 100 acres in size
and one mile in length (secondary corridors that link segments of the primary environmental corridor
have no minimum area of length criteria). Smaller concentrations of natural resource features that
have been separated physically from the environmental corridors by intensive urban ot agricultural
uses have also been identified. These areas, which area at least five arcas in size, are referred to as iso-
lated natural areas.

Existing development and farming uses should be allowed to continue within mapped environmental
corridors, but some improvements may be limited by the creation of underlying floodplain zoning
regulations. New buildings that do not replace old buildings and significant expansions to existing
building footprints should generally be discouraged, partcularly where other, mote appropriate build-
ing sites are available on the same parcel outside the environmental corridor. Sensitivity to surround-
ing natural resources should be the guiding principal when reviewing the appropriateness of devel-
opment in mapped environmental corridors.

‘Protect Water Quality

Surface water is an important natural resource that should be protected. Paddock Lake and the sur-
rounding wetlands are the cental features of the Village and its key natural resources. The Village
may wish to participate and cooperate with the lake associations and districts, the Town of Salem,
WisDNR, Kenosha County, and other neighboring communities, such as the Town of Brighton, to
develop and implement strategies to protect its “shared resources” — such as Paddoek Lake,
League Lake, Hooker Lake, Montgomery Lake, Brighton Creck and the Des Plaines River. The Vil-
lage and the above organizations and governments may also wish to explore additional recreational
and access opportunites.

The Village should also stay informed on program and funding opportunities through the WisDNR
for river and lake management, One such grant program is the Lake Protection Grant prograim,
which is available to improve quality of lakes and their ecosystems. Potential protection mechanisms
that this grant could fund include purchase of land or easements, wetand restoration, development
of local regulations to protect water quality, and other lake improvement activities. Other sources of
funding, including Community Conservation Aids, Lake Management Planning Grants, and Local
Water Quality Management Planning Aids are also available to the Village or lake organizations.

To protect groundwater resources, the following efforts are recommended:

. Avoid new private wells within % mile of closed landfills of other potcntial sources of

groundwater contamination and encourage private well owners within this distance to

hook up to Village water. To protect drinking water quality and public health and safety, the

5
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WisDNR requires a separation of 1,200 feet (alittle less than V4 mile) between closed
landfills and nearby private water supply wells. There are two closed remediation sites, five
gas stations, the wastewater treatment plant, and a cemetery in and around the Village where new
well construction should be avoided. These areas arc mapped in the Water Supply and Distribu-
tion System West Side Master Plan. The Village could discourage additional private wells within
these areas by providing municipal water to any planned development in this arca. 1t could also
begin a retrofit for residents using private wells within the 1,200 foot buffer to ensure there isa
schedule for them to hook into the Village’s water supply.

»  Develop and implement a wellhead protection plan for the Village’s municipal wells, Pro-
tection of groundwater is particularly important in recharge areas for the Viliage’s municipal
wells. The Village should strongly consider preparing a wellhead protection plan for the two
existing municipal wells, particularly as lands develop to the east of the wells, This type
of plan would analyze geologic and groundwater conditions in the areas of the wells, identify
specific wellhead protection areas around the wells based on this analysis, and propose specific
strategies to protect the quality and ensure the quantity of groundwater in these areas. These
strategies may then be implemented through local zoning rules and other approaches to mini-
mize the chances for contamination and maintain the infiltration of clean surface water into the
groundwater.

»  Adopt an overlay zoning district for the wellhead protection areas identified in the well-
head protection plan. Use this overlay zoning district to ensure the careful review of new de-
velopment proposals in wellhead protection areas and in other areas susceptible to groundwater
contamination. The northeast portion of the Village and lands along the Village’s southern bor-
der east of Hooker Lake are considered highly susceptible to contamination. The Village should
carefully review proposals in this area, and consider limits on those uses that have higher
probabilitics of emitting pollutants into the soil or groundwatet. These include uses such as addi-
tional gas stations or other uses that store fuel or other potental contaminants. Where such new
uses are allowed, the Village should require that the business prepare and implement a spill pre-
vention and control plan. The Village may also wish to work with existing business owners on
plans to maximize the potential and severity of spills that may otherwise cause future contamina-
tion.

» Remain informed and involved in decisions pertaining to high-capacity wells. Permits for
high capacity wells {those withdrawing more than 100,000 gallons per day) must be registered
with and permitted by WisDNR. The DNR will not approve wells that impair public water utility
supplies. Wells drawing more than 2 million gallons per day are evaluated in terms of whether
they impair public water rights or future water use plans, or if they have adverse groundwater ef-
fects. The DNR also has authority to deny a request for a high-capacity well should it assess the
environmental impacts as significant to outweigh the benefit. Should potential new sites be
proposed in the Paddock Lake atea, the Village should remain informed and involved in
any WisDNR decisions. Village involvement in this process is particularly important, given the
strain on the local aquifer. One way to stay involved in through regular communication and
providing public comment during Environmental Impact Statement review periods.

3. “Adoptihe sComprehensive Plan for the Des Plaines River Watershed” and move
forward with floodplain zoning.
The Village intends to adopt the SEWRPC plan entitled “A Comprehensive Plan for the Des Plaines
River Watershed” by ordinance with the following exception. The Village intends to exclude the
paragraph on page 591 of Part Two regarding the Village and Town of Bristol investigating consoli-
dation of sewage treatment facilitics. The Village intends to update their zoning map and ordinance
to correspond to recommendations made in the Plan regarding their floodplains zoning regulations
and mapping to help prevent incompatible development within the floodplain areas in the future.
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4. Protect Rare Species and Wiidiife Habital Areas
Not only does protecting wildlife habitat benefit the environment, but it enhances the quality of resi-
dents’ lives, presefves riral character, increases pride and stewardship in private land ownership, and
enhances recreation and toudsm. Preserving habitat and protecting rare species at the focal level may
also minimize the potential that a species will officially become “threatened” ot “endangered,” re-
quiring federal intervention under the Endangered Species Act.

The WisDNR—Bureau of Endangered Resources maintains a database entitled the Wisconsin Natu-
ral Heritage Inventory (NHI). Rare species have been identified in several sections of the Village
where new development is planned. Because rare species are vulnerable to collection and intentional
destruction, the exact locations and type of rare species is not made readily accessible. However, this
data is available through submittal of & “\Wisconsin Natural Heritage Inventory Request Form,”
which the Village should require whenever a new subdivision or development proposal is offered
within a section of land where a rare specics has been identified. Beyond simple determination, spe-
cific measures should be taken to minimize the effects of development on rare species and their habi-
tat. Strategies include encouraging developers to minimize the “footprint” of development, utilizing
vegetative buffers to provide connectivity between habitat areas and create a more sensitive land use
transition, encouraging natural landscaping, and directing development outside of environmental cor-
ridors.

E. Cultural Resource inventory

The cultural resources of the Village of Paddock Lake tell the rich story of the region. The U.S. Public Land
Survey conducted the first official survey of the Des Plaines River watershed during 1835 and 1836. The
completion of that survey facilitated the settlement of the watershed by European setdes. The first European
settlers came to the Des Plaines River watershed in the 1830s by way of trails established by Native Ameri-
cans, territotial roads, and later by military and plank roads.

Although an area north of the Village began to develop in the 1940’s, the area around Paddock Lake did not
begin to develop until the 1950’s and 1960’s and the Village itself did not incorporate until 1960.

1. ‘Historic Resources
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (as amended) requires federal agencies to ensure that
their actions do not adversely affect historic properties and archeological sites listed in or eligible for
the National Register of Historic Places. All human burial sites, including cemeteries and Indian
mounds, are protected under State law.

There are no recorded historic properties in the Village of Paddock Lake either fisted in the Natonal
Register of Historic Places or noted in the Wisconsin Historical Society’s Architecture and History
Inventory (AHI). The Society’s Architecture and History Inventory (AHL) contains data on a wide
range of historic properties throughout the State that create Wisconsin’s distinct cultural landscape.
The absence of Paddock Lake properties does not mean there are no significant properties in the Vil-
lage; it may just reflect the Jack of any studies for the arca. For example, on the far west side of the
Village, north of STH 50, is a frame Greek revival house that has historical significance and suggests
that unrecognized properties exist in the Village. This housing style is one of the earliest represented
housing types in the Statc. The location of this house within the Village helps teli the story of eatly
settlement in the area.

2. Archeological Resources
According to the Wisconsin Historical Socety, it is estimated that nearly 80 percent of all archeologi-
cal sites Statewide have been destroyed or severely damaged, primarily by modern land development

and farming practices. Many sites have also been damaged or looted.
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According to the Wisconsin Historical Society, there are 4 recorded archeological sites in Paddock
Lake, The Old Setders’ Park Campsite is a prehistoric archeological site in the middle of the Village,
just south of the lake. In addition to this site, the Paddock Lake Ice Houses site, and two prehistoric
and historic Native American sites are located within the Village limits. These 4 sites tell the wle of
early prehistoric settlement and ninetcenth- and early twentieth-centary European-American
setdement. Currently, the Wisconsin Historical Society does not have any records of cemeteries of

burial sites within the Village.

F. Culiural Resource Goals, Objectives and Policies
Goal: Preserve the village's scenic, historic, and quaint character.

Objectives:
a. Identify and promote the preservation of the Village’s cultural, historic, and archeological resources.

b. Cooperate with the Town t0 promote the historic and culwral character of the combined Paddock
Lake/Salem community.

Policies:

a.  Encourage private landowners to protect and rehabilitate historic and archeological sites, and
incorporate them into the planning of new development areas where appropriate.

b. Work with the Town of Salem to promote “heritage tourism” (e.g., local festivals, fairs, and mat-
kets) that celebrates the heritage and rural setting of the combined community.

c. Cooperateona comprehensive survey of historic and archeological resources.

G. Cultural Resource Recommendations

1. ‘Protect and Rehabilitate Known Historic and Archeological Sites
This Plan identfies known historic and archeological sites included in the Wisconsin Archeological
Site Inventory (ASI) and the State Historic Society databases (see Map 2). This Plan advises that
the Village make a specific request to the State Historical Society for more detailed information
when development proposal is offered in an area where a historic or archeological site has been iden-
tified.

2. Promote Heritage Tourlsm

"This type of tonrism—often called “Heritage Toutism”—will become increasingly popular as the

baby boom generation cases into retirement. Heritage tourism may focus on museums, vibrant rural
communitics, historic architecture, historic settlement pattetns and the Village’s natural amenitics and
views. The story of the Brass Ball corner and the history of the ice industry using ice from Paddock
Lake could be interesting stories to tell and which run the risk of being lost. The Village, along with
the Towns of Salem and Brighton, and Kenosha County should explore state grant opportunities t0
study, establish, and fand a heritage toursm program.

&
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3. Cooperate ona Comprehensive Survey of
Historic and Archeoclogical Resources
Very little of Kenosha County’s total land area has been
surveyed for the presence of archeological sites and
cemeteries, and there has never been a comprehensive
survey of historic resoutces in the Village of Paddock
Lake. At least as many historic ot archeological sites are
jost to ignorance of their significance than to intendonal
acts. The Village should consider cooperating with the
County on a countywide survey of historic and archeo-
logical resources. (See sidebar).
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. LAND USE

This chapter contains a compilation of background information, goals, objectives, policies and recommended
programs to guide the future preservation and development of public and private lands in the Village of Pad-
dock Lake. The chapter includes maps that show existing land uses and recommended future land vses, and
provides other related land use data and analysis as required under §66.1001, Wisconsin Stawutes.

A. Existing Land Use

An accurate depiction of the Village's existing land use pattern is the first step in planning for a desired future
jand use pattern. The Village’s planning consultant conducted an update of the 2000 SEWRPC inventory of
existing Jand uses in summer 2004. Local representatives had an opportunity to review and suggest correc-
tions to existing land use maps before they were finalized.

1. Existing Land Use Map Calegories
Map 3 divides existing land uses in the Village into several categories. These categories include:

s Agriculture/Rural: Jand used primarily for farming, farmsteads, nurseries, and farm-support ac-
fivities. Also includes grasslands, forestland and fallow land;

»  Rural Single Family: groupings of predominantly single family residential devclopment, genet-
ally at lower densities (e.g berween 1 dwelling vnit per acre and 1 dwelling unit per 40 acres), and
typically served by on-site wastc disposal systems;

s Village Single Family: Single-family residential development served by 2 public sanitary sewer,
including duplexes;

»  Mixed-Residential: groupings of attached single-family, multi-unit residential development or
manufactured housing developments;

«  Planned Business: areas for high-quality indoor commercial and office uses, with generous
landscaping and limited signage; -

» General Business: indoor commercial, office, and occasional outdoor display land uses, genet-

" ally with moderate Jandscaping and signage;

« Institutional: large-scale public buildings, hospitals, airports/landing strips. Small institutional
uses may be found in areas designated in other land use categories;

»  Transportation, Communications and Utility: public rights-of-ways, communication towers,
udility infrastructure;

»  Industrial: indoor industrial land uses and occasionally outdoor storage areas, generally with
moderate landscaping and signage;

*  Vacant: Urban ot rural land currently not used for open space ot agricultural purposes;

» Open Space: Public land designated as Village parks and recreation areas. Village parks, or other
recreational facilities owned by the public or private utility companies;

= Surface Water: Iakes, rivers and perennial streams;

s Wetland: Areas of one acre or more in which the water table is at, near, Ot above the land sur-
face and which area characterized by both hydric soils, such as peat, muck, or other organics
soils, and by the growth of hydrophytes, such as sedges, cattails, and tamarack;

»  Woodland: areas having 17 or more deciduous trees per acre, each measuring at least four
inches in diameter at breast height and having at least 50 percent canopy COveL.

2. Existing Land Use Pattern
Paddock Lake currently serves as the commercial market center for both Village residents and the
residents of surrounding communities including the Town of Salem, Town of Brighton and portions
of the Town of Bristol. The Village of Silver Lake also provides some commercial services. Larger

5
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market centers include the City of Kenosha, the City of Lake Geneva and the northern Chicago sub-
urbs.

The existing land use pattern in paddock Lake has been dictated by major transportation corrdors,
population in-migration, and nacural featares. The intersection of STH 50 with STH 75 forms the
hub of commercial activity in the Village. The central part of the Village surrounding the lake is
dominated by residential development and scattered parkland. Agricultural and open tands are lo-
cated mainly in the castern and western sections of the Village. Wooded lands in the Village are lo-
cated near the southern end of Paddock Lake’s current municipal boundary, along the western and
northern shore of Hooker Lake. Figure 13 shows the Village’s current land use totals and percent-

ages.

Figure 13: Existing Land Use Totals - Village of Paddock Lake

Agricultare/Rural 641.3

Rural Single Family 10.9 0.6%
Village Single Family 297.3 17.7%
Mixed-Residential 53 0.3%
Planned Business 11 0.1%
General Business 16.5 1.0%
Institational 27.9 1.7%
Transportaton, Communications and Utility 185.8 11.1%
Industrial 31 0.2%
Vacant 56.6 3.4%
Open Space 66.4 4.0%
Surface Water 141.4 8.4%
Wetland : 137.0 8.2%
Woodland 84.6 5.0%
TOTAL ACRES 1,675.2 100%

Source: SEWRPC 2000 Land Use Inventory, wpdated by Vandewalle & Assodates in 2004

3. Land Development Trends

During the later half of the Twentieth Century, the Village of Paddock Lake experienced significant
residential growth pressure. Between 1980 and 2003, 396 new housing units were built in the Village.
Over 90% of the residential units built between 1980 and 1996 were single family units. The greatest
number of residential units constructed in any one year in the Village berween 1980 and 2003 was 39
units in 1993. The fewest number of units {2) was constructed in 1981. On average, 17 new housing
units were constructed annually during the 23 year time period. The pace of this housing unit devel-
opment is expected to increase dramatically over the planning period to an average of about 50 units
per year between 2000 and 2025, but will vary depending on farger economic and social factors.
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4. Land Market Trends
The Wisconsin Department of Revenue cecords the equalized value of all property in the State. As
shown on Figure 14, land value in the Village increased from more than $131 million in 1998 to al-
most $187 million in 2003, The highest increases in assessments occursed in the residential
real estate category. Steady increases in commetcial land values suggest that the commercial land
market is also strong in the community.

Only agricultural land Jecreased in assessed value during this period, dropping dramatically from an
aggregate assessed value of more than $400,000 in 1998 10 slightly more than 356,000 in 2003. This is
pardally the result of sharp declines in agricultural land assessments due to full implementation of the
usc-valuation assessment law, and also reflects the development of agricultural areas.

Figure 14: Equalized Land valuves for Paddock Lake, 1998 - 2003

Swamp &
Waste &
QOther

Forest

Residential ~ Commercial Manufacturing  Agricultural Land

1998 | $116,676,800 | $14,197,700 - 2404300 | $176,000 | $40,300 | $131,495,100
1999 | $123.024,800 | $14,515,900 - 3379400 | $186,200 | $50,400 | 91381 56,700
2000 | $139,848,300 | $15,162,500 - 9341200 | $230,700 | $70,000 | §1550652,700
2002 | $157,585,000 | $18,174,200 - 388,000 $270,500 | $61,700 | $176,179,400
2003 | $168729,400 1 $18,174,200 - 356,400 9542,100 | $121,000 | $187,623,100

Source; WitDOR, 2004

5. Existing and Potential L
There ate currently no major
future land use conflicts through th
“Potential land use conflicts along community
long-range planning and forma

6. Opportu

Ofien, contamina

defines as “abandoned or under-uti

development sites is
STH 50, are especially
ddressed in greater

and Use Conlflicts
land use conflicts within the Villag
oughtful and comprehcnsive
borders can be mini
{intergovernmental discussions.

nities for Reuse/Redeveiopment
Overall, identification of infill and re
These sites, located particularly along
cally-owned businesses. These are a

ted sites in 4 community serve as logical redevelop
DNR’s Environmental Remediation an
sites. From this database, policy-makers and researchers can identify “brownfelds”,
lized commercial or industrial properties w

d Redevelopment Program m

e. This plan secks to avoid potentia.l
land use planning at the local level.
mized through both coordinated

a key factorina successful land use plan.
important for start-up and smaller, lo-
detal in the following section.

ment locales. The Wisconsin
aintains a list of contaminated
which the DNR
here expansion of 1€-

development is hindered by real or perceived contamination.” There are no sites within the Village
that would be considered “prownfields” on this list; most sites are cither remediated or age in ac-
tive use. This is an opportunity for the Village because it will not have to go through the cleanup
process and delays that many similar communities must face.
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B. Projected Land Use Supply and Demand

Wisconsin Statute 66.1001 requires comprehensive plans to contain land use projections for the 20-year plan-
ning period, in five-year ‘ncrements, of future residential, agricultural, commercial and industrial uses. Land
use demand projections are based on historic trends and forecasts for population and housing needs made in
Chapters 1 and V1 of this Plan. While population projections do provide an estimate of furure population
growth in a community based on past trends, they may significantly over of under estimate future population
levels.

Figure 15 shows projected residential jand demand for the Village through 2025 in five-year increments. Resi-
dential land use projectons are based on population forecasts prepared assuming the 1990 to 2000 growth
rate remain constant at 2.9% and declining houschold size is also consistent with 1990 (2.99 persons
per household) to 2000 (2.84 persons per household) changes as recorded by the U.S. Census Bureau. It
is assumed that the approximate residential housing density remains the same, at around 3.4 housing units
per acre (based on existing residential jand usc in the Viliage and housing unit data from the 2000 Census). It
is important to note that the Village may wish to provide different housing options for its residents, including

larger lot homes which could mean an overall decline in housing density in the Village over the planning pe-
riod.

Figure 15: Projected Residential Land Demand

2000- 2005- 2010-  2015- 2020 - Totals

2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2000 - 2025
535 617 2
21 247 283 322 1,243

1241 | 145.5 | 166.3 1891 731

Conree: Wisconsin Departrient of 7 toinisiration; U.S. Census Burean, Vandewalle & Assoddates

* Ty accaunt for potential contlraints in Jand availability, the required acres bave been donbled.

Future residential development shown on Map 4 and aliowed under the policies of this Planwill provide
enough capacity to accommodate this expected residential land use demand through the year 2025, even if
new home demand is substantially higher than projections.

To calculate commercial land use projections, the current ratio of commercial Jand use acreage to population
in the Village (5.6 acres for every 1,000 residents) was assumed to remain constant over the planning period.
Based on this methodology, the Village would need to accommodate about 35 acres of new commetcial
land area for the period between 2000 and 2025, or about 7 acres every five years. This figure includes a
doubling factor for potential constraints in land availability. It is important to note, however, that the Village
wants to increase the amount of commercial development beyond this to better balance its tax base.

To calculate industrial land use projections, the current ratio of industrial land use acreage to population in
the Village (1.0 acre for every 1,000 residents) was assumed to remain constant over the planning period.
Based on this methodology, the Village would aced to accommodate about 6 acres of new industrial devel-
opment, which includes a doubling factor for potential constraints in land availability. 1t is important to note,
however, that the Village wants to Increase the amount of industrial development beyond this to better bal-
ance its tax base. The doubling factor mapping approach will help to ensure that this objective is reached and
that the most appropriate sites for development are reserved.

This Plan projects that agricultural land uses in the Village of Paddock Lake will decline over the planning
period, following current trends of agricultural land conversion. In general, agricultural land within the Village
is projected to be an interim use pending development of the sites. It is anticipated that the Town of Bristol
and the Town of Brighton will retain a significant portion of their land base as agricultural use over the next
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20 years. The Village intends to reserve land in rural uses until annexation and development within Village
occurs.

Figure 16 shows the minimum number of acres that the Village should include in its Planned Land Use Map.

Figure 16: Minimum Acres Needed to Accommodate Projected Land Demand

Expected Change
2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2003 1o 2025

Residential 106.4 | 124.1 ] 145.5 | 166.3 | 189.1

Commercial 5.2 6.0 6.9 8.0 9.2 35
Industrial 09 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 6
Total Additional Acres Needed 112.5 1 1312 | 153.7 ] 175.7 | 200.0 773.0

X Tvermmis an average anmeal growth rafe of 2. 9%, Acreages reported bave been dostbled fo account for potential consiraints in Jand acees-
sibility dus to availabifity of willing buyers and seliers.

The Planned Land Use areas shown on Map 4 provide sufticient additional land within in the Village to ac-
commodate projected residential, commercial, industrial growth into the year 2025. In fact, the amount of
land shown for development is considerably greater than the minimum amount shown in Figure 16 due to
expected growth from the Chicago metropolitan azea, and numerous recent requests for annexations that the
Village fecls would be beneficial to its overall growth pattern. The Village anticipates that most furure devel-
opment will occur as jand currently used for agriculture within the Village limits is converted to other uses.

C. Land Use Goals, Objectives, aond Policies

Goal: Promote a balanced future land use pattern containing a sustainable mix of
uses and building types within the Village and predominantly agricultural uses in
its extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Objectives:

A Plan for a sufficient supply of development areas for a vatiety of land uses, including residentdal (sin-
gle and multi-family), industrial, commercial, institutional, and open space uscs.

b. Ensure a desirable and compatible mix of land uses consistent with the Village’s small community
character.

c. Promote the revitalization/redevelopment of the older portions of STH 50 and underused areas in
close proximity.

d. Guide development to promote efficient land use patterns without undue limits on economic
growth,
Promote high quality design and building sizes that relate to existing buildings in the commufity.
Minimize conflicts between nearby land uses (e.g. residential next to industrial).

g. Require new urban development within 1 1/2 miles of the Village of Paddock Lake to be located
within the Village of Paddock Lake planned sanitary sewer service area and the Village's
corporate limits. New urban development could also be permitted within the Town of Salem’s sani-

tary sewer service area pending approval of an intergovernmental agreement between the Village and
the Town.
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Policies and Programs:

a. Follow the land use recommendations mapped and described in this Plan when making detailed
jand use decisions, such as subdivision requests and future zoning decisions.

b. Consider modifying the Village’s zoning and subdivision ordinance where necessary t0 imple-
ment the goals, objectives, and recommendations of this Plan, minimize potential land use con-
flicts, guide growth and development, provide adequate long-term Village growth areas, ensure high
quality site development, and adequately protect watcr quality.

c. Emphasize redevelopment of older properties along STH 50, and rehabilitation of aging or vacant
buildings for productive economic use.

d. Promote redevelopment and compact new developments that utilize existing infrastructure and
utilities wherever practical.

e. Guide new development to arcas within the Village adjacent to existing development and where
logical extensions to streets, sewer lines, and water lines may occut.

f.  Require all new development within the Village to connect to sanitary sewer and public water
systems, and discourage development outside of the Village limits until sewer and water services are
available. Work with SEWRPC and WisDNR to modify the Village Sanitary Sewer Service Area to be
fully consistent with the planned land use recommendations shown on Map 4.

g. Make practical park and green space decisions on a neighborhood Jevel, and preserve key corgi-
dors for open space connections (€.g wooded areas, wetland areas, streams, lakes, and drainage
routes).

h. Assure that incompatible land uses are not located close to one another or require appropriate
separation and screcning (e.g. fencing ot landscaping).

i. Promote road and trail connections between the key destinations in the Village, existing and
new development areas, and other communities in the area.

j. Adoptan official map delineating future park, open space, and community facility locations {See
Chapters Five and Six).

D. Planned Land Use Map Recommendations

1. Purpose of Planned Land Use Map (Map 4) ‘
Map 4 presents recommended future land uses over the 20-year planning period for lands inand
around the Village of Paddock Take, designed to accommodate future community growth and land
use demands. Map 4, along with the recommended policies in this chaptef, should be used to guide
Village decision-making on future land use changes. Changes from the existing land use pattern to
realize this ptanned land use pattcrn may occur if and when private property OWners make requests
for annexation, rezoning, subdivisions, conditional use permits, or other development approvals.
However, the identification of desired future land uses shown on Map 4 does not imply that rezon-
ings are immediately needed or appropriate. Given the Village’s desire for quality and well-timed
growth, the Village will want to carefully consideration the timing of these proposed zoning map
changes to ultimately correspond with the Planned Land Use Map.

2. Sewer Service Area
Map 4 identifies areas for Village development within its own and within the Town of Salem’s sewer
service arca. These boundarics delineate the area planned for urban development over the 20-year
planning period. Development within this area should be provided with a full range of services in-
chuding public sanitary sewer, public water supply, and distribution systems, higher levels of fire and
police protection, solid waste collection, neighborhood facilities such as parks and schools, and urban
transportation and stormwater management systems. Delineating a sewer service area allows the
community to plan for the orderly extension of utilities and public services, while recognizing that
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the sewer service area can be expanded regularly over time. These two sewer service areas are sized to
accommodate at least 20 years of urban development. Prior to the provision of urban services to
fands within the sewer service area, development should be limited in a manner consistent with the
recommendations for the “Agticulture/Rural” planned land use category below.

3. General Pianned Land Use Pattern
The overall pattern of development in the Village will continue to be a mixture of mostly single-
family residential neighborhoods, with commercial, institational and industrial uses mainly located
in areas where such development has historically occurred. Additional residential development is rec-
ommended in lands west and east of the current Village limits, and an arca south of the Village limits
west of STH 83, Light industrial expansion is recommended for areas south of STH 50 on the Vil-
lage’s east side. Recommended transportation improvements have been added to support these land
uses, including new strects and hiking, biking, and walking trails. For a morc detailed discussion of
transportation recommendations included on Map 4, see Chapter Four.

The following sections provide recommendations for each of the planned land use categories
depicted on Map 4.

4. Agriculture/Rural
This planned land use category includes lands intended to be pteserved primarily for farming, farm-
steads, forestry, open space, and agricultural support activities over the 20-year planning period.
These areas are also appropriate for, with limited recreational uses, farm family businesses, and sin-
gle-family residential development at or below 1 dwelling per 35 acres. Scattered areas of existing
non-farming uses are planned to remain intact over the 20-year planning period. The Village should
continue its policy of not extending urban services into these areas and should employ its extraterri-
torial powers to implement this objective.

5. Rural Single Family
These areas include groupings of existing predominantly single family residential development, gen-
erally at lower densities (e.g. between 1 dwelling unit per acre and 1 dwelling unit per 35 acres), and
pically served by on-site waste treatment (septic) systems. Map 4 shows the Rural Single Family
category where existing rural single family homes are located. These are generally in the arcas outside
the Village limits, although there area few within the Village, as well. Newly platted areas that are not
fully built yet are included on Map 4. The existing scattered rural residential homes within the Village
limits are shown as Village Single Family on Map 4 due to the potential that these homes may even-
tually hook up to Village water and sewer services. To help forward objectives for both Village urban
expansion and rural lands preservation, 0O Ncw areas are shown for development in this land use
category on the Planned Land Use Map.

6. Village Single Family
This planned land use category includes publicly sewered single-family residential development at
densities up to 4 dwelling units per acre. Map 4 recommends Village Single Family uses for new de-
velopment areas throughout the Village, and in areas adjacent to the Village that can be served by
public water and sewer in the future. Generally, single family uses have been recommended for areas
that are adjacent to existing single family neighborhoods, such as directly east and west of the
neighborhoods surrounding the lake, and in the far southeast corner of the Village, adjacent to Salem
Oaks.

7. Mixed Residential
‘The areas mapped as Mixed Residential are appropriate for a vardety of residental units in a well-
planned mix, including duplexes, multiple-family housing (3+ unit buildings), senior housing, and
manufactured homes, served by public sanitary sewer service. New areas mapped in this category
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were selected because most provide a gentle transition between commercial of industrial uses and
proposed Village Single Family residential development areas. Densities may range from 6 to 14 units
per acre, although exact densities and height limits will be determined through zoning standards.

Future Mixed Residential areas arc mapped north of the Brass Ball Corners arca, and in the
Neighborhood Center. Mised Residential areas are dispersed throughout the Village to avoid the over
concentration of multi-family housing in any one part of the Village. In addition, these sites are rela-
tively close to services in the Village {c.g. shopping, businesses, parks, schools) or will be in the fu-
ture. Sce Chapter Six fora discussion on mixed residential design guidclines.

8. Planned Neighborhood
This planned land use category encourages a mix of residential development and well-planned sup-
porting commercial and institutional uses. Flexibiliy in futare planning is important to the Village,
and the Planned Neighborhood category provides the means to tailor future development to suit the
needs of the Village over time.

The Planned Neighborhood category is intended to provide a carefully-planned mix of residential
dwelling units and density types; neighborhood-oriented shopping opportunides, such as small spe-
cialty grocery stores, beauty shops, bakeries, pharmacies, home-based businesses; parks and environ-
mental corridors; and educational facilities, such as elementary schools and day care. These
neighborhoods should be connected to other neighborhoods by a network of local streets that dis-
courage high travel specds, but still allow access to emergency and maintenance vehicles.

Housing densities are designed to be variable within each of these Planned Neighborhoods, with
some lower density homes (3-4 units per acre), as well as higher density housing units, such as those
described for the “mixed residential” land use category. However, the overall net density of these
Planned Neighborhoods should not exceed the densities found within the existing Village neighbor-
hoods, typically berween 4 and 5 units per acre

“This Plan does not recommend that this area develop as a collection of marginally related land vses
and roads. To ensure that the recommended development pattern is fully realized for these large
growth areas, the Village should prepace a detailed neighbothood development plans for the
four growth ateas described below. After the Village adopts 2 Neighborhood Development Plan
for this area, all subsequent development should comply with or improve upon that plan. The result
of this proposed detailed planning process should be a growth area that capures much of the charm
and unique character of the best historic neighborhoods in the ares, with the added benefit of better
coordinated land use, open space, and transportation patterns. Areas planned in this manner will be
more marketable to a greater diversity of ages, incomes and lifestyles, and will typically appreciate in
value faster than single-use, “cookic cutter” subdivisions that become indistinguishable from each
other,

Specific issues needing more detailed consideration include how to best integrate existing land uses
such as small rural homesteads into the neighborhood fabric, how to identify and ensure protection
for the environmental corridors in these growth areas, and how to deal with the resulting population,
traffic and school enrollment affects of this new development.

The four Planned Neighborhoods were established by:
a. Identifying areas unsuitable for development, such as wetlands, floodplains, steep slopes and
wet soils, as described and mapped in Chapter Two.
b. Locating logical long-term boundaries for the Village, such as natural or constructed barriers,
or other logical service boundaries, as described and mapped carlier in this chapter.
¢. Determining the amount of vacant fand needed for development throughout the 20-year
planning period based on forecasts presented in Chapter Onc and Figure 16.
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d. Identfying emerging and anticipated development opportunities which may be desirable for (_
the Village, as explored in the alternative futures effort and other public participation events
described in Chapter One.

The Village’s primary new growth areas over the 20-year planning petiod are envisioned to occur in
the following locations. The Village will endeavor to work out a cooperative agreement with the
Town of Salem for these growth areas that are within the Town’s sewer service area.

= The Eastside Growth Area is located cast of the Village’s current limits, south of 60th Street,
and north of STH 50. Tt extends to the Town of Bristol town line. This area contains about 640
acres, although the area also contains a number of environmental corridors, which will reduce
the amount of developable tand available. The Village intends to serve this area with the full
range of public utilities, including public water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer.

»  The Westside Growth Area is located west of the Village’s current limits, south of 60 Street
and extending west along STH 50 to the western edge of the Town of Salem sanitary sewer set-
vice area. This area contains about 687 acres. It has already completed a study, the 2004 Water
Supply and Distribuiion Study West Side Master Plan to serve it with public water.

»  The Southwest Growth Area is located south of STH 50 within the Town of Salem’s sanitary
sewer service arca, south to CTH AH and east to STH 83, not including the already developed
areas around Salem. The primary issue of the detailed neighborhood planning for this area
should be how to weave new development into the existing fabric of the Salem community that
is consistent with its community character, and ways to improve the quality of life for both new
Village residents and Salem residents.

=  The Southeast Growth Arca is jocated south of STH 50 from the existing Village limits, ex-
tending east to the Town of Bristol town line, and south to 83 Street, not including the existing _
residential development along 83 Street. This area Is envisioned to support the Village’s first in- {
dustrial area (described below), buffered from the environmental corridor south of it by a native '
vegetative buffer that should be constructed. Residential development is envisioned for the ma-
jority of the area in keeping with the existing single family character of developments adjacent to
it. A Planned Neighborhood area is envisioned for the area along 83 Street because of the
fAexibility that area allows for a variety of development types, including neighborhoodvoriented
businesses (i.e. a coffee shop, cafe, drycleaners, bank branch office, etc).

All four growth area detailed neighborhood plans and all eventual site planning should ad-
here to the following design objec-
tives:

a, Create a distinct sense of place
and charming human scale by
bringing buildings close to the
sidewalk and street; use public
plazas, greens and squares to pro-
vide focal points, create visual in-
terest, and generate highly promi-
nent building sites; and follow the
concepts embodied in the “Tradi-
donal Neighborhood Design”
movement discussed in more de-
tait in Chapter Five.

b. Provide connections within and
berween the employment centers, neighborhood commercial centers and residential neighbor-
hoods, emphasizing the use through streets and a grid street system. (‘

. - &
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¢. Integrate a mix of uses and densities within and around the neighborhood commercial centers.

d. Incorporate pedestrian connections throughout the growth area and enhance opportnities to
serve the area with alternative modes of transportation.

e. Preserve environmentally sensitive areas and unique natural features.

f. Lay out streets, buildings, and public open spaces which take advantage of long views created by
local topography.

The ncighborhood design standards included in Chapter Five also should be applied when develop-
ing these neighborhoods.

9, Redevelopment Area
This second “overlay” eategory is designed to identify areas that may be redeveloped (changed to a
different developed usc) over tme. Most business, industrial and office uses in the Village are located
along STH 50 between STH 75 on the west and 236t Strect on the east. As traftic along STH 50 in-
creases, these areas will continue to be attractive locations for commercial and employment uses
looking for high visibility and convenient access. As opportunities for reinvestment and redevelop-
ment occur, the appearance of building facades exposed to public view, including loading docks and
storage arcas, should be improved. Developed and vacant parcels in this arca are recommended for
Planned Business uses. Some office uses may also be appropuriate in this area, due to close proximity to
residential areas. All commercial development or redevelopment projects along the STH 50 corridor
should comply with detailed site, building, signage, and landscaping design standards described and
illustrated in Chapter Seven.

10.Planned Mixed Use
There are two Planned Mixed Use areas recommended in the Planned Land Use Map. These two
areas, described in more detail below, should be planned to contain a misture of commercial uses de-
signed to supply the day-to-day goods and services for residents living in the area. Senior housing and
smaller-scale office development would also be appropriate for this area. Potential commercial uses
in this atea might include a deli, coffee shop, specialty retail, dry cleaners, drug store, restaurant, and
grocery store. Development in the two mixed-use centers could include first floor retail, accented by
the potential for upper story office space and residential units, and/or a mix of uses and buildings
within the same development. The extent possible, this mixed-use center be planned to create com-
pact, pedestrian-friendly clusters of complementary businesses, housing, and civic uses. In evaluating
proposed neighborhood-scale stores at this location, the Village should consider the proximity and
ease of pedestrian access from residential areas, pedestran-bicycle connections and routes through-
out the entire neighborhood, the range of
convenience goods and services available,
hours of operation, and the level of amenity
provided. All commercial development pro-
jects should meet the recommended site,
building, and landscape design criteria in
Chapter Seven.

& PBrass Ball Corner
One of the most important sites along
STH 50, and in the entire Village, is an
area at the intersection of STH 75 and
STH 50. This site is a key entryway into
the Village and, as such, creates oppot-
tunities for establishing a positive, dis- i ) . ] ]
tinctive image for Paddock Lake, (See Highway commerdal uses like gas stations should incorporale
high-quality site design and building standards.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 43



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

Chapter Seven for a discussion on how this relates to the Village’s overall economic develop-
ment strategy).

This Plan tecommends Planned Mixed Use development for this area (see Map 4) organized
around creating an attractive, cohesive, inviting environment that serves both local residents, but
possibly Town of Salem residents and those who come from a fairly close distance. All proposed
buildings in this gateway area be of high quality and generally contemporary in design, including
the following specific recommendzations:

2. The commercial and mixed family uses should incorporate high-quality, attractive exterior
building materials and site design.

b. Larger buildings should include varied setbacks, building heights, and architectural details to
soften their scale. Where larger buildings are proposed far from a street, the development
should include smaller buildings in “outlots” closer to the street.

Pedestran connections to buildings and surrounding neighborhoods should be provided.

d. Garages and loading areas should not be the predominant architectural features on any street
frontage.

e. Latge parking lots directly abutting streets should be avoided or heavily landscaped.

f. The overall public and private landscaping theme should emphasize native plantings, includ-
ing praitie plantings. Development along or backing up to STH 50 should be attractively
landscaped to create a favorable first impression at this gateway. Street trees should be pro-
vided in the terrace areas of all streets. Private landscaping should be generous, particularly
in street setback areas and in buffer yards.

g Private signage should be controlled to protect and enhance the desired character of this
area. Ground signs should be limited to low-profile, monument style signs,

h. Commercial, industsial, and multiple-family residential lighting should be carefully con-
trolled, particulatly given the mixed use character of this site.

®* Neighborhood Center
The Neighborhood Center is envisioned to be Planned Mixed Use as well, but with less intense
land uses than the Brass Ball Corner, and geated specifically towards residents immediately adja-
cent to it. Design standards described for the Brass Ball Corner are applicable to the Neighbor-
hood Center, as well, For more information on the Neighborhood Center, see Chapter Seven.

11.Planned Business
This planned land use category includes areas for high-quality indoor commetcial and officc uses,
with generous landscaping and limited signage. Planned Business areas are mapped over existing uscs
that meet this description, such as the newer bank development on the Village’s east side. Additional
Planned Business is advised along the STH 50 corridor, including the sites identified as redevelop-
ment areas on Map 4. Chapter Seven describes the design standards that should be applied to
Planned Business developments.

12, General Business
This category includes areas of indoor commercial, office, telecommunicaton facilities, and occa-
sional outdoor display land uses, generally located in already developed areas, with little landscaping
and sometimes large signape. These areas are concentrated along STH 50.

13.Institutional
The Institutional land use category includes large-scale public buildings, hospitals, airports/landing
strips, non-profit camp-grounds, and special-care facilities. The two largest institutional uses in the
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Village are Central High School and the baseball diamonds along STH 83. Small institutional uses
also may be found in areas mapped in other land use categories.

14. Planned Industrial
This category includes high-quality indoor manufacturing, assembling and storage uses with generous
landscaping and limited signage. Map 4 identifies Planned Industral areas for a future Village indus-
trial park south of STH 50 east of the current Village limits. This area is an ideal location for an in-
dustrial park because the environmental corridors around it provide a naturat buffer, and help screen
the area from adjacent land uses. The area is gently rolling, with some slopes over 20%. The develop-
able land area, with these slopes removed, is around 56 acres. The space in the industrial park should
be devoted to light manufacturing uses related to the economic development recommendations in
Chapter Seven. Commercial/retail uses should be limited in areas shown in the Planned Industrial
category.

15.General Industrial
This category includes indoor industrial land uses and controlled outdoor storage areas, with modet-
ate landscaping and signage. The General Industrial uses shown on Map 4 are consistent with the ex-
isting areas currently devoted to this land use. No additional general industrial has been identified for
the Village,

16.Public Open Space
These areas include publicly-owned land designated as Village parks, scenic or conservation areas,
county parks or recreation areas, or similar lands, including environmental corridors that are in public
ownership. This Plan recommends that the Village study the most appropriate location for a commu-
nity park for active recreational uses. This park should be situated within a developing planned
neighborhood, possibly on the west side of STH 83 across from the baseball fields southwest of Cen-
tral High School. In addition, this P/a# recommends further study to identfy the most appropriate
location for a natural area to provide opportunities for protection of the wetlands and serve as an in-
terpretive site to explain the importance of wetlands for flood prevention and water quality.

17.Surface Water
Paddock Lake, Hooker Lake and perennial streams are included in this category. For recommenda-
tions related to the lakes and other waterways in the area, see Chapter Two.

18. Environmental Corridor
This planned land use category includes generally continuous environmentally sensitive areas in pri-
vate ownership at the time of Pl adoption, including DNR wetands, undeveloped shoreland set-
back areas, and FEMA designated floodplains. These areas are intended for long-term open space,
wildlife habitat, stormwater management, natural areas, and/or trail uses. Existing development and
cropping and grazing may continue within the environmental corridor, recognizing that some im-
provements may be fimited by undetlying regulations. New buildings that do not replace old build-
ings and significant expansions to existing building footprints should be discouraged, particularly
where other, more appropriate building sites are available on the same parcel outside the environ-
mental corridor. If new or expanded development is proposed on lots where an environmental corri-
dor is mapped, the landowner should identify the exact boundaries of the environmental corddor
based on the actual wetland, floodplain, or shoreline setback line,

Figure 17 shows the acreage included in each planned land use category on the Planned Land Use
Map.
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Figure 17: Planned Land Use Acreage Summary

Land Use Acres Percent

Public Open Space 263.0 6.7%
Surface Water 276.0 7.1%
Planned Neighborhood 1650.0 42.2%
Rural Residential 9.3 0.2%
Single Family Residential 966.0 24.7%
Mixed Residendal 315 0.8%
Planned Mixed Use 1105 2.8%
General Business 6.0 0.2%
Planned Business 29.2 0.7%
General Industrial 1.8 ~

Planned Industrial 60.8 1.6%
Institutional 94.3 2.4%
Right-of-Way 408.0 10.4%
TOTAL 3906.3 100%

Sonrce: GIS Inventory of Viflage Planned Land Use Map, Decernber 2004

Naote: The Redevelopment Area and Environmmental Corvidor areas are not
listed abore. Ondy the acreage for the underlying land wse category is used
bere, )

E. Recommended Zoning Ordinance Changes

The Viilage should use the Planned Land Use Map as a guide for amending the Village’s zoning ordinance
and zoning map, and subdivision regulations. In order to implement the Planned Land Use Map, the Village
should, as a first implementation priority, revise its zoning ordinance after completing a more de-
tailed study of what changes are needed. At 2 minimum, the Village should consider adding additional
zoning districts to accommodate the Village’s desired land use pattern. Currently, the Village’s zoning ordi-
nance is a rough tool, at best, to accomplish the goals specified in this Pl A more detailed zoning ordinance
would better guide development in and around the Village and ensure it is more in keeping with the Village’s
desires for appropdate development character,

The following two figures help illustrate this concept. Figure 18 shows an overview of the current zoning dis-
tricts, organized by land use (residential, institudonal and office, commercial, and industrial) and character
types (rural, exurban, suburban, etc.). The character types are arranged from least intense (i.e. agricultural ar-
eas, low-density development) to most intense (i.e. the core downtown of a larger city or village).

The Village’s current zoning ordinance includes zoning districts that create only the following community
character types:

® “Exutban” residential development through the one home per 10 acres of land provision in the A-A dis-
trict;

®  “Suburban” style residential development through the 12,000 and 16,000 square foot lots allowed in the
R-2 and R-3 districts respectively;

® “Neighborhood” development tesidential development through the R-1 district that allows 8,000 square
toot lots;
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s “Urban” development for all of the major land use types, through the two family and multiple family
residential zoning districts (RD-1 and RM-1), institutional district (I-1), commercial districts (B-1 and B-
2), and industrial districts (M-1 and M-2).

Figure 18: Current Zoning District Organized by Land Use and Character Type

Character Fype Land Use Type
Listed fi feast in- itutions \ .

t(cr::eet o ;?;;t ::r:ti:nl:lc) Residential Instgl;ft-::): L/ Commetcial Industrial

Rural . ~ ~ ~
A-A

Es ~ ~ ~

xurban (1ot per 10 acres)
Suburban R-2 and R-3 ~ ~ ~
Neighborhood R-1 ~ -~ -~
Urban RM-1 I1 B-1/B-2 M-1/M-2
Central ~ ~ ~ o~
Core ' ~ ~ ~ ~

However, the input received during this planning process and the community character recommendations in
this Plan supgest that the Village desires to protect viable agricultural areas and rural character. The Planned
Land Use Map and the recommendations of this Plan also call for high-quality office and business uses reflec-
tive of suburban or neighborhood character. Finally, the Plan calls for more intense areas of development
around the Brass Ball corner and the planned Neighborhood Center on the east side of the Village.

"T'o accommodate those stated desires, Figure 19 presents recommendations for the creation of new zoning
districts or modification of existing ones. These include:

*  An Agricultural zoning district that protects viable agricultural operations and rural character through a
one lot per 35 acre density requirement;

»  The climination of the A-A zoning district, which results in rural sprawl. Existing A-A areas would be
zoned as R-1, R-2, or R-3;

s The addition of Planned Office (PO), Planned Business (PB) and Planned Industrial (P1) zoning districts
to accommodate the desire for high-quality, generously landscaped developments with modest signage;

»  The addition of Neighborhood Office (NO} and Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning districts to ac-
commodate the desire for office and business developments within the Planned Neighborhood land use
areas shown on the Planned Land Use Map;

"  ‘The replacement of the existing business zoning districts (B-1 and B-2) with a General Business (GB)
zoning district that would allow for higher intensity land uses with a modest amount of landscaping and
more intense signage;

= The replacement of the M-1 Light Industrial zoning district with a Planned Industrial zoning district
{mentioned above);

*  The addition of a Village Center (VC) zoning district to accommodate the desire for mixed-use develop-
ments at the Brass Ball corner and in the planned Neighborhood Center on the Village’s east side. Such a
district may require that buildings be more than one story, contain a mix of uses, are orented toward pe-
destrian access, and have high design standards.
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Figure 19: Recommended Zoning District Changes

Character Type Land Use Type
Institutional . .
/ Commercial Industrial

(Listed from least intense Residential
esidentia
QOffice

to most intense)

Agricultural N
A-A (1 per 35 acres)

T Bxuban | AcA{periDacees) ~

—~ ~

o P Planned Office Planned Planned
Suburban” R-2and R-3 ®O) Business (PB) Industrial (P1)
. o Neighborhood Neighborhood Business
_ Nc:ghbor_h.ood : R-1 Office (NO) (NB)
. Lo o : B-1/B2
s Urban RN RM- 11 General Business (GB) M-i/M-2
T s T - ~ Village N
.Cc.nt.r.a:l s Commercial (V)
Core . @7 . N - -
i
48
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IV. TRANSPORTATION

This chapter includes a compilation of background information, goals, objectives, policies and recommended
programs to guide the futare development and maintenance of various modes of transportation in the Village
of Paddock Lake. The chapter compares the Village’s transportation policies and programs to County, State
and regional transportation plans as required under §66.1001, Wisconsin Statutes.

A. Existing Transportation Network

Map 4 depicts the recommended transporration system in the
Village of Paddock Lake planning arca. The map identifies rec-
ommended arterial, collector, commercial service and residential
streets. In addition, recommended rights of way are listed for
each type of street, The Village of Paddock Lake should usc this
map as the basis for adopting an official map that applies to the
Village and its one-and-a-half mile extraterritorial area. The Vil-
lage Planning Commission and Village Board should use the
official map to require street fight of way dedications, per the
Village’s Land Subdivision Ordinance and the Village Zoning
Ordinance, for all development that occurs within the Village
limits and its extraterritorial area.

1. Roadways
Interstate Highway 94 (TH 94) runs north-south and is
situated approximately 7 miles east of the Village. The
Interstate forms one of the most important transporta-
ton corridors in the State and plays an important role
in economic growth by moving freight, providing ac-
cess to major cities, employment centers, and airpotts,
‘and facilitating tourism. U.S. Route 45 also runs north-
south and is located approximately 2 miles east of Pad-
dock Lale.

The Village is primarily served by a network of State
"T'rank Highways (STHs) and County Trunk Highways
(CTHs) that border the community on three sides.
CTH K (60 Street) runs east-west on the northern
side of the Village. STH 50 forms the major transporta-
don route at Paddock Lake’s south end and STH 75/8%
runs north-south near the Village’s western edge.

Traffic volume in the arca around Paddock Lake has
increased significantly during the past decade. The Wis-
consin Department of Transportation reports that be-
rween 1996 and 2002 the average number of cars trav-
eling CTH K rose from 2,900 to 3,900 a day between
CTH EW and USH 45. The increased number of vehi-
cles on the State and County trunk highway system is
explained primarily by the increasing population and
growing development occurring in the area.
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2,

Bike and Pedestrian Facilities

Bike and pedestrian facilities are extremely important for a compact village like Paddock Lake, where
commercial areas and parks are generally within walking distance of one another. In general, the Vil-
lage is not well served by either sidewalks or bike routes. Establishing sidewalks, pedesttian lake ac-
cess, and bicycle routes to neighborhood businesses, parks, and other destinations presents a signifi-
cant opportunity for the Village.

The Village has one marked bike lane, 248" Street, It does not currently have any other bike routes
or lanes. According to national standards, bike routes should be designated along streets that provide
a direct route to a useful destination, have traffic volumes less than 2,000 cars per day, and have
speed limits of 30 MPH or less. Streets that have higher traffic volumes or speeds should have wider
travel lanes and/or designated bike lanes to safely accommodate bike travel. Within the County, and
particularly in the eastern section, a network of bike paths creates alternative transportation and rec-
reational opportunities.

. Airports

‘There are 15 airports located in Kenosha County, although none of them are in Paddock Lake. The
nearest large commercial cartier airport is the General Mitchell International Airport in Milwaukee.
Two other airports, Chicago O’Hare and Kenosha Municipal Airport, are certified for use by com-
mercial carriers. Four of the airports in the County are open for public use and are classified as a
“general utility” airports serving small general aviation single and twin-engine aircrafts.

Rail

"There is no rail line running through Paddock Lake. Commuter rail to Chicago via the METRA is
available in the City of Kenosha and in the Village of Antioch in northern Winois. These rail lines are
important transportation arterials that area currently affecting growth and development in the Village,
and will continue to do so. In the future, the rail line now ending in the Village of Antioch may be
extended through the Village of Silver Lake to the City of Burlington in Racine County; however, the
Burlington-Antioch corrdor study completed by SEWRPC in 2002 determined that it not feasible to

extend rail service north from Antioch into Kenosha and Racine countes at this ime.

Para-transit

Para-transit is a specialized transit service offered to specific segments of the population that require
more accessible vehicles and flexible routing. The largest proportion of the population served is the
frail elderly who are either living in their own homes, in nursing homes or some type of community
based residential facility. Para-transit services for Paddock Lake are currently operated ata County
level on a fee-for-service basis. The Kenosha County Division of Aging administers the Care-A-Van
transportation service, which provides door-to-door transportation to older and disabled adults. The
Division also coordinates a Volunteer Escort Service. These services are being cut back at the Fed-
eral level, which may pose challenges in the future.

review of County, State and Regional Transporiation Plans
The following is a review of County, regional, and State transportation plans and studies relevant to
Paddock Lake:

Kenosha County Highway Department Plans

The Kenosha County Department of Public Works prepares a five-year transportation improvement
plan for county transportation facilides. Although no specific plans are mentioned in this Plan that
would affect the Village, the County intends to continue standard roadway maintenance on the area’s
facilities, including a 2 overlay on CTH K (600 Street) between STH 75 and STH 45.
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A Regional Transportation System Plan for Southeastern Wisconsin: 2020

This 1997 document, and a 2025 update to the Plan adopted in Apal 2003, outlined the need for
changes in the region’s transit systems and roadways to accommodate changing user demands. The
Plan calls for a “widening and/or other improvement to provide significant additional capacity” to
STH 83 between the Hllinois State line and the Village of Paddock Lake.

Wisconsin Department of Transportation Six-Year Highway Improvement Program:
2004-2009

DOT’s Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program identifies projects around the state in need
to improvement. The resurfacing of STH 83 between the llinois state line and the Village of Pad-
dock Lake is identified in the plan.

A Transportation Improvement Program for Southeastern Wisconsin: 2005-2007.
Although DOT is in charge of statewide transportation improvement Programs (T1P), SEWRPC is
responsible for regional TIP. The regional TIP is compiled by an interagency staff team and reviewed
by advisory committees composed of local elected and appointed officials and agency representa-
rives. SEWRPC adopted the 2005-2007 TIP in carly 2005, There area a varicty of transportation pro-
jects around the Village within in this document.

Wisconsin State Highway Plan and Corridors 2020 Plan

The Wisconsin State Highway Plan is developed by the DOT and focuses on the 11,800 miles of
State Trunk Highway routes in Wisconsin. The plan does not identify specific projects, but broad
strategies and policies to improve the State highway system over the next 20 years. The plan includes
three main arcas of emphasis: pavement and bridge preservation, traffic movement, and safety.

Translinks 21: A Multimodal Transportation Plan for Wisconsin’s 21" Century
Transfinks 21: A Maltimodal Transportation Plan for Wisconsin's 21 Centiry provides a broad planning
“umbrella” including a vision and goals for transportation systems in the Statc for the next 25 years.
This 1995 plan rccommends complete construction of the Corridors 2020 “backbone” network by
200; the creation of a new State grant program to help local governments prepare transportation cot-
ridot management plans to deal effectively with growth; the provision of State fanding to assist small
-communities in providing transportation services t0 clderly and disabled persons; and the develop-
ment of a detailed assessment of local road investment needs. In Kenosha County, STH 50 was iden-
tified as part of the “backbone” network and also as a major part of the connector system between
the City of Kenosha and Lake Geneva.

"Town of Salem Bicycle Plans

The Town of Salem has identified planned trails and hike and bike facilities in its Tonn of Salern Land
Use Plan: 2020. These include plans for trails along 83 Street and along STH 83 and STH 75 north
of STH 50 to CTH K.

A Regional Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan for Southeastern Wisconsin: 2010

*T'his plan considers bicycle and pedestrian facilides needs for the 7-County southeastern Wisconsin
Region. The plan documents existing networks and identifies planned routes for bicycle and pedes-
ttian uses. The nearest planned bicycle route runs to the west of the Village of Silver Lake. An
amendment to this Plan identifies additional bicycte and pedestrian facilides along Brighton Creck,
west of the Village and an on-street bicycle lane for CTH K between Kenosha and the Walworth
County line. Such a facility could include wide paved shoulders, a bicycle lane, or a separate bike path
within the right-of-way. The specific type of facility would be determined during the preliminary en-

gineering phase at the tme the highway is constructed.

Wisconsin Bicycle Transportation Plan 2020

Wisconsin Bicycle Transportation Plan 2020, adopted in 1998 presents 4 blueprint for improving
conditions for bicycling, clarifics WisDOT’s role in bicycle transportation, and establishes policies for
further integrating bicycling into the current transportation system. The plan map shows exising
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State trails and future “priority corridors and key linkages” for bicycling along the State Trunk High-
way system in Wisconsin. In Kenosha County, the DOT is planning bicycle routes linking the City of
Kenosha with the Cirties of Racine and Milwaukee.

Wisconsin Pedestrian Plan 2020

Wisconsin Pedestrian Policy Plan 2020 (2002) oudlines Statewide and local measures to increase walk-
ing and to promote pedestrian comfort and safety. The plan provides a policy framework addressing
pedestrian issues and clarifies WisDO'T’s role in mecting pedestrian needs. Pedestrian facilities in-
clude sidewalks, walkways, streetscapes, crosswalks, traffic control signals, overpasses and under-
passes, bridges, multi-use paths, curb cuts and ramps, transit stops, and paved shoulders. This plan

should act as a guide for improving existing pedestrian facilides and for designing new sidewalks and
paths for pedestrians.

Wisconsin State Airport System Plan 2020

Wisconsin State Airport System Plan 2020 includes a general inventory of existing airport facilities in
the State and provides a framework for the preservation and enhancement of a system of public-use
airports to meet the current and futare aviation needs of the State. It includes recommendations to
upgrade existing facilities through runway extensions and replacements and facility improvements,
but does not identify any new locations for airports to meet future needs.

8. Transportation Goals, Objectives and Policies
Goal: Provide a safe and efficient muiti-modal transportation system.

Objectives, Policies, and Programs:

4. Provide safe and convenient access for cars, bikes, and pedestrians between neighborhoods, em-
ployment centers, schools, setvice centers, and recreational centers.

b. Coordinate transportation improvements with new development proposals to ensure that the Village
retains a safe and functional transportadon system as the community grows.

c. _ Integrate transportaton facilities with desired land use patterns, especially for traditional neighbor-
hood development where streets are of modest width and driveways can be accessed from either the
front or the rear of a home.

d. Support biking, walking, and other non-motorized modes of transportation by requiring new
neighborhoods be well connected to existing neighborhoods, important destinations and Village
streets, with muldple access points into and out of the neighborhood and by planning for a network
of hiking/biking trails connecting key points in and around the community to ensure safe pedestrian
and bike use.

e. Ensure that schools, patks, playgrounds, and similar actvity centers are well served by sidewalks and
bicycle routes. Consider bicycle and pedestrian access when selecting sites for new public facilides
such as schoals, parks, libraries, and community centers,

f Coordinate with the Town of Salem, Town of Brighton, Town of Paris, Town of Bristol, Kenosha
County and SEWRPC regarding future transportation and land uses in areas near the Village.

g. As population growth and demand warrants, consider future vanpool connections and/or shared taxi
ride service from the Village to 1-94 park and ride faciliies, the City of Kenosha, and/or the Metra
commuter rail stop.

h., Explore ways to encourage additional funding for an expansion of Kenosha County’s para-transit
services, especially for the elderly in the Village.
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C. Transportation Recommendations

Building upon the goals, objectives and policies described above, the following recommendations are offered:

1.

Adopt an Official Map for the Village and iis 1.5-Mile ETJ

"The putpose of an Official Map, which must be adopted by ordinance, is to ensure that areas for
planned future public facilities are reserved. Map 4 can be used as a starting point for the Village’s
Official Map. Official Maps typically show general alignments of planned arterial and collectot roads,
expanded rights-of-way for certain existing roads, and recommended locations for drainageways for
stormwater management, possible sewer interceptors, new parks, new schools facilities, possible
trails, and any other planned public facilities. When development is proposed in an arca of a feature
on an Official Map, the local government may obtain land for that feature through dedication, pur-
chase, or reservation. Minimum setbacks from roads should be measured from future right-of-way
lines as recommended on the Official Map. The Official Map may be amended from time-to-time as
desired by the Village.

Review and Amend as Appropriafe the Village's Land Division Code

Walking, biking, and public transit will become increasingly important in Kenosha County, particu-
larly as the youth and elderly population increases. There are 2 few areas of the Village’s current land
division code related to transportation that could be updated to improve pedestrian accessibility in
the community. These include:

®  Standards to encourage an interconnected local street pattern and pedestrian connec-
tions within and between new subdivisions. Map 4 shows the conceptual alignment of new
proposed streets to serve new planned residential areas. The existing and future circulation pat-
tern within the Village should provide multiple routes to most destinations, while minimizing
potential contflicts between residential and non-residential land uses. Spreading tratfic among
several roads allows for the most efficient use of transportation dollars and minimizes traffic
congestion on a few main roads. An interconnected system is also preferred for bike and pedes-
trian access, police and fire access, street maintenance, and snow plowing. The land division code
should state that the Village discourages cul-de-sacs unless limited by topographic con-
straints such as an environmental corridor or water feature. Where street connections are not
possible, such asina cul-de-sac, pedestrian connections should be provided. Currently, the
jand division ordinance does not address either interconnected strect patterns or connections be-
tween subdivisions.

»  Sidewalk requirements. The current ordinance does not require sidewalks to be installed in
new development, but states that they “may be required” on blocks longer than 900 feet. Stan-
dards for sidewalks are an important part of a subdivision ordinance because they ensure 2 safe
and comfortable way for people to get around the neighborhood and to other patts of the Vil-
lage. Sidewalks are also important places for neighborhood recreaton and socializing. The Vil-
lage should adopt standards to require sidewalks of a minimum of 5 feet in width, on both sides
of the street in all new development.

= Allow alleys where appropriate. The current code states that alleys are not allowed in new
cesidential subdivisions. To facilitate traditional neighborhood development goals, this restriction
should be amended to allow alleys where the Village Board deems them appropriate to provide a
safe and aturactive residential development pattern.

»  Reduce block length. In the existing land division ordinance, block lengths for new develop-
ment can be up to 1,500 feet long. Many communities are finding that block lengths of 800 feet
are more conducive to pedestrian movement and create a more intimate neighborhood feeling.
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»  Easements for trails. The current land division ordinance states that easements should be dedi-
cated where required for standard utilities (gas, sewer, water, etc), but does not mention any
dedication requirements for multi-use trails. As the Village prows and develops, it may want to
require dedication of fand for hiking or biking trails. Stating this in the subdivision ordinance will
facilitate the ease at which dedications are made in the future.

3. Prepare and Update Annually a 3 fo 5-year Capital Improvement Program (CiP)
A CIP can help the Village set prorities for new projects and on-going maintenance of the transpor-
tation and utility systems. The Village is currently conducting short-term planning (i.e. site plan re-
view for new developments) and long-termn planning (i.e. this Comprehensive Plan), but a CIP fills
that important mid-range planning gap that is perhaps the most crucial and most commonly over-
looked component of managing a Village. As a mid-range facility planning effort, a CIP can help
avoid large fluctuations in budgets on a year-to-year basis. An important component of a CIP is
evaluating current utlity and transportation systems. The Village is in the process of a two-ycar pro-
gram to resurface all of the streets. This is a perfect example of a program to include in the Village’s
overall CIP, in order to understand how it fits in the larger picture of capital improvements being
conducted in the Village. Looking at a comprehensive picture can help the Village logically determine
when and at what level those needed improvements should be funded.

"The following projects are a few examples of those that could be included in an initial CIP:

®» The two-year program to resurface Village streets;

=  Building trail facilities as shown on the Planned Land Use Map;

»  Needed sewer line and water line improvements in existing areas (to increase capacity, to fix
leaks, etc.);

= Wastewater treatment plant upgrades needed to accommodate new population growth;

s Woater and sewer extensions into developing areas of the Village. More information about water
and sewer extensions can be found in the Utilities and Community Facilities Chapter.

As part of the CIP process, the Village should also consider:

s Rating street conditions using a consistent rating system. One such system, used by Wis-
DOT is PASER, which uses a sliding scale ranging from 1 to 10 for asphalt and concrete sur-
faces, with 10 being “excellent” and 1 being “failed”. Wherever necessary, major roadway recon-
structions should take place at the same time as planned improvements to the water and waste-
water distribution and collection systems when those systems are located below city streets.

» Improving and replacing sidewalks based on logical system of evaluating sidewalk condition,
usage and safety issues.

» Eanmarking “discretionary” funds to ensure some flexibility to respond to unforeseen priori-
ties. The Village Board should formally approve the allocation of these discretionary funds to
certain priority projects.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 56



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

V.UTILITIES AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES

This section of the Plan contains a compilation of background information, goals, objectives, policies and
recommended programs to guide the future maintenance and development of utilities and community facili-
tes in the Village of Paddock Lake, as required under §66.1001, Wisconsin Statutes.

A. Existing Utility and Community Facilities

1. Village Facilities
The Paddock Lake Municipal Building, located
at 6969 236th Ave, houses the Village clerk’s
office, the building inspector’s office, the po-
lice, and a meeting room. The Village con-
structed the building in 1987.

2. Parks and Recreational Resources
The Village values the contribution of parks,
open space, and other natural areas to the
area’s quality of life, and places a high priority
in their acquisition and maintenancc. It
adopted its Comprehensive Outdoor Recrea-
tion Plan (CORP) in April 1999, which itisin
the process of implementing. 1t plans to up-
date the CORP sometime in 2005.

Parkland in the Village is shown on Map 2. As
of 2004, the Village had approximately 29
acres of parks and open space, encompassing
about two percent of its total land area. The
Village maintains seven parks and three Jake
access areas.

Village Parks

= §2nd Street Patle. This neighborhood park encompasses 0.3 acres in the northern past of Pad-
dock Lake. The park is welt maintained and includes a play ares, lighted basketball court, picnic
table, park bench, and playground equipment with swings. This park is located in a low-Iying area
and is prone to flooding.

»  Erickson Park. This park is located in the northeast section of the Village. The 1.5 acre
neighborhood park includes unlighted tennis coutts, 2 half-court basketball court, and open rec-
reation area, benches, and playground equipments with swings and 2 merry-go-round.

» Hoag Park. Hoag Parkis a small, 0.6 acre park situated on the eastern shore of Paddock Lake.
This neighborhood park includes a swimming area, Open recreation arca, benches, picnic tables,
and playground equipment.

= McAlonan Park, This popular parkisa centrally located and includes 1.5 acres in the southwest
scction of the Village. The patk incudes a fishing pier, a basketball court, an open recreation
area, benches, restrooms, and updated playground equipment.

»  Senior Citizens Park. This undeveloped neighborhood park includes .66 acres along the
northwest shore of Paddock Lake. Fhis park has no formal recreational infrastructure.
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s Paddock Lake Municipal Building. The Paddock Lake Municipal Building includes a 2.5 acre
site that offers a well-developed recreational arca. A softball/baseball diamond on the site has re-
cently benefited from improvements.:

*  The Union League Club is a Boys and Girls Club Run by the Chicago Union League.
"This otganization runs an annual summer camp for children. It is located on the north-central
portion of the Village, north of CTHK.

Other Parks and Open Spaces

e Old Settler’s Park. Kenosha County owns and operates this 10-acre pack in the center of the
Village, just north of STH 50. The park boasts many facilities of a larger community park, such
as extensive picnic arcas, Testrooms, park shelter, children’s play cquipment, swimming beach
and paved parking Jot. The County charges a daily or yearly fee to use the park facilities.

¢ Westosha Central High School. This 2-acre school recreation area is located on the sout}; side
of STH 50 adjacent to Central High School, This park is classified as a community park and has
three baseball diamonds, one football feld/track facility and a soccer field.

e Natural Areas. See Chapter 11 for a description of the natural areas around the Village.

Lake Access Areas

»  75th Street Public Lake Access. This access area consists of more than a 200-foot long strip of
shoreline on the south side of Paddock Lake. There are restrooms located at this site,

«  Hooker Lake Access Site. This boat launch provides lake access on the north end of Hooker
Lake in the southeast end of Paddock Lake. The Vil- .
lage improved this access area with a public boat ac- 2004 Village Survey Results

cess and parking area upgrade in 1999. When asked what kinds of additional

» Paddock Lake Boat Launch, This launch facility is park facilities are nceded, most re

located on the eastern shore of Paddock Lake, at the
end of 68th Street, off of 236% Street. A concrete
launch is located at this site and parking is available at
the Paddock Lake Municipal Building, three blocks
from the launch area. The concrete launch was con-
structed in part with a DNR grant.

spondents { ) answered “Naturad
areas, such e trail, wildhie
viewing arcas, InECrpretive centers

which are focused on natural feawares,

such as rivers, streams, ponds, wet-
lands, woodlands, ete.” Mmost as
many (33.3") responded that all park
The National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) and recreational needs are beng met
Recreation and Open Space Standards recommend 6.25
to 10.5 acres of close-to-home parkiand per 1,000 people.
Assuming the Village has around 3,100 persons in 2004, the Village would need between 19 and 33
acres of close-to-home parkland. The Village’s current 29 actes is appropriate for its current popula-
tion. There are, however, additional patk and recreational needs describe in the Recommenda-
tion section below.

3. Schools
There are three school districts that operate within the Village, These districts compiise a portion of
the Westosha Central Feeder Schools Consortium, which is made up of six schoot districts in
Kenosha County. The school district boundaries are shown on Map 1.

*  The Central High School District of Westosha is the largest District in the County, servicing
most of the Towns of Paris, Bristol, Brighton, and Wheadand, and a lictle less than half the
"Town of Salem. It operates the Westosha Central High School on the Village’s southwest side.
Enrollment at this school increased by about 50% between 1990 and 2003 (See Figure 20). The
school has created projections for 2005, based on the existing enroliment in the District’s ele-
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mentary schools. The school expects to accommodate 1,225 students by 2005. The school’s
maximum capacity is approximately 1,200 students, A referendum is scheduled to fund construc-
tion of an additional school.

=  The Brighton Elementary School District operates Brighton Elementary (K-12), serving Vil-
lage residents north of 60% Street. This school has 190 students enrolled in 2003-2004.

*  The Salem Grade School District operates the Salem Grade School (K-8), which serves the
remainder of the Village. Salem Grade School has 1,140 students enrolled in 2003-2004.

Figure 20: Westosha Ceniral High School District Enrollment, 1990 - 2003
— ]

1,400 -

Students

Sonree: Westosha Central High Schoal, 2004

4. Police, Fire, Emergency, Health Care Services and Chitd Care Facilities
The Village contracts with the Kenosha
County Sheriff's Department for police
protection. The Paddock Lake Fire and
Police Commission contracts with the
Town of Salem Fire and EMS Commit-
tee for fire and rescue services. Two sta-
dons based in the Town of Salem service
the Village of Paddock Lake.

Paddock Lake does not have any hospi-
tals within the Village limits. However,
there is the Aurora Paddock Lake re-
gional clinic located in the Village. The
clinic is open Monday through Friday. In
addition, three hospitals within a 20 mile
radius serve Paddock Lake residents, in-
cluding Memorial Hospital in Burlington e
(about 14 miles), the Aurora Medical Center of Kenosha (about 16 miles),
rorehab Center, Midwest (about 17 miles; Waterford, WI).

i 4 i
and the Lakeview Neu-

Adopted: April 20, 2005 59



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

5. libraries
The Community Library, which is part of the Kenosha County Library System, operates three
branches near the Village. The Community Library began in the late 19705 as volunteer run effort
and has expanded to include three branches. The branch in the Town of Salem is the closest to Pad-
dock Lake. There is no library located within the Village.

6. Water Supply
Residents and businesses in the Village of Paddock Lake obtain their water supply from a municipal
water system. This water system uses watct from two wells located 136 and 141 feet deep. About
30% of the Village is served by municipal water. The remainder use private wells.

Historically the Village has enjoyed access to good quality groundswater with only a few problems
stemming from slightly clevated Jevels of iron, The level of iron in the water is an aesthetc issue, not
a safety issue. Lately, concerns have arisen about the draw-down of the Jocal aquifer caused by new
urban development. A recent study of the Village’s water supply and distribution system summarizes
future water demand in the Village and provides water supply options based on future development
projections. The Village is currently secking new groundwater sources to accommodate antcipated
growth and development, particulatly west of the current Village limits in arcas identified for sewer
service area (SSA) expansion in the Village’s 1997 Development Plan, but which have since been des-
ignated as the Town of Salermn’s SSA, and also areas south of STH 50.

7. Wastewater Treatment Facilities
In Kenosha County, the DNR has contracted its authority over the extension of public sanitary
sewer systems to the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC), while the
County regulates private sanitary systems. To assist in the administration of its responsibility regard-
ing public sanitary systems, and to coordinate this authority with other regional planning objectives,
SEVWRPC has established a series of "sewer service areas" to delimit the areas in which public sani-
tary sewer systems and services can be provided. Under SEWRPC policies, urban (sewered) devel-
opment must be directed into sewer service areas. The Village of Paddock Lake is currently served by
_two Sanitary Sewer Districts (3SDs); its own, and the Town of Salem SSD.

“The Village’s wastewater collection system consists of a municipal sewage treatment plant served by a
sanitary sewer system of sewer mains and collector lines. The sewer system cutrently experiences
infiltration during rain events, which increases the amount of liquid in the pipes. The increased
volume from infiltration causes a strain on the wastewater treatment plant. The Village recently com-
pleted a Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study (SSES) that identifies the location of leaks in their collec-
tion system and how to most effectively deal with those leaks. A moderate amount of renovatdon of
these mains and laterals has been done in the past, and continued on-going maintenance will be re-
guired. Sewer mains and laterals in the Village are reconstructed when streets are resurfaced. As this
oceurs, the strain caused to the treatment plant from infiltration will be eased, freeing up capacity.
"The Village is currently researching ways to fund these improvement projects.

"The original treatment plant, constructed in 1958, was expanded in 1967 and further modified in
1970. The plant was rebuilt between 1989 and 1990. The Village uses an extended, acration-activated
sludge process to treat its wastewatcr. Although the majority of the system is based on gravity flow,
five pump stations transport Wastewater from low-lying areas to the treatment facility. The plant’s
peak capacity is 2,000 gallons per minute.

“The 2020 Facilities Plan, adopted in 1997, mentjoned that the hydraulic and organic load on the
plant sometimes exceeds its design capacity. As mentioned above, the plant operates within its
design capacity during times of normal water flow, but exceeds capacity during periods of heavy, ot
wet, water flow. However, the treated water leaving the plant typically exceeds State requirements for
water quality and the Village is one of the few communities in the area that did not bypass untreated

wastewater into area waterways during the heavy May rains and floods of 2004. The Village expects
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to make decisions on furure plans for the facility after completion of a required evaluation of the
plant, which will occur within the next five years. One goal of this study will be to analyze the feasi-
bility of a consolidated scwer service arca serving the Village. Regardless of the specific recommenda-
tions that develop from the study, the Village will need to upgrade its treatment plant during the life
of this Plan to accommodate the expected population growth in the Village.

"The Town of Salem is in the process of preparing a wastewater management plan as this Plan is being
adopted. The wastewater management plan includes areas within the Village’s planned growth areas.

8. Stormwater Management System
The Village experiences periodic fAooding in some developed areas of the community, but does not
currently participate in the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) floodplain mapping
system. Flooding is notable in the residential areas north of the lake and stightly to the cast. This area
wwas addressed in some detail in SEWRPC’s June 2003 publication entitled Comprebensive Plan for the
Des Plaines Watershed. The plan estimated that average annual monetary flood damages.

attributable to ptimary and secondary structural flooding were esdmated at 318,500 under existing
conditions, and $31,400 under planned land use and existing channel conditions. However, the
planned land use scenarios used for SEWRPC’s plan were much less than those identified in the
Planned Land Use Map presented in this Pla. The SEWRPC plan discussed four different alterna-
tives to improve the flooding hazards and recommended an alternative the seemed to have the high-
est benefits-cost ratio. This alternative recommended a combination of a detention storage area north
of 60" Street, storm sewer improvements, and structure floodproofing for some of the homes in the

area. The Village is currently investigating how to fund flood mitigation in this area of the Village.

During the summer of 2004, the Village conducted regular maintenance activities on its storm sewer.
It replaced some culverts, and installed and cleaned drainage ditches during regularly scheduled road
maintenance work on the Village’s west side.

The Village has erosion control standards in place for new development. However, it does not have 2
stormwater management plan. As a member of the Round Lake Beach of linois management area
for National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Phase 11 permitting, the Village will
be required to reduce pollutant load in stormwater by 20% by 2008, by 40% by 2013. Those com-
munities permitted under Phase 11 are required to develop and implement a comprehensive stormwa-
ter management program that includes six minimum mMEasuLes: (1) public education and outreach on
stormwater impacts; (2) public involvement/participation; (3) illicit discharge detection and elimina-
ton; (4) construction site stormwater runoff control; (5) post-construction stommwater management
for new development and redevelopment; and (6) pollution prevention/good housekeeping for mu-
nicipal operations.

9. Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling
The Village contracts with Waste Management for removal of residental waste. Businesses in the
community are responsible for their own waste removal. Solid waste is hauled to the Pheasant Run
Landfill, Waste Management also collects recyclable materials for the Village.

10.Telecommunications
Verizon North provides telecommunications service in the Village of Paddock Lake. There ate two
cell towers in the Village. In the future, the Village prefers pursuing 2 co-location strategy for new
cell towers.

11. Electric Generation and Power Distribution Systems
The Village receives its electric and gas service through WE Energies.

Adopted: Apsil 20, 2005 61



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

12.Cemeteries
There are no cemeteries located within the Village limits. The Union Cemetery, located on STH 50,
1.5 miles west of Paddock Lake is perhaps the closest cemetery to the Village. Members of the Pad-
dock family, for whom the Village is named, are buried in this cemetery.

B. Utilities and Community Faciiities Goals, Objectives and Policies

Goal: Preserve the Village's sense of community and quality of jife by maintaining
and enhancing access to public services and facilities.

Goal: Coordinate utility and community facility systems planning with land use,
transportation, natural resource, and recreation planning.

Objectives, Policies and Programs:
2. Ensure that basic public services such as adequate police and fire protection, street services, sanitary
sewer services and education are made available to all residents.

b. Provide quality, accessible schoal, recreation, library, and open space facilities and services to meet
the needs of all age groups in the Village.

c. Encourage logical, cost-efficient expansion of public utilities to serve compact development patterns.

Maximize the use of cxisting utilities and facilities within the Village, and plan for an otderly exten-
sion of municipal utilities and facilities in the planned growth accas shown on Map 4.

e. Bnsure that the Village’s sanitary sewer system, wastewater treatment facility, and water system have
adequate capacity to accommeodate futute growth.

f,  Use impact fees as deemed approptiate to help cover the costs of development.

C. Ufilities and Community Facilities Recommendations

1. Prepare and annually vpdate a 3 to 5-year capital improvement program (CIP)
A CIP sets priosides for competing public facility needs (c.g. water system development, sanitary
sewer system development, new roads, schools, parks, libraties, etc.) to ensure that capital improve-
ments coincide with the overall communiry development goals sct forward in this Plan. This type of
mid-range facility planning effort can help avoid large fluctuations in budgets on a year-to-yeat basis
and ensure proper emphasis is placed on high priority projects and needs. The Westside and Eastside
Growth Areas identified on the Planned Land Use Map will require significant investments in public
utility services, and a CIP can assist the Village in preparing for these cxpenditures well in advance of
when the funds are actually needed. In addition, a CIP is an appropriate place to gather recommerida-
tions for utility improvernents identified in other plans, such as the recently-completed SSES. The
cecommendations in this plan should be included in a new Village CIP. (See the Transportation
Chapter Recommendations for more information about CIP).

2. Adopt an official map for the Village and its 1.5-mile ETJ
As described in Chapter Four, the Village should consider creating an official map to identify the lo-
cadons for new public facilities, such as roads, sanitary sewer lines, water lines, storm sewer lines, trail
extensions and parks. This will be particularly important for the growth areas identified on the
Planned Land Use Map.

3. Coordinate future land development with utility improvements
The Village should coordinate future land development with planned improvements to the public
sanitary sewer System, SLOIm Sewer system, and the water distribution system, guiding urtban devel-
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opment into areas with pubtic utilities and away from areas without public utilities. At the
time this Plan was developed, the Westside Growth Area, as described in Chapter Three, is assumed
to have sewer service provided by the Town of Salem and water service provided by the Village. If
the Town does not provide sewer and detaches this area from its sewer service arca, it would be at
lcast three years before the Village could serve this area. The Village recently approved the Waer Sup-
ply and Distribntion System West Side Master Plan, which outlines the water supply, treatment, Storage,
and distribution facilities necessary to serve the area identified in the Planned Land Use Map as the
Westside Growth Area, The water supply will ikely come from a shallow water aquifcr.

By guiding development into areas that are served by public water and sewer, the Village will maxi-
mize the considerable investment that has already been made into public utilities and result in more
compact, higher value residential, commercial and industrial uses. The Town of Salem and Village
could address the future development of the planned commercial and residential areas near the Vil-
lage’s west and south sides, and associated utility extension and municipal boundary issues, through
an intergovernmental agreement. This concept is addressed more comprehensively in the Intergov-
ernmental Cooperadon chapter.

4. Implement recommendations of Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study
The SSES was completed in the spring of 2004 and recommends almost 31 million worth of needed
improvements to the sanitary sewer system. The Vitlage should incorporate these recommendations
into an overall CIP to determine when and how to fund these improvements.

5. Explore avenues to assure a high-quality supply of groundwater.
Approximately 70% of the homes in the Village use private wells for their watet supply. Private wells
in the Village, and possibly new wells for the growth areas, draw water from the upper, shallower ag-
uifer, which can be susceptibie to contamination. Therefore, the Village should consider the follow-
ing steps to protect public health and groundwater resourees:

» Identify the land in and around the Village that re-charges (through infiltration) private
wells and create a plan to protect these areas from contamination. 1f left unprotected from
high-risk land uses, these recharge ateas can allow contaminates to enter the subsurface. High-
risk land capable of contaminating public and private water supplies include chemical storage fa-
cilities, road salt usage and storage, animal fecdlots, fertilizer and pesticide use, septic tanks and
drain fields, underground storage tanks, underground pipelines and sewers, landfills, and quar-
dies. I left unprotected from such uses, and if leaks occurred, these contaminants could reach
water supply wells, The Village can identify its recharge areas with assistance from WisDNR. The
Village’s engineer does not have detailed plans to understand where these areas are and what the
risks are. Additional investigation is necessary. An ovetlay district should be created to pro-
tect these areas from those high-risk land uses.

»  Limit the types of land uses and activities within wellhead areas. In addition to recharge of
infiltration areas, the Village should pay careful attention to any redeveloping land uses around
existing wells and new land uses around planned wells to serve the Village growth areas. A single,
unified overlay zoning district should be created to protect wellhead areas, and the infiltra-
tion/recharge areas.

* Develop contamination contingency plans for accidental spills. Wisconsin statates require
that spills of hazardous materials be immediately reported and cleaned up to protect Wisconsin
citizens and resources. WisDNR Regional Spill coordinators work with local emergency planning
agencies and fire departments on spill response issues. These coordinators can assist the Village
with planning for how to deal quickly and efficiently with accidental spills.

s  Minimize impervious surfaces (e.g., rooftops, paved areas) and promote water infiltra-
tion {e.g., stormwater basins, bioretention areas, drainage swales) through best management

Adopted: April 20, 2005 63



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

6.

practices (BMPs). The Village should encourage developers to incorporate BMPs in new devel-
opments to protect water quality and should set examples for innovative BMPs on its own facili-
ties and sites.

» Direct residential development away from all closed remediation sites, gas stations, and
other potential sources of groundwater contamination (1,200 foot radius).

s Limit the use of salt on roads, and locate and manage snow and salt storage areas to avoid
groundwater and stream potlution.

Address stormwater management issues

The Village could expand and rehabilitate its storm sewer system through both a comprchensive
stormwater management plan and the creation of a stormwater utility. A comprehensive
stormwater management plan can generate baseline data to determine how to increase the capacity
and efficacy of Paddock Lake’s storm sewer in the most cost-effective manner. Grants are available
to assist the Village with such a study. The Village also should consider creating a stormwater utility,
to which residents would pay fees, based on the amount of stormwater they generate. "The fees would
be targeted toward stormwater maintenance and upgrades. Many communities, including smaller
communities are finding that a stormwatet utility, run in much the same way as a water or sanitary
sewer utility, can be a cost-effective way 1o provide nceded funds for maintenance and upgrades of
stormwater facilities. These recommendations are especially important in light of the anticipated
NPDES Phase 11 permitting requirements, on¢ of which is 2 comprehensive stormwater manage-
ment plan. The Village could use the information gathered in this study to better pinpoint the loca-
von of the floodplains and floodways in the Village, if it determined the FEMA maps were inade-
quate.

Enforce existing erosion control standards during site consiruction and encour-
age ongoing stormwater management after construction.

This is especially important for cubdivisions and other larger projects (o protect water quality and
prevent flooding and sedimentation in area waterways. Progressive stormwater management prac-

“tices, such as infiltration and retention ponds, should be incorporated into development proposals to

address the water quantity impacts to area watervays and “downstream” property owners. Post-
devetopment stormwater run-off should not exceed pre-development conditions.

Monitor need to connect existing development to public utilifies

The Village should thoughtfully plan for extensions of the sanitary sewet system and water system to
serve areas of existing development that may requite service. As the Village experiences more con-
versions of seasonal to year-round homes and the failure of septic systems, the sanitary sewer system
may in the futare be extended to areas currently not served, including existing development on the
edge of the lake. In addition, the people using private wells for their water supply may be interested
in hooking up to public water in the long-term if the water quality or quantity of the aquifer supplies
is reduced. Such actions would require farther study and coordination with property owners.

Work with the County and neighboring communities to monitor and revisit when
necessary joint service agreements.

As the Village grows, existing joint agreements for certain shared services and facilities may no longer
provide adequate service to residents of Paddock Lake. Although some shared services such as
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) may continue to be viable in the long-term, other shared ser-
vices, such as the county library branch may no longer meet residents’ expectations, in which case the
Village may want to construct a Village libraty.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 64



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

10. Consider the use of impact fees
The Village should consider using impact fees so that new development is assessed a connec-
tion/impact fees to pay for the costs of connection to the utlity system and for Future facility expan-
sion. As the infrastructure needs associated with the land use and transportation recommendations of
this Plan are understood, the Village will be able to evaluate a number of different fee alternadves de-
signed to ensure that the costs associated with providing service to a new development are, in fact,
passed on to that development. Although recent Wisconsin legistation imits the use of impact fees
(i.e. school costs cannot be recouped), it also validates the use of development exaction techniques
for a wide variety of facilities with which municipalities are concerned.

11.Implement the recommendations of the Village’s 1999 Comprehensive Outdoor
Recreation Plan

These recommendations include:

»  Plan for new neighborhood parks in conjunction with new subdivision developments. In gen-
eral, park siting should provide for a combination of active and passive features in the same park.
Where possible, neighborhood parks should locate adjacent to environmental corridors (which
ultimately may carry trail facilities). All residents should generally be within a 10-minute walk (at
most V2 mile) from a neighbothood park.

= Develop a system to collect fees in-lieu-of dedication with new subdivisions. In addidon to a
land dedication ot fee-in-lieu amount, many communities are also now requiring payment ofa
patk improvement fee. These fees are used by the communities f0 develop parks with appropri-
ate facilities, such as playground equipment.

s  Plan for an active use community park with facilities and infrastructure designed for organized
sports, such as bascball and soccer. The Village may need to purchase portions of this park, pos-
sibly using collected park tand dedication fees.

12.Update the 1999 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan
‘Outdoor recreation plans must be updated evety five years to maintain eligibility for State and Fed-
eral park and open space grants. These grant programs include the Wisconsin Stewardship Programs
Stewardship Local Assistance Grants, Land and Water Conservation Fund (LAWCON), and the Na-
tional Recreationat Trails Fund (RTA). The plan should address at minimum the following issues,
which were identified during this Comprehensive Plan process:

«  Additional off-toad hike and bike trails, There are currently no off-road hike and bike trails in
the area, Multi-use trails are planned and mapped on the Planned Land Use. The Village should
pursue trail easements for these areas before and during fand development proposals are offered
for those areas. The Village ¢an work with WisDOT, WisDNR, the adjacent towns, and
Kenosha County to develop these multi-use paths. It should apply for state or federal grants, es-
pecially those mentioned above, to fund these projects.

»  An active community park. Currendy, many of the Village’s existing parks are smaller
“neighborhood” parks that are too small for these uses. This planning process has identified a
need for a Paddock Lake Community Park (10 or more acres in size) for a wide variety of out-
door activities that require fields or other larger areas for active uses, such as baseball, soceer,
and tennis.

» A natural area for wildlife viewing and environmental education. Currently, there is no
natural area for wildlife viewing and natural area interpretation. The Bong State Natural Area is
north of the Village, but a smaller natural area interpretive center may be appropriate, as well.
Such areas should provide passive recreational uses (cross-country skiing, bird watching, etc.) fo-
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cused on the enjoyment and interpretaton of nature, and the importance of good enviropmental
stewatdship. Many of the environmental corridors, shown on the Planned Land Use Map, are
fascinating wetland systems that typically go unnoticed and unappreciated for the water quality
benefits and waterfowl habitat they provide.

*  Smaller, accessible neighborhood parks will be needed as the Village grows.

» Revision of parkland dedication. The current parkland dedication requirements should be re-
visited to ensure that they appropriate for the current development climate in the Village, and
modified accordingly.

13. Coordinate with the area school districts in the siting and construction of new
schools.
To make sure it has a voice in school district decision-making, the Village Board should cooperate
with the Central High School District of Westosha in long-range planning and decision-making re-
garding the need for a new high school, as well as the two elementary school districts within the Vil-
lage’s ETJ area. The Village may want to consider inviting school board members to its Board meet-
ings to maintain an open line of communication between Village officials and the school boatds.

14.Complete a comprehensive space needs study for Village facilities over the 20-
year planning period
Participants of this planning process identified the need for a Village library and a seniot center. The
current Village Municipa! Building has limited space to house any new administrative functions that
may be needed if it grows to the anticipated population projected in this Pan. Currently, there are a
number of part-time employees serving residents’ needs. These positions may need to gradually shift
to full-time staff posidons. The long-term space needs for all of these functions should be evaluated
simultaneously, because the functions and Facilities arc so interrelated. Numerous options exist, in-
cluding reconfiguring existing spaces, finding new space for some functions, building a combined
new space for all functions, and/or cooperating with the school district or other agencies to share
space. For example, the Village could consider combining a senior center with a day care center of
‘other community services (e.g, Community Food Pantry) to create an intergenerational community
center that setves a wide variety of ages. The currently developed atea of the Village should remain
the most preferred location for these functions to maintain ot increase activity levels there.

15.Incorporate standards for telecommunications facility siting

Telecommunications facilities (c.g., cell towers) have the potential to detract from the community
character of the Village, Standards should be included in the Village zoning ordinance that support
co-location of multiple antennas on 4 single tower and the use of alternative support structures such
as silos, light poles, biliboards, clectrical poles, and other tall structures in locations that are favorable
to preserving the Village’s character. Also, facility locations that maximize the screening of the tower
structure through topography or vegetation are preferred. Support equipment and the base of the
tower should be fully screened from adjacent properties and all public roads, including STH 50, with

anCiﬂg Of evVergreen vegctation.

16.Generally follow the imetable shown in Figure 21 to create, expand or rehabili-
taie community facilifies and utilities
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Figure 21: Timetable to Improve or Enhance Utilities and Facilities

Timeframe
for Im-
provements Comments

Utility or Facility

Capital Improvement Beginning in | ® Prepare and update 3-5 year Capital Improvement Program
Program 2006 budget | annually.
year
Water Supply Ongoing | ® Undertake various efforts described in this Plar to protect
groundwater quality.
» Consider extension of water service to developed areas of
Village not on public water.
= Fxtend water to developing areas west of STH 75 and south
of STH 50 west of STH 83.
Sanitary Sewer Ongoing | ® Upgrade sewer lines and treatment plant as need dictates to
2010+ accommodate expected population growth, based on rec-
ommendations of SSES.
Solid Waste Disposal N/A s All landfills in the Village area are closed.
Stormwater Management | Ongoing | ® Enforce adcquate erosion control standards and encourage

Best Management Practices in new development, redevelop-
ment sites. Set example for BMPs on Village sites.

2005-2010 | = Continue to investigate ways to address flooding for flood-
prone areas of Village.

20052006 | ® Create stormwater management pian to address stormwater
quality and quantity.

Police Protection 2007 - 2010 | = Complete a study that considers future needs/adequacy of
Police protection and facilities in the Village.

Fire Protection and EMS | Ongoing | * Continve to work with the County and Town of Salem to
Services 2010+ ensure the joint :‘tervice agreement is still an appropriate and
mutually beneficial arrangement for all parues.

Library, Senior Center, 2007 - 2009 | = Conduct a long-range facilities study to assess need for Vil
Village Administration lage facilities — administrative space, library, senior and other
community gathering centers,

Medical Facilities N/A = Medical facilities in the Village and nearby communities ap-
pear to meet needs.

Schools 2004 — 2007 | » Work with the area school districts to accommodate new
residents in the arca’s schools, including siting and construc-
tion of new facilities when needed.

Park & Recreation 2005 » Implement the recommendations of the existing Comprebensive
Facilities Outdoor Recreation Plan.
2005 » Revise the Village Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan.
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Utility or Facility

Timeframe

for Im-
provements

2006

Comprehensive Plan

Comments

* Begin planning for new community park, multi-use trail fa-

cilities, and a natural area.

» Ensure that the Village zoning and subdivision ordinances

Telecommunication 2004 - 2007
Facilities include standards related to telecommunications facilities.
Cemeteries N/A = No present need to identify future sites or expansions.

Adopted: April 20, 2005

68



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

village of badu e e e,

V]. HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT

A community’s housing stock is its largest long-term capital asset. As is typical in most communities, residen-
tial development is the largest developed land category in Paddock Lake (about 21 percent of the Village’s
total land area). Housing not only provides shelter, but also serves identify neighborhoods and a commu-
nity’s sense of place. This chapter contains a compilation of background information, goals, objectives, poli-
cies and recommended programs aimed at providing an adequate housing supply that meets existing and
forecasted housing demand in Paddock Lake.

A. Existing Housing Framework

1. Housing Type Characteristics
According to 2000 census data, there are 1,124 housing units in the Village of Paddock Lake. As
shown in Figure 22, the Village’s housing stock is predominately single-family homes {92.7 percent).
This proportion of single family homes is significantly greater than the County (66.7 percent), the
SEWRPC area (75 percent), and the State (69 percent). About 7 percent of the Village’s housing

stock in 2000 was multiple family units, showing litde change from the 1990 census data.

Figure 22: Housing Types: 1990- 2000

Units per Structure 1990 Units 1990 Percent 2000 Units 2000 Percent

Single Family 922 1,124 92.7
Two Family (Duplex) 8 0.7 9 0.7
Multi-Farnily 66.2 64 77 6.2
Mobile Home 5 04 5 0.4

Source: ULS. Census of Papulation and Honsing, 2000

Figure 23 compares other housing characteistics for the Village with the County and State. The Vil-
lage’s occupancy rate of 89 percent was slighty lower than the County but comparable to the State.
The median value of an owner-occupied home in the Village in 2000 was $112,600, which is Jess than
the County but slighdy higher than the State. The median gross rent in the Village is notably higher
than both the County and the State. The lack of mult-family housing in the Village could be driving
the high price of this scarce housing type. Since the 2000 census, an additional 184 housing units
have been added to the Village’s housing stock. These housing units are not shown on Figure 23.

Figure 23: Comparison of Housing Stock Characteristics - 2000

Village of Kenosha
Paddock Lake County Wisconsin

Total Housing Units 1,213 59,989 2,321,144
Qccupancy Rate 891 93.4 89%
% Orwner Occupied 84.4 69.1 68%
Median Gross Rent (monthly) 3708 $589 §540
Median Housing Value/Owner Occ. $112,600 §120,9001 $112,200

Somrce: ULS, Census of Population and Housing, 2000
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2.

Housing Age and Structural Characteristics

“T'he overall condition of housing in the Village can be generally assessed through census data, includ-
ing structural age, presence of complete plumbing facilities, and overcrowding. Figure 24 illustrates
the age of Village’s housing stock based on 2000 census data. About 8.2 percent of Paddock Lake’s
homes were built before 1939, which could increase the interest in housing rehabilitation resources.

1n 2000, the census recorded no buildings lacking complete plumbing, kitchen or heating and just
four dwellings lacking telephone service. This trend is similar to County, regional and State percent-
ages. There are not many overcrowded living units in the Village, defined as units with more than
one person per room. In 2000, about 3.1 percent of the units in the Village were classified as over-
crowded, while in Kenosha County the figure was 3.0 percent.

Figure 24: Age of Village of Paddock Lake Housing as o percent of the Total 2000
Housing Stock

3.

1990 fo 2000 :
1980 10 1989
197010 1979 .
1960 to 1969

1940 to 1959

1939 or eariier

0.0% 50% 10.0% 150% 20.0% 25.0% 30.0% 35.0% 40.0%

Special Needs Housing

Special needs or subsidized housing is for individuals who need housing assistance or housing de-
signed to accommodate their needs due to financial difficulties, disabilities, age, domestic violence
sitaations, or drug abuse problems. Throughout Kenosha County, several governmental, private and
nonprofit agencies provide some form of housing assistance to meet these types of situations. Ac-
cording to the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority (WHEDA), there was one
WHEDA financed or monitored rental property in the Village as of 2003. This property consists of
24 apartments, 22 of which are dedicated as elderly housing.

Housing Needs Analysis

The relationship berween housing costs and household incomes is an indicator of housing afforda-
bility, which is gauged by the ptoportion of household income spent for rent or home ownership
costs. The national standard for determining whether rent or home ownership costs comprise a dis-
proportionate share of income is set at 30 percent of gross household income. Households spending
more than 30 percent of their income for housing may be at risk of losing their housing should they
be confronted with unemployment, unexpected bills, or other unexpected events. The percentage of
homeowners in the Village paying a disproportionate share of their income for housing was 22.7 per-
cent in 1999, which was higher than the County at 20.5 percent and the State average of 18 percent.
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The percentage of renters in the Village paying a disproportionate share of their income for housing
was 25.2 percent, which was higher than the County average and State average.

5. Housing Programs
Several housing programs are available to Village residents:

s WHEDA is the most active housing agency in Kenosha County and has constructed or helped
fand most of the affordable housing for low-income families and seniors.

»  The US. Veterans Administration provides low-cost loans and other housing assistance to vet-
erans in the County.

w  The Wisconsin Department of Administragon also provides loans to low and moderate income
homebuyers in the County.

"  Other agencies providing housing services include religious institutions and social service agen-
cies that provide housing services to persons with disabilities, persons with HIV/AIDs and for
seniors. Southeastern Wisconsin Housing manages the construction of “self-help” homes and
conducts homeowner workshops.

s The USDA also offers loans for low-income housing (both rental and owner-occupied) and
home improvements. These loans are awarded on a competitive basis.

B. Housing and Neighborhood Development Goais, Objectives and Policies

Goal: Plan for neighborhoods that contain a range of housing types, densities, and
costs, but which also maintain the Village's mostly single-family character.

Obijectives, Policies and Programs:

a. Support housing to meet the needs of persons of all income levels, age groups, and special needs.
Encourage high quality new housing construction and maintenance of the existing housing stock.

Encourage neighborhood designs and locations that protect residential areas from incompadble land
uscs; promote connected strect, path, and environmental systems, and preserve the Village’s historic
development character.

d. Phase new residential development in a mannet consistent with public facility and service capacity.

Guide new housing to areas with convenient access to public sanitary sewer service, public wates,

parks and recreational facilities, roads, shopping, jobs, and other facilides and services.

¢. Housing and Neighborhood Development Recommendations

1. Pian for a Sufficient Supply of Developable Land for Housing
As the Village grows, it should ensure that there is adequate land for a range of different housing
types and income levels in areas consistent with Village fand use goals, and of densities and types
consistent with community service and utlity availability. The recommended “Planned Land Use
Map” for the Village of Paddock Lake (Map 4) will accommeodate expected housing demand over the
20 year planning period and beyond, within a variety of residential designations. Redevelopment op-
portunities for housing may also be available, particularly in the older areas where cottages designed
for seasonal use are being converted into homes designed for year-round use.

2. Promote Quality Neighborhood Design and Layout in New Residentiia! Areas.
Within the planned residential areas shown on Map 4, the Village should promote the following con-
cepts of neighborhood design: :

Adopted: April 20, 2005 71



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

*  Mix of housing types, lot sizes,
densities and tenure options.

»  Development of ncighborhood
focal points, such as parks.

®  An interconnected network of
streets sized to correspond to
traffic volumes and limited
speeds.

s Oricntation to the pedestrian
through sidewalks, paths,
smaller front yard setbacks
where appropriate.

*  Using clustered development
Jayouts where projects are adja-
cent to natural areas.

®  Modest front yard setbacks and avoidance of “garage-scape” street appearance.
garag

®  [se of natural stormwater management techniques (such as on-site retention, or incorporating
retention arcas as A site amenity in a subdivision) to control water quality and quantity.

» Encourage the use of native plants in new subdivisions to ensure that plantings thrive long-term.
Planting non-native trees, shrubs and forbs increases the likelihood that those plants are short-
lived and will need replacing after a number of years. This loss delays the time it takes fora
neighborhood to have mature trees, which is an important consideration in the long-term prop-
erty values and “livability” of a neighborhood.

= Restoration of degraded environmental features, such as wetlands and the lake shore.

.Encourage Housing that Targets Young Professionals, Empty Nesters and Relirees

Many communities have an aversion to high-density, multi-family housing, This perception s largely
based on the belief that such housing strains public resources, depresses property values, and is aes-
thetically incompatible with ““small town” settings. It disregards the fact that many affluent house-
holders are aging and would like to downsize their fives without leaving the community. It also does
not take into consideration that traditional single-family homes on large lots may actually place the
greatest overall strain on public services, because these homes are generally ones with children at-
tending local schools. Further, some households in these higher density developments are in the early
stages of careers and have high income potential. Such houscholds generally have low service de-
mands for public schools, and either can’t afford or do not want to maintain their own home and
would prefer a high-quality alternative. Many communities have come to view these types of devel-
opments as tax base revenue builders (see sidebar on next page).

The population of these young professionals, empty nesters and retirees is increasing as a general
trend nationwide. A well-balanced and «g1stainable” community requires a greater choice of housing
for people at various stages of their careers and fives. In addition, quality, affordable housing along
with solid public services and protected natural resoutces have emerged as primary reasons for busi-
nesses to locate in a community.
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4. Promote Well-Planned Neighborhood
Development in Eastside, Westside,
Southwest and Southeast Growth Areas
This Plan recommends that neighborhood devel-
opment continue to expand eastward, westward
and southward. Map 4 and Chapter Three con-
tain recommendations for the these growth areas.
In general, the Village’s growth areas should be
planned, designed and developed in accordance
with “planned neighborhood” principles shown
on the following page. Certain parts of the
growth areas may also be appropriate for *tradi-
tional neighborhood design’ techniques, outlined
in the sidebar. These techniques seek to replicate
some of the design characteristics of pre-World
War II neighborhoods in the atea. Other parts,
particularly those near natural features, may be
approptiate for larger homes on larger lots. In
genetal, the Village should ensure that there isa
good mix of housing types, colots, facades, ga-
rage treatments, and other visual characteristics
in all new subdivisions.

For large-scale development projects (¢.g., 80+
acres) in all four growth areas, developers should
be required (or provided strong incentives) to in-
clude non-residential development areas to create
convenient, walkable destinations for surround-
ing residents, and enhance tax base opportuni-
ties. Non-tesidential development, including
“small-scale commercial uses or institutional uses,
is particularly suitable at major intersections or
along major roadways in the Village’s growth ar-
eas. For example, this Plan (see Map 4) recom-
mends a cluster of non-residential uses at the
“Brass Ball Corner” intersection of STH 50 and
STH 75 and at the intersecton of STH 50 with a
planned north-south road extension on the east
side.
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The most cffective approach to identifying how the
neighborhood design recommendations of this Conr-
prebensive Plan would play out “an the ground” is to
prepare and adopt a detailed neighborhood
development plan for the Bastside, Westside, South-
cast, and Southwest Growth Areas, as advised in
Chapter Three. The Town of Salem is currently
planning for development in the Westside Growth
Area, and the Village should take this work into con-
sideration. As part of that detailed planning process,
a careful review of zoning district options and subdi-
vision design standards would also be appropriate to
assure that Village ordinances are facilitating {or at
least not impeding) this design advice.

5. Encourage Efforts to Maintain Existing Resi-
dential Areas
Property maintenance in residential areas is a key
component to maintaining property values. Efforts
the Village should consider towards this include:

» Enforcing the Village zoning ordinance in mat-
ters relating to property maintenance (e.g. vehicle
storage, waste material storage, noise, odors,
glare from lights, etc.) to address issues of basic
house and lot maintenance, and updating it as
necessary.

»  Considering working with the County ot others
to identify sources of funding to rchabilitate
housing that has deteriorated in condition and to
promote the concept of in-filt housing on vacant
or under-used lots. The Village should consider
applying for funds for ownec-occupied rehabilita-
tion through the DOA’s Division of Housing
and Intergovernmental Relatons. These are
Community Development Block Grant {CDBG)
funds that are passed from the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Devclopment to DOA
for distribution at the local level.

6. Support Rental Housing, Affordable Housing and Housing For Those With Special
Needs
Several state and federal programs and funding sources are available to assist private developers, local
governments, and residents meet housing objectives. Examples of these are described earlier in this
chapter.

7. Require High-Quality Designs For Multiple Family Development
Multiple family housing is an important component of the community to provide options for the
eldetly, younger residents, and employees for area businesses. New areas where multi-family residen-
tial development would be appropriate for the Village are planned for in this Comprehensive Plan,
and shown on Map 4. It is, however, important that the design and scale of these types of residendal
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projects fit within the existing fabric of the community. The Village has in its zoning ordinance de-
sign review requirements for multi-family housing. In addition to those standards, this Plar advises
that the Village review proposals for muld-Ffamily residendal developments against the guidelines

listed below (and as illustrated in Figure 25). These standards are not intended to replace those in the

zoning ordinance, but should be used in coordination with them.

» Incorporate architectural design that fits the context of the surrounding neighborhood, and Pad-

dock Lake’s character of single-story buildings and smaller Iot sizes. Encourage layouts where
buildings appear as a grouping of smaller residences and possibly limit building heights to rwo

stories.

w  Avoid monotonous facades and box-like buildings. Incorporate balconies, porches, garden

varied building and facade setbacks, varied roof designs, and bay windows.

*  Orent buildings to the street with modest front yard setbacks, bringing street-oriented entties
close to streets to increase pedestrian activity. Include private sidewalk conncctions.

Locate parking, garages, dumpsters, and other unattractive uses behind buildings.

*  Tor parking lots and garages, (a) locate garage doors and parking lots so they are not the domi-
pant visual clement; (b) screen parking areas from public view; (c) break up large parking lots

walls,

with landscaped islands and similar features; (d) large parking garages are undesirable, but where
necessary, break up facades with landscaping, vatied facade setbacks, and recessed garage doors.

= Provide generous landscaping of sufficient size at time of planting. Emphasize landscaping (a)

along all public and private strect frontages; (b) along the perimeter of all paved areas and in is-
lands in larger parking lots; {c) along all building foundations; (d) along yards separating land uses

which differ in intensity, density or character; (€) around all outdoor storage areas such as trash

receptacles and recycling bins (also include screening walls in these areas).

»  Provide on-site recreational and open space areas to serve resident needs. Whenever possible,

develop contiguous rear yards as 2 unit to encourage use by residents and guests.

Figure 25: Desired Multiple Family Housing Layout

* Articulated building fagade » Comimon open spate

s 15 - 25" setback with fandseaped —

front yard space » Buiding fronts street with parking

behind or below building, fimited
screened paridng can occur on the

» Porch bays and bakonles side or between buidings

s Sureet trees and pedestrian
scaled fighting

o Front entries oriented to street
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VIl. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

This chapter contains a compilation of background information, goals, objectives, policies and recommended
programs to promote the retention and stabilization of the Village’s economic base. As required by §66.1001,
Wisconsin Statutes, this chapter includes an assessment of new businesses and industres that are desired in

the Village, an assessment of the Village’s strengths and weaknesses with respect to attracting and retaining
businesses and industries, and an inventory of environmentally contaminated sites.

A. Existing Economic Development Framework

1. tabor Force Trends
Ln 2000, the Village’s labor force consisted of 1,650 people. A community’s labor force is the portion
of the population age 16 or older that is employed or available for work, and includes people who are
in the armed forces, employed, unemployed, or actively seeking employment. These numbers do not
count working-age people who are not actively looking for employment. Of this labor force popula-
tion, 1,608 persons were employed and 42 were unemployed; resulting in an unemployment rate of
1.8 percent. For comparison, the 2000 unemployment rate for the County and the State was 3.2%.
The national rate was just under 4%.

Overall, Paddock Lake residents hold more jobs in the manufacturing, educational services, and retail
trade —and fewer jobs in agriculture, constructon, arts and entertainment, and food services—as
compared to the region and State. The percentage of the Village’s labor force employed by sector in
2000 is shown in Figure 26.

Figure 26: Village of Paddock take Labor Force Characteristics, 2000

Occupational Group %, of Labor Force

Manufacturing

Education, health and social services 16.9
Retail trade 14.6
Constructon ‘ : 8.8
Arts, entertainment, recreation, accommodation and food services 5.4
Finance, insurance, real estate, and rental and leasing 5.1
Wholesale trade 4.8
Personal services 4.6
Public administration 4.5
Transportation and warchousing, and utilities 4.3
Professional, scientific, management, administradve, and waste management services 4.1
Information 0.9
Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining 0.5

Source: U.S. Census of Population and Honsing, 2000
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Between 1990 and 2000,'rhc labor force in the Village grew by about 21 percent, which reflects
strong population growth during that time. The County’s job growth has historically been centered in
the manufacturing industries rather than the service-sector. However, the trend in the County shows
a steady increasc in available jobs in the service-sector, and a concurrent decrease in manufacturing
sector jobs.

Figure 27 displays the top 10 pivate employers in the County and gives the approximate numnber of
individuals employed by each entity. None of these employers is in the Viliage. Although the County
has provided a solid employment base in the manufacturing sector, there is evidence that this portion
of the County’s economy may be shrinking in the near future. This is due to structural changes
throughout the national economy, which is experiencing downsizing and off-shoring of much of its
industral activity. For example, Snap-On Tools, the County’s 5% largest employer, recently an-
nounced it will close its Kenosha plant. Since a large portion of Village residents commute outside

the Village for their jobs, this loss of jobs has the potential to affect Paddock Lake.

Figure 27: Top 10 Private Employers in Kenosha County

Company Product ot Service No. Employees

UHS Kenosha Medical Center General medical & surgical hospitals 1000 +
DaimlerChrysler Corp. Gasoline engine and engine parts manufacturing 1000 +
Aurora Health Care of Southern Lake General medical & surgical hospitals 500-999
Supervalu Holdings, Inc. General line grocery merchant wholesalers 500-999
Snap-On Tools Mfg. Co. Hand and edge tool manufacturing 250-499
Carthage College Colleges, universities, and professional schools 250-499
Deluxe Media Services, Inc. Prerecorded compact disc (except software), tape, 250-499
and record reproduction
Wisconsin Electric Power Co. Fossil fuel electric power generation 250-499
Jockey Internadonal, Inc. Underwear and nightwear knitting mills 250-499
Kenosha Beef Int’i Ltd. Animal (except poultry) slavghtering 250-499

Source: Wisconsin Department of Workforce Develspment, 2004

2. Income Data
According to 2000 census data, the median household income in the Village in 1999 was
$53,382. For comparison, the average household income in Kenosha County was §46,970. The
County ranks 12% of 72 counties in median household income and is higher than the State average,
which was $43,791.

In 2002 Kenosha had a per capita personal income (PCPI) of $28,775. This PCPI ranked 21st in the
state and was 96 percent of the state average, $30,050, and 93 percent of the national average,
$30,906. ‘This suggests a slightly higher population of children and older persons than in other areas
of the state and nation, which is described in Figure 4 and Figure 6 of this Plan. The 2002 PCPI re-
flected an increase of 2.0 percent from 2001, The 2001-2002 state change was 2.3 percent and the na-

tional change was 1.2 percent.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 80



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

3.

Commutiing Patterns

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, about 91% of Vil- 2004 Village Survey Results
Iage working residents age 16 and older worked out-
side the Village. This high percentage of people working
outside of the Village was also seen in the Village survey
(Sce sidebar). As a comparison, approximately 44 percent
of Kenosha County’s workforce is employed outside
the County, according to 2000 statistics compiled by
WisDWD. Of the workers commuting outside the County,
approximately 30 percent (1,398 workers) commute to Lake
County, Illinois to the south. Racine County is the second
most common workplace destination. Other counties
Kenosha County workers commute include the nearby
counties of Walworth, Milwaukee, Cook 1L, and McHenry IL. Fewer workers commute into
Kenosha County for employment than those who leave the County for work.

Less than five percent of respe ndents
of the Vitlage Survey reported work-
ing for an cmployer in the Village of
Paddock Lake. The City of Kenosha

was the primary phace of work for

13.5% of fuspr.}ndcms. Over 20 per-
cent rcpr..:mrtcd they were retived or not
in the workforce.

The average time a County resident travels to work increased between 1990 and 2000; the number of
Paddock Lake commuters traveling between 45 minutes and 1 hour to their workplace has in-
creased by more than 40 percent in that 10-year petiod.

The high percentage of Village and County residents employed in other counties suggests there are
some leakages in the County cconomy. Residents employed elsewhere almost certainly spend some
of their money outsicle of their home County. “The income that these County residents might spend
at a local grocery store, for example, is captured by the community in which the County resident is

employed.

Kenosha County exports more jobs than it imports. The DWD notes that many County residents are
Lllinois natives who have retained their high-paying jobs in that State. The DWD also notes that
higher-paying professional jobs are entering the County, but not in the quantity needed to replace
cmployment sources outside the County.

Redevelopment Opportunities

The area along Highway 50 in the central part of the Village would be appropriate for increased in-
vestment and redevelopment in the long-term. The Village does not have any properties that could
be classified as “brownfields”. WisDNR defines brownfields as “sbandoned or under-utilized com-
mercial or industrial properties where expansion or redevelopment is hindered by real or perceived
contamination.” Examples of brownfields might include a large abandoned industrial site or 4 small
corner gas station with a leaking underground storage tank.

Economic Development Programs

Economic development in Paddock Lake and Kenosha County is a cooperatdve effort among the
Village, businesses, developers, and several groups set up to encourage economic growth. These local
groups and their primary mission and efforts are as follows:

Kenosha Area Business Alliance

This County-wide organization helps new and existing businesses provide training and technical as-
sistance and helps them with site selection. The alliance also helps area businesses assemble financing
packages that draw on federal and State funding sources. This group promotes business retention
and works to attract new businesses to the area.

WHEDA
WHEDA provides loans to help small business and farms modernize. They also provide loans to
help with business and farm purchases.
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Wisconsin Rural Partners (WRP)

WRP assists rural communities in developing tools and economic development strategies. This non-
profit organization works to build public-private sector partnerships that build more effective rela-
tionships between local governments and citizen groups.

Kenosha County UW-Extension

UW-Extension extends the knowledge and resources of the University of Wisconsin to people where
they live and work. The Kenosha County extension office, Jocated in Bristol, provides technical assis-
tance to the Village on a variety of community development and regional economic issues, They can
assist with organizational development, leadership development, local governance skill-building, and
growth management and natural resource management.

SEWRPC

The Southeast Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission assists Kenosha, Milwaukee, Racine,
Ozaukee, Walworth, Washington, and Waukesha counties with community development, compre-
hensive planning, regional economic development, water quality, water supply, stormwater and
floodplain management, telecommunications and transportation planning, They publish economic
profiles of each of the counties and serve as advisors on a variety of economic development pro-

grams.

6. Economic Development Assessment
A pood economic development strategy should take advantage of the unique strengths and assets of
the community. It should also recognize weaknesses of the community, and attempt to address or
minimize those that can be affected. 1n addition, the Wisconsin Comprehensive Planning Statute re-
quires that the Comprehensive Plan “assess categories or particular types of new businesses and in-
dustries that are desired by the local government unit.”

The Village’s proximity to 1-94 and major metropolitan centers,
excellent schools, high quality-of-life, strong work ethic, and
low cost of living are strengths for economic development that
should be capitalized on further. The scenic rutal vistas and natural
resources and well-maintained public infrastructurc are tangible
strengths that the Village can use to promote economic
development. In addition, there is a strong willingness to attract
and retain business.

Paddock Lake’s primary challenges to economic development
are its current lack of industrial sites for additional
commercial and industrial development, an aging workforce,
limited lodging and meeting facilities, limited access to
capital for start-up businesses or expansions, and wetlands and other environmental corri-
dors in places, which limit the amount of development that can occur.

According to the 2004 Village opinion survey and local community visioning efforts, there is desire
for more commercial development and development of alocal job base in the Village. Figure 28
shows a consolidation of responses from these public participation efforts regarding the Village’s
strengths and weaknesses with respect to attracting and retaining businesses.
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Figure 28: Village Strengths and Weaknesses for Economic Development

Strengths Weaknesses

Location Need for intergovernmental cooperation

Rural atmosphere/lakes/trails/ recreation Need to develop commercial tax base

Excellent schools Need to develop local jobs/industty
Low crime Need to control residential growth rate
Affordable housing Need to capitalize on existing amenides —

trails along lake/lake access

B. Economic Development Goals, Objectives and Policies

Goal: Strengthen, support, and promote steady growth of new and existing busi-

nesses consistent with community resources and identity.

Objeciives:

a.

Increase the supply of developable land in the Village for industrial and commetcial land uses, and
provide necessary municipal services to these areas.

b. Provide for planned commercial development in concentrated areas and discourage unplanned, in-
cremental strip commercial development along major community corridors, such as STH 50.

c. Maintain business and industrial park areas that are attractive and contribute to the economic stability
of the Paddock Lake arca, without degrading the natural environment or residential neighborhoods.

d. Improve the overall climate for economic development through public outreach, business develop-
ment programming, and actions of Village government,

e. -Maintain and enhance the “Brass Ball Corner” as the center of the Village, with civic uses and con-
venient commercial activities.

f.  Actively encourage infill of vacant parcels and redevelopment of underutilized properties that are al-
ready served by udlities.

Policies:

. Plan for commercial developments converient to residential areas which are adequately buffered, or
are carefully integrated into the residential development pattern.

b. Support mixed use development projects that integrate non-residendal and residential uses into high-
quality, unified places.

¢. Encourage the clustering of larger-scale commercial uses in order to maximize consumer safety and
convenience, improve traffic flow, and enhance economic viability.

d. Locate industries in areas where they have adequate expansion space to mect anticipated future
needs.
Encourage the growth of local businesses that contribute to the community identity and economy.
Provide appropriate incentives, including tax increment financing, to encourage redevelopment for
economic purposes and new industrial and office development in planned areas of the Village.

g. Establish a linkage between the approval of major residential developments with the establishment of

new non-residential uses in or near the residental developments (see Chapter Six).
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h. Support proposals that provide a range of commercial development opportunities, while considering
the importance of preserving Paddock Lake’s small village character.

i. Strongly encourage shared driveways, shared parking spaces, and coordinated site plan designs to
avoid the creation of new commercial strips.

i. Consider the impact of proposed commercial rezonings on the economic viability of existing com-
mercial areas in the community before making 2 decision on the request.

K Network with State and County economic development officials and area Chambers of Commerce to
implement the cconomic development recommendations of this Plan.

C. Economic Development Recommendations

Expanding on the local goals, objectives and polices above, this Plan advises that the Village focus economic
development on:

= High-quality, compact, and lasting economic development projects that recognizes the limited supply of
marketable lands for these purposes in the community;

Infill and redevelopment opportunities in areas where existing utilities and infrastructure are available;

*  Tands in the Village’s Southeast Growth Area that take advantage of good access and visibility along
main roads and that are buffered from residential development; and

»  Tands that take advantage good access to Interstate o4,

More specific economic development recommendations to pursue these directions are highlighted in the fol-
lowing sections.

1. Strengthen Site Design standards for Commercial, industrial, and Mixed Use Pro-
jects
The Village should strengthen and enforce design standards for commercial, industrial, and mixed
use development projects to ensure high-quality, lasting projects that are compatible with the Vil-
lage’s desired character. The Village currently has design review requirements for multi-family hous-
ing, commercial, industrial and planned unit development districts. In addition to those standards,
this P/an advises that the Village review development proposals against the land use specific guide-
lines listed below (and as illustrated in Figures 27 and 28). These standards are not intended to re-
place those in the zoning ordinance, but should be used in coordination with them. They should be
incorporated into or referenced in the Village’s zoning ordinance and be used during site plan review
processes. '

For new and expanded commercial uses, the standards listed below and illustrated in Figure 26 are
advised:

s New driveways with adequate throat depths to allow for proper vehicle stacking.

»  Limited number of access drives along arterial and collector streets.

=  Common driveways serving more than one commercial use, wherever possible.

s High quality landscaping treatment of bufferyards, street frontages, paved areas and building
foundations.

= Street trees along all public street frontages.

= Intensive activity areas such as building entrances, service and loading areas, parking lots, and
trash receptacle storage areas oriented away from less intensive land uses.

= Parking lots heavily landscaped with perimeter fandscaping and/ot landscaped islands, along with
screening to block views from streets and residential uses.

»  Parking to the sides and rear of buildings, rather than having all parking in the front.

»  Signage that is high quality and not cxcessive in height or total square footage.
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Location of loading docks, dumpsters, mechanical equipment, and outdoor storage areas behind
buildings and away from less intensive land uses, ideally oriented toward service alleys.
Complete screening of loading docks, dumpsters, mechanical equipment, and outdoor storage
areas through use of landscaping, walls, and archirectural features.

Safe, convenient, and separated pedestrian and bicycle access to the site from the parking areas
to the buildings, and to adjacent commercial developments.

Site design features that allow pedestrians to walk paralle] to moving cars.

Illumination from lighting kept on site through use of cut-off luminaries.

High quality building materials, such as brick, wood, stone, and tinted masonry.

Canopies, awnings, trellises, bays, and windows to add visual interest to facades.

Variations in building height and roof lines, including parapets, mult-planed, and pitched roofs
and staggered building facades (variations in wall depth and/or direction).

All building fagades containing architectural details and of similar quatity as the front building fa-
¢ade.

Central features that add to community character, such as patios and benches.

Figure 29: Desired New Commercial Project Layout

« Pedestrian and yehlcular access « Service at reat + On-site storm watcr
to adjacent sites infiitration

« Screen foof-top mechanical
equipment T

~

« Wafl, hanging. or
awning signage

« Entry on front

o Transparent facade (50% min.)

+ Screen side fot parking

For new and expanded industrial uses, the standards listed below and illustrated in Figure 30 are ad-
vised:

New driveways with adequate throat depths to allow for proper vehicle stacking.

Limited number of access drives along arterial and collector streets.

High quality Jandscaping treatment of bufferyards, street frontages, paved areas and building
foundations.

Screening where industrial uses abut non-industrial uses, in the form of hedges, evergreen trecs,
berms, decorative fences or a combination.

Screening of parking lots from public rights-of-way and non-industrial uses.

Complete screening of all loading arcas, outdoor storage areas, mechanical equipment, and
dumpsters using berms, hedges, or decorative walls or fences.
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»  Street trees along all public road frontages.

*  High quality building materials, such as brick, wood, stone, tinted masonry, pre-cast concrete,
and architectural metal.

»  Location of loading areas at the rear of buildings.

" Separation of pedestrian walkways from vehicular traffic and loading areas.

*  Design of parking and circulation areas so that vehicles are able to move from one area of the
site to another without re-entering a strect.

= Variable building setbacks and vegetation in strategic locations along foundations,

Figure 30: Desired New tndustrial Project Layout
pmﬁn

Arives

Increasingly, communities are planning areas for a mix of non-residential and residential uses—
particularly commercial and residential uses. This mixtare occurs on the same site, in the same
building, or both. This type of development scheme has several advantages, including providing
built-in residential markets for commercial enterpdses, promoting walking and limiting auto trips,
creating active, vibrant places, and diversifying development tisk. This Consprebensive Plan advises
planned “mixed use” development in several parts of Paddock Lake (sce Map 4 and Chapter Three),
including the “Brass Ball Corner” and the “Neighborhood Center”. The design standards for these
areas included on the following page illustrate some general design standards for these types of areas.
Obviously, cach area has different issues, geography, size, existing development, and other character-
istics that must be considered in their design. Of critical importance to these arcas is ensugdng very
careful planning and high-quality design, which can be achieved through a more detailed neighbor-
hood plan for the sites (See Recommendatons in Chapter Three).

Adopted: April 20, 2005 86



S O ST T

- et

(=D W53 CEMYERS

Mixed Use Centers ora designed ko ereals vibranl, pedestrian emvironmenh Typical Mixed Use Center Lond Usex:

in which people can live, work, shop and obkain daily servicss, Buldings o Mulkipls famity ond atioched housing

with different uses, sometimes even on diffecent flocrs, ore crranged + Offices

wiithin wolking distance o each oher and are connected via sidewalks., . Clih e oy,

Ohtaining modesals to higher densifies ond paying dosa atiention to s i W h

design ond qudlity ore erificdl aspechs of mixed usa centens, . RBSWu}h: inchuding Sy ’
Om NG

Charocherishics of Mixed Usa Cenlers include: + Coffes shop

¢ Wolking refationship between usas o Deli/market

* Swrest activily frem morning through evening o Grocery slore

* Muli-story buikdings, genesdlly with mare octive was on first oo « Urbon gathering spoces
¢ Minimal front setbacks |8.g. Fermer's morkel)
+ Buildings ond sites designed for pedestrions not automebiles * Dry cleoner

« Parking located on shreels, ko rear of buildings, and/or In structurss * Duay core

+ Tronsit service polentiol * Drug store

* Byilding entrances eriented fo streat \

'% |
| Yy o

' i ('I
' b
t‘.'i i If" ! Lpor b
, R ’
IS b = ,
! l;| : ,_..._o Retail/Office Flex Space R . B Do .
RS . - - e e 2 . )
1; .o Q Rfuil ‘ o
timE—r——
[ file
!
i

Office/Re sidenrﬁu‘l Abve‘

e =

13



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

2. Pursue Redevelopment of Underutilized Properties along STH 50
As described in more detail in Chapter Three, this Plan recommends redevelopment projects to maxi-
mize tax base and job opportunities and enhance community appearance. The area identified for re-
development is along STH 50, where there is an opportunity to cooperatively redevelop lands to 2
greater intensity and with a broader mix of quality uses. This area also takes advantage of proximity
to the lake, excellent access to a state highway, and linkages to the Village’s existing older neighbor-
hoods.

Sites like these do not redevelop themselves. Instead, careful planning, site assessment, public-private
partmerships, redevelopment incentives, and persistence over a number of years is required. A Rede-
velopment Plan should be prepared and implemented for the STH 50 area. Typically, this type of de-
tailed planning and implementation process includes:

" Evaluating the planning area’s condition including size, visibility, viewsheds, access, building
quality, existing use viability, adjacent land uses, topographic ot environmental constraints,
brownficld site assessment and existing infrastructare and amenites.

* Conducting a regional and locat cconomic opportunities analysis to focus on the Village’s loca-
tion, amenities, and business mix, as well as the assessment of the regional factors such as eco-
nomics, transportation patterns and intergovernmental relatonships.

*  Identifying goals and objectives for the redevelopment area through cooperative efforts with the
private property owners and other key stakeholders. This step also typically identifies and priori-
tizes redevelopment sites within the planning area,

s Conducting a market assessment for the redevelopment site to determine the role of the site
within the marketplace, provide demographic trade area information to assist in the solicitation
) of potential developers or site users, and identify the range of specific issues and challenges to
site redevelopment.

*  Preparing a redevelopment strategy and district concept plan map that identifies the highest and
best land uses, site characteristics, design approaches, and implementation strategies for the
planning area, with particular attention to priority redevelopment sites.

*  Aggressively pursuing implementation through technigues such as adoption of a statutory rede-
velopment plan; establishment of a redevelopment tax increment financing district; possible
brownfield remediation; possible site acquisition, consolidation, and demolition; and developer
recruitment.

* Implementation can also take the form of zoning standards that ensure quality control for any
new development.

Figure 31 provides an overview of the redevelopment process the Village should consider for the
STH 50 redevelopment area.
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Figure 31: Redevelopment Planning and Implementation Process

- District
Redevelopment
" Project

.I}}? ‘ .

3. Create Master Plans for “Brass Ball Corner" and “Neighborhood Center”
The Village also should continue to support revitalization efforts by promoting mixed use develop-
ment, investing in civic places, and guiding business development proposals in two major centers -
the “Brass Ball Comner” intersection of STH 50 and STH 75, and the “Neighbothood Center’” area,
at the intersection of a future north-south road on the Village’s east side with STH 50. With ex-
panded growth in the Village, these two areas will become more attractive to area residents—making
then more viable, marketable locations for economic activities, The Village should commission one
detailed study of both sites, or two separate studies to ensure high-quality, functional, cohesive de-
velopment is obtained in these two importaat areas of the Village.

The concept for the “Brass Ball Corner” is that of a Village “center” — a place for the Village to meet,
shop, recreate and work. The mix of uses should correspond to these intended actvities, with some
office, retail, residential and park/open space uscs. By contrast, the “Neighborhood Center” should
serve as the Eastside Growth Area’s service center or commercial ncighborhood, with office, retail,
and residential land uses built on a neighborhood scale, and designed for pedestrian access as a pri-
mary goal.

As with the STH 50 corridor, establishment of a redevelopment tax incremental financing district
may be advisable to fully implement the future Master Plan(s) and to accomplish these larger devel-
opment and redevelopment objectives. Chapter Three provides a more complete description of the
mixed use designated for these two areas.
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Plan for Economic Development Opportunities in the Southeast Growlh Area

This Plan recommends high-quality new industrial and possibly office development south of STH 50
east of the current Village limits (sce Map 4). Low-impact research and light assembly uses may be
appropriate for this area, since it has good access to the Interstate. Identifying this area for economic
development may also minimize the need to identify potentially less appropriate areas in the Village
for economic development.

As development of this area becomes more imminent, a new roadway should be constructed to serve
this area, including designation as a truck route. This Plan recognizes that the market for these uses
and utilities to this area will take several yeats to develop. In the meantime, the Village should work
to create a more detailed vision for uses appropriate for the site. In addition, the Village may want to
consider creating a “phasing” approach to development in this area, in order to focus the Village’s
initial efforts, and also to provide for a fong-term expansion area for its industrial area.

Consider Linking Residential Growth fo Economic Development Expansion

As suggested in Chapter Six, the Village’s may want to consider phasing residential development to
manage developer expectations and realistically time public utility expansion. The process of creating
this phasing plan should consider linking residential phasing to the expansion of economic develop-
ment opportunitics in the Village. For example, a particular phasing area may be opened up for de-
velopment sooner than otherwise allowed if the developer directly provided or actively promoted a
sufficient amount of non-residential development either on-site or elsewhere in the Village. For
Jarge-scale residential areas, the Village may also consider requiring developers to include non-
residential development components to create convenient, walkable destinations for surrounding
residents, and enhance tax base opportunities.

Work to Retain tocally Grown Businesses

Locally grown and owned businesses are onc of the Village’s greatest assets. Many Jocal businesses
have been in the Village for many years and have become a part of the “fabric” of the community.
Since many business owners also live in the community, there is a much greater likelihood that the
profits (not just the payrolls) will be spent locally as well. Local business development and retention

"should be key aspects of the Village’s economic development program. Resources for these busi-

aesses include business mentoring services and small business loans, but no local entity provides
these services as a service to local business owners. Included below is a recommendation to establish
an economic development committee, which could assist with this.

Pursue New Commercial Development that Caters to Local Consumers

Tike many other communities in Kenosha County, there is a mismatch in the Village between the
purchasing power of local households and the number of Jocal establishments where purchases can
be made. This results in a significant leakage of wealth from the community, and unnecessary auto-
mobile trips to the City of Kenosha, and into Illinois where residents travel for much of their shop-
ping. A greater quantity and variety of everyday retail shopping geated specifically toward the focal
market would help re-circulate focal wealth while bolstering Village tax revenues. More local shop-
ping and employment, combined with a greater emphasis on trail and sidewalk construction, would
also put less strain on regional roads (e.g., STH 50) resulting in less auto pollution and greater con-
venience. Much of this new retail can be accommodated through the redevelopment and/or re-
positioning of existing marginal commercial propertics along STH 50 and planned mixed-use devel-
opment around the “Brass Ball Corner” and the “Neighborhood Center” areas.

Establish Economic Development Committee or Community Development Au-
thority

"This Plan proposes an assertive program of economic development and redevelopment that will re-
quire a proactive and directed approach. The Village should explore options to create a standing
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committee of public officials and private interests with the sole purpose of advancing economic de-
velopment and redevelopment initiatives expressed in this Plan.

There are at least two types of groups that may be considered to meet this recommendation. One op-
tion is to consider establishing a Village Economic Development Committee, made up of business
and industry interests that have experience working in the community. As an alternative, the Village
could work to establish a Community Development Authority (CDA) to spearhead publicly-driven
economic development and redevelopment activities in Paddock Lake. Under Wisconsin statutcs, a
CDA can be authorized with the authority to incur debt, acquire and assemble property, capitalize
loan funds, and implement a variety of other economic development programs. CDAs serve as par-

ticularly useful mechanisms for redevelopment in older areas. In such cases, their main role is to

overcome the factors that stand in the way of privately-led redevelopment initiatves. These may in-
clude aging or inadequate infrastructure and fragmented property ownership. The recommended re-
development of portions of the STH 50 corridor and the creation of an industrial park on the Vil-
lage’s east side are two places where a Paddock Lake CDA could play a major role in the Village’s fu-
ture,

Pursue Economic Developmentin a Pro-active, Yet Judicious Manner

Economic development, if it is to be done well, involves much more than zoning lands for commer-
cial or industrial development and letting the market take its course. Zoning cannot actively recruit or
hand-select the best business or developer fora given project o site. Business recruiment and reten-
tion programs must be developed, properties assembled, sequests for proposals written, inquires an-

swered, developer agreements executed, and incentive programs administered. Such programs must
be staffed and funded.

Thoughtful planning and preparation now will allow the Village to remain selective in the future, As
it becomes recognized that the Village’s well-managed physical environment and community facilities
are its greatest assets, quality development will encourage yet more quality development. Developers
will better understand the community’s expectations for new development at the outset, and be more
confident that their investment will be protected by sound planning decisions down the road, Weak

.planning, by contrast, creates uncertainty in real estate markets and discourages investment.

To help the Village evaluate and priotitize this Plan’s economic development strategy recommenda-
tions, Chapter One includes a checklist and suggested timeline to guide Paddock Lake in this “pro-
active, yet judicious” effort.
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VIIl. INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION

As the Village of Paddock Lake and its neighboring townships contnuc to grow, implementation of this Plan
will benefit from careful coordination among the local municipalities. This coordination poses polidcal chal-
lenges. This Plan is designed to anticipate intergovernmental issues, and form a clear basis for resolving them.

The Village desires increased cooperation with neighboring towns regarding its goals of fiscally-responsible,
environmentally-sound, and visually pleasing development. It recognizes that successful cooperation furthers
the development of community identity, diverse high-quality residential arcas, and safe and economical trans-
portation systems.

To provide a regional framework for this cffort, this chapter contains a compilation of background informa-
tion, goals, objectives, policies and recommended programs for joint planaing and decision making with other
jurisdictions, and includes required information under §66.1 001, Wisconsin Statutes.

A. Existing Regional Framework

The following is a brief description of the units of government
operating around the Village of Paddock Lake, as well as a de-
scription of other regional and State jurisdictions in the plan-
ning area. Map 1 shows the boundaries of the various jurisdic-
tions in the region.

1. Village of Paddock Lake

The Village of Paddock Lake 1s a sub-regional center

_ for educational, employment, commerce, transporta-

) tion, recreation, and housing and municipal service re-

' sources. With this status comes a range of responsibili-
ties and challenges which require a broad perspective.
Beyond the numerous chailenges related to edge
‘growth, many of the most pressing planning and devel-
opment issues facing a village concern the intricate rela-
tionship between edge growth and more central, older
portions of the community. This Plax is designedto  ZEEsas S :
place the Village in a politcal and cconomic position to successfully ¢ I the quality of edge de-
velopment, while at the same time not sacrificing the viability of more centrally-located areas of the
community.

2. The Village of Silver Lake
The Village of Silver Lake has an estimated 2004 population of 2,435 residents. It is located south-
west of the Village of Paddock Lake. The Village has a recently-updated zoning ordinance, a subdivi-
sion ordinance, and a recently-updated park and open space plan. It intends to update its compre-
hensive plan in conjunction with the joint comprehensive planning effort in Kenosha County, likely
to take place in 2005 or 2006, The extraterritorial jutisdiction of the two Villages overlaps and an es-
tablished ET] boundary is in place. This ET] boundary is shown on Map 1: Jurisdictional Boundaries
and Map 4: Planned Land Use.

3. Surrounding Towns
Paddock Lake is situated adjacent to:

*  The Town of Salem, which surrounds the Village on all sides except the north, The Town of
Salemn is the second-fastest growing community in the County, behind the Village of Pleasant
Prairie, as measured by the rate of growth between 2000 and DOA population estimates for

.
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January 1, 2004. Tts 2004 estimated populadon was 10,767 persons, or a 9% increase from 2000.
The arca that is now the Village of Paddock Lake was part of the Town of Salem prior to 1960,
so the Town and Village have a closely shared history and many cultural, social and €conomic
tes.

Closer coordination berween the Village and the Town is needed to determine the most logical
development pattern that is fiscally-responsible and provides a high-quality living environment
for the arca’s residents. The Intergovernmental Forum held on October 18, 2004 began this
process and this Plan strongly encourages that this dialog continue to ensure that land use plan-
ning is done in a proactive, not reactive environment, with strong, clear guidance from both
units of government about their development expectations and desites. This will ensure that
both communities do not find themselves in a “race to the bottom”, allowing rapid, pootly
planned development to squander the area’s land resources, rural character, and excellent quality
of life.

The Town has an adopted land use plan (amended in 1999) that recommends urban develop-
ment within the Town’s sewer service area, but within the Village’s 1.5-mile ET] area. Map 4of
this Plan identifies some areas within the Town’s sewer service area as eventually becoming part
of the Village. The Village understands that some arcas within the Town’s sewer service area
(generally south of CTH AH) would become part of the Town’s developed areas, as well. In ad-
dition, the Town is currently pursuing ncighborhood planning in a number of planning areas, in-
cluding the area within its Sewer Service Area, directly west of the Village limits. This area has
been identified as a growth area for the Village of Paddock, as well, on Map4. The Village in-
rends to resolve the discrepancies between the Town’s adopted land use plan and Map 4 of this
Plan through an intergovernmental agreement, described more fully below. The Village has
adopted a resolution formally stating their desire to and authorizing the Village’s officials and
staff to pursue such an agreement.

The Town will likely cooperate in the County’s future comprehensive planning process.

s The Town of Brighton lies to the north of 60% Street on the Village’s north side. Its 2004 esti-
mated population was 1,504 persons, an increase of almost 4% from 2000 Census figures. The
Town of Brighton has a strong farmland preservation ethic with a desire to remain predomi-
nantly rural in character. The Town has agreed to not subdivide any lots smaller than 5 acres and
has no plans to create a sewer service arca. The Town plans to be a part of the County’s future
comprehensive planning effort, as well, The Village respects the Town of Brighton’s commit-
ment to farmland preservation and a rural character and has indicated it will not annex land
notth of 60t Street within their extraterritorial jurisdiction, These mutual objectives could be
formalized through an intergovernmental agreement, if desired.

*  The Town of Bristol lies within the Village's one-and-a-half mile extraterritorial jusisdiction,
just east of 216™ Avenue. Although more populous than the Town of Brighton, with an esti-
mated 2004 population of 4,692 persons, the Town of Bristol has similar goals for agricultural
preservation and protection of rural character in the areas adjacent to the Village. The Town has
three growth areas identified in its land use plan, areas which will be served by either City of
Kenosha or Village of Pleasant Prairie udlites. They intend to update their 1992 Jand use plan
during the County’s future comprehensive planning process. These mutual objectives could be
formalized through an intergovernmental agreement, if desired.

=  The Town of Paris lics on the northeast corner of the Village’s one-and-a-half mite extraternto-
rial jurisdiction, north of the Town of Bristol and east of the Town of Brighton. Most of the land
area within the overlapping Town and Village ET] areais in an environmental corridor, with
some scattered rural housing and farmiand. The Town has a strong commitment to farmland
preservation and protection of rural character. Paris’s 2004 estimated population is 1,514 per-
sons.
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4.

Kenosha County

Kenosha County, located along Lake Michigan and within the commuting shed of the City of
Kenosha, the City of Racine, the Chicago metropolitan area, and the City of Milwaukee, is expetienc-
ing rapid development. The County covers 273 square miles and is located in the southeastern part of
Wisconsin. The Village is situated about 103 miles east of Madison, 43 miles southwest of Milwau-
kee, and 67 miles northwest of Chicago. The County’s estimated 2003 population is 154,234 resi-
dents. The County is made up of 12 local units of government: 7 towns, 4 villages, and 1 city. Lo-
cated at its east central boundary, the City of Kenosha serves as the County seat and is the largest ur-
ban area in the County.

Kenosha County has coordinated with SEWRPC to create a conceptual framework for 2 multd-
jurisdictional comprehensive planning program in the County. The County intends to apply fora
smart growth grant in late 2004,

Regional Planning Jurisdiction (SEWRPC)

The Village of Paddock Lake is located within the Southeast Wisconsin Regional Planning Commis-
sion’s (SEWRPC) planning jurisdicton. The SEWRPC is the comprehensive planning agency for the
counties of Kenosha, Milwaukee, Ozaukee, Racine, Walworth, Washington, and Waukesha, Since
1963, SEWRPC has provided regional planning services for the seven metropolitan counties in
southeastern Wisconsin. The SEWRPC provided technical planning assistance to the Village by pre-
pating the 2001 Amendment to the Regional Water Quality Plan in December 2001. SEWRPC is co-
ordinating the preparation of the County’s smart growth plans with the agency’s sewer service area
plans,

State Agency Jurisdictions

There are several State agencies that affect planning in the Village and all of Kenosha County. The
Village is located within the Wisconsin Department of Transportation’s (WisDOT) District 2 Region,
with its regional office located in Waukesha. It is located in the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resoutces” (WisDNR) Southeast Region, with its regional office in Milwaukee and its service centers
located in Waukesha, Plymouth, and Sturtevant. The University of Wisconsin Extension office is fo-
‘cated in the Town of Bristol and serves as an educational resource for Village residents. The Village
recognizes the importance of working with these State agencics during the course of this plan prepa-
ration process; particularly in data gathering and discussing specific planning issues.

Schoo! Districts

There are three school districts that operate within the Village. These districts comprise a portion of
the Westosha Central Feeder Schools Consortium, which is made up of six school districts in
Kenosha County. The school district boundaries are shown on Map 1. The districts are outlined be-
low.

*  The Central High School District of Westosha is the largest District in the County, servicing
most of the Towns of Paris, Bristol, Brighton, and Wheatland, and a little less than half the
Town of Salem. It operates the Westosha Central High School on the Village’s southwest side.

= ‘The Brighton Elementary School District operates Brighton Elementary, serving Village resi-
dents north of 60 Strect.

»  The Salem Grade School District operates the Salem Grade School (I-8), which serves the re-
mainder of the Village.

There are no known conflicts between the plans, policies, and programs of the three School Districts
and Village’s Plan.
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B. Intergovernmental Cooperation Goals, Objectives and Policies

Goal: Work with other governments to sustain muluaily beneficial relationships.

Objectives, Policies, and Programs:

a.

Cooperate with the Town of Brighton, Town of Brstol, Town of Salem, Kenosha County,
SEWRPC, other area local governments, local school districts (shown on Map 1), and state agencies
on land use, transportation and community and economic development issues of mutual concern.

Cooperate with neighboring governments, school districts, Kenosha County and State agencies on
providing shared services and facilities.

Participate in County-level and regional transportation, land use and economic development efforts.

Work with the towns and County to encourage an orderly, efficient land use pattern that preserves
rural character and minimizes land use conflicts, especially in the Village’s one-and-a-half mile extra-
territorial jurisdiction.

C. Intergovernmental Cooperation Recommendations

1. Attempt in earnest to enter into an intergovernmen-

lowing objectives:

tal agreement with the Town of Salem. Due to the
conflicts between the Town’s adopted land use plan and
subsequent neighborhood planning with Map 4 of this
Plan, the Village intends to enter into negotiations with
the Town to adopt a lasting intergovernmental agreement
that will work to the benefit of both jurisdictions.

The intergovernmental agreement should accomplish fol-

" To establish long-term Village boundaries;

" Resolve conflicts between Town of Salem neighbor-
hood plans for areas located in the Village’s planned -
growth areas to ensure efficient planning for both ju-
risdictions;

=  Limit development in areas outside the Village’s
planned sanitary sewer service area and outside the
Town’s sanitary sewer Service area, and within the
Villages one-and-a-half mile extraterritorial jurisdic-
don (ET]);

»  Determine which entity will provide public water and

ublic sewer service to the Westside Growth Area, as
identified in Map 4;

*  Minimize confusion and improve predictability re-
garding development in the area;

®  Determine planned land uses for areas of the Town within the Village’s extraterritotial planning
area,
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The Wisconsin Legislature has enacted a law that establishes a formal procedure and standards for
enacting long-term, binding intergovernmental agreements. A critical component of these agree-
ments may be a mutually acceptable annexation limit boundary, which is typically paired with limits
on development within the unincorporated area in the Village’s ET]. Through this planning process,
the Village has begun to work with the Town of Salem to identify issues to be resolved through an
intergovernmental agreement.

1t must be noted that this legislation imposes a time-consuming and procedurally complicated system
for exploring mutual concerns and arriving at a final agreement. Tinder the statute, such an agree-
ment can be made binding for up to 20 years, and will prohibit future elected bodies from breaking
the agreement, except under a formalized agreement modification process and the concurrence of all
parties. This process requires the involvement of the State Department of Administration to ensure
that all necessary procedures and standards are in compliance. Even after the completion of the in-
tergovernmental agreement, the Village and the Town should continue to engage in dialogue on is-
sues of common concern.

Deny land divisions (plats and certified survey maps) that do not conform to intent of this
Plan. This includes the following strategies, which vary depending on the location of the develop-
ment proposal.

» \WHERE: Within the areas shown on the Planned Land Use Map as growth areas (not
Agricultural /Rural land use designations).

STRATEGY: The Village should deny any tand divisions that would result in densities in excess
of one lot per 35 acres of land until those areas can be annexed and secved by public water and
sanitary sewer. The Village should deny land divisions that do not conform to the Planned Land
Use Map land use designations, or the design standards that are outlined in this Plan. In addition,
the Village should deny land divisions that are on lands not within or not intending to annex into
the Village’s corporate limits.

x WHERE: Outside those growth areas on lands designated for Agricultural /Rurat land

uses, but within the Village’s one-and-a-half mile extraterritorial jurisdiction.

STRATEGY: The Village should deny proposals for rural land divisions at a density greater
than one lot per 35 acres, to ensure that productive agricultural Jand and rural community char-
acter is maintained, except as authorized by an intergovernmental agreement.

Participate with Kenosha County, SEWRPC, the Kenosha Business Alliance and other communities
on economic development initiatives to promote a balanced economy, as discussed in Chapter
Seven.

Cooperate with other units of government, the County, SEWRPC and WisDNR on preservation of
natural resources as discussed in Chapter Two.

Cooperate with the County, adjacent towns, SEWRPC, and WisDOT on maintaining and improv-
ing the Village’s transportation system as discussed in Chapter Six.

Participate with other units of government on joint community facility and utility concerns,
including;
= Agreements related to fire, library, and EMS service provision.

" Work with WisDNR to obtain funding for improvements to park and recreational facilities
and new trail and/or path connections as discussed in Chapter Four.
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7.

8.

Seek County cooperation and state and federal assistance to support adequate housing opportuni-
ties for residents, as described in Chapter Six.

Minimize intergovernmental conflict and ensure that the policies and recommendations of this Plan
are implemented by participating in the Kenosha County’s and the towns’ future comprehen-
sive planning process and providing input to the three area school districts regarding long

term district planning, especially the Central/Westosha School District.

Provide copies of this Comprehensive Plan and Ruture amendments to all surrounding govern-
meats for review and comment, and encourage its adoption as provisions into the future Kenosha
County comprehensive plan.
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IX. IMPLEMENTATION

The recommendatons of this Comprebensive Plan will require specific follow-up actions to become reality. This
final chapter of the Pfan is intended to provide the Village of Paddock Lake with a roadmap for these imple-
mentation actions. It includes a compilation of programs and specific actions to be completed in a stated se-
quence, as required under §66.1001, Wisconsin Statutes.

A. Plan Adoption

The Village of Paddock Lake Comprebensite Plan must be adopted in a manner which suppotts its future use for
more detailed decision-making. The Village has included all necessary elements for this Plar to be adopted as
a “Smart Growth” plan under the State’s comprehensive planning statute. "T'his has included a Village Plan
Comimission recommendation, distribution of the recommended Plan to affected local governments, a formal
public hearing, and Village Board adoption of the Plan by ordinance.

B. Implementation Recommendations

Figure 32 provides a detailed list and timeline of the major actions that the Village should complete to imple-
ment the Comprebensive Plan. Often, such actions will require substantial cooperation with others, including
neighboring communities, economic development agencies, County government, the Southeast Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission, state agencies, and local property owners. The table has three columns of
information, described as follows:

% Cutegory: The list of recommendations is divided into seven different categories based on the different
chapters of this Pl

= Reommendation: The second column lists the actual acdons recommended to implement key aspects of the
Comprebensive Plan. The recommendations are for Village actions that might be considered in an annual
work program, recognizing that many of these actions may not occut without cooperaton from others.

»  Implementation Timeframe: The third column responds to the new State comprehensive planning statute,
which requites implementation actions to be listed in a “stated sequence.” The suggested timeframe for
the completion of each recommendadon reflects the priority attached to the recommendation. Suggested
implementation timeframes span the next 10 years, because the Plan will have to be updated by 2015.
Other Village government priodties, time constraints, and budget constraints may affect the completion
of the recommended actions in the timeframes presented.
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Figure 32; Implementation Actions

. Implementation
Recommendation Reference b

Category Timeframe

Prepare a detailed Neighborhood Development Plan
for the four identified growth areas, The Brass Ball :
Corners and Neighborhood Center should be in- Three, Six, 2005 — 2006
cluded in these detailed plans, or they could have their and Seven
own detailed neighborhood plans.

Chapters

Chapters
Prepare a Redevelopment Plan and implemcntation Three and 2006 - 2007
Detailed Planning | strategy for the S$TH 50 redevelopment area, Seven

Update the Village’s Comprehensive Outdoor Rec-
reation Plan, responding to advice in this Comprehensive | Chapter

Plan, including exploration of a park improvement fee, Seven 2005
and an analysis of potential community patk and natu-
ral area locations.
Update Zoning Ordinance:
e Incorporate more detailed standards for build-
ing, site, and landscaping design for multiple
family, commercial, and industrial projects, or
reference the standards in this Plan. Chapters
e Create the following new zoning districts: Two, 2005 - 2007

Neighborhood Office and/or Neighborhood Threc, Six, (
Business, Planned Office, Planned Business, Seven
Planned Industrial, General Business, and Village
Center.

e Change A-A zoning district to limit lot density to
one lot per 35 acres of land.

Ordinances Consider amendments to the Subdivision Ordinance Chapters
to implement recommendations of this Pla# and align ':!:'hrec., 2005-2007
with adopted zoning ordinance changes. Five, Six
Adopt the floodplain boundaries desctibed in the Chapter
Des Plaines River Plan and a floodplain ordinance to Two 2005-2006
limit development in the floodplains.
Create an Official Map to reflect the roadway, bike- Chapters
way, pedestrian, greenway and utility recommendations Fou:: and 2006-2007
of this Plan. Five
Chapter
Study possibility of an Impact Fee ordinance. Five 2006-2007
Agricultural, Protect groundwater supplies by implementing 2 well- Chapter
Matural, and head protection plan for existing and newly con- Two 2006-2007
Cultural Resources | structed wells.

L
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Recommendation

Comprehensive Plan

Reference

Implementmion

Timeframe
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Remaifl informe.d about new permits for high- Clr}apter Ongoing
capacity wells in the area. wo
Work with other jursdictions and the State to com- Chapter
plete a cultural, historic, and archeological survey Two, 2008-2009
of the area, to be used for economic development and Chapter 7
tourism purposes.
Chapters
Implement fand use recommendations of this Com- Thme; 20005 and
prebensive Plan. Five, Six ongoing
and Seven
Land Use
Implement the land use recommendations of the more Chapters 2006 2nd
detailed plans and ordinances advised above and Thrt?e and o ::
intergovernmental agreements advised below. Eight ngolng
Create a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) t0 Chapters
manage funding allocation for mid-term public facility Four and 2005-2015
projects. Five
Coordinate future land development with planned im- Chapter
provements to the public sanitary sewer, Storm SEWCr, TWOI and 2005-2015
and the water distribution systems, guiding urban Five
development into areas with public utilities.
Implement recommendations of Sanitary Sewer Chgpte: 2005-2008
Evaluation Study (SSES). Five
Identify the land in-and arotmd the Village that re- Chapter 20062007
: . charges (through infiltration) wells and create a plan Five
Transportation | to protect these areas from contamination.
and Community
Facilities Develop contamination contingency plans for acci- Ch?fPtef 2007
dental spills. Five
Address stormwater management issues described in Cll‘jpt“ 2005-2015
Chapter Five. e
Implement remaining recommendations from 1999
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan and update Ch;%ptcr 2005
this plan to maintain grant eligibility and address new Five
patk facility needs.
Complete a comprehensive space needs study for Vil- Ch?Pt"'f 2008-2009
Iage facilities over the 20-year planning period. Five
Work with the area school districts to evaluate long Ch:?pte: 2005-2008
term facility and siting needs. Five
Housing and When reviewing !Tousxfxg dev;iopn.\ent proposals, use Chapters
Economic thC. drccommendatlons in the Housing Chapter as 2 Threfa and Ongoing
Development guide: Six
101
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Implementation

Recommendation Refetence

Category Timeframe
Consider linking residential growth to economic devel- Chapter
opment expansion to help rebalance the Villages tax Seven 2005-2015
base,
Housing and Establish a 'Cc?mmumt?' Qevelopment Authm_lty . 2005 (creation)
Economic (CDA) or similar organization to enhance the Village’s
Devel economic development and advance redevelopment. Chapter 20006 and ongo-
cvelopment Chasge this group to prepare an economic develop- Seven ing (project im-
(Continued ment action strategy implement the other eco- lementation
gy imp 1%
nomic development recommendations of this Plan.
Chapters
Pursue an intergovernmental agreement with the Three and 2005-2006
Towns of Brighton, Bristol, and Pas. Eight
Chapters
Pursue an intergovernmental agreement with the Three and 2005-2006
Town of Salem. Eight
Intergovernmental
Cooperation Deny land divisions (plats and certified survey maps) Chapter 2005-2015
that do not conform to intent of this Plan. Seven
Send copies of this Plan to all required and affected Chaptet
parties and stay abreast of the upcoming County’s Seven 2005-2008
comprehensive planning process.
Monitor the pace and mix of development activity and Chapter Annual review
the Village’s performance against this Comprebensive One process
Plan, and consider amendments as approptiate.
Update development-related ordinances that imple- See above 2005-2007
Plan Monitoring | ment the Plan.
Chapter
Update this Comprebensive Plan. OEP_ In 2010 and 2015

C. Plan Monitoring, Amendments, and Update

The Village should regularly evaluate its progress towasds achieving the recommendations of the Comprebensive
Plan, and amend and update the Plar as appropriate. This section suggests recommended criteria and proce-
dures for monitoring, amending, and updating the Plar.

1. Plan Monitoring
The Village should constanty evaluate its decisions on private development proposals, public in-
vestments, regulations, incentives, and other actions against the recommendations of this Compreben-
sive Plan, Before submitting a formal application to the Village for development approval, the Village
urges petitioners to discuss the request conceptually and informally with the Village Plan Commis-
sion. Conceptual review almost always results in an improved development product and can save the
petitioner dme and money.
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The Village Plan Commission should, on an annual basis, teview its decisions on private develop-
ment proposals over the previous year against the recommendations of this P/an. This will help keep
the Plan a “living document.”

Plan Amendments

Amendments to this Comprebensive Plan may be appropriate in the years following initial Pfan adoption
and in instances where the Plan becomes irrelevant or contradictory to emerging policy or trends.
“Amendments” are generally defined as minor changes to the Plan maps ot text. Frequent amend-
ments to accommodate specific development proposals should be avoided.

The State comprehensive planning law requires that the Village use the same basic process to amend,
add to, or update the Comprebensive Plan as it used to initially adopt the Plan. This means that the pro-
cedures defined under Section 66.1001(4) Wisconsin Statutes need to be followed. Specifically, the

Village should use the following procedure to amend, add to, or update the Comprebensive Plan:

a. Either the Village Board or Plan Commission initiates the proposed Conmprebensive Plan amend-
ment. This may occur as a result of a regular Plan Commission review of the Plan, or may by ini-
tiated at the request of a property owner or developer.

b, The Village Board adopts a resolution oudlining the procedures that will be undertaken to ensure
public participation during the plan amendment process (see Secton 66.1001(#)a of Statutes).

c. The Village Plan Commission prepares or directs the preparation of the specific text or map
amendment to the Comprebensive Plan.

d. ‘The Village Plan Commission holds one or more public meetings on the proposed Comprebensive
Plan amendment. Following the public meeting(s), the Plan Commission makes a recommenda-
tion by resolution to the Village Board by majority vote of the entire Commission (sec Section
66.1001(4)b of Statutes and model resolution in this Plan).

e. The Village Clerk sends a copy of the recommended Plan amendment (not the entire Compreben-
sive Plan) to all adjacent and surrounding government jurisdictions as required under Secdon
66.1001(4)b, Wisconsin Statutes. Metallic minc operators, any person who has registered 2 mar-
ketable nonmetallic mineral deposit with the local government, and any other property owner or
leaseholder who has requested notification in writing must be also informed at this time. These
governments and individuals should have at least 30 days to review and comment on the rec-
ommended plan amendment.

f. The Village Clerk directs the publishing of a Class 1 notice, with such notice published at least 30
days before a Village Board public hearing and containing information required under Section
66.1001({4)d, Wisconsin Statutes.

g. The Village Board holds the formal public heating on an ordinance that would incorporate the
proposed amendment into the Comprebensive Plan.

h. Following the public hearing, the Village Board approves (or denies) the ordinance adopting the
proposed Plan amendment. Adoption must be by a majority vote of all members. The Village
Board may require changes from the Plan Commission recommended version of the proposed
Plar amendment.

i. 'The Village Clerk sends a copy of the adopted ordinance and Plan amendment (not the entire
Cowsprebensive Plan} to all adjacent and surrounding government jurisdictions, metatlic mine opera-
tors, any person who has registered a marketable nonmetallic mineral deposit with the local gov-
ernment, and any other property owner or leascholder who has requested notification in writdng
as required under Sectons 66.1001(#)b and ¢, Wisconsin Statutes.
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3. Plan Update

The State comprehensive planning law requires that the Comprebensive Plan be updated at least once
every ten years. As opposed to an amendment, an update is often a substantial re-write of the plan
document and maps. Further, on January 1, 2010, zoning, subdivision and official map decisions will
have to be consistent with locally-adopted comprehensive plans. Based on these two deadlines, the
Village should implement the recommendations included in Figure 30 and complete a full update its
Consprebensive Plan before the year 2015 (e, ten years after 2005) at the latest. The Village should con-
tinue to monitor any changes to the language or interpretations of the State law over the next several

years,

D. Consistency Among Plan Elements

The State comprehensive planning statute requires that the implementation element “describe how each of
the elements of the Comprebensive Plan shall be integrated and made consistent with the other elements of the
Comprebensive Plan.” Preparing the various elements of the Village of Paddock Lake Comprebensive Plan simultane-
ously has ensured that there are no known internal inconsistencies between the different elements of this

DPlan.

Adopted: April 20, 2005 104



Village of Paddock Lake Comprehensive Plan

PLAN COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2005-
ADOPTING AND RECOMMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
FOR THE VILLAGE OF PADDOCK LAKE IN KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN

WHEREAS, section 66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes, establishes the required procedure for a
local government to adopt a compeehensive plan, and section 66.1001(2) identifies the required ele-
ments of a comprehensive plan; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Paddock Lake Plan Commission has the authority to recommend
that the Village Board adopt a “comprehensive plan” under section 66.1001(4)(b); and

WHEREAS, the Village has prepared the attached document (named Village of Paddock Lake
Comprebensive Plan), containing all maps and other descriptive matetials, to be the comprehensive
plan for the Village under section 66.1001, Wisconsin Statutes; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the Village of
Paddock Lake hereby adopts the attached Comprehensive Plan as the Village’s comprehensive plan un-
der section 66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes; and '

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Secretary of the Plan Commission cettifies a copy
of the attached Comprebensive Plan to the Village Board; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the Plan Commission hereby recommends that, follow-
ing a public hearing, the Village Board adopt an ordinance to constitute official Village approval of
the 17/lage of Paddock Lake Coniprebensive Plan as the Village’s comprehensive plan under section
66.1001, Wisconsin Sratutes,

Adopted this 21st day of January, 2005,

David Breunig, Plan Commission Chair

Attest;

Emily Uhlenhake, Plan Commission Secretary
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May 12, 2008
Eamest Mooney, Administrator Randy Kerkman, Administrator
Village of Paddock Lake Town of Bristol
6969 236™ Avenuc 19801 83" Street
Paddock Lake, W1 53168 Bristol, WI 53104
Re: Approval of the “Village of Paddock Lake/Town of Bristol Cooperative Plan

Under Section 66,0307, Wisconsin Statutes”
Dear Administrators Mooney and Kerkman:

On behalf of the Department of Administration, I am pleased to provide you with our approval of
your cooperative boundary agreement.

Congratulations on your success in reaching agreement on the future of development, municipal

boundaries, and services in your communities. Your collaboration establishes the foundation for
decades of future cooperation that will not only guide you, but will also be a useful example and
resource for other jurisdictions throughout Wisconsin.

Should you have any questions conceming our approval document, or subsequent cooperative
agreement implementation issues, please do not hesitate to contact me at (608) 264-6102.

Sincerely,

Erich Schmidtke
Municipal Boundary Review
Division of Intergovernmental Relations
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Cec: Susan Sager, Town of Bristol Attorney
William White, Town of Bristol Attorney
Jeffrey Davison, Paddock Lake Attorney
Mike Johnson, Supervisor, Village of Paddock Lake Sewer Utility
Clerk, Village of Sturtevant
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Antonette Seitz, Town of Salem Clerk
William Morris, Town of Somers Administrator
Linda Perona, Town of Brighton Clerk
Orlando Infusino, Town of Paris Clerk
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Jack Fischer, Department of Commerce Secretary
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Matt Frank, Department of Natural Resources Secretary

Marilynn Rudrud, Town of Dover Clerk

Janice Winget, Village of Union Grove Clerk

Mary Hanstad, Village of Sturtevant Clerk
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Frank Busalacchi, Department of Transportation Secretary

Village of Twin Lakes Utility District

Sheila Siegler, Town of Wheatland Clerk

City of Burlington Wastewater Treatment Facility

Walworth County Clerk

Kathleen Richard, Clerk/Treasurer, Village of Twin Lakes
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Introduction

The Wisconsin Department of Administration (Department) approves the submitted agreement
as it meets the Department approval requirements listed in Section 66.0307(5), Wisconsin
Statutes. This is the twenty-first cooperative boundary agreement submitted to, and approved
by, the Department.

The cooperative boundary agreement procedure as set forth in s. 66.0307, Wis. Stats., affords
any combination of cities, villages and towns the opportunity to establish boundary lines and
services between or amongst themselves pursuant to a cooperative boundary agreement that is
approved by the Wisconsin Department of Administration (Department).

On February 11, 2008, the Department of Administration received the Fillage of Paddock
Lake/Town of Bristol Cooperative Plan under Section 66.0307, Wisconsin Statutes (hereinafter
referred to as the “Agreement”), that was approved for submission to the Department by the
Village of Paddock Lake on January 16th, 2008, and by the Town of Bristol on January 14th,
2008.

This Agreement is a continuation of many years of cooperation between the Town and Village
regarding provision of sewer and water and other municipal services, and is actually an
expansion of this cooperation because it addresses municipa! boundaries. This Agreement also
represents implementation of a recommendation in the Village’s comprehensive plan that a
boundary agreement be developed between the Village and Town.

Some of the specific features of the Agreement are:

+ Prevent Annexation - annexation is unpredictable and makes planning and service
provision difficult for both the Town and Village. This agreement resolves this
uncertainty by establishing a boundary between the two municipalities during the term
of the agreement. This boundary is the existing western border of the Town,

e Sewer and water - the Village and Town have cooperated in the past with sewer and
water seivice, This Agreement includes this earlier cooperation and enables it to be
continued in the future.

» General cooperation — the Village and Town also have intergovernmental agreements
related to recycling facilities and shared use of equipment. This agreement recognizes
those agreements.

¢ Extraterritorial jurisdiction — this agreement limits extraterritorial zoning, fand
division, condominium platting, and official mapping by the Village inside the Town,
The Town lies within the Village’s one and a half mile extraterritorial jurisdiction.

¢ Incorporation & consolidation — the Village agrees to not oppose future efforts by the
Town to incorporate, or to consolidate with a neighboring municipality.

An important factor in the success of this Agreement is the fact that the Town and Village
share a vision for land use in Bristo! in the area adjacent to the Village and Town of Salem.
Both agree that preservation of agriculture and rural character is desired for this area, Having a
common vision is likely an important reason why the Village has agreed not to annex into



Bristol. Another reason is that the Village’s designated growth area lies within the Town of
Salem, not the Town of Bristol. This is clear from both the Village of Paddock Lake
Comprehensive Plan (2005) and the Village of Paddock Lake and Town of Salem Cooperative
Boundary Agreement, approved in 2007, that extensively detail the boundaries and relationship
between the Village and Town of Salem, and establishes a ‘Village Growth Area’ within
Salem. Neither of these documents identifies any Bristol lands as being subject to future
Village growth.

Subsequent paragraphs of this approval document will describe the Agreement in more detail.
It is important to understand that this approval document is not a complete restatement of the
Agreement, nor should it be construed as containing all of its nuances and conditions. Specific
details can be found in the text of the Agreement itself. Instead, this approval document
examines whether the Agreement complies with the Department’s review criteria found in s,
66.0307(5)(c), Wis. Stats.

Public Hearing, Resolutions, Referenda and other Procedural Matters

Before a cooperative agreement is submitted to the Department, a number of procedural steps
must occur: These are:

» Joint initiating resolutions passed by each participating municipality authorizing its
governing body to work to negotiate and develop an agreement;

¢ A joint public hearing to receive comments from the public and other governmental
bodies;

¢ Adopting resolutions passed by each participating municipality to approve a final
version of the agreement and approve it being forwarded it to the Department for
review;

* A possible advisory referendum; and

¢ A possible public hearing held by the Department.

Authorizing resolutions were passed by the Village of Paddock Lake on January 19%, 2005 and
by the Town of Bristol on December 13, 2004, As required by s. 66.0307(4)(a) Wis. Stats.
these resolutions were distributed to neighboring municipalities, the county, Southeastern
Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC), area school districts, universities and
vocational and technical colleges, sanitary and utility districts, the Wisconsin Department of
Natural Resources (WDNR), Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT), and the
Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection (WDATCP). The
resolutions and affidavits of providing notice are provided in Attachments E and F of the
Agreement.

Before cooperative boundary plans are submitted to the Department, section 66.0307((4)(a)
Wis. Stats. requires that a joint public hearing be held. In this case, two joint public hearings
were held - one on February 22, 2006 and one on November 29, 2007, both at the Kenosha
County Center in Bristol. Two hearings were held due to the substantial length of time
between the first hearing and submittal to the Department. A second hearing was held fo
ensure that area residents had another opportunity to comment. However, despite these
opportunities, no members of the public appeared to provide comments, A number of public
informational hearings were held prior to these required hearings, so it is possible that area



residents’ concerns and questions, if any, had already been addressed. Notices and transcripts
of the joint public hearings are provided as Attachment A to the Agreement.

Adopting resolutions were passed by the Town on January 14, 2008 and the Village on January
16, 2008 approving a final version of the draft and its submittal to the Department for review.
These resolutions are included in the Agreement as Attachment G.

Following approval of a cooperative boundary agreement by the governing bodies, area
residents may request that an advisory referendum on the agreement be held pursuant to s,
66.0307(4)(e), Wis. Stats. However, no referendum was requested in this case.

Following receipt of a cooperative agreement by the Department, area residents may request
that the Department hold a public hearing. The Department may also on its own motion
conduct a public hearing. However, no citizen request was made in this case. The purpose of
this Agreement is clear and the information submitted to the Department is complete, so the
Department did not on its own schedule a pubtic hearing.

Approval Criteria Applicable to the Department

A cooperative agreement shall be approved by the Department if the Department determines
that all of the following criteria from s. 66.0307(5)(c), Wis. Stats., are met;

(1) The content of the plan under sub. 8. 66.0307(3)(c) to (e) is sufficient to enable the
Department to make the determinations under subds. 2 to Sm,

Information required by statute, and provided by the parties, includes the following
fundamental details:

s Territory covered by the Agreement — the territory subject to this Agreement is the
current jurisdictions of the Town and Village;

¢ Boundary changes — the Agreement specifies that boundaries will not change during
the term of this agreement. The current western boundary of the Town will remain the
boundary between the municipalities throughout the term of the agreement.

»  Term of the Agreement — the term is 30 years from the date of the Department’s
approval of this agreement. The agreement may be automatically extended for 10
additional years if desired by the parties. The basis for the 30-year term is that such a
time is anticipated to be the time required for the Village to assimilate other territory
not in the Town in an orderly basis and cost effective manner,

* Land use - current land use conditions of the agreement territory are identified by
Village and Town comprehensive plans, provided as Attachments 6 and 7. These
plans indicate the anticipated future land use as well.

The above information, along with other information included in the Agreement, provides
sufficient detail to enable the Department to make a finding as to whether the standards in s.
66.0307(3)(c) to (e) Wis. Stats, have been met.



(2) The cooperative plan is consistent with current state laws, municipal regulations and
administrative rules that apply to the fterritory affected by the plan.

The Agreement is consistent with current laws, regulations, and rules affecting the territory.
Both the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission (SEWRPC) and the Kenosha
County Department of Planning and Development reviewed this Agreement and both
jurisdictions support it. SEWRPC commented specifically that the agreement will enhance
local service delivery, provide fogical long-term boundaries, and help to implement
SEWRPC’s regional plans. Both SEWRPC’s and Kenosha County’s letters of support can be
found in the Agreement as Attachment 2.

These letters, along with the Department’s analysis of the Agreement, suggest that the
Agreement will not be in opposition to local, state, and federal laws. Therefore, the Department
finds that this standard is met.

3) Adeguate provision is made in the cooperative plan for delivery of necessary
municipal services fo the territory covered by the plan.

Because the boundaries between the Village and Town will not change under this Agreement,
there was less of a need for the Village and Town to develop and clatify how services will be
provided to the agreement territory, and how service responsibility will be shared or
coordinated. Instead, the Agreement territory will continue to be served by the Town and
County. Therefore, the Agreement contains limited discussion about services. However, it
does enumerate details about municipal water and sewer, stormwater management, planning,
and intergovernmental agreements, which are summarized in the paragraphs below.,

Municipal water and sewer

The Village and the Town, along with the Town of Salem have cooperated over the years with
sewet and water service areas. They cooperated to develop the Sawnitary Sewer Service Areas

for the Town of Salem Utility District No. 1, Village of Paddock Lake, and Town of Bristol
Utility District Nos. 1 and 1B, Kenosha County, Wisconsin (1986) plan document, which has
been amended a number of times since then and approved by SEWRPC,

This Agreement indicates that the Village and Town will continue to provide sewer and water
service to selected areas within their respective communities based on the sewer service area
plan above, and that both Village and Town wastewater treatment plants have sufficient

capacity.

Stormwater management

Construction site maintenance and erosion control ordinances regulating new construction will
be handled in the Village by Chapter XXXIII of the Village’s Code of General Ordinances and
in the Town by Kenosha County’s Comprehensive Zoning Ordinances. Furthermore, the
Agreement indicates that the Village and Town will confer “from time to time” to review and
discuss land use, stormwater management and drainage.




Planning :
The Agreement indicates that the Village has no objection to adopted Town master plans' and

the Town has no objections to adopted Village master plans, and that both communities are
free to adopt or amend master plans in the future. The term ‘master plan’ most likely is
intended to include comprehensive plans defined in s. 66.1001 Wis. Stats., which have largely
subsumed master planning in Wisconsin,

Intergovernmental Agreements

Two existing intergovernmental agreements between the Village and Town are included as

Attachment 1, They relate to cooperating with waste oil and mosquito control facilities and
programs.

For all of the foregoing reasons, the Department finds that adequate provision has been made
for delivery of services.

(4) Any boundary maintained or any boundary change under the cooperative plan is
reasonably compatible with the characteristics of the surrounding community, faking info
consideration present and potential transportation, sewer, water and storm drainage
Jucilities and other infrastructure, fiscal capacity, previous political boundaries and
shopping and social customs.

This Agreement maintains the current municipal boundary line between the Village and the
Town, and it also maintains all of the existing intergovernmental agreements, land use, and
service arrangements.

No information was provided regarding the Town’s fiscal capacity to support services for arcas
within the Agreement territory that are anticipated to be developed. However, Department of
Revenue annual financial reports” show that the Town’s fiscal position is strong. Specifically,
the Town’s reported January 1, 2006 equalized value is $575,785,000. Using 5% of full
equalized value as a legal debt limif results in an increment available for municipal debt of
$28,789,250. Of this amount available for general-purpose borrowing, the Town reports
holding only roughly one-quarter of this amount, or $7,290,000 in general obligation debt for
2006, leaving a great deal of excess borrowing capacity should the need arise. However, the
Town’s plan for limited, compact development within sewer service areas will likely. mean that
that development is cost-effective and efficient and should limit the need for a great deal of
borrowing,

No information was provided regarding how the Agreement is compatible with the
characteristics of the surrounding community. Because the Agreement territory comprises the
entire Town and Village, applying the standard in this case means that the Agreement is

! ‘Master planning’ is a term that is no longer used. It has been replaced by ‘comprehensive planning’,
which is defined in s. 66.1001 Wis. Stats.

22006 Equalized Value Information,” Wisconsia Department of Revenue, reported at
http://www.dor.state.wi.us/siffcotve/06mdy.ndf., Town, Village, and City Taxes Levied 2006- Collected
2007, Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Division of State and Local Finance, Bureau of Property Tax,
County and Municipal, Revenues and Expenditures, Bulletin No. 105 February 2007

2005 Revenues and Expenditures by Wisconsin Counties, Cities, Villages, and Towns for the 2005
Calendar Year, Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Division of State and Local Finance, Bureau of
Property Tax




compatible with surrounding jurisdictions. The letters of support from SEWRPC and Kenosha
County, in Attachment 2, indicate to the Department that the Agreement will have no harmful
effects on surrounding jurisdictions, but will instead be compatible and will support existing
regional plans and programs.

For all of the foregoing reasons, the Department finds that the standard in s. 66.0307(4) Wis.
Stats. is met.

(5) The shape of any boundary maintained or any boundary change under the
cooperative plan is not the result of arbitrariness and reflects due consideration for
compactness of area. Considerations relevant to the criteria under this subdivision include
quantity of land affected by the boundary maintenance or boundary change and
compatibility of the proposed boundary maintenance or boundary change with natural
terrain including general topography, major watersheds, soil conditions, and such features
as rivers, lakes and major bluffs.

The territory covered by this Agreement, along with the decision to maintain the Town’s
current western boundary as the boundary between the Town and Village, perpetuate the status
quo. At well over six square miles, the Agreement territory was likely not based on
considerations of compactness.

However, while the Agreement territory itself may not be compact, the future development
activity that results from, and is supported by this Agreement, is expected to be compact.
Specifically, this Agreement, as well as Bristo!’s land use plan, calls for future development to
be served by municipal sewer and water, and to be contained within the sewer service areas of
Bristol Sanitary Districts 1 and 1B. These areas are located in the northwest corner of the
Town adjacent to USH 50 and south of that in areas surrounding George Lake and Mud Lake,
Notably, the eastern one-half of the Town is not included in the sewer service area.

The Agreement states that development within these limited sewer service areas “will greatly
reduce the prospect of “urban spraw!” and allow for continued sound long range planning
within the Town.” Absent this requirement, the potential for non-compact and “leap frog”
development would be high.’

Because the Agreement provides certainty regarding Town boundaries, there is greater
incentive and ability for the Town to take a thoughtful and go-stow approach to future
development proposals to ensure that it is compact rather than sprawling,

For the foregoing reasons, the Department finds that the compactness standard in s. 66.0307(5)
Wis, Stats, is met.

(5m) The cooperative plan adequately identifies and addresses the significant adverse
environmental consequences fo the natural environment that may be caused by the proposed
Physical development of the ferritory covered by the plan, the municipalities submitfing the
plan have adequately identified and considered alternatives to minimize or avoid the
significant adverse environmental consequences, the proposals in the plan for compliance
with federal environmental laws or regulations and stare environmental laws or rules are

3 Village of Paddock Lake/Town of Bristol Cooperative Plan, section 4,03, page 4.



adequate and the need for safe and affordable housing for a diversity of social and income
groups in each community has been met.

Significant adverse environmental consequences

Section 11 of the Agreement evaluates the environmental consequences of the Agreement,
such as the impact to air and water, energy use, urban sprawl, and pollution. The Village and
Town conclude that the Agreement causes no significant adverse environmental consequences.
According to the Agreement and to the Town’s land use plan, there is no intensive
manufacturing anticipated for the Agreement territory. This lessens the likelihood for air and
water pollution. Concentrating development to within sewer service areas will control urban
sprawl and preserve natural areas, wetlands, floodplains and upland woods, and other natural
features. Preservation of the natural vegetation will help absorb air pollutants and prevent soil
erosion,

Housing
The Town’s land use plan, included with the Agreement as Attachment 7, provides housing

data. This data shows that ample affordable housing exists in the form of multi-family
dwellings and mobile homes/trailer opportunities, which both typically involve lower annual
costs than detached single-family housing. Specifically, 6% of the Town’s total 1,823 housing
units are multi-family and 14% are mobile home/trailer. The plan anticipates that these
affordable opportunities will be continued and even expanded in the future.

Alternatives considered

No alternatives were considered, or deemed necessary for consideration, This may be due to
the desire by the Viilage and Town to maintain the status quo. It may also be due to the fact
that no adverse environmental consequences as a result of the Agreement were identified,
which resulted in no need to consider alternatives,

For the foregoing reasons, the Department finds that the standard in s. 66.0307(5m) Wis. Stats.
is met.

(6) Any proposed planning period exceeding 10 years is consistent with the plan.

The 30-year duration of the Agreement, plus the possible 10-year extension, is determined by
the Department to be consistent with the activities agreed upon by the City and Town, and will
provide sufficient time for the Village to assimilate territory in the Town of Salem, as provided
in the Village of Paddock Lake and Town of Salem Cooperative Boundary Agreement (2007).



Approval

This cooperative boundary agreement between the Village of Paddock Lake and the Town of
Bristol meets the statutory criteria of s. 66.0307, Wis. Stats, Pursuant to authority found in s,
66.0307(5), Wis, Stats., the Wisconsin Department of Administration hereby approves the
agreement.

Henceforth, amendments or revisions to the Agreement can only occur with the approval of the
Town and Village, and with the concurrence of the Wisconsin Department of Administration or
any successor agency granted the authority to administer the provisions of s. 66.0307(8), Wis.
Stats. This Agreement is effective from today’s date, and remains in effect pursuant to the
language and terms contained therein.

Dated this J th day of May, 2008,
By the Wisconsin Department of Administration:

A coe \ O

Harald (Jordy) Jordahl

Acting Administrator

Division of Intergovernmental Relations
Wisconsin Department of Administration

Erich Schmidtke o

Municipal Boundary Review

Division of Intergovernmental Relations
Wisconsin Department of Administration

W/(M ,MVH&@&&?

-

Nark Saunders
Deputy Counsel
Wisconsin Department of Administration
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